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UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS 
FOR THE FIFTH CIRCUIT 

Mark Estabrook, ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Petitioner, 

v. 

Administrative Review Board, 
U.S. Department of Labor, 

Respondent. 

Case No. 19-60716 

_____________ ) 

CERTIFIED LIST OF DOCUMENTS FILED IN 

THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS BEFORE 

THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Pursuant to Rule 17(b)(l)(B) of the Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure, 

Respondent United States Department of Labor hereby files the attached certified 

list describing the documents that constitute the administrative record in the above­

captioned case. 

Dated: November 4, 2019 Respectfully submitted, 

KATES. O'SCANNLAIN 
Solicitor of Labor 

JENNIFER S. BRAND 
Associate Solicitor 

SARAH K. MARCUS 
Deputy Associate Solicitor 
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MEGAN E. GUENTHER 
Counsel for Whistleblower Programs 

sf Shelley E. Trautman 
SHELLEY E. TRAUTMAN 
Attorney 
U.S. Department of Labor 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
RoomN-2716 
Washington, D.C. 20210 
(202) 693-5546 
trautman.shelley.e@dol.gov 

MEGAN E. GUENTHER 
Counsel for Whistleblower Programs 

sf Shelley E. Trautman 
SHELLEY E. TRAUTMAN 
Attorney 
U.S. Department of Labor 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
RoomN-2716 
Washington, D.C. 20210 
(202) 693-5546 
trautman.shelley.e@dol.gov 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certifY that on November 4, 2019, I electronically filed the 

foregoing with the Clerk of the Court for the United States Court of Appeals 

for the Fifth Circuit by using the appellate CM/ECF system. Participants in the 

case are registered CM/ECF users, and service will be accomplished by the 

appellate CM/ECF system. 

sf Shelley E. Trautman 
SHELLEY E. TRAUTMAN 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certifY that on November 4, 2019, I electronically filed the 

foregoing with the Clerk of the Court for the United States Court of Appeals 

for the Fifth Circuit by using the appellate CMlECF system. Participants in the 

case are registered CMlECF users, and service will be accomplished by the 

appellate CM/ECF system. 

sf Shelley E. Trautman 
SHELLEY E. TRAUTMAN 
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Attachment 1 

Certified List of Documents Filed of 
Record in the Administrative Proceedings 

Before the United States Department of Labor 

Attachment 1 

Certified List of Documents Filed of 
Record in the Administrative Proceedings 

Before the United States Department of Labor 
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CERTIFIED LIST OF DOCUMENTS FILED OF RECORD IN THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
PROCEEDING BEFORE THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Mark Estabrook v. Federal Express Corporation 
ALI Case No. 2014-AIR-00022 

ARB Case No. 2017-0047 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the following documents were filed of record with the U.S. 
Department of Labor in the above-referenced administrative proceedings. 

Proceedings before the Administrative Law Judge ("ALJ") 
Case No. 2014-AIR-00022 

1. Dated October 3, 2013 

2. Dated July 15, 2014 

3. Dated August 12, 2014 

4. Dated September 4, 2014 

5. Dated September 10,2014 

6. Dated September 10, 2014 

7. Dated September 24, 2014 

8. Dated October 2, 2014 

9. Date October 27,2014 

10. Dated November 17,2014 

Complaint of Mark Estabrook submitted to the 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), 

with Exhibits 

Secretary's Findings 

Complainant's Objections to Secretary's Finding and 

request for a hearing, enclosing Exhibit A 

ALI's Preliminary Order and Notice of Assignment 

Complainant's Request for Subpoenas to Produce 

Documents 

Counsel for Complainant's request that the ALI issue two 

subpoenas to Produce Documents be issued on Dr. Thomas 

N. Bettes and Dr. George S. Glass 

Letter with Attached Copies of Subpoenas for Dr. 

Thomas N. Bettes and Dr. George S. Glass 

ALI's Notice of Hearing and Prehearing Order 

Copies of Subpoenas Served on Dr. Thomas N. Bettes and 

Dr. George S. Glass 

Complainant's Notice of Motion, Motion, and 

Memorandum to Compel Requests for Admissions, 

Interrogatories, and Requests for Documents 

CERTIFIED LIST OF DOCUMENTS FILED OF RECORD IN THE ADMINISTRATIVE 
PROCEEDING BEFORE THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Mark Estabrook v. Federal Express Corporation 
ALJ Case No. 2014-AIR-00022 

ARB Case No. 2017-0047 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the following documents were filed of record with the U.S. 
Department of Labor in the above-referenced administrative proceedings. 

Proceedings before the Administrative Law Judge ("ALJ") 
Case No. 2014-AIR-00022 

1. Dated October 3, 2013 

2. Dated July 15,2014 

3. Dated August 12,2014 

4. Dated September 4, 2014 

5. Dated September 10,2014 

6. Dated September 10, 2014 

7. Dated September 24, 2014 

8. Dated October 2,2014 

9. Date October 27, 2014 

10. Dated November 17, 2014 

Complaint of Mark Estabrook submitted to the 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), 

with Exhibits 

Secretary's Findings 

Complainant's Objections to Secretary's Finding and 

request for a hearing, enclosing Exhibit A 

ALJ's Preliminary Order and Notice of Assignment 

Complainant's Request for Subpoenas to Produce 

Documents 

Counsel for Complainant's request that the ALJ issue two 

subpoenas to Produce Documents be issued on Dr. Thomas 

N. Bettes and Dr. George S. Glass 

Letter with Attached Copies of Subpoenas for Dr. 

Thomas N. Bettes and Dr. George S. Glass 

ALJ's Notice of Hearing and Prehearing Order 

Copies of Subpoenas Served on Dr. Thomas N. Bettes and 

Dr. George S. Glass 

Complainant's Notice of Motion, Motion, and 

Memorandum to Compel Requests for Admissions, 

Interrogatories, and Requests for Documents 
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11. Dated February 2, 2015 

12. Dated February 18,2015 

13. Dated March 10,2015 

14. Dated March 25, 2015 

15. Dated May 28,2015 

16. Dated June 12,2015 

17. Dated June 17, 2015 

18. Dated June 12, 2015 

19. Dated July 20, 2015 

20. Dated July 24,2015 

21. Dated July 29, 2015 

22. Dated August 12, 2015 

23. Dated August 19, 2015 

24. Dated September 10, 2015 

25. Dated October 8, 2015 

26. Dated October 27, 2015 

ALJ's Order Continuing Hearing 

Complainant's Amended Motion to Compel, with Exhibits 

Counsel for Complainant's letter requesting that his 
Amended Motion to Compel be granted on Default 

Complainant's Motion for a Partial Summary Decision 
including 1) Memorandum of Law; Declaration of 
Complainant and Declaration of Lee Seham, with Exhibits 

ALJ's Order Regarding Discovery and Scheduling 

Notice of Appearance of P. Daniel Riederer as Counsel for 
Respondent 

Letter from Stanley J. Silverstone re: the May 281h Order 
regarding discovery and scheduling concerning the hearing 
schedule 

Respondent's Memorandum in Support ofln Camera 
Inspection of Privileged Documents and Documents 
Designated as Privileged and Submitted for In Camera 
Review with Tabs 1 through 44 

Order Following In Camera Review 

(Fax) Complainant's letter enclosing Notice of Amended 
Motion, Amended Motion, and Memorandum to Compel 
Requests for Admissions, Interrogatories and Request for 
Documents 

Respondent's Letter in regard to FedEx's Supplemental 
document production (letter only) 

ALJ's Notice of Hearing and Prehearing Order 

ALJ's Order to Produce Documents or Show Cause 

ALJ's Order Cancelling Hearing 

ALJ's Order Disallowing Informal Motions 

Complainant's Third Motion to Compel 

11. Dated February 2, 2015 

12. Dated February 18,2015 

13. Dated March 10, 2015 

14. Dated March 25, 2015 

15. Dated May 28, 2015 

16. Dated June 12,2015 

17. Dated June 17,2015 

18. Dated June 12, 2015 

19. Dated July 20,2015 

20. Dated July 24, 2015 

21. Dated July 29,2015 

22. Dated August 12, 2015 

23. Dated August 19,2015 

24. Dated September 10, 2015 

25. Dated October 8, 2015 

26. Dated October 27,2015 

ALJ's Order Continuing Hearing 

Complainant's Amended Motion to Compel, with Exhibits 

Counsel for Complainant's letter requesting that his 
Amended Motion to Compel be granted on Default 

Complainant's Motion for a Partial Summary Decision 
including 1) Memorandum of Law; Declaration of 
Complainant and Declaration of Lee Seham, with Exhibits 

ALJ's Order Regarding Discovery and Scheduling 

Notice of Appearance of P. Daniel Riederer as Counsel for 
Respondent 

Letter from Stanley J. Silverstone re: the May 28th Order 
regarding discovery and scheduling concerning the hearing 
schedule 

Respondent's Memorandum in Support ofIn Camera 
Inspection of Privileged Documents and Documents 
Designated as Privileged and Submitted for In Camera 
Review with Tabs 1 through 44 

Order Following In Camera Review 

(Fax) Complainant's letter enclosing Notice of Amended 
Motion, Amended Motion, and Memorandum to Compel 
Requests for Admissions, Interrogatories and Request for 
Documents 

Respondent's Letter in regard to FedEx's Supplemental 
document production (letter only) 

ALl's Notice of Hearing and Prehearing Order 

ALJ's Order to Produce Documents or Show Cause 

ALJ's Order Cancelling Hearing 

ALl's Order Disallowing Informal Motions 

Complainant's Third Motion to Compel 
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27. Dated November 10, 2015 

28. December 23, 2015 

Respondent's Response to Complainant's Motion to 
Compel 

Order Denying Complainant's Third Motion to Compel and 
Second Notice to Produce Documents for In Camera 

Review 

29. Index of Joint Exhibits 1 through 7 enclosing Disc 

30. Index of Complainant's Exhibits 1 through 47 enclosing Disc 

31. Dated January 20, 2016 

32. Dated February 2, 2016 

33. Dated February 2, 2016 

34. Dated February 8, 2016 

35. Dated February 12,2016 

36. Dated February 16, 2016 

37. Dated February 18,2016 

38. Dated February 18, 2016 

39. Dated February 19, 2016 

40. Dated March 8, 2016 

41. Dated March 10, 2016 

42. Dated April 20, 2016 

Respondent's Memorandum of Law, Privilege log and 
Designated Privileged Documents for In Camera Review 

with enclosed Tabs 1 through 21 

ALJ's Order Following Second In Camera Review 

Order of Reassignment 

ALJ's Notice Assignment and Conference Call 

Letter addressed to Ms. MacAlarney from George 
Diamantopoulos providing firm's change of address 

Complainant's Position Statement in Response to Court's 

Order dated February 8, 2016 

Letter addressed to ALJ Morris re: Notice of Assignment 

and Conference Call Order issued February 8, 2016, 
Respondent provides the status update and statement of 
position on the issues identified in that Order. 

Letter from Daniel Riederer advising will be unavailable 
for the scheduled conference call on March 4, 2016 and 
requesting that the conference call be conducted during the 

week of March 7, 2016 

Email from Barbara Emmons re: Telephone 
conference call Tuesday, March 8, 2016 at 11:00 am 

Official Report of Conference Call, pages 1 through 20, 

enclosed disc 

ALJ's Notice of Hearing and Pre-Hearing Order 

Revised Declaration of Dr. Thomas Bettes 

27. Dated November 10, 2015 

28. December 23,2015 

Respondent's Response to Complainant's Motion to 
Compel 

Order Denying Complainant's Third Motion to Compel and 
Second Notice to Produce Documents for In Camera 

Review 

29. Index of Joint Exhibits 1 through 7 enclosing Disc 

30. Index of Complainant's Exhibits 1 through 47 enclosing Disc 

31. Dated January 20,2016 

32. Dated February 2, 2016 

33. Dated February 2,2016 

34. Dated February 8, 2016 

35. Dated February 12,2016 

36. Dated February 16, 2016 

37. Dated February 18,2016 

38. Dated February 18,2016 

39. Dated February 19,2016 

40. Dated March 8, 2016 

41. Dated March 10, 2016 

42. Dated April 20, 2016 

Respondent's Memorandum of Law, Privilege log and 
Designated Privileged Documents for In Camera Review 

with enclosed Tabs 1 through 21 

ALJ's Order Following Second In Camera Review 

Order of Reassignment 

ALJ's Notice Assignment and Conference Call 

Letter addressed to Ms. MacAlarney from George 
Diamantopoulos providing firm's change of address 

Complainant's Position Statement in Response to Court's 

Order dated February 8, 2016 

Letter addressed to ALJ Morris re: Notice of Assignment 

and Conference Call Order issued February 8, 2016, 
Respondent provides the status update and statement of 
position on the issues identified in that Order. 

Letter from Daniel Riederer advising will be unavailable 
for the scheduled conference call on March 4, 2016 and 
requesting that the conference call be conducted during the 

week of March 7,2016 

Email from Barbara Emmons re: Telephone 
conference call Tuesday, March 8, 2016 at 11:00 am 

Official Report of Conference Call, pages 1 through 20, 

enclosed disc 

ALJ's Notice of Hearing and Pre-Hearing Order 

Revised Declaration of Dr. Thomas Bettes 
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43. Dated April21, 2016 

44. Dated April21, 2016 

45. Dated April29, 2016 

46. Dated May 2, 2016 

47. Dated May 4, 2016 

48. Dated May 5, 2016 

49. Dated May 9, 2016 

50. Dated May 12, 2016 

51. Dated May 13,2016 

52. Dated May 17, 2016 

53. Dated May 17,2016 

54. Dated May 17,2016 

Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment, Supporting 
Memorandum and Exhibits with attached Table of Contents 
-Index of Exhibits to Respondent's Memorandum of 
Points and Authorities in Support of its Motion for 
Summary Decision enclosing Exhibits A through 0 

Letter enclosing 1) Complainant's brief in support of 
its Motion for Summary Judgment 2) Declaration of Mark 
Estabrook with Supporting exhibits A-K, 3) Declaration of 
Lee Seham with supporting exhibits A-N, 4) Declaration of 
Dr. Thomas Bettes, 5) Deposition of Robert Fisher, 6) 
Deposition of Mark Estabrook, 7) Deposition of Todd A. 
Ondra, 8) Deposition of William W. McDonald, 9) 
Deposition of Robert Tice, 10) Supporting Exhibits from 
Deposition, including USB 

Respondents' Response in Opposition to Complainant's 
Motion for Summary Judgment 

Complainant's Pre-Trial motion In Limine 

Letter to ALJ Mon·is from Respondent re: Evidentiary 
Exclusion 

ALJ's Order Addressing Complainant's Motions to 
Exclude Evidence and Directing Respondent to Submit an 
Expedited Response 

ALJ's Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part 
Complainant's Motion for Summary Decision and Denying 
Respondent's Motion for Summary Decision 

Respondent's Response to Complainant's Pre-Trial Motion 
in Limine 

ALJ's Order Denying Complainant's Motion in Limine 

Complainant's Letter re: Respondent's response to 
Complainant's Motion in Limine 

Letter from Lisa Block for Lee Seham, Esq., advising that 
the correct date of the teleconference was March 8, 2016 

(Fax) Respondent's Letter in response to Complainant's 
May 17,2016 Letter 

43. Dated April 21, 2016 

44. Dated April 21, 2016 

45. Dated April 29, 2016 

46. Dated May 2, 2016 

47. Dated May 4, 2016 

48. Dated May 5,2016 

49. Dated May 9, 2016 

50. Dated May 12, 2016 

51. Dated May 13,2016 

52. Dated May 17, 2016 

53. Dated May 17, 2016 

54. Dated May 17, 2016 

Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment, Supporting 
Memorandum and Exhibits with attached Table of Contents 
- Index of Exhibits to Respondent's Memorandum of 
Points and Authorities in Support of its Motion for 
Summary Decision enclosing Exhibits A through 0 

Letter enclosing 1) Complainant's brief in support of 
its Motion for Summary Judgment 2) Declaration of Mark 
Estabrook with Supporting exhibits A-K, 3) Declaration of 
Lee Seham with supporting exhibits A-N, 4) Declaration of 
Dr. Thomas Bettes, 5) Deposition of Robert Fisher, 6) 
Deposition of Mark Estabrook, 7) Deposition of Todd A. 
Ondra, 8) Deposition ofWilliarn W. McDonald, 9) 
Deposition of Robert Tice, 10) Supporting Exhibits from 
Deposition, including USB 

Respondents' Response in Opposition to Complainant's 
Motion for Summary Judgment 

Complainant's Pre-Trial motion In Limine 

Letter to ALJ Mon'is from Respondent re: Evidentiary 
Exclusion 

ALJ's Order Addressing Complainant's Motions to 
Exclude Evidence and Directing Respondent to Submit an 
Expedited Response 

ALJ's Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part 
Complainant's Motion for Summary Decision and Denying 
Respondent's Motion for Summary Decision 

Respondent's Response to Complainant's Pre-Trial Motion 
in Limine 

ALl's Order Denying Complainant's Motion in Limine 

Complainant's Letter re: Respondent's response to 
Complainant's Motion in Limine 

Letter from Lisa Block for Lee Seham, Esq., advising that 
the correct date of the teleconference was March 8, 2016 

(Fax) Respondent's Letter in response to Complainant's 
May 17,2016 Letter 
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55. Dated May 19,2016 

56. Dated May 19,2016 

57. Dated May 19, 2016 

58. Dated May 19,2016 

59. Dated June 1, 2016 

60. Dated June 6, 2016 

61. Dated June 7, 2016 

62. Dated June 8, 2016 

63. Dated June 9, 2016 

64. Dated August 5, 2016 

65. Dated August 11, 2016 

66. Dated September 2, 2016 

67. Dated October 7, 2016 

68. Dated October 20, 2016 

69. Dated May 16, 2017 

Complainant's Pre-Hearing Statement, Index of Joint 
Exhibits and Index of Complainant's Exhibits enclosing 
Exhibits CX-48, CX-49, CX-50, CX-51, 

Respondent's Pre-Hearing Statement including 
Respondent's Exhibit List 

ALJ's Order Addressing Complainant's May 17,2016 
Letters 

ALJ's Notice of Hearing Location 

Official Report of Conference Call, pages 1-21, with 
enclosed disc 

Transcript of Hearing, pages 1 through 303, with enclosed 
disc 

Transcript of Hearing, pages 304 through 518 

Transcript of Hearing, pages 519 through 717 

Respondent's Trial Exhibits 1-7, RX 1-33, Exhibits 1-18, 
JX 1 - Audio Recordings 

Respondent's Motion for Extension of Time to file its post­
hearing findings of fact and conclusions oflaw 

ALJ's Order Granting Respondent's Motion for Extension 
to File Post-Hearing Briefs 

Complainant's Post-Trial Brief, Attorney's Fees for Alan 
Armstrong and Attorney's Fees for Seharn, Seharn, Meltz 
& Petersen 

Respondent's Post-Hearing Brief 

Complainant's Post-Trial Reply Brief and updated 
documentation of attorneys' fees and expenses with 
attached USB 

ALJ's Decision and Order Denying Relief 

55. Dated May 19,2016 

56. Dated May 19,2016 

57. Dated May 19, 2016 

58. Dated May 19,2016 

59. Dated June 1,2016 

60. Dated June 6, 2016 

61. Dated June 7, 2016 

62. Dated June 8, 2016 

63. Dated June 9, 2016 

64. Dated August 5, 2016 

65. Dated August 11, 2016 

66. Dated September 2, 2016 

67. Dated October 7, 2016 

68. Dated October 20,2016 

69. Dated May 16, 2017 

Complainant's Pre-Hearing Statement, Index of Joint 
Exhibits and Index of Complainant's Exhibits enclosing 
Exhibits CX-48, CX-49, CX-50, CX-51, 

Respondent's Pre-Hearing Statement including 
Respondent's Exhibit List 

ALJ's Order Addressing Complainant's May 17,2016 
Letters 

ALJ's Notice of Hearing Location 

Official Report of Conference Call, pages 1-21, with 
enclosed disc 

Transcript of Hearing, pages 1 through 303, with enclosed 
disc 

Transcript of Hearing, pages 304 through 518 

Transcript of Hearing, pages 519 through 717 

Respondent's Trial Exhibits 1-7, RX 1-33, Exhibits 1-18, 
JX 1 - Audio Recordings 

Respondent's Motion for Extension of Time to file its post­
hearing findings of fact and conclusions oflaw 

ALJ's Order Granting Respondent's Motion for Extension 
to File Post-Hearing Briefs 

Complainant's Post-Trial Brief, Attorney's Fees for Alan 
Armstrong and Attorney's Fees for Seharn, Seharn, Meltz 
& Petersen 

Respondent's Post-Hearing Brief 

Complainant's Post-Trial Reply Brief and updated 
documentation of attorneys' fees and expenses with 
attached USB 

ALJ's Decision and Order Denying Relief 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 14     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



10

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515184985     Page: 10     Date Filed: 11/04/2019

Proceeding before the Administrative Review Board ("ARB") 
Case No. 2017-0047 

70. Dated May 26, 2017 

71. Dated June 2, 2017 

72. Dated June 22, 2017 

73. Dated July 24,2017 

74. Dated July 31,2017 

75. Dated August 8, 2019 

Complainant's Petition for Review 

ARB's Notice of Appeal and Order Establishing Briefing 

Schedule (Case No. 2017-0047) 

Complainant's Brief Supporting the Petition for Review 

and Appendix 

Respondent's Opposition to Complainant's Petition for 

Review and Appendix 

Complainant's Reply Brief Supporting the Petition for 
Review 

ARB's Final Decision and Order 

Signed this 4th day ofNovember, 2~019.·at Was~if!g19~Jl·· D.C. 
c.·· .... • ..... , ' f/1 

.... )"~···· ··. 
. . 

Thomas 0. Shepherd, Jr. 
Clerk of the Appellate Board 

Proceeding before the Administrative Review Board ("ARB") 
Case No. 2017-0047 

70. Dated May 26, 2017 

71. Dated June 2, 2017 

72. Dated June 22, 2017 

73. Dated July 24, 2017 

74. Dated July 31, 2017 

75. Dated August 8, 2019 

Complainant's Petition for Review 

ARB's Notice of Appeal and Order Establishing Briefing 

Schedule (Case No. 2017-0047) 

Complainant's Brief Supporting the Petition for Review 

and Appendix 

Respondent's Opposition to Complainant's Petition for 

Review and Appendix 

Complainant's Reply Brief Supporting the Petition for 
Review 

ARB's Final Decision and Order 

Signed this 4th day of November, 2~019a.\.t w.a .. S~i,?~~~n, D;C . 

. '."., •. tj,.'.. f ' .. ~ .. Mi . . 
. . 

Thomas O. Shepherd, Jr. 
Clerk of the Appellate Board 
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BEFORE THE 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

) 
MARK ESTABROOK, ) 

) 
Complainant ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION ) 

) 
Respondent. ) 

) 
_____________________ ) 

COMPLAINT 

Complainant Captain Mark Estabrook, by his attorneys, Seham, Seham, Meltz & 

Petersen, LLP, as and for his Complaint states as follows: 

NATURE OF THE CASE 

I. Complainant Estabrook files this complaint against Federal Express Corporation 

("FedEx") pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 42121, based on FedEx's discriminatory treatment and 

retaliatory discipline in response to the complainant's protected activity. Complainant 

Estabrook seeks affirmative action to abate the violation (including, but not limited to, 

the cessation of discriminatory conduct and the rescission of retaliatory discipline and 

directives related to his mental health); reinstatement to his former position, including 

restoration of his compensation and all other terms, conditions, and privileges associated 

with his employment; all compensatory damages to which he is entitled under the statute; 

and reimbursement of all costs and expenses, including attorney's fees, related to this 

action. 

BEFORE THE 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

) 
MARK ESTABROOK, ) 

) 
Complainant ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION ) 

) 
Respondent. ) 

) 

------------------------) 

COMPLAINT 

Complainant Captain Mark Estabrook, by his attorneys, Seham, Seham, Meltz & 

Petersen, LLP, as and for his Complaint states as follows: 

NATURE OF THE CASE 

I. Complainant Estabrook files this complaint against Federal Express Corporation 

("FedEx") pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 42121, based on FedEx's discriminatory treatment and 

retaliatory discipline in response to the complainant's protected activity. Complainant 

Estabrook seeks affirmative action to abate the violation (including, but not limited to, 

the cessation of discriminatory conduct and the rescission of retaliatory discipline and 

directives related to his mental health); reinstatement to his former position, including 

restoration of his compensation and all other terms, conditions, and privileges associated 

with his employment; all compensatory damages to which he is entitled under the statute; 

and reimbursement of all costs and expenses, including attorney's fees, related to this 

action. 
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PARTIES 

2. Complainant Estabrook is a pilot currently employed by Respondent F edEx at his 

pilot domicile located in Memphis, Tennessee. 

3. Respondent FedEx is an "air carrier" as that term is employed in 49 U.S.C. § 

42121. 

COMPLAINANT'S PROTECTED ACTIVITY 

Protected Activity Under 49 U.S.C. § 42121(a)(l), (2) and (4)- Laredo Departure 

4. On AprillO, 2013, Captain Estabrook refused to depart on a FedEx flight because 

of a severe and solid line of thunderstorms between his departure airport Laredo (LRD) 

and scheduled arrival airport Memphis (MEM). The airport tower, in fact, refused to 

issue a takeoff clearance because Memphis Center directed a hold on all inbounds. 

5. In retaliation for his safety-based determination as Pilot-in-Command pursuant to 

14 C.F.R. §§ 91.3(a), 91.13(a), and as further defined by the Company's own Flight 

Operations Manual (FOM) and pertinent Federal Aviation Regulations (F ARs)­

Respondent FedEx commenced a disciplinary investigation of Captain Estabrook. 

6. Respondent FedEx's retaliatory disciplinary investigation caused Captain 

Estabrook to file AIR 21 complaint number 861872 with the United States Department of 

Labor on April29, 2013. (Exhibit A). 

7. When Respondent FedEx subsequently terminated its disciplinary proceedings, 

Captain withdrew his AIR 21 action on or about May 2, 2013. (Exhibit B). 

8. Upon information and belief, Complainant Estabrook's communication to 

Respondent FedEx of his determination to act in good faith compliance with applicable 

federal law relating to air carrier safety, and his subsequent complaint pursuant to 49 
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U.S.C. § 42121 in defense of such action, were contributing factors in the unfavorable 

personnel actions alleged in this complaint. 

Protected Activity Under 49 U.S.C. § 4212i(a)(l)- Safe Cargo Practices 

9. On August 9, 2013, Captain Estabrook sought to bring to FedEx's attention that 

its policy of publishing live tracking information relating to packages and aircraft in 

transit violated its obligations under federal law relating to air carrier safety in that the 

Respondent's policy had the effect of facilitating and maximizing the criminal 

destruction of cargo, aircraft, and human lives, by granting terrorists the ability to 

carefully select the timing of detonation. 

10. Captain Estabrook had previously communicated these concerns to Respondent 

FedEx in his capacity as Security Chairman for the FedEx MEC Air Line Pilots 

Association (ALPA), the certified pilots' labor union for FedEx pilots in 2002. 

Complainant Estabrook desisted from his efforts to challenge FedEx's unsafe practices 

when he received an unfavorable response from his employer. 

II. On August 3 and 4, 2013, however, Complainant Estabrook obtained various 

media reports concerning how al-Qaeda in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP) had developed 

a strategy of planting explosives in packages carried by US-flag cargo carriers. On 

October 29, 2010, such explosive devices were discovered on both FedEx and UPS 

planes. Officials in the United States and Great Britain determined that part of AQAP's 

strategy was to carefully time the detonation of the explosives in order to maximize 

damage. The New York Times reported that AQAP relied on the package tracking feature 

on the cargo carriers' website to plan for the detonation of these devices in a manner that 
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would create the greatest damage. 

(http://www.nytimes.com/20 1 0111 /02/world/02terror.html? _r= 1 &src=twrhp) In fact, 

terrorists in this incident shipped several "test" packages on UPS and FedEx prior to the 

shipment of the actual bombs in order to gain real-time tracking data for planning the 

optimum timing of detonation, just as Complainant Estabrook had predicted and reported 

to FedEx management in 2002. 

12. On August 4, 2013, Captain Estabrook requested a meeting with Respondent 

FedEx for the purpose of discussing security issues that he previously had raised as the 

FedEx MEC ALPA Security Chairman. Respondent's System Chief Pilot and Managing 

Director/Flight Operations Captain William McDonald agreed on August 7, 2013, to 

arrange a meeting between Complainant Estabrook and FedEx management 

representatives; however, he also immediately removed Estabrook from flight status. 

13. On August 9, 2013, Complainant Estabrook met with FedEx management 

representatives -FedEx legal counsel Robert Tice, Manager A300/31 0 Fleet Operations 

Captain Rob Fisher, and FedEx Vice President of Security Todd Ondra- and 

communicated his concern that the Respondent's policy of publishing live tracking 

information relating to packages and aircraft in transit violated its obligations under 

federal law relating to air carrier safety in that the Respondent's policy had the effect of 

facilitating and maximizing the potential criminal destruction of cargo, aircraft, and 

human lives, by granting terrorists the ability to carefully select the timing of detonation. 

14. In communicating his air carrier safety concerns, Captain Estabrook was acting in 

good faith to identify the Respondent's violations of federal law relating to air carrier 

safety, including the Respondent's duty to (a) "[p]rovide for the safety of persons and 
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property traveling on flights provided by the aircraft operator against acts of criminal 

violence and air piracy, and the introduction of explosives, incendiaries, or weapons 

aboard an aircraft," 49 C.F.R. § 1544.103(a)(1); (b) use the procedures in its security 

program to control cargo that it accepts for transport on an aircraft in a manner that: 

"[p]revents the carriage of any unauthorized person, and any unauthorized explosive, 

incendiary, and other destructive substance or item in cargo onboard an aircraft," 49 

C.F.R. § 1544.205(c)(1); (c) "[p]reven[t] or dete[r] the carriage of any unauthorized 

persons, and any unauthorized explosives, incendiaries, and other destructive substances 

or items in cargo onboard an aircraft. 49 C.F.R. § 1544.205(a). In addition, under 

Respondent FedEx's federal mandated security program, Captain Estabrook, as an in-

flight security coordinator, is directed: if you see something, say something. 49 CFR §§ 

1544.101, et seq. 

RESPONDENT'S RETALIATORY RESPONSE 
TO COMPLAINANT'S PROTECTED ACTIVITY 

15. At the meeting on August 9, 2013, Respondent FedEx's representatives made no 

direct response to the safety-related concerns raised by Captain Estabrook. Instead, 

FedEx counsel Robert Tice asserted that Captain McDonald suspected Captain Estabrook 

of posting messages on an internet bulletin board under the name of"Mayday Mark," 

whose postings indicated that "Mayday Mark" was a pilot who had suffered a Temporary 

Ischemic Attack (TIA) or stroke. Tice then explained to Complainant Estabrook that 

FedEx was obligated to investigate whether Estabrook was "Mayday Mark" in order to 

ensure that Estabrook was physically fit to fly. 

16. FedEx representatives had in their possession numerous pages of highlighted 

postings originating from the individual who identified himself as "Mayday Mark" and 
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asked pressing questions concerning their contents. During the entire course of the 

August 91h meeting, FedEx's representatives raised no other basis for questioning Captain 

Estabrook's medical status other than their suspicion that Estabrook was "Mayday 

Mark." 

17. At all times, Captain Estabrook denied that he was "Mayday Mark" and, after a 

lengthy discussion of the facts relating to the "Mayday Mark" postings, FedEx's 

representatives accepted Estabrook's denials. 

18. Shortly after Estabrook's August 9th meeting with FedEx representatives, Captain 

Fisher advised Captain Estabrook that he would be immediately returned to flying status. 

19. Nevertheless, on the evening of August 9, 2013, Captain Fisher telephoned 

Complainant Estabrook and advised him that FedEx Security Director Todd Ondra 

insisted that Estabrook's flying status remain suspended until he submitted to a 

psychiatric evaluation. When Estabrook asked Captain Fisher why FedEx Security was 

demanding a psychiatric evaluation despite FedEx's determination earlier in the day that 

he was being returned to flying status, Fisher responded "all they said was is that you 

know too much." 

20. Captain Estabrook has at all times relevant to this proceeding been in possession 

of a First Class Medical Certificate. Throughout his entire flying career, he has never 

been denied the issuance of a First Class Medical Certificate. In fact, two aeromedical 

examiners issued medical opinions in opposition to FedEx's directive that Estabrook 

undergo psychiatric evaluation. (Exhibit C and D). 

21. Respondent FedEx has persisted in its demand that Complainant Estabrook 

submit to psychiatric evaluation, but has never provided a reasonable basis for this 
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demand. Captain Estabrook has complied with FedEx's directive that he undergo a 

psychiatric examination with the understanding that he would be terminated for 

insubordination if he did not. Captain Estabrook underwent a psychiatric evaluation by 

Dr. GeorgeS. Glass on September II, 2013. FedEx's aeromedical advisor Dr. Thomas 

Bettes is now directing Complainant Estabrook to obtain psychological treatment. A 

contributing factor for FedEx's directive ordering psychological treatment is the 

Complainant's protected activity as described in this Complaint. 

22. In demanding that Complainant Estabrook submit to psychiatric evaluation, 

FedEx violated contractual protocols that require FedEx to (a) only seek a medical 

examinations of a pilot where it has a "reasonable basis" to do so; (b) where such a 

"reasonable basis" exists, to refer the matter to FedEx's aeromedical advisor for his 

determination regarding the necessity of a medical examination; and (c) where the pilot's 

own aeromedical advisor disputes the necessity of a medical examination, to resolve the 

dispute by referral of the matter to a third medical doctor who acts as a tie-breaker. 

23. Complainant Estabrook's protected activity as described in this Complaint was at 

minimum a contributing factor, and, upon information and belief, the primary factor, in 

Respondent FedEx's demand for Soviet-style psychiatric analysis of Captain Estabrook, 

its ongoing directive that Captain Estabrook submit to psychological treatment, its 

continuing refusal to reinstate Captain Estabrook to flying status, and all other 

discriminatory personnel action described herein. 

WHEREFORE, cause having been shown, Complainant Estabrook prays for an order against 

Respondent FedEx as follows: 
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A. For an Order directing FedEx to rescind its directive for Captain Estabrook to 
undergo any further mental health evaluation or treatment; 

B. For an Order directing FedEx to suppress, remove and expunge all disciplinary 
proceedings, medical and psychiatric evaluations and treatment histories 
concerning Captain Estabrook from F edEx personnel files, including all 
contracted medical agents' records; 

C. For an Order directing the removal and expungement of all references to 
psychiatric evaluation and treatment in all government records, including but not 
limited to, the Federal Aviation Administration; 

D. For an Order directing FedEx to cease and desist from all discriminatory conduct 
toward Captain Estabrook; 

E. For an Order awarding Captain Estabrook the costs of this action, including 
payment of reasonable attorney's fees; 

F. For an Order granting such additional relief as the Secretary of Labor, or other 
decision maker in this process, deems proper and just; and 

G. For an Order granting full compensatory damages including compensation for 
pain, suffering and emotional distress due to this adverse action. 

Dated: White Plains, New York 
October 3, 2013 

SEHA1:)EH0, ~EL TZ & PETERSEN, LLP 

By:&~ 
--~~~=--=---------------

Lee Seham, Esq. 
445 Hamilton Avenue- Suite 1204 
White Plains, NY 10601 

Attorney for Complainant 
Captain Mark Estabrook 
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Publications 

Thank You! 

Your Safety and Health Hazard Notice has been forwarded to the OSHA Federal Area Office listed below. 

Your complaint may be forwarded to the State of Tennessee, which operates Its own OSHA approved State 
Plan.~ for more Information on State Plans or If you would like to contact the state directly. 

If you idenUflecl yourself, you will be contacted by OSHA. 
Please call the OSHA Federal Area Office below If you are not contacted. 

Complaint Number: 861872 

Tennessee 

Nashville Area Office 
51 Century Boulevard Suite 340, 
Nashville, TN 37214 
(615) 232-3803 
(615) 232-3827 FAX 

Establishment Name: 

Site Street: 

Site City: 

Site State: 

Site Zip: 

Management Official: 

Telephone Number: 

Type of Business: 

Hazard Description: 

FedEx Express 

3131 Democrat Rd., Building C 

Memphis 

Tennessee 

38118 

captain Rob Fisher 

901.224.3435 

Express Shipping 

On April 10, 2013, after coordinating a delay with GOC (Sherrie Hayslett) and speaking to the Fed 
Ex Duty Officer (Mark Crook) that there was a line of thunderstorms [described in an active 
SIGMET] between my departure airport Laredo, TX (KLRD) and Memphis, TN (KMEM), the Duty 
Officer directed me to depart and fly toward KMEM and through the line of thunderstonns. Asserting 
my pilot in command authority under 14 CFR Sec. 91.3(a) I related: "I am not going to depart until I 
can plan my arrival for storm passage through Memphis." He then told me he had consulted with our 
FedEx Weather Department and said they told him the thunderstorm would pass through Memphis 
in about 30 minutes. He directed me to takeoff and fly to Memphis. I declined. It would be 4-6 
hours later before the storm would pass through Memphis. "You are the only one not taking off" he 
said, and directed me to go sit In the cockpit until we had our departure clearance. Laredo tower 
held us on the ground for over 2 additional hours due to a weather hold for all Memphis Inbound 
ftights as directed by Memphis Air Route Traffic Control. 14 CFR sec. 91.3(a) provides: "The pilot in 
command is directly responsible for; and is the final authority as to, the operation of that aircraft." In 
addition to violating Sec. 91.3(a), such an operation would have violated 14 CFR Sec. 91.13(a) 
which provides: "No person may operate an aircraft in a careless or reckless manner so as to 
endanger the life or property of another." These provisions in Part 91 of the Federal Aviation 
Regulations specifically apply to Part 121 operations such as those conducted by Federal Express. 
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which provides: "No person may operate an aircraft in a careless or reckless manner so as to 
endanger the life or property of another." These provisions in Part 91 of the Federal AViation 
Regulations specifically apply to Part 121 operations such as those conducted by Federal Express. 

What's New I Offtces 
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See 14 CFR Sec. 91.1(a) r'this part prescribes rules governing the operation of aircraft ... within the 
United States.'1. These directives are also In violation of FedEx Flight Operations Manual (FOM) 
procedures 8.17 TURBULENCE, which states, In part, that "Turbulence increases the difficulty of 
flight operations. In extreme cases it may cause damage to the aircraft. Areas of known 
severe/extreme turbulence should be avoided. If the Captain determines an area of turbulence to be 
unsafe, he will detour or delay the flight until conditions improve. All meteorological conditions (e.g., 
SIGMETS, PIREPS, ATC advisories, etc.) shall be considered prior to releasing a flight to or operating 
in areas of turbulence." My decision to exercise my pilot In command authority has led to a Section 
19.D.1 disciplinary interview capt. Rob Asher has declared he Intends to convene on May 1, 2013, 
in Memphis, TN. Despite my requests, I have not been provided with records or recordings of my 
conversations either with the Duty Officer or the Dispatcher. The GOC dispatcher lied about my 
consultation wfth her when she agreed I should stay at the hotel and wait out the storm. My first 
officer, Randy Burleson, can verify this. The audio tapes will also corroborate my account of events. 
My conversation with the Duty Officer was an act of intimidation in response to my reporting an FAR 
violation to my employer as is the receipt of the letter received from my supervisor Rob Fisher 
notifying me of an interview set for May 1, 2013, under the auspices of Section 19.D.1 of the 
Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) currently in force and effect at Federal Express. There are 
approximately 4,500 pilots at Fec:IEx Express. 

Hazard Location: 

The hazardous location Is airborne in nature. Every aircrew that may be intimidated by flight 
management to penetrate severe turbulence and thunderstorms Is at risk all over the world. 

This condition has previously been brought to the attention of: 

*The following government agency: FAA 

I am an employee. 

My name may be revealed to the employer. 

Complainant Name: 

COmplainant Telephone Number: 

MARK ESTABROOK 

901-230-4933 

Complainant Mailing Address: 

PO BOX 1890 

MANCHACA 

Texas 

78652 

Complainant Email: cargopilot@gmail.com 

Freedom of Information Act I Privacy & Security statement 1 Disclaimers I Important Web Site Notices 1 International 1 Contact Us 

U.S. Department of Labor I Occupational Safety & Health Administrcrt:ion 1 200 COnstitution Ave., WI, washington, DC 20210 
Telephone: 800-321-0SHA (6742) I TIY: 877-889-5627 

www.OSHA.gov 
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U.S. Department of Labor 

May 2, 201 ~ 

Alan Armstrong 
Attorney at Law 
2900 Chamblee-Tucker Road 
Building 5, Suite 350 
Atlanta, GA 30341 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
Atlanta Regional Office 
Sam Nunn Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, SW Room 6T50 
Atlanta, Geort~ia 30303 
(678) 237-0400 
(678) 237-0447 FAX 

Re: FedEx Express!Estabrook!Casc No. 4-1760-13-080 

De-ar Mr. Armstrong: 

The request to withdraw tbe complaint filed by Mark Estabrook (Complainant) in the above­
captioned matter has been approved. With this withdrawal, the case in this matter is closed. 

If, at any time in the future, you have any questions or require any information regarding 
employee rights and employer responsibilities under the whistleblower protection statutes 
administered by OSHA, please feel free to contact this office. 

~-· 
Matthew E. Robinson 
Regional Supervisory Investigator 

OSHA 5?.1:hft 
-.oaha,gov 

U.S. Department of Labor 

May 2, 201 ~ 

Alan Armstrong 
Attorney at Law 
2900 Chamblee-Tucker Road 
Building 5, Suite 350 
Atlanta, GA 30341 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
Atlanta Regional Office 
Sam Nunn Federal Center 
61 forsyth Street, SW Room 6T50 
Atlanta, Geol1lia 30303 
(678) 237-0400 
(678) 237-0447 fAX 

Re: FedEx Express/EstabrookiCasc No. 4-1760-13-080 

De",r Mr. Armstrong: 

The request to withdraw tbe complaint filed by Mark Estabrook (Complainant) in the above­
captioned matter has been approved. With this withdrawal, the case in this matter is closed. 

If, at any time in the future, you have any questions or require any information regarding 
employee rights and employer responsibilities under the whistleblower protection statutes 
administered by OSHA, please feel free to contact this office. 

~-------
Matthew E. Robinson 
Regional Supervisory Investigator 

OSHA 5?.1:hft 

_.08ha,gov 
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ARC SOUTH 
PAGE 01/01 

~8/26/2~13 17:11 5124488264 

South 

August23, 2013 

To Whom it May Concern: 

I serve as~ Aviation Medical EXaminer fur Captain Mark Estabrook, wbo lui$ 
xeqnested I describe my observations and examination .findings during hi$ July ~9, 20 J 3 
flight pl'l}'lliesl. During that encounter, 1 did not notice anything Wlusual or abnormal. 
Captain Estabrook was well groomed, ple!l$ant, conversant, oriented, logical, and 
appeared cognitively intaet. The FAA does not require, and I did not perform, detailed 
te$ting desipd to identifY sui.Jtle cognitive deficits or psychologieal disorders. 
Nevertheless, my in~on with ca~ain Em.broQk W11S entirely ~keble, similar 
to prior examlnati<:ll!S, lind I had no co®ernS. regarding his fitness for pilot duty. His 
neurological examination was normal. 

Sincerely, 

Ma.rk A. Nugent, M.D. 
FAA Senior Aviation Medical Examiner 
Board Certified in Family Medicine 

)1-t ........ Ay ..... ~ 

(7 0 • 'f S1 - o 1 I 7 

3828 S. First St 
Austin, Texas 78704 
512443-1311 
www.AustinReglonalClinic.com 
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STEPflEN D. LEONARD, M.D., F.A.C.S. 
2900 CHAMBLEE-TUCKER ROAD, BLDG. 5-210 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30341 

AVIATION MEDICINE Teleph ne: (404}266-0010 
Fats! ile: (770}855-4024 

Email: ~~!s.!l!l'W!Wil£11 

August 24,2013 

Re: Mark Estabrook 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I had the opportunity yesterday for a lengthy conversation with pilot Mark 
Estabrook to evaluate his mental and emotional qualifications as an · line pilot. 
These have been called into question following what he descnlles as 's attempt to 
alert his employer to possible security vulnerabilities in their operatio . 

I am a general and vascular surgeon by training, not a psychiatrist or 
neuropsychologist. However I have been an aviation medical · 
years, was a USAF flight surgeon for ten years, and have been a pilot 
am not unfamiliar with normal and abnonnal patterns of thought and 
among aviators. 

Mr. Estabrook is clearly intelligent, with the broad-based fund ofkno 
aviation and general subjects that one expects in his position. His afti 
appropriate, his speech is fluent and on topic, he gives no evidence o 
abnormal ideation. He denies any history of depression, suicidal or d 
thoughts, or thoughts of any overt antisocial acts. He is, like many of 
contemporaries, more sure of his positions and more assertive than 
person, but he is quick to acknowledge that he has made mistakes. 

for31 

ledge about 
is entirely 

ny 
tructi.ve 

The strong impression I draw from talking to him and from lengthy · cussion of 
what is admittedly one side of his story as that there is no psycbolo · 
should be of any concern regarding Mr. Estabrook's medical quali.fi 
pilot. If he has been impolitic in his highlighting what he perceives as I""''""" 
vulnerabilities that would seem to be an administrative, not an aero issue. 

STEPflEN D. LEONARD, M.D., F.A.C.S. 
2900 CHAMBLEE-TUCKER ROAD, BLDG. 5-210 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30341 

AVIATION MEDICINE Tllieph Rll: (404}266-0010 
Faal ile: (770) 855-4024 

Email: ~~!£.!ID'W1W;1£l1 

August 24,2013 

Re; Mark Estabrook 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I had the opportunity yesterday for a lengthy conversation with pilot Mark 
Estabrook to evaluate his mental and emotional qualifications as an . line pilot. 
These have been called into question following what he descnlles as 's attempt to 
alert his employer to possible security vulnerabilities in their operatio . 

I am a general and vascular surgeon by training, not a psychiatrist or 
neuropsychologist. However I have been an aviation medical . 
years, was a USAF flight surgeon for ten years, and have been a pilot 
am not unfamiliar with normal and abnonnal patterns of thought and 
among aviators. 
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appropriate, his speech is fluent and on topic, he gives no evidence 0 

abnormal ideation. He denies any history of depression, suicidal or d 
thoughts, or thoughts of any overt antisocial acts. He is, like many of 
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U.S. Department of Labor 

· July 15,2014 

Mark Estabrook 
c/o Lee Seham, Attorney 

Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
Atlanta Regional Office 
Sam Nunn Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, SW Room 6T50 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(678) 237-0400 
(678) 237-0447 FAX 

Scham, Seham, Meltz & Petersen, LLP 
445 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 1204 
White Plains, NY 10601 

Re: FedEx Express I Estabrook I 4-1760-14-002 

Dear Mr. Estabrook: 

This is to advise you that we have completed our investigation of the above referenced complaint 
filed by Mr. Mark Estabrook (Complainant) against FedEx Express (Respondent) on October 9, 
2013, with an amendment dated April 16,2014, under the Wendell H. ford Aviation Investment 
and Reform Act for the 21st Century, (AIR2 1 ), 49 U.S.C. §4212 1. In brief, Complainant alleged 
that Respondent placed him in a Non-Qualified (NOQ) flight status in August 2013 and again in 
April 2014, for requesting a meeting with Respondent's Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to 
discuss safety related concerns. 

Fol lowing an investigation by a dul y authorized investigator, the Secretary of Labor, acting 
through his agent, the Regional Ad ministrator for the Occupational Safety and Heal th 
Admin istration (OSHA), Region IV, finds that there is no reasonable cause to hel icYe thai 
Respondent violated AlR21 and issues the following findings: 

Secretary's Findings 

Complainant was placed in NOQ flight status on August 5, 2013 and again in April 20 14. On 
October 9, 2013, with amendment dated April 16,2014, Complainant filed a complain t with the 
Secretary of Labor all eging that Respondent retaliated against him in violation of AIR2 1. As this 
complaint was filed within 90 days of the alleged adverse action(s), it is deemed timely. 

Respondent is an air carrier within the meaning of 49 U.S.C. §42121 and 49 U.S.C. 
§40 I 02(a)(2). 

Complainant is an employee within the m eaning of 49 U.S.C. §42121. 

Complainant requested a meeting via an email sent to Respondent System Chief Pilot on August 
4, 2013 "for the purpose of discussing security issues" with Respondent ' s CEO, "fred, ' ' referring 
to Fred Smith, CEO of fedEx . More specifi cally, Complainant wanted to discuss "something 
re lated to 9/ 11." Although Respondent believed this request was an inappropriate method o f 
arranging a meeting with the CEO of a global enterprise, Respondent's Chief P ilot no netheless 
scheduled a meeting for August 9, 2013. Present at this meeting was Complainant's Fleet 

OSHA 
Occupot;onal 

~ Safa~v .and ~oalth 
Adm•n•stra t1on 

www.osha.gov 
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Mark ESlabrook 
c/o Lee Seham, Attorney 
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Atlanta Regional Office 
Sam Nunn Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, SW Room 6T50 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(678) 237-0400 
(678) 237-0447 FAX 

Seham, Seham, Meltz & Petersen, LLP 
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Secretary of Labor alleging that Respondent retaliated against him in violation of ATR2 1. As this 
complaint was filed within 90 days of the alleged ad verse action(s), it is deemed timely. 

Respondent is an air carrier with in the meaning of 49 U.S.C. §4212l and 49 U.S.C. 
§40102(a)(2 ). 

Complainant is an employee within the meaning of 49 U.S.c. §42121. 

Complainant requested a meeting via an email sent to Respondent System Chief Pilot on August 
4,2013 "for the purpose of discussing securi ty issues" with Respondent' s CEO, ''Fred,'' referring 
to Fred Smith, CEO of f'edEx. More specifically, Complainant wanted to discuss "something 
related to 9/ 11." Although Respondent bel ieved this request was an inappropriate method of 
arranging a meeting with the CEO of a global enterpri se, Respondent 's Chief Pi lot nonetheless 
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OSHA Occu"i>liun .. 1 :l S"'atv lind H .... ltlo 
Adon;n lBuation 

www.osha.gov 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 35     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



Captain, Respondent Managing Director of Aviation and Regulatory Securi ty (Security 
Director), and Complainant. Of note, prior to the meeting, Complainant was removed from the 
flight schedule, with pay, due to Respondent's apprehension based upon the nature of 
Complainant's email. According to Respondent, Complainant acknowledged understanding of 
the reason for his placement on NOQ status. During the meeting, Complainant explained his 
uneasiness with Respondent's practice of providing shipment tracking information on- line. 
Complainant opined that terroris t groups could use this information in carrying out attacks and 
thus suggested that the Department of Homeland Security be asked to instruct airl ines to cease 
making tracking information readily avail able. Complainant also spoke about a former 
R espondent employee who is cunently serving a prison term for attempted hijacking of an 
airp lane. Specifically, Complainant reported hearing "rumors" that the forme r employee had 
converted to Islam and may secretly be communicating with terrorists and providing them with 
operational data. According to Respondent, the Fleet Pilot and Security Director, l()und 
Complainant's comments to be, ''curious and qu ite disconcerting:· 

After the meeting concluded, and due to the nature of the conversation, Respondent k it it was 
necessary to ensure Complainant's ability to safely perfo rm hi s necessary job functions. 
T herefore, Respondent directed Complainant to be evaluated by an aeromedica l advisor. This 
instruction was made pursuant to the applicable Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), which 
allows for Respondent to "direct a pilot to contact or see the Company's aeromedical advisor if 
the Company has reasonable basis to questi on whether a pi lot has developed or recovered fi·om 
and impairment to his ability to perform duties as a pilot. A pilot in active status who is directed 
to contact or see the Company's aeromedical advisor, shall be removed fi'om any con fli cting 
scheduled activities with pay until the aeromedical advisor determ ines whether the pilot is fit for 
fli ght duty. ' ' FedEx Express Pilot's Collective Bargaining Agreement, Section 15.D.l & 2. The 
avai lable testimonial and documentary evidence demonstrates that Respondent had a subjective ly 
reasonable basis for directing Complainant's evaluation and seemingly compl ied with all the 
administrative requirements of the CBA provision. 

Complainant ini tially spoke with Respondent's aeromedical advi sor on August 16, 2013. After 
the conversation, Respondent's aeromedical advisor found sufficient cause for recommending 
that Complainant undergo a ful l psychiatric evaluation. Complainant was thcrea rter rdc rrcd to 
an independent psychiatrist. This secondary evaluat ion was completed on Scpte n1ber I I . :2013 
and found Complainant nnfit for fl ying duties. Fo llowing the applica ble CB/\ procedures, 
Complainant then submitted an evaluation previously performed by a doctor of Complainant's 
choosing as a "secondary evaluation" indicating he was in fact fit to lly. Because the medical 
evaluations were inconsistent a Medical Review Panel was convened and it was ultimately 
determined that Complainant was fit to return to duty. Complainant was therefore returned to 
active status and received all owed monetary compensation and leave. 

Tn April 20 14, Complainant suffered physical injuries while off-duty. Once medically cleared , 
he fl ew several flights without incident. However, Complainant was placed in NOQ status, with 
pay, once Respondent real ized that an updated medical opinion, formally authorizing 
Complainant to return to service, had not been provided by Complainant. Complainant was 
immediately returned to qualified fl ight status upon Responden t's receipt of the necessary 
documentation. 

Captain, Respondent Managing Director of Aviation and Regulatory Security (Security 
Director), and Complainant. Of note, prior to the meeting, Complainant was removed from the 
flight schedule, with pay, due to Respondent 's apprehension based upon the nature of 
Complainant's email. Accordin[; to Respondent, Complainant acknowledged understanding of 
the reason for his placement on OQ status. During the meeting, Complainant explained his 
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Respondent employee who is currently serving a prison term for attempted hijacking of an 
ai rplane. Specifically, Complainant reported hearing "rumors" that the formcr eml loyee had 
converted to Islam and may secretl y be communicat ing with terrorist and providing them wi th 
operational da ta. According to Rcspondent, the Fleet Pilot and Securi ty Di rec tor, lil Li nd 
Complainant's comments 10 be, "curious and quite disconcerting." 

After the meeting concluded. and due to the nature of the conversat ion, Respondent lel t it was 
necessary to ensure Complainant 'S abili ty to safely perfonn his necessary job [1111ctions. 
Thereforc, Respondent directed Complainant to be evaluated by an aeromedical advisor. This 
instruction was made pursuant to the applicable Collecti ve Bargaining Agreement (CBA), which 
allows fo r Respondent to "direct a pilot to contact or see the Company's aeromedical adviso r if 
the Company has reasonable basis to question whether a pilot has developed or recovercd fi'om 
and impairment to hi s abi lity to perform duties as a pilot. A pilot in active status who is directed 
to contact or see the Company's aeromedical advisor, shall be removed !'i'om any conflicting 
scheduled acti vities with pay until the aeromedical advisor determines whether the pilot is fit for 
fli ght duly." FedEx Express Pi!()[ 's Collective Bargaining Agreemel1l, Section !5.D. J & 2. The 
available test imonial and documentary evidence demonstrates that Respondent had a subjectively 
reasonable basis for direc ti ng Complainant 's evaluation and seemingly compl ied with all the 
administrative req uirements of the CBA provision. 

Complainant initially spoke with Respondent's aeromedical advisor on August 16, 201 3. After 
the conversation, Respondent 's aeromedica l advisor found sui'fieicnt cause for rccol1lnlendin[; 
that Compla inant undergo a full psychiat ri c evalualion. Complainant was th~realier rdcl'rcd to 
an independent psychiatrist. This secondary evaluation was com pleted on September I I. 20 1-' 
and found Complainant unfit for !lying duties. Fo llowing Illc applicablc CHA I'r(ll'cdurcs, 
Complainant then submitted an evaluation previously pcrformed by a doctor of COlllplainant's 
choosing as a "secondary evaluation" indicat ing he was in fact fll to fly. Because th~ medical 
eva luati ons were inconsistent a Medical Review Panel was convened and it was ultimately 
determined lhat Complainant was fit to return to duty. Complainant was therefore returned to 
active status and received all owed monetary compensati on and leave. 

In Apri l 2014, Complainant suffered physical injuries while off-duty, Once medically cleared, 
he flew se el'al flights without incident. However, Complainant was placed in NOQ status, with 
pay, onee Respondent rea l ized that an updated medical opinion, formally authorizing 
Complainant to return to service, had not been provided by Complai nant. Complainant was 
imlllediately returned to quali fied fl ight status upon Respondent's receipt of the necessary 
documentation. 
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Respondent's proffered non-retaliatory basis for the Complainant's NOQ status in August 20 13. 
was predicated upon their subjective belief that Complainant may not have been medically 
qualified to perform his duties as a pilot. Respondent therefore adhered to the CBA requi rements 
regarding evaluation by an Aviation Medical Examiner. In regards to the April 2014 N OQ 
status, the evidence once again demonstrates that the requirements imposed by Respondent were 
in accordance with the appli cable rules, regulations and policies. It appears, in both situations, 
Respondent was justified in the actions taken with no evidence of retaliatory intent identified. 
The fact tha t. Complainant was, without unnecessary delay, put back on active flight status when 
Respondent's concerns were eliminated, and steps taken to ensure no monetary or benefit lost, 
further counters Complainant's contentions. 

Consequentl y, this complaint is dismissed. 

Respondent and Complainant have 30 days from receipt of these Findings to file objections and 
to request a hearing before an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ). If no objections are filed , these 
Findings will become final and not subject to court review. Objections must be filed in writing 
with: 

Chief Administrative Law Judge 
Office of Administrati ve Law Judges 
U.S. Department of Labor 
800 K Street, NW, Suite 400 
Washington, D.C. 200 1-8002 
(202) 693-7452 fAX (202) 693-7365 

With copies to: 

Federal Express Corporation 
3620 Hacks Cross Rd. , Bldg. B -3d Fl. 
Memphis, TN 3 8 125 

Kurt A. Petermeyer, Regional Administrator 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
Sam Nunn Atlanta Federal Center 
6 1 Forsyth Street, S.W., Room 6T50 
Atlanta, GA 30303 

In addition, please be advised that the U.S. Department of Labor generally does not represent any 
party in the hearing; rather, each party presents hi s or her own case. The hearing is an 
adversarial proceeding before an ALJ, in which the parties are allowed an opporlunity to present 
their evidence de novo for the record. The AL.J who conducts the hearing wi ll issue a dec is ion 
based on the evidence, arguments, and testimony presented by the parties. Review of the AU's 
decision may be sought from the Administrative Review Board, to which the Secretary of' Labor 
has delegated responsibili ty for issuing tina! agency decisions under AIR21. A copy of thi s Jetter 
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their evidence de novo for the record . The AU who conducts the hearing will issue a decIsion 
based on the evidence, arguments , and testimony presented by the pa l1 ics . Revicw <)1' the AU's 
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rules and procedures for the handling of AIR21 cases can be found in Title 29, Code of Federal 
Regulations Pmi 1979, a copy of which may be obtained at www.whistleblowers.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Lauren Fehlman 
Regional Supervisory Investigator 

cc: Chief Administrati ve Law Judge, USDOL 
DWPP 
Matthew Davison, Attorney for Respondent 
FAA 

rules and procedures for the handling of AIR2! cases can be found in Title 29, Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 1979, a copy of which may be obtained at www.whistleblowers.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Lauren Fehlman 
Regional Supervisory Investigator 

cc: Chief Administrative Law Judge, USDOL 
DWPP 
Matthew Davison, Attorney for Respondent 
PAA 
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BEFORE THE CIDEF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE 
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

) 
MARK ESTABROOK, ) 

) 
Complainant ) 

) 
~ ) 

) 
FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION ) 

) 
Respondent. ) 

) 
_________________________ ) 

OBJECTIONS TO 
SECRETARY'S FINDINGS 

Case No. 4-1760-14-002 

Complainant Captain Mark Estabrook, by his attorneys, Seham, Seham, Meltz & 

Petersen, LLP, submits the following objections to the Secretary's Findings in this matter dated 

July 15,2014: 

OBJECTIONS 

1. The Secretary's mischaracterization of the original complaint, chronology of 

events and neglect of evidence begins in the lead paragraph of his July 15, 2014letter of 

findings to Complainant: 

"In brief, Complainant alleged that Respondent placed him in a Non-Qualified 

(NOQ) flight status in August 2013 and again in April2014, for requesting a 

meeting with Respondent's Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to discuss safety 

related concerns." 

BEFORE THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE 
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

) 
MARK ESTABROOK, ) 

) 
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) 
v. ) 

) 
FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORA nON ) 

) 
Respondent. ) 

) 

--------------------) 

OBJECTIONS TO 
SECRETARY'S FINDINGS 
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Petersen, LLP, submits the following objections to the Secretary's Findings in this matter dated 

July 15,2014: 
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(NOQ) flight status in August 2013 and again in April 2014, for requesting a 

meeting with Respondent's Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to discuss safety 

related concerns," 
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The Secretary's Findings gave no consideration to, or evaluation of, Complainant 

Estabrook's protected activity related to his refusal of Respondent's directive to depart 

Laredo, Texas, into a line of known severe thunderstorms and turbulence in violation of 

the Company's Airbus A300/31 0 Pilot Handbook, Flight Operations Manual and 

government FAA safety regulations. Complainant's refusal to accept Respondent' s 

reckless disregard for Air Traffic Control's denial of a flight clearance to Memphis, is 

exactly the kind of protected decision-making that the AIR21 legislation was designed to 

protect and encourage. This incident was clearly referenced in paragraphs 4-8 of the 

Complaint (Attachment A) occurring in the time frame of April 10 to May 2, 2013 (and 

previously recorded in a separate AIR21 OSHA Submission 861872), as the basis for 

Respondent's subsequent discriminatory retaliation. 

2. The Secretary's Findings failed to apply the inference or presumption in favor of 

a finding of discrimination to the Respondent's conduct toward Complainant Estabrook 

subsequent to the Laredo Departure as required by well-established AIR21 precedent. 

Clark v. Pace Airlines, Inc., ARB No. 04-150, ALJ No. 2003-AIR-28 (ARB Nov. 30, 

2006), slip op. at 12-13. 

3. The Secretary' s Findings erroneously hold that the Respondent was "justified" in 

placing Estabrook on Non-Qualified (NOQ) flight status in August 2013 to the extent that 

it bases this justification on events that occurred at an August 9, 2013 meeting between 

Complainant Estabrook and Respondent's representatives. Respondent' s placement of 

Complainant on NOQ flight status occurred on August 5, 2013, whichpre-datedthe 

August 9, 2013 meeting. 

2 

The Secretary' s Findings gave no consideration to. or evaluation of, Complainant 

Estabrook 's protected activity related to hi s refusal of Respondent's directive to depart 

Laredo, Texas, into a line of known severe thunderstorms and turbulence in violation of 

the Company' s Airbus A300/310 Pilot Handbook. Flight Operations Manual and 

government FAA safety regulations. Complainant 's refusa l to accept Respondent's 

reckless disregard for Air Traffic Control's denial ofa night clearance to Memphis, is 

exactly the kind of protected decision-making that the AIR21 legislation was designed to 

protect and encourage. This incident was clearly referenced in paragraphs 4-8 of the 

Complaint (Attachment A) occurring in the time frame of Apri l to to May 2, 2013 (and 

previously recorded in a separate AIR21 OSHA Submission 861872). as the basis for 

Respondent' s subsequent discriminatory retaliation. 

2. The Secretary' s Findings failed to apply the inference or presumption in favor of 

a finding of discrimination to the Respondent' s conduct toward Complainant Estabrook 

subsequent to the Laredo Departure as required by well-established AIRlI precedent. 

Clark v. Pace Airlines, Inc., ARB No. 04-150, ALl No. 2003-AIR-28 (ARB Nov. 30, 

2006), slip op. at 12-13 . 

J. The Secretary' s Findings erroneously hold that the Respondent was "'justified" in 

placing Estabrook on Non-Qualified (NOQ) night status in Augus12013 to the extent that 

it bases this justification on events that occurred at an August 9, 2013 meeting between 

Complainant Estabrook and Respondent's representatives. Respondent's placement of 

Complainant on NOQ flight status occurred on August 5, 2013, which pre-dated the 
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4. The Secretary' s Findings err to the extent that it insinuates that Complainant's 

"acknowledged understanding of the reason for his placement on NOQ status" equated to 

his acceptance of the legitimacy of his placement on NOQ flight status. In fact, 

Complainant merely concluded the Respondent's Chief Pilot was retaliating against him 

for his refusal to fly into a line of thunderstorms several months prior and his subsequent 

filing of an AIR21 complaint in response to the initiation of disciplinary action against 

him in retaliation for his protected activity related to the Laredo departure. In further 

retaliation for Estabrook' s protected activity, Respondent's Chief Pilot invented new 

allegations against Estabrook when he falsely alleged that Estabrook had suffered a mini­

stroke. Captain William McDonald made this accusation to both FedEx legal counsel 

and flight management prior to the August 9, 2013 meeting with Complainant Estabrook. 

5. The Secretary' s Findings failed to recognize that the Respondent' s placement of 

Captain Estabrook on NOQ flight status resulted in a loss of flight privileges and 

overtime opportunities, denigrated Complainant Estabrook' s professional reputation and 

stature among his fellow pilots and had a stigmatizing and threatening effect designed to 

chill Complainant Estabrook and other FedEx pilots from engaging in protected activity. 

6. The Secretary' s Findings erroneously suggest that the Respondent provided 

Complainant Estabrook with a reason for his placement on NOQ flight status. Such is not 

the case. To date, Respondent ' s only timely explanation to Complainant for his 

grounding and directed medical evaluation was simply that "he knew too much." Only 

after this present AIR21 action commenced did the Respondent create its shifting 

rationale and defenses. 

3 

4. The Secretary' s Findings err to the extent that it insinuates that Complainant's 

·'acknowledged understanding of the reason for his placement on NOQ status" equated to 

his acceptance of the legitimacy of his placement on NOQ flight status. In fact , 

Complainant merely concluded the Respondent's Chief Pilot was retaliating against him 

for his refusal to fly into a line of thunderStorms several months prior and his subsequent 

filing of an AIR21 complaint in response to the initiation of disciplinary action against 

him in retaliation for his prolectt!d activi ty rdated to the Laredo dt!parture. In rurtht!r 

retaliation for Estabrook' s protected activ ity, Respondent's Chief Pilot invented new 

allegations against Estabrook when he falsely alleged that Estabrook had suffered a mini­

stroke. Captain William McDonald made this accusation to both FedEx legal counsel 

and flight management prior to the August 9, 2013 meeting with Complainant Estabrook. 

s. The Secretary' s Findings failed to recognize that the Respondent's placement of 

Captain Estabrook on NOQ flight status resulted in a loss of flight privileges and 

overtime opportunities, denigrated Complainant Estabrook's professional reputation and 

stature among his fellow pilots and had a stigmatizing and threatening effect designed to 

chill Complainant Estabrook and other FedEx pilots from engaging in protected activity. 

6. The Secretary' s Findings erroneously suggest that the Respondent provided 

Complainant Estabrook with a reason for his placement on NOQ flight status. Such is not 

the case. To date, Respondent's only timely explanation to Complainant for his 

grounding and directed medical evaluation was simply that "he knew too much." Only 

after this present AIR21 action commenced did the Respondent create its shifting 

rat ionale and defenses. 

3 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 42     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



7. The Secretary's Findings erroneously determined that Complainant Estabrook's 

reference to the Respondent's CEO as "Fred" in an August 4, 2013 email seeking a phone 

call to discuss security concerns "justified" placing Complainant on NOQ flight status. 

The Secretary's Findings failed to give proper consideration of evidence demonstrating 

that the Respondent's CEO is and was frequently referred to as "Fred" throughout the 

history of the company," that he and the Respondent have claimed to maintain an open 

door policy for the carrier's pilots, and that Complainant's past service as Security 

Chairman for the FedEx Pilots Association (FP A) resulted in a legitimate expectation 

that he would be able to raise security issues directly with the CEO without suffering the 

retaliatory response of being placed on NOQ flight status and/or subject to mandatory 

psychiatric evaluation. Further, Complainant had previously briefed FedEx Express 

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer William 1. Logue in 2002 on his 

security concerns, and it is only logical that the next officer in the company's hierarchy 

would be CEO Fred Smith. 

8. The Secretary's Findings mischaracterized the nature of Complainant Estabrook's 

protected activity on August 9, 2013, relating to Safe Cargo practices, which is detailed 

in the Complaint at paragraphs 9-14. 

9. In general, the Secretary's Findings failed to make any effort to assess the relative 

credibility of the Respondent's representatives and Complainant, but rather improperly 

resolved all factual disputes in favor of the Respondent without providing any rationale. 

10. In making its factual determinations, the Secretary's Findings failed to take into 

consideration the Respondent's resort to pretext and shifting rationales in evaluating the 

Respondent's credibility, including the Respondent's initial reliance on its supposition 
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and false allegation that Complainant Estabrook posted on an internet website as 

"Mayday Mark" (Complaint §§ 15-17), and attempts to pressure Complainant Estabrook 

to admit that he had suffered a Temporary Ischemic Attack (TIA). When Respondent's 

legal and flight departments concluded at the August 9, 2013 meeting that Complainant 

had in fact not suffered a "mini-stroke" and had not posted such an admission on an 

internet bulletin board, they began looking for new excuses and strategies by which they 

could ground Complainant Estabrook. The Secretary completely ignores Respondent' s 

actions and misapplies the chronology of events. 

11. The Secretary' s Findings failed to address evidence undermining the credibility of 

Respondent's denial of retaliatory motive including the admission by the Manager of 

A300/31 0 Fleet Operations, Captain Rob Fisher, that the reason for compelling 

Complainant Estabrook to submit to psychiatric evaluation was that "you know too 

much." (Complaint § 19). Complainant clearly and explicitly asked Respondent to 

preserve relevant recorded telephone calls as evidence and provided the Secretary the 

dates, phone numbers, times and duration of all relevant calls, but there is no mention of 

the Secretary's Investigator listening to any of the telephone calls in his findings or 

making any attempt to obtain this evidence from the Respondent on a voluntary basis. 

12. The Secretary' s Findings erroneously concludes that the "available testimonial 

and documentary evidence demonstrates that the Respondent had a subjectively 

reasonable basis for directing Complainant's [psychiatric evaluation]. ... " The 

Secretary' s Investigator failed to properly investigate this matter, including, but not 

limited to: (a) properly analyzing the shifting rationales provided by the Respondent for 

demanding the psychiatric evaluation, (b) misapplying sections of the collective 
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bargaining agreement (CBA) without cons~deration for actual violations that preceded the 

order to submit to psychiatric evaluation, (c) failing to interview the medical 

professionals involved in the evaluation process, which ultimately confirmed 

Complainant Estabrook's fitness for flight, (d) failing to consider the defects and 

inconsistencies in Dr. Glass' psychiatric evaluation and improperly concluding that Dr. 

Glass acted as an "independent psychiatrist," or (e) failing to obtain or evaluate evidence 

identified by the Complainant, including audiotapes of conversations between 

Respondent representatives and the Complainant, which Complainant repeatedly asked 

the Investigator to request from the Respondent. 

13. The Secretary' s Findings erroneously concluded that the Respondent complied 

with the applicable CBA provisions in order to require Complainant Estabrook to submit 

to a psychiatric evaluation and made no effort to address or resolve the factual and legal 

arguments by the Complainant that the Respondent violated the applicable provisions of 

the CBA related to psychiatric evaluations of its pilots. (Complaint § 22 as supplemented 

by Complainant's submission dated January 27, 2014). 

14. The Secretary' s Findings erroneously concluded that Complainant was 

"immediately" returned to qualified flight status upon completion of his mental health 

evaluations and that he received "all owed monetary compensation and leave" when 

reinstated to flight duty upon completion of these evaluations. The Complainant did not 

receive full reimbursement for his costs or attorney' s fees. In addition, the Complainant 

suffered additional adverse impact from the Respondent's discriminatory treatment for 

which he has not been made whole, including the cost and emotional stress of having his 
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job and license placed in jeopardy with false medical accusations while being subjected 

to intense simulator evaluations and additional flights with a Line Check Airman. 

15. The Secretary' s Findings tacitly accept the protected nature of the Complainant' s 

protected activity under AIR21 detai!ed in paragraphs 4 through 14 of the Complaint, 

including the Complainant' s good faith belief that the live tracking of cargo aircraft 

facilitated the use of such aircraft for terrorist purposes in a manner that failed to conform 

with 49 C.F.R. § 1544.103(a)(1); 49 C.F.R. § 1544.205(c)(1); 49 C.F.R. § 1544.205(a). 

Respondent' s emulation of Soviet-style psychiatric evaluation and treatment to quiet the 

Complainant' s protected activity is very disturbing for not only labor in the United States, 

but for the future security and safety of our national aviation system. 

16. The Secretary' s Findings erroneously concluded that Respondent was justified in 

the actions taken and that there was no evidence of retaliatory intent identified. 

17. The Secretary' s Findings erred in failing to conclude that Complainant 

Estabrook' s protected activity as described in his Complaint was at minimum a 

contributing factor, if not the primary factor, in Respondent FedEx' s demand for 

psychiatric analysis of Captain Estabrook, its ongoing directive that Captain Estabrook 

submit to psychological treatment, and its repeated removal of Captain Estabrook from 

flying status, and all other discriminatory personnel action described therein. 

18. Complainant reserves the right to amend his complaint and objections to the 

Secretary' s Findings upon review of evidence and testimony obtained through future 

discovery. 

19. Complainant preserves his right to discovery and will immediately initiate all 

such processes, methods and rights afforded by this action and as permitted by law. 
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WHEREFORE, cause having been shown, Complainant Estabrook prays for an order against 

Respondent FedEx as follows: 

A. For an Order directing FedEx to rescind its directive for Captain Estabrook to 
undergo any further mental health evaluation or treatment; 

B. For an Order directing FedEx to suppress, remove and expunge all disciplinary 
proceedings, medical and psychiatric evaluations and treatment histories 
concerning Captain Estabrook from FedEx personnel files, including all 
contracted medical agents' records; 

C. For an Order directing the removal and expungement of all references to 
psychiatric evaluation and treatment in all government records, including but not 
limited to, the Federal Aviation Administration; 

D. For an Order directing FedEx to cease and desist from all discriminatory conduct 
toward Captain Estabrook; 

E. For an Order awarding Captain Estabrook the costs of this action, including 
payment of reasonable attorney's fees; 

F. For an Order granting such additional relief as the Secretary of Labor, or other 
decision maker in this process, deems proper and just; and 

G. For an Order granting full compensatory damages including compensation for 
pain, suffering and emotional distress due to this adverse action in an amount that 
will deter Respondent from contemplating retaliatory actions against its 
employees in the future. 

Dated: White Plains, New York 
August 12, 2014 

SEHAM, SEHAM, MELTZ & PETERSEN, LLP 

By: 
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Lee Seham, Esq. 
445 Hamilton Avenue- Suite 1204 
White Plains, NY 10601 
Tel. (914) 997-1346 

Attorney for Complainant 
Captain Mark Estabrook 
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SEHAM, SEHAM, MELTZ & PETERSEN, LLP 

By: 
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Lee Seham, Esq. 
445 Hamilton Avenue - Suite 1204 
White Plains, NY 1060 I 
Tel. (9 14) 997-1346 

Attorney fo r Complainant 
Captain Mark Estabrook 
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TO: Chief of Administrative Law Judge 
Office of Administrative Law Judges -
U.S. Department of Labor 
800 K Street, NW, Suite 400 
Washington, DC 20001-8002 
Tel: (202) 693-7452 
Fax: (202) 693-7365 

cc: Federal Express Corporation 
3620 Hacks Cross Road, Bldg. B- 3d Floor 
Memphis, TN 38125 

Kurt A. Petermeyer, Regional Administrator 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
Sam Nunn Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W., Room 6T50 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
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TO: Chief of Administrative Law Judge 
Office of Administrative Law Judges 
U.S. Department of Labor 
800 K Street, NW, Suite 400 
Washington, DC 20001 -8002 
Tel: (202) 693-7452 
Fax: (202) 693-7365 

cc: Federal Express Corporation 
3620 Hacks Cross Road, Bldg. B - 3d Floor 
Memphis, TN 38125 

Kurt A. Petermeycr. Regional Administrator 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
Sam Nunn Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W., Room 6T50 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
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Too 14047618326 From• 18172518440 Date• 03/23/16 Time• 3o04 PM Pageo 02 
03/23/2016 5; 22 PM FAX lilJ 0002/0003 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW .nJDGES 

) 
MARK ESTABROOK, ) 

) 
Complainant, ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
) 

FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION, ) 
) 

Respondent. ) 
) _____________________ ) 

CASE NO. 2014-AIR-00022 

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE 
SCOTT R. MORRIS 

DECLARATION OF DR. THOMAS BETTES 

I, Thomas Bettes, declare as follows: 

!. I am a licensed physician currently working in the state of Texas. 

2. In the fall of2013, I was working as paid contractor/consultant with Harvey Watt 

& Co., during which time 1 also served FedEx as an aeromedical advisor. I left Harvey Watt in 

2015 and have not had further interactions with either FeAEx or Captain Estabrook. 

3. Among my duties as aeromedical advisor for FedEx was the scheduling of 

medical evaluations for FedEx pilots who were required by their employer to undergo ±ltness-

for-duty assessments. All medical and psychological evaluations and/or examinations were 

completed by other contracted physicians or neuropsychologists with some knowledge or 

expertise in aviation medicine. 

4. At no time did I conduct a physical or psychological evaluation or in-person 

examination of Mr. Estabrook. Rather, I scheduled him for a psychiatric assessment of his 

mental health at the request of FedEx. 

To. 14047618326 From. 18172518440 Date. 03/23/16 Time. 3.04 PM Page. 02 
03/23/2016 5; 22 PM FAX IilJ 000210003 
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To: 14047618326 From: 18172518440 
03/23/2016 5:22 PM FAX Date: 03/23/16 Time: 3:04 PM Page: 03 

lilJ 0003/0003 

5. The initial recommendation made by me to his employer, based on the report of 

psychiatrist Dr. George Glass, was that he remain on a temporary Sick Leave-of-Absence while 

completing some psychological counseling. As you are aware, FedEx pilots are allowed by their 

labor agreement to pursue a second medical opinion as part of the process; because there were 

conflicting opinions rendered, Estabrook was eventually sent for a third medical Fitness-for-Duty 

determination by a mutually agreed-upon examiner. Upon receiving and reviewing the results of 

this third physician's evaluation I advised FedEx officials of his ability to resume flying 

activities and exercise the privileges of his FAA medical certificate. 

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true 

and correct. 

Executed on March _, 2016. 

J "r}nMik ~ t1i) 
Dr. Thomas Bettes 
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Lee Seham, Esq. 
SEHAM, SEHAM, MELTZ & PETERSEN, LLP 
199 Main Street- 71h Floor 
White Plains, NY 10601 
Tel: (914) 997-1346 

Attorneys for Complainant 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
ADML~STRATIVE REVIEW BOARD 

) 
MARK ESTABROOK, ) 

) 
Complainant, ) 

) 
~ ) 

) 
FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION, ) 

) 
Respondent. ) 

) 

-------------------------- ) 

ALJ CASE NO. 2014-AIR-00022 

COMPLAINANT'S PETITION FOR REVIEW 

Complainant Mark Estabrook, by and through its attorneys Seham, Seham, Meltz & Petersen, 

LLP, as and for his Petition for Review pursuant to 29 C.F.R. § 1979.110(a) identifies the 

following findings, conclusions, and orders to which he takes exception. 

Erroneous Legal Conclusions 

1. Administrative Law Judge Scott Morris (hereinafter, "the AU") correctly determined 

that the Complainant had engaged in protected activity by refusing to depart from Laredo 

into a solid line of thunderstorms on April 10, 2013, (hereinafter, "the Laredo 

departure"), and by subsequently filing an AIR 21 complaint on April 29, 2013, in 

Lee Seham, Esq. 
SEHA>\1, SEHAM, MELTZ & PETERSEN, LLP 
199 Main Street - 7th Floor 
White Plains, NY 10601 
Tel: (914) 997· 1346 

Attorneys for Complainant 
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response to the Respondent's disciplinary investigation of the Laredo departure; however, 

the ALJ erroneously determined that, the Complainant had not engaged in protected 

activity on August 9, 2013, when he communicated to the Respondent that its practice of 

disseminating, and/or permitting the dissemination of, aircraft and package tracking 

information had the effect of incentivi.zing terrorists to introduce explosives, incendiary 

devices and other de tructive substances into the Respondent's aircraft in contravention 

of Respondent' s federal regulatory obligation to "prevent" and/or "deter'' the introduction 

of such explosives, incendiary devices and destructive substances, de pite the AU's 

acknowledgment that the Complainant "raised the issue about how to improve the safety 

of Respondent's aircraft and personnel." 49 C.F.R. § 1544.103(a)(l); 49 C.F.R § 

1544.205(c)(l ); (c); 49 C.F.R. § 1544.205(a); (Decision at 49). This erroneous legal 

conclusion is of particular importance in view of the direct evidence that the Respondent 

based its adverse action on the Complainant's communications related to this safety issue 

and the AU's finding that: "Here, Respondent's treatment of Complainant resembles ... 

an over-reaction in response to Complainant's demonstrated knowledge of security issues 

.... " (Decision at 57, 61). 

2. The AU improperly made no effort to directly interpret the plain language of regulatory 

law pertaining to the Complainant's third incident of protected activity (49 C.F.R. § 

1544.103(a)(l); 49 C.F.R. § 1544.205(c}(l); (c); 49 C.F.R. § 1544.205(a)), but, instead 

improperly founded his interpretation of law relating to whether the Complainant had 

engaged in protected activity on the testimony of the Respondent's witnesses concerning 

their understanding of Federal Aviation Regulations (FARs) and the Federal Aviation 

Administration's (FAA) apparent acquiescence to theRe pendent's practice of allowing 
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terrorist organizations to have access to valuable intelligence that would incentivize these 

organizations to view FedEx as an effective means of delivering explosive devices. 

Thus, the AU abdicated the judicial obligation to interpret the law. Perez v. Mortg. 

Bankers Ass'n, 135 S. Ct. 1199, 1221 (2015)("In each case, the Judiciary is called upon 

to exercise its independent judgment and apply the law."). 

3. The AU permitted trial testimony of Respondent's Labor Relations Counsel Robb Tice 

concerning his discussions with Vice President of Flight Operations James Bowman 

relating to Respondent's motive of grounding the Complainant pursuant to a Not 

Operationally Qualified (NOQ) designation on AugustS, 2013; however, the AU 

erroneously declined to order the disclosure of the email communications underlying 

Tice's testimony on the grounds of attorney-client privilege. Hernandez v. Tannin.en, 604 

F.3d 1095, 1100 (9th Cir. 2010) ("voluntary disclosure of the content of a privileged 

attorney communication results in waiver as to all other communications on the same 

subject. "); United States v. Nobles, 422 U.S . 225,239-40 (1975) ("Respondent can no 

more advance the work-product doctrine to sustain a unilateral testimonial use of work­

product materials than he could elect to testify in his own behalf and thereafter assert his 

Fifth Amendment privilege to resist cross-examination on matters reasonably related to 

those brought out in direct examination."). 

4. The AU failed to properly consider and apply AIR 21 regulatory law providing that 

temporal proximity between a protected activity and an adverse personnel action will 

"normally" satisfy a complainant's burden of making a prima facie showing of 

knowledge and cau ation. 29 C.P.R.§ l979.104(b)(2). 

3 

terrorist organizations to have access to valuable intelligence that would incentivize these 

organizations to view FedEx as an effective means of delivering explosive devices. 

Thus, the AU abdicated the judicial obligation (0 interpret the law. Perez v. Mortg. 

Bankers Ass'n. 135 S. 0. 1199. 1221 (2015)("In eacb case. the judiciary is called upon 

to exercise its independent jUdgment and apply (he law."). 

3. The AU pennitted trial testimony of Respondent's Labor Relations Counsel Robb Tice 

concerning his discussions with Vice President of Flight Operations James Bowman 

relating to Respondent's motive of grounding the Complainant pursuant to a Not 

Operationally Qualified (NOQ) designation on August 5. 2013; however. the AU 

erroneously declined to order the disclosure of the email communications underlying 

Tice's testimony on the grounds of attorney-client privilege. Hernandez v. Tanninen, 604 

F.3d 1095. 1100 (9'" Cit. 2010) ("voluntary disclosure of the content of a privileged 

attorney communication results in waiver as to all other communications on the same 

subjec .. "); Uoired Stares v. Nobles. 422 u.s. 225. 239-40 (1975) ("Respondent can no 

more advance the work-product doctrine to sustain a unilateral testimonia] use of work­

product materials tban he could elect to testify in hi s own behalf and thereafter assert his 

Fifth Amendment privilege to resist cross-examination on mallers reasonably related to 

those brought out in direct examination."). 

4. The AU failed to properly consider and apply AJR 21 regulatory law providing that 

temporal proximity between a protected activity and an adverse personnel action will 

"nonnaUy" satisfy a complainant's burden of making a prima facie showing of 

knowledge and causalion. 29 C.F.R. § 1979.104(b)(2). 

3 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 55     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



5. The AU identified three adverse actions taken against the Complainant (the August 5 

NOQ grounding, the August 9 NOQ grounding, and the order to submit to psychiatric 

examination on pain of termination for non-compliance); however, the AU failed to 

analyze the motives underlying these determinations for each of the participants in these 

three adverse actions. 

6. The AU failed to properly consider and apply AIR 21 precedent providing that a 

Respondent's repeated refusal to provide a rationale for its adverse actions supports a 

finding that a subsequently provided rationale may be deemed pretextual. 

7. The AU failed to properly consider and apply AIR 21 precedent providing that a 

Respondent's proffer of shifting rationales for its adverse actions supports a finding of a 

causal link between the Complainant's protected activity and the Respondent's adverse 

actions taken against him, particularly in light of the AU's findings that there was "no 

credible evidence" supporting key factual allegations upon which the Respondent's 

adverse actions were taken and that the Respondent had attempted to "cloak its decision" 

to require the Respondent to undergo a psychiatric analysis and had taken a 

''disingenuous approach," and that "Respondent treads on thin ice by offering such a 

flimsy justification for referring Complainant to a mental evaluation in this case." 

(Decision at 56-57). 

8. The AU failed to properly consider AIR 21 precedent that singling out a complainant, 

who has engaged in protected activity, for investigation of an unrelated incident (in this 

matter, the internet postings of an individual identified as Mayday Mark), supports a 

finding of a causal link between the protected activity and a subsequent adverse action. 
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9. The AU misapplied the "contributing factor" standard in his analysis of whether there is 

a causal link existed between the Complainant's protected activity and the Respondent's 

adverse actions taken against him. 

10. The AU erroneously failed to apply the "clear and convincing evidence" standard to the 

Respondent's proffered rationales for the adverse actions taken against the Complainant. 

11. The AU 's determination that the Respondent's August 5 NOQ designation was "solely" 

for the purpose of"facilitat[ing] a meeting with management" on August 9, 2013, 

constituted legal error insofar as it disregarded the law of the case embodied in the ALJ's 

partial summary judgment decision dated May 9, 2016, in which the AU held: 

There is no genuine dispute that while Complainant was on NOQ status 
involuntarily, he was removed from service as a pilot and he was 
ineligible to use jumpseat privileges. When viewing the facts in the light 
most favorable to either party, there is no genuine dispute that NOQ status 
affected the terms, conditions or privileges of Complainant's employment 
such that it constituted adverse action under the Act. 

*** 
When viewing all facts and reasonable inferences in the light most 
favorable to both parties for purposes of their respective Motions, 
Complainant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law that he was 
subjected to adverse actions when originally placed on NOQ status, when 
NOQ status was reinstated after the August 9, 2013 meeting, and when he 
was compelled to submit to a 150 evaluation. 

(Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part Complainant's Motion for Summary 

Decision and Denying Respondents's Motion for Summary Decision, May 9, 

2016, at 22). 

12. ALJ erroneously treated the question of the Respondent's ability to control the 

publication of its flight tracking data as a question of fact and erroneously disregarded 
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federal law that authorized the Respondent to prevent the dissemination of its flight 

tracking data for safety or other purposes. (Decision at 49). 

Erroneous Factual Determinations Under the Substantial Evidence Standard 

13. The AU erroneously determined that Respondent's first NOQ grounding of the 

Complainant on August 5, 2013, which the AU held to be an adverse action under AIR 

21 , was "solely'' for the purpose of "facilitat[ing] a meeting with management" on 

August 9, 2013, concerning security issues raised by the Complainant; that there was "no 

evidence" that Respondent's use of the NOQ on August 5 represented an attempt to 

punish or harass Complainant; and that there was "little, if any, evidence that the adverse 

actions ... relate to Complainant's" Laredo-related protected activity; however, the AU 

failed to accord proper weight to evidence that the Respondent's representations of a 

mere scheduling motive for the August 5 NOQ designation were false and that its actual 

motive was retaliatory in nature, including, inter alia, (a) System Chief Pilot William 

McDonald's discovery of anonymous internet postings related to the Laredo departure 

immediately prior to the August 5 NOQ grounding, his prior expression of frustration that 

he had not been able to discipline the Complainant for his Laredo-related protected 

activity, and his ignorance of the fact that the Complainant was not the anonymous poster 

of the Laredo-related communications at the time he authorized the adverse actions taken 

against the Complainant (b) McDonald's directive to Labor Counsel Tice to interrogate 

Complainant at the August 9 meeting as to whether he was the anonymous poster of the 

Laredo-related internet postings based on his belief that the postings violated FedEx 

policy, (c) Tice's testimony that his presence, as Respondent counsel, at a pilot meeting 
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was generally limited to meetings related to the disciplinary process and Tice's admission 

that the standard reason for suspending a pilot's jumpseat privileges, as occurs with an 

NOQ designation, is that the person is under investigation for a significant matter, (d) 

Tice's surprise that the unsuspecting Complainant did not seek union or legal 

representation for the August 9 meeting, (e) the Respondent's failure to disclose, in 

response to direct discovery requests, that Vice President of Flight Operations Bowman 

participated in the decision to ground the Respondent on August 5 pursuant to an NOQ 

designation, (f) evidence that Bowman's and McDonald's motive for the August 5 

designation was to bar the Complainant from accessing Respondent's aircraft, rather than 

to "facilitate a meeting," (g) testimony from Respondent's own witnesses that non­

disciplinary meetings with pilots are "typically" facilitated by an RMG (Remove for 

Management) designation, rather than an NOQ designation that punishes and stigmatizes 

a pilot by both grounding him and stripping him of his jumpseat privileges, (h) 

Complainant never asked for a meeting with Respondent's representatives, (i) 

Respondent gave no consideration to Estabrook's security concerns either before, during, 

or after the August 9 meeting, U) none of the Respondent's representatives researched 

Estabrook's prior role as union Security Committee Chainnan or his past dealings with 

the Respondent's Vice President of Corporate Security Bill Henrikson and Senior Vice 

President of Air and Ground Freight Services, William Logue, (k) Respondent' s 

interference with the contractual15D and 15G medical evaluation process for the purpose 

of compelling a psychiatric evaluation, (I) Respondent's attribution of its decision to its 

belief that the Complainant "knew too much," and (m) inconsistent interrogatory 

responses and testimony responses regarding the purpose of NOQ designations 
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designation was to bar the Complainant from accessing Respondent' s aircraft, rather than 

to "facilitate a meeting," (g) testimony from Respondent' s own witnesses that non­

discipUnary meetings with pilots are "typically" facili tated by an RMG (Remove for 

Management) designation, rather than an NOQ designation that punishes and stigmatizes 

a pilot by both grounding him and stripping him of his jumpseat privileges, (b) 

Complainant never asked for a meeting with Respondent'S representatives, (i) 

Respondent gave no consideration to Estabrook's security concerns either before, during, 

or after the August 9 meeting, U) none of the Respondent's representatives researched 

Estabrook's prior role as union Security Committee Chainnan or his past dealings with 

the Respondent's Vice President of Corporate Security Bill Henrikson and Senior Vice 

President of Air and Ground Freight Services, William Logue, (k) Respondent's 

interference with the contractual 150 and 15G medical evaluation process for tbe purpose 

of compelling a psychiauic evaluation, (I) Respondent's attribution of its decision to its 

belief that the Complainant "knew too much," and (m) inconsistent interrogatory 

responses and testimony responses regarding the purpose of NOQ designations 
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implemented on August 5 and August 9, 2013 and the persons responsible for making 

these determinations. 

14. While the AU stated that he was "troubled" by the adverse actions taken against the 

Complainant (Decision at 53), that the reasons given by Respondent principal witnesses 

for their determination to ground the Complainant after the August 9 meeting and subject 

him to mandatory psychiatric evaluation were "simply not credible" and "deserve[] little 

weight," the AU failed to accord proper weight to evidence of a causal link between 

Complainant's protected activity as detailed in the above paragraphs. 

15. The AU erroneously concluded that "no Respondent member had an issue with 

Complainant's refusal to fly through severe weather on April 10, 2013," but rather, that 

"[t]he issue for Respondent's management personnel was Complainant's failure to arrive 

at the airport one hour prior to his department time at Laredo;" however, the AU failed 

to accord proper weight to evidence that the Respondent bore animus toward the 

Complainant because of his failure to depart and that Respondent's witnesses 

misrepresented evidence regarding the Laredo incident and disciplinary investigation, 

including, inter alia, (a) the Respondent's misrepresentations of the Complainant' s 

communications with the dispatcher, (b) the failure of Duty Officer Mark Crook to make 

any objection to the Complainant' s location at the hotel in his conversations with the 

Complainant, (c) Crook' s pressure on Estabrook to depart notwithstanding unsafe 

weather conditions and Fisher's agreement to counsel Crook with respect to Crook's pilot 

pushing, (d) Crook's misrepresentations under oath regarding his unrecorded telephonic 

conversations with the Complainant, (e) Crook's misrepresentations under oath regarding 

his review of the audiotapes of his conversations with the Complainant, (f) Crook's 
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emphasis on the Laredo departure's "delay'' and "time" issues in the communications to 

Respondent management representatives who initiated the disciplinary investigation, (g) 

the stated position of the GOC Manager, in response to learning of the Complainant's 

objection to being "pushed to leave" that: "It's his damn job," (h) Respondent's 

acknowledgement that the Complainant had a good faith belief that his extended stay at 

the hotel had been authorized, (i) Respondent's acknowledgement that there was no basis 

to assert that the extra time Complainant spent at the hotel resulted in a delayed departure 

of the aircraft, (j) the fact that additional time at a hotel during a gate hold promotes 

safety by allowing the pilots to rest in order to prevent subsequent fatigue, and (k) that 

the Respondent management representatives who initiated the disciplinary investigation 

of the Complainant were aware of all of the above. 

16. The AU failed to accord proper weight to the untruthful denials by Respondent 

management representatives of any knowledge of Complainant's Laredo-related AIR 21 

complaint during the course of the Department of Labor's investigation, or consider the 

retaliatory animus toward the Complainant that knowledge of the Laredo complaint 

engendered as a contributing factor toward the adverse actions taken against the 

Complainant by the Respondent. The AU also failed to appropriately discount the 

credibility of Respondent witnesses who engaged in these untruthful representations to 

the Department of Labor representative. 
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17. The AU failed to accord proper weight to the admission of Managing Director of 

Aviation and Regulatory Security Todd Ondra that the tracking data disseminated by the 

Respondent "potentially could be of interest or value" to terrorists. 

Respectfully submitted on: 

Date: May 26, 2017 

Lee Seharn, Esq. 
Jseharn @ssmplaw .com 
Seham, Seham, Meltz & Petersen, LLP 
199 Main Street - Seventh Floor 
White Plains, NY 1060 l 
Tel: (914) 997-1346 

Attorneys for Complainant Mark Estabrook 
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17. The AU failed to accord proper weight to the admission of Managing Director of 

Aviation and Regulatory Security Todd Dndra that the tracking data disseminated by the 

Respondent "potentially could be of interest or value" to terrorists. 

Respectfully submitted on: 

Date: May 26, 2017 BY:~~ 
Lee Seham, Esq. 
lseham@ssmplaw.com 
Seham, Seham, Meltz & Petersen, LLP 
199 Main Street - Seventh Floor 
White Plains, NY 10601 
Tel: (914) 997-1346 

Attorneys/or Complainant Mark Estabrook 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

A copy of the foregoing Notice of Deposition was served on May 26, 2017 upon: 

By Federal Express 
Administrative Review Board 
U.S. Department of Labor 
Suite S-5220 
200 Constitution A venue, NW 
Washington, DC 20210 

By U.S. Mail: 
Chief Administrative Law Judge 
U.S. Department of Labor 
Office of Administrative Law Judges 
800 K Street, NW 
Suite 400-North 
Washington, DC 20001-8002 

Assistant Secretary 
OSHA 
U.S. Department of Labor 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, DC 20210 

Associate Solicitor 
Division of Fair Labor Standards 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room N-2716 
U.S. Department of Labor 
Washington, DC 20210 

By U.S. Mail and Electronic Mail: 
Daniel Riederer 
Senior Counsel - Litigation 
FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 
3620 Hacks Cross Road 
Building B, 3rd Floor 
Memphis, Tennessee 38125 

Lee Seham, Esq. 
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By Federal Express 
Administrati ve Review Board 
U.S. Department of Labor 
Suite S-5220 
200 Constitution A venue, NW 
Washington, DC 20210 

By U.S. Mail: 
Chief Administrative Law Judge 
U.S. Department of Labor 
Office of Administrative Law Judges 
800 K Street, NW 
Suite 4OO-North 
Washington, DC 20001-8002 

Assistant Secretary 
OSHA 
U.S. Department of Labor 
200 Constitution A venue, N . W. 
Washington, DC 20210 

Associate Solicitor 
Division of Fair Labor Standards 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room N-27 16 
U.S. Department of Labor 
Washington, DC 20210 

By U.S. Mail and Electronic Mail: 
Daniel Riederer 
Senior Counsel - Litigation 
FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 
3620 Hacks Cross Road 
Building B, 3rd Floor 
Memphis, Tennessee 38125 

Lee Seham, Esq. 
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Captain Rob Fisher 
Airbus Fleet Captain 

lntematlonal Operahlbns 

·.:·~:-, .. ~,so 
.~® . 

. Extn:~ss 

':JIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

April 23, 2013 

Captain Mark Estabrook/88775 
PO Box 1890 
Manchaca, TX 78652 

Captain Estabrook: 

Flight Operations 

3131 Democrat Rd. 

Building C, 

Telephone 901.224.3435 

Fax 901.22.4.5516 

refi sller@fedex..com 

The Company requires your attendance at an investigative interview that will be conducted in 
accordance wtth Section 19.0.1 of the CBA on Wednesday, May 1, 2013 at 3p.m. in the ARTC (Airbus 
Flight Training Area, 2nd floor east end) located at 3040 Independence Road, Memphis TN, located across 
from AOC. Currently, PRISM shows that you have a PO bo~. Please update your address in PRISM to 
your primary residence address in accordance with section 26.N,2. prior to our meeting on May 1. 

Company records indicate that you were late reporting to work for F!ight1317/11Apr13. The interview 
is being conducted to iny~~tigate the facts and circumstances surrounding this late show. 

You may have an ALPA representative present if you desire. 

Sincerely, 

Captain Rob Fisher 
Chief Pilot/Regional 
901-224-3435 . 

Attachments 

cc Robert Tice, Sr. Counsel 

Scott Williams, Sr. Attorney 
Cindy Sartain, Sr. Paralegal Specialist, Labor Relations Law 
Terry Me Tigue, ALPA, Fed Ex MEG, Contract Enforcement 
Coy Briant, ALPA, Fed Ex MEC, Grievance Committee 
Maggi Comes, ALPA, Legal Secretary 

· Domicile Personnel File 

FDX 4-00Q004 

• 

• 

• 

Captain Rob Fisher 
P.irtluS Fleet CBp!a", 

InlemallonaJ OperelibrlS 

fdX·' . . 
. " 

.i'J<i>(\!SS 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

April 23, 2013 

Captain Mark Estabrook/Sa77S 
PO Box 1890 
Manchaca, TX 78652 

Captain Estabrook: 

FIIgI'( Openllals 

! 1J 1 Democrat Rd. 

t:lullding C, 

Telephone 901.2ZU~JS 

tax 901 ,22.,5516 

n>ij~la"@>fedex.~011'1 

The Company requires your attendance at an investigative interview that will be conducted in 
accordance with Section 19.D,' of the CBA on Wednesday, May 1, 2013 at 3p.m, in the ARTC (Airbus 
Flight Training Area, 200 floor east end) located at 3040 Independence Road, Memphis TN, located across 
frOm AOe. Currently, PRISM shows that you have a PO box. Please update your address in PRISM to 

your primary residence address in accordance with sectJon 26.N.2. prior to our meeting on May 1. 

Company records indicate that you were late reporting to work for Ftight1317/11Apr13, The interview 
is being conducted to jnv~¥tigate the facts and circumstances surrounding this late shOw. 

You may have an ALPA representative present if you desire . 

Si ncerely. 

G).'!il~' .· . .~. '. ' . ' , . ' -

Captain Rob Fisher 
Chief Pilot/Regjonal 
901-224-3435 

Attachments 

cc Robert Tiee, Sr. Counsel 
Scott Williams, Sr. Attomey 
Cindy Sartain. Sr. Paralegal Specialist Labor Relations law 
Terry McTigue, ALPA, FedEx MEC, Contract Enforcement 
Coy Briant.. ALPA, FedEx MEC, Grievance Committee 
Maggi Comes. AlPA, Legal Secretary 
Domicile Personnel File 
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.. ,, 

Mark Estabrook 

Robb Fisher 83775 

Robb Tice 

Airline Pilot Central 

"Mayday Mark" 

Ondra Notes 

8-9-13 

Arrested by Soviet Police in Hungary when I was 18. 

I've chased around Russians, etc. 

Airlinepilots.com I had a website, 

Sold for $25k 

Barbara Boxer 

Per B. McDonald 

Off Line 

Out [illegible] 

J.S. 

Send to Aeromedical [illegible] 

Warrants a psychological examination 

Recall procedures at ACARS, Billy Wilson took my suggestion and ran with it 

"Why talking about it now?" 

Part while surfing net. AI Qaeda very active. They wanted out live tracking 

Mark Estabrook 

Robb Fisher 83775 

Robb Tice 

Airl ine Pilot Central 

" Mayday Mark" 

Ondra Notes 

8-9-13 

Arrested by Soviet Police in Hungary when' was 18. 

I've chased around Russians, etc. 

Airl inepilots.com I had a website, 

Sold for $25k 

Barbara Boxer 

Per B. McDonald 

Off Line 

Out [illegible} 

J.S. 

Send to Aeromedical [illegible} 

Warrants a psychological examination 

Reca ll procedures at ACARS, Billy W ilson took my suggestion and ran with it 

"Why talking about it now?" 

Part while surfing net. AI Qaeda very active. They wanted out live tracking 
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pt ~ Asking Fred to consider going to other CEOs, ATA, Homeland Security & tell customers can no 

longer receive tracking data. 

[lllegible]/shipments to test 

Think Alsiri training dozens of replacements. Database our systems/tracking. We have to make sacrifices 

to 

2"d ~2nd thing wanted to tell Fred 

Need put some $ into operation 

Research center. Statistic, math, game war neural network, tied to intelligence community, homeland 

security, and other companies, best& brightest 

3rd ~ Last thing wanted to talk about 

Heard twice in last 6 months, Auburn Calloway has converted to Islam 

Wanting to go dept of Justice and request eavesdropping on his cell 

-Calloway attacked cockpit 

-Followed by Muhammad Atta 

Emphasis on us for some reason 

Muslim Emphasis 

Don't know if Calloway is using communication path to ai-Qaeda 

*When ai-Qaeda fails, they come back, know how system works 

* I put that assessment together for WPH, WJC 

Bill, gave him WPH copy of ai-Qaeda training manual 

*All we need is pick up scan and delivery scan only 

*All apps to track flights we have to stop that 

I f! -7 Asking Fred to consider going to other CEOs, ATA, Homeland Security & tell customers can no 

longer rece ive t racking data. 

Illiegiblel/shipments to test 

Think Alsi ri t rain ing dozens of replacements. Database our systems/tracking. We have to make sacrifices 

to 

2~d -7200 t hing wanted to tell Fred 

Need put some $ into operation 

Research center . Statistic, math, game war neura l network, tied to intelligence community, homeland 

security, and other companies, best& brightest 

3,6 -7 last thing wanted to talk about 

Heard twice in la510 months, Auburn Calloway has converted to Islam 

Wanting to go dept of Justice and request eavesdropping on his cell 

-Calloway attacked cockpit 

-Followed by Muhammad AUa 

Emphasis on us for some reason 

Muslim Emphasis 

Don 't know if Calloway is using communication path to al-Qaeda 

·When al -Qaeda fails, they come back, know how system works 

,. , put that assessment together for WPH, WJC 

Bill, gave him WPH copy of al-Qaeda training manual 

"All we need is pick up scan and delivery scan only 

'All apps to t rack flights we. have to stop that 
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PRIVIlEGED 
--AN-9----

CONFID-ENTfAL 
,August 9, 2.013 

AOD·/light. Hearing; Mark Estabrook 

Robb Tice-Lega I, Rob Fisher-Fleet Captain, Todd Ondra-Security, Mark Estabrook/ Crew Member 

The followi~g is the recap of our discus~ions with Mark Estabrook: 

On the above date a meeting was scheduled with the above mentioned employees. The goal of this 

meeting wast; hear from.Mark Estabrooki #8-8775, Crev.r'Member, concerning an email note that 

Est~ brook had .sent to _Bill McDonald, System Chfef Pilot, on·Aug}Jst 4, 2013. tn this note, Estabrook 

wrQte a Bill, I need to talk to Fred. Jt has nothing to do with_ Flight Ops or you. Jt deals w.ith something 

related to 9-11. I did mY, best to protect the company a-nd re~orted as much as I could through Bill 
{ • ,. 4-

Henrickson when I was the Securi~ Chairman at ALP A. Ask Fred to call ~eon my cell but realize I turn it 

off when I sleep. I am about t_o cl9se my eyes and call it a dal'. 
··-- ______ ., _____________ , .......... -··· . .. -····· ·-=--·--- - .... ·-··-- ---------·----· -·-·· -· ... . . 

Rob Fisher coordinated this meeting which took pla.ce at the Air Operations Building on Friday, August 9, 

) 2013. Foliowing introductions Estabrook orened !_he meeth1g by sharing that he is well versed 

concerning intelligence/informatio~ sharing and that he understands how this works. Estabrook advised 

this was the reason he requested such a _$mall audience. Estabrook wen~ on to say that bis experi"ence in 

·this area dates back to his childhood when his father helpJ~d individuals .escape from Cuba after _Castro· .. 

gained control of the country. Estabrook went on to say that he had been arreste~ when he was 

eighteen (18) by the secr_et police in Hungary. and added that he had be'en chased all around Russia. 

Estabrook then told us how he wa-s proud of his accomplishments within Air Operations and that he had 

helped to develop the recall procedures in A CARS, adding that Billy Wilson took- his suggestion a~d ran 

with i~. Estabrook also ~old us that he had develo.ped a website that was utilized by Fed Ex crew 

members to communicate and promote the. ere~ members union at FedEx (airlinepilots.com·). 

Estabrook told us that he no longer---owned this website, adding that he has since S?ld this website for 

$25K. 
_____ ,. -------- ---··-- ··-----

Estabrook then make three points: Point one, regarding 9-11, Estabrook told us that he was bringing 

this subject" up nowibecause while recently surfing the internet due to ·the recent travel and threat alerts 
• ~ - !< 

throughout the U.S. he noticed that ai-Asiri wa~ still very active. Estabrook talked about the previeus 

bomb attempts targeted for cargo aircraft in. October of 2[j10. He went on tell us ~hat they w~nted our 

live trackjng information. Estabrook went on to say that Fred (Mr. Sm ithL needs to consider ~oing to 

th~ other CEO's, ATA, and Homeland Securlty, and tell customers they ca~ no long .receive_ tracking 

information. Estabro?k told us this was critical because previous shipments had b_een sent related to 

the October bombings to test the system and time lines. Estab~ook advised the only scans on shipments 

should b·e the pick-up and the deliver 'scan. He went on to say that it is his belief ai-Asiri is currently. 

training dozens of replacements and that everyone needs to make sacrifices like giving up· data base 

apps rel~ted to aircraft system tracking capabilities} e.g. being able to track aircraft while in flight. 
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August 9, 2013 

PRIVILEGED 
-ANQ-­

CONFIDENTI~L 
AOD1Flight. Hearing; Mark Estabrook 

Robb Ike-legal, Rob Fisher-Fleet Captain, Todd Ondra-Security, Mark Estabrook, Crew Member ~\j\dt1e:l 

The followi~g is the recap of our discussions with Mark Estabrook: 

On the above date a meeting Was scheduled with the above mentioned emp"loyees. The goa! of this 

meeting was to near from Mark Estabrook; #8'8775, Crew'Member, conceming an email note that 

Es:Qbrook had ;sent to .BiIl McDonald, System Chief Pilot, on'Aug}Jst 4,2013. In this note, Estabro~k 
w rt;l te "BHI, I need to talkto Fred, It has nothing to do with, Flight Ops oryou. It deals with something 

related to 9-11. I did m~ b.est to protest the company and re~orted as much as I could through Bill 

Henrickson when I was the Security (hainnan at AlPA. Ask Fred to call r:ne on my eel! but realize I turn it 

off ",nen I sleep. 1 am about t.o cl9se my eyes and call it a day.'. 
-------. .... . 

Rob Fisher coordinated this meeting which took pla-ce at the Afr Operations Building on Friday, August 9, 

j 2013. following introductions Estabrook opened the meethlg by sharing that he is weI! versed 

conceming intelligence/informa'eio~ sharing and that he understands how this works. Estabrook advised 

this was the reason he requested such a~mall audience. Estabrook wen~ on to say that his experfence in 

this area dates back to his childhood when his father helP1d individuals,escape from Cuba after Castro' 

galled control of the country. Estabrook went on to say that he had been arfeste~ when he was 

eignteen (18) by the secret police in Hungary. and added that he had be·en chased all around Russia . 

Estabrook then told us how he wa·s proud of his accomplishme.nts within AIr Operations and that he had 

t,elped to develop the recall procedu~es in ACARS, adding that Billy Wilson took· his suggestion a~d ran 

with i~. Estabrook ai50 told Us that he had develo'ped a website that was utillzed by FedEx crew 

members to communicate and promote the'creyt members union at fed Ex (airlinepilots.com1_ 

Estabrook told us that he no 10ngeNlwned·this website, adding that he has since s?ld this website for 

$25K. 

--"--- --_ ... . .. . _ .. _------
Estabrook then make three points: Point one, regarding 9-11, Estabrook told us that he was bringing 

this subject'up now/because while recently surfing the intemet due to ,the recent travel and threat-alerts 
• .' I 

throughout the US. he no~iced that al-Asiri wa.s still very active. Estabrook talked about the previous 

bomb attempts targeted for cargo aircraft in. Octobe r of 2010. He went on tell us ~hat they w~nted our 

live tracking information. Estabrook went on to say that Fred (Mr. Smith), needs to consider going to 

the other CEO's, ATA, and Homeland Security, and tell customers they can no \ong1""eceive tracking 

int'ormation . Esta bro<?k told us this' was critica l because previous shipments had b.een sent related to 

the October bombings to teST the system and time lines. Estabrook advised the only scans Of) shipments 

'should b'e the pick-up and the deliver ·scan. He Went on to say that it is hiS benef al-Asiri is currently , 

training dozens of replacements and that everyone needs to make sacrifices like giving up' data base 

a pps rel.ated to aircraft system tracking capabilities, e.g. being able to track aircraft while in flight. 
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Poin_t two, Estabrook _advised the next thing that _he wants to tell Fred is that he needs to pump sam~ 
. significant money in to an operations research staff hiring thirty {30} or so of the best and the brightest. 

Estabrook told us these individuals-need to be well versed in statisti~s,·math.~ wa~ games_, ne!Jral 
networks, and tied to the intelligence community, Homeland Security, and other companies. Estabrook 

told us that we cannot rely on the government alone and that Fed Ex needs to start making plans to now. 

f ~ 

Point three, Estabrook told us he wanted to share with Fred that he has heard twice in the past six (6) 

months that Au bum Calloway has converted to Islam. Estabrook told us that if this is true that we 
-_should go 't~.:the-o~·partm'erifof Justice anCi recfuesfeavesdroppirig ~-ii his-jail cell.' Esta-orool(went-on"t-o -- --- -..... 

tell us that Calloway attacked the cockpit and that this was followed bythe_Mohammed Atta attack. 

Estabrook told us that there appears to be an emphasis on us (Fed Ex) for some rea'son. Estabrook told 

u·s there is a Mus!fm ~mphasis, adding that he is not_ sure, but that Calloway may be using a 

communication path_to al Qaeda. Estabrook went on to tell us· that when al Qaeda fails, they come back 

and that they know how the syste.m works. 

Estabrook thanked u~ for our ti.me and the meetiog concluded. · 
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Polot two, Estabrook .advlsed the next thing that,he wants to tel! Fred is that he needs to pump som~ 
. significant money in to an operations research staff hiring thirty (30) or so of the best and the brightest. 

E.stabrook told us these Indlviduals'need to be well versed in statistl~, math, war games! ne!Jral 
networks, and tied to the intelligence co'mmunity, Homeland Security, and other companies. Estabrook 
told us that we cannot rely on the government alone and that Fed Ex needs to start making plans to now. 

, , 
Point three, Estabrook. told us he wanted to share with Fred that he has heard twIce in the past six (6) 
months that Auburn Calloway has converted to Islam. Estabrook told us that if this is true that we 

. should go 'tc;-the-D.e·part·m·erit:Of Justice andrecfuesfeavesdropping on his-jilil eel!." Esta-15rookwent oot-o-- _ .. -." 
teU us that Calloway attacked the cockpit and that this was followed·bythe,Mohammed Atta attack. 

Estabrook told us that there appears to be an emphasis on us (FedEx) for some rea'son. EStabrook told 
u·s there is a Muslim emphasis, add1ng that he is not.sure, butthat Calloway may be using a 
communication path.to al Qaeda. Estabrook went on to tell us that when al Qaeda fails, they come back 
and that they know how the svst~rn works . 

Estabrook thanked us. for our ti.me and the meeting concluded. 

Regards, 

--- .. -----~ .~---- ---,------~~-
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.Captain Rob Fisher 

VIA OVERt"'{[ Gill' LETTER & EIVIAIL 

August 16, 2o13 

Captain Mark Esta.QtooJdRS775 
10026 WUd Dunes Drive 
.A_ustin., TX 78741 

Email.: msestabrook@fe~~om 

RE1 -co-mpany Mandated Medical Exa:minai:ion 

Captain Estabrook 

R!ght OperatiortS 

/>.!rhus Fleet Ceplaio 

auik!iog c 

Memphis, ~4 3S11!1 

Te:lcphone '901.224.5450 

.3131 Democrat !=!~. 

ref:sli¢r.@~co.-n 

The Company has a reasonable basis to question whe-ther you have developed an impairment to 
your ability to perfunn d:u:ties. as a pilot U.ride:r the ciroumsf:ances, .. I am ditwting you to contact 
Dr. Thomas Bettes, at Harvey Wart & Company_, the Company's aeromedical advisor~ for an 
eyaluation putsuant to Secti.Qn. l5.D. oftb.e Collective B~g Agree~nt, You pre directed 
1o centact Dr.'Bettes,s office and coordiua:te with Dana~~ by Wednesday~ A~o-pst 2t 201.3, 
m schedule a:a evaluation. Theil' office telephone number-is (800) 241-6103"; Ext. 240. 

You shall be remo'Ved :Q=om p:lly eon:flicting scheduled a.Cthrities with pay until the aeromedical 
aQ.visor de~~ whether you are fit for flight d.uty. 

Failure to. comply vvith this directi-ve may result in disciplmary action. 

P l~se contact me if you have an~ qm:siions. 

iZEbfh~in:J 
Rob Fisiwr l "Cf:y/ 
AirP.us Fleet Captain . 
. 901-224-3435 

cc: Bill MGDonal~ S}ffitemChlefPilot 
Rohb Tire, Lead C011nsel 
Scott Williams, Sr. Attorney 
Cindy Sartam., Sr.. Paralegal Spec1alist 
Coy B~ ALP A Grievance Committee 
Ivfaggi Comes . 
Dana Bates 
D{lllli£ile PerSonnel File!'P AC 
Shelia V ay-e 
! 0 1(12.07 FDX 4-000448 

•• .captain Rob Fisher 

Fed&. 
B<press . 

VIA OVERNIGHT LETIER ~.EMAIL 

ADgust 16, 2013 

Captain Mm:k EstaJ,roold&g775 
10026 W\ld Dimes Drive 
Austin, 'IX 78741 

F.mail:: msestabrook@fedl:L~om 

"'RE: -Company Mandated Medical Ex!UlIination 

Capfltin Estabrook: 

A!gh.t Op"'""UCN 

Arws f1ut Cer.laf~ 

"'"_C 
MltrnJltris,,,~ 3&11£ 

TelI!phcn" 901.224.54(;.0 

3111 O~ Rd. 

r<if.5lo~1!tIm 

The Company has a l'easonablc basis 10 qu~stion wheiher you have developed an impwtment to 
your ability to perform rhrti.e:s as a pilot uDder the circumsta.n.ces ... I am directing you to contact 
Dr. Thomas Bettes, at Harvey W~ & Company.> the Compau~'s aeromedical aO.'ilsoJ:, for an 
eyalu$on pu~ to Sectkm.15.D. of the Collective BatgB:4tin.g Agreement, You ilIe directed 
'to contact Dr, Bettes's office and coordinate with Dana B:ates by Wednesday, A\1,;.~ 21. 201,3, 
"' schedule OR ._on. Their afIj"" !elepbonenumber-is (800) 241-610,.fu:t. 24lJ. 

You shall be remo'Ved ~om FDir COnfii.cting scheduled anuvities with :pay unt:il. ilie aeromedical 
a4visor ~wbether jUU 2fe.:fitioT flight d,uty. 

Failnre to.compty 'Nii:h this directive mayresult in disciplinary action. 

!9E61~!w 
Airbus Fleet Captain 
901-224-3435 

co: Bill MGDooald, S"..tem Chief Pilot 
Robb Tice, Lead Omnsel 
Scott Williams, Sr. Attorney 
Cindy Sm:htin, Sr. Paralegal Specialist 
Coy Briant, ALI' A Grleyance Committee 
MagJliComes 
DanaB®:s 
Domi£ile l'ruomie! FlleiPAC 
8belia Voy. 
10lmo7 FDX 4..{l00448 
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SECTION 15 

MEDICAL STANDARDS 

A. General 
1. Pilots shall meet the medical standards and possess a valid medical 

certificate consistent with the FAA standards including its waiver, 
limitations, restriction, special issuance and related FAA policies for 
the class of medical certificate required for the pilot's crew seat 

2. Each pilot shall validate: through VIPS, the issuance of his new 
medical certificat_e not later than the earlier of the following: 
a. 48 hours prior to the end of his due month; or 
b. 0900 LBT the day prior to the start of any trip(s) scheduled to 

terminate either: 
i. after the expiration of the pilo,t's medical certificate; or 
ii. within 48 hours of the expiration. 

3. While a VIPS notification(s) of a pilot's pending FAA medical certificate 
expiration is provided to each pilot, it is the pilot's responsibility to 
know and meet the medical standards by possessing a valid FAA 
medical certificate. Failure of a pilot to receive a VlPS notice shall 
not excuse the pilot's failure to maintain his/her valid FAA medical 
certificate. If a pilot fails to .provide the Company with confirmation 
via VIPS that he has a valid medical certificate as required by this 
paragraph, before 0900 LBT on the day prior to the showtime of a 
trip or R-day scheduled to start within the time period as stated in 
Section 15.A.2., the trip orR-day shall be removed without pay, and 
the pilot shall not be elig(ble for make-up. Trip(s) or R-day(s) shall 
no longer be removed after the pilot provides the Company with the 
required validation. 

B. Company Payment of FAA Medical Exam Expenses 
1. The Company shall cover an active pilot's cost of annual or 

semiannual FAA medical examinations including the cost of a 
required EKG, up to an annual maximum of $275, which shall 
increase to an annual maximum of $300 on January 17 2014. The 
pilot shall use the Company issued travel card if accepted by the 
provider. lf the provider does not accept the Company issued credit 
q3.fd, the pilot must comply with normal non-travel reimbursement 
procedures that require an itemized list of the services perfonned 
by the FAA physician (i.e. 7 FAA physical, EKG if any, physician's 
office, date, charge). · 

2. If an ·active pilot incurs medical expenses in order to qualify for an 
FAA medical certificate, which are not covered by Section 15.8. 1 ., 
the following shall apply: 
a. If submitted within 90 days after having incurred the expense, 

the Company shall reimburse such pilot for the non-routine 
medical expenses if: 

February 28, 2011 
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Sec. 15. B.2.a. (continued) 

i. tlie -expenses were incurr-ed at the direct~ on of either: 
(a) the FAA; or . 
(b) an FAA designated Aviation Medical Examiner (AME) 

who reasonably concluded . that, in light of FAA 
requirements, it was necessary to perform a non­
routine medical procedure in order for the active pilot 
to obtain or maintain his FAA medical certificate; or 

ii. the expenses were incurred rn order to obtain a special 
issuance FAA me9ical certificate, as required by the FAA. 

b. A pilot who incurs medical expenses covered by Section 15.8.2. 
shall submit or cause to have submitted a medical insurance 
claim for any such expenses that are covered by insurance. 
The pilot shall provide a copy of any response(s) to the medical 
insurance claim to 'his flight manager (c.urrently .titled Assistant 
Chief Pilot) within a reasonable time after receiving same. The 
pilot shall remit to the Company the amount of any insurance 
claim that was both paid by the Company and reimbursed by 
the insurance plan. The primary purpose of Section 15.8.2.b. is 
to allow any group health insurance discount to be recognized 
for medical charges that arise out of this section and to avoid 
any double payment being made for the same service. If a pilot 
gets re.imbursed from both the Company and the service is ,.... 
also covered and paid through the group health planT the pilot 
may receive a reimbursement from the health care provider for 
an overpayment that actually belongs to the Company. In this 
case, a pilot should remit or cause to have remitted the extra 
monies paid back to the Company. 

C. Alcohol and Drug Testing 
The C01:npany may test pilots for drugs and alcohol only in accordance 
with the following: 
1. The CO:mpany shall maintain the drug and alcohol testing programs 

that are in use on the effective date of this Agreement, as long as 
such testing is mandated by law or regulation. The term "programs,, 
includes the type of specimen collected, substances for which a 
pilot is testedr the methods of testing and the thresholds at which 
testing is conducted. 

iS-2 

a. If any change in a testing program is mandated by law or 
regulation and the law or regulation does not afford multiple 
options of compliance, the Company shall give the Association 

. notice and shall consult with the Association at a mutually 
agreeable time and location concerning such change. 

b. If a law or regulation mand~tes that a testing program be 
changed, but affords multiple options by which compliance 
can be achieved, then the Company and the Association shall 
meet to discuss the available alternatives. The initial meeting 
shall commence no later than 60 days following the date the 
final rule regarding the alternative methods 1s published in the 
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SaG. 15.B.2.a. (continued) 

tReexpel=lses were incurr-ed at the di-rection of either: 
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Sec. 15.C.1 .b. (continued) 

federa~ -R-egister . .Sb.ould the parties be unable to mutually 
agree on an alternative testing method within 60 days, then 
each side may elect to advocate an alternative before a mutually 
selected arbitrator from the non-disciplinary panel. The parties' 
presentations shall be in writing unless either party elects an 
in-person hearing. The arbitrator shall select the method of 
testing from the two alternatives presented. If the Company is 
required to implement a change prior to the conclusion of the 
process described in this paragraph, nothing. in this paragraph 
shall prevent it from doing so (subject to change depending on 
the outcome of the Section 15.C.1.b. process). 

c. The Company may implement a non-mandatory change 
in a testing program only with the written consent of the 
Association. 

2. The · Company shall maintain the FedEx Drug and Alcohol 
Rehabilitatio~ and Recertification Plan for Flight Crewmembers 
(HIMS program) that complies with FAA directives regarding pilots 
who require an Authorization for Special Issuance of a Medical 
Certificate. Such Plan shall continue to conta[n fufl Company 
participation (including monitoring) in rehabilitating, and returning 
to work, those pilots who need professional treatment, along with 
insurance coverage for medical and associated bills in accordance 
with the terms of those plans as provided in Section 27. Such Plan 
shall continue to contain payment by the Company of the initial 
evaluation and the associated psychiatric/psychological evaluation 
required in conjunction with the petition for a Special lssuance 
Medical Certificate as provided in Appendix H of the FOM. 

3. If the Company has a reasonable basis to be[ieve that a pilot's ability 
to perform his duties is impaired for reasons relating to substances 
not covered by the legally mandated drug testing programs referred 
to above, the pilot's case shall be handl~d as provided in Section 
15.0. 

0. Company Mandated Medical Examinations 
1. The VP of Flight Operations, the System Chief Pilot, a Regional 

Chief Pilot, or a Chief Pilot may direct a pilot to contact or see the 
Company's aeromedical advisor if the Company has a reason~ble 
basis to question whether a pilot has developed or recovered from 
an impairment to his:-abnity to perform his duties as a pilot. 

2. A pilot in an active pay status who is directed to contact or se~ 
the Con1pany's aeromedical advisor, shall be removed from any 
conflicting scheduled activities with pay until the aeromedical 
advisor determines whether the pilot is fit for flight duty. 

3. After the Company's aeromedical adv1sor consults and/or meets with 
the pilot, by written notice,·he may require t~e pilot to undergo a test(s), 
medical examination(s), and/or an eva1uation(s) by the advisor or a 
physician designated by the aeromedical advisor. Upon the pilot's 
request, the aeromedical adv1sor shall consult with the pilot to review 
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Sec. 1S.C.1.b. (continued) 

Eederal .Register. Sbould the parties be unable to mutually 
agree on an alternative testing method within 60 days, then 
each side may elect to advocate an alternative before a mutually 
selected arbitrator from the non-disciplinary panel. The parties' 
presentations shall be in writing unless either party elects an 
in-person hearing. The arbitrator shall select the method of 
testing from the two alternatives presented. If the Company is 
required to implement a change prior to the conclusion of the 
process described in this paragraph, nothing, in this paragraph 
shall prevent it from doing so (subject to change depending on 
the outcome of the Section 15.C.1 .b. process). 

c. The Company may implement a non-mandatory change 
in a testing program only with the written consent of the 
Association. 

2. The Company shal l maintain the FedEx Drug and Alcohol 
Rehabilitatio~ and Recertification Plan for Flight Crewmembers 
(HIMS program) that complies with FAA directives regarding pilots 
who require an Authorization for Special Issuance of a Medrcal 
Certificate_ Such Plan shall continue to contain full Company 
participation (including monitoring) in rehabilitating, and returning 
to work, those pilots who need professional treatment, along with 
insurance coverage for medical and associated bills in accordance 
with the terms of those plans as provided in Section 27. Such Plan 
shall continue to contain payment by the Company of the initial 
evaluation and the associated psychiatric/psychological evaluation 
requi red in conjunction with the petition for a Special IssLlance 
Medica l Certificate as provided in Appendix H of the FOM. 

3. If the Company has a reasonable basis to believe that a pilots ability 
to perform his duties is impaired for reasons relating to substances 
not covered by the legally mandated drug testing programs referred 
to above, the pilor s case shall be handled as provided in Section 
15.0. 

D. Company Mandated Medical Examinations 
1. The VP of Flight Operations, the System Chief Pilot, a Regional 

Chief Pilot, or a Chief Pilot may direct a pilot to contact or see the 
Company's aeromedical advisor if the Company has a reasonable 
basis to question whether a pilot has developed or recovered from 
an impairment to his:-ability to perform his duties as a pilot. 

2. A pilot in an active pay status who is directed to contact or se~ 
the Company's aeromedical advisor, shall be removed from any 
conflicting scheduled activities with pay until the aeromedical 
advisor determines whether the pilot Is fit for ftight duty. 

3. After the Company's aeromedical advisor consults and/or meets with 
the pilo~ by written notice;he may require the pilot to undergo a test(s) , 
medical examination(s), and/or an evaluation(s) by the advisor or a 
physician designated by the aeromedical advisor. Upon the pilot's 
request, the aeromedical advisor shall consult with the pilot to review 

February 28,2011 FOX I/-OO~tg_~ 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 89     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



Sec. 15.0.3. (continued) 

4. 

5 . 

6. 

15-4 

and d~scuss- tl:!.e..@@romed.ical.adv.isor's ratiof.:lale.for -hrs GoRcerns-aRd 
the necessity of the prescribed examinations/evaluations. 
The Company shall pay for all examinations, tests or evaluations 
performed or directed by its aeromedical advisor. If the pilot needs 
to travel from the pilot's permanent, primary address in connection 
with a Company directed examination(s), test(s) and/or evaluation(s) 
pursuant to this paragraph, the Company shall provioe and arrange 
transportaUon, lodging and.per diem as provided in Sectio.n 5 .. 
Following the Company's .aeromedical advisor's review of the results 

. of-the examination(s), test(s) and/or evaluation(s\ a determination 
and written notice of same shall be sent to the pilot. The notice shall 
state the specific grounds for the determination. The determination 
shall be made in accordance wrth the following: 
a. If the Company's aeromedical advisor finds the pilot fit for duty, 

and the pilot agrees, the pilot shall remain on or return to active 
flight status without loss of pay. 

b. lf the Company's aeromedical advisor finds the pilot not fit for 
duty, and the pilot agreesr he shall be placed on sick leave, 
disability or medical leave of absence, as applicable. · 

c. lf the Company's aeromedical advisor finds the pilot fit for duty, 
and the pilot disagrees, then: 
i. if the pil.otsupplies the Company's aeromedical advi~orwith 

medical documentation substantiating his disagreement, 
he shall be placed or remain on sick leave, disability or 
medical leave of absence, as applicable. He shall remain in 
that status until his case· is resolved as provided _in Section 
15.0.7. (below). 

ii. if the pilot does not supply medical documentation supporting 
his disagreement within 30 days from receipt of the Company's 
aeromedical advisor's determination, he shall be placed 
on personal leave of absence. If warranted by extenuating 
circumstances, the System Chief Pilot shall extend the 30 
day period. (f the pilot subsequently supplies the required 
documentation, his status shal1 be detennined pursuant to 
Section 15.0.5.c.i. (above). 

d. If the Company's aeromedical advisor finds the pilot not fit 
for duty and thev ·pilot disagrees, the pHot sh.all be pl~ced or 
remain on sick leave, disability or medical leave of absence, as 
applicable, until the Company's aeromedical advisor determines . 
the pilot to be fit for duty, or his case is resolved as provided in 
Section 15_0.7. (below). 

The Company shall give written notice to ALPA that the Company's 
aeromedical ~dvisor has issued a directio.n to a pilot under Section 
15_0.3 or that the Company's aeromedical advisor ·has issued a 
determination to a pilot under Section 15.0.5. Such notice shall occur 
as dose in time to the Company's aeromedical advisor's notice to 
the pilot as is reasonably practical under the circumstances. 

• 

• 

Sec, 15.D.3. (continued) 

and discuss ti:le..aeromedical adVIsor's ratior:lale for his concerns and 
the necessity of the prescribed examinations/evaluations. 

4. The Company shall pay for all examinations, tests or evaluations 
performed or directed by its aeromedical advisor. If the pilot needs 
to travel from the pilot's permanent, primary address in connection 
with a Company directed examination(s). test(s) andlor evaluation(s) 
pursuant to this paragraph, the Company shall provide and arrange 
transportation, lodging and'per diem as provided in Section 5 .. 

5. Following the Company's ,aeromedical advisor's review of the results 
of the examination(s), test(s) and/or evaluation(s), a determination 
and written notice of same shall be sent to the pilot. The notice shaH 
state the specific grounds for the determination. The determination 
shall be made in accordance with the following : 
a. If the Company's aeromedical advisor finds the pilot fit fo r duty, 

and the pilot agrees, the pilot shall remain on or return to active 
flight status without loss of pay. 

b. If the Company's aeromedical advisor finds the pilot not fit for 
duty. and the pilot agrees, he shall be placed on sick leave. 
disability or medical leave of absence, as applicable. 

c. If the Company's aeromedical advisor finds the pilot fit for duty, 
and the pilot disagrees, then: 
I. if the pil.otsupplies the Company's aeromedical advisor with 

medical documentation substantiating his disagreement, 
he shall be placed or remain on sick leave, disability or 
medical leave of absence, as applicable. He shall remain in 
that status until his case is resolved as provided in Section 
15.D.7. (beloW). 

Ii. if the pilot does not supply medical documentation supporting 
his disagreement within 30 days from receipt of the Company's 
aeromedical advisor's determination, he shaIl be placed 
on personal leave of absence. If warranted by extenuating 
circumstances. the System Chief Pilot shall extend the 30 
day period. If the pilot subsequentiy supplies the required 
documentation. his status shall be determined pursuant to 
Section 15.D.5.c.i. (above). 

d. If the Company's aeromedical advisor finds the pilot not fit 
for duty and the"·pilot disagrees. the pilot sh;>11 be placed Of 

remain on sick leave, disability or medical leave of absence, as 
applicable, until the Company's aeromedical advisordetermines 
the pilot to be fit for duty, or his case is resolved as provided in 
Section 15.D.7. (below). 

6. The Company shall give written notice to ALPA that the Company's 
aeromedical advisor has issued a direction to a pilot under Section 
15.0.3 or that the Company's aeromedical advisor has issued a 
detenmination to a pilot under Section 15.0.5. Such noticeshall occur 
as close in time to the Company's aeromedical advisor's notice to 
the pilot as is reasonably practical under the circumstances. 
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Sec. 15.0. (continued) 

7. If the- pilot disagrees with the Co.mpany's aeromedical. advisor, the 
pilot shall engage, at his expense, a second physician to evaluate 
his medical condition. Unless otherwise agreed to on a case-by­
case basis, the second physician shall be a physician designated 
as the Association's Aeromedical Advisor or a physician qualified 
to diagnose and treat the pilot's underlying medical condition. If the 
pilot fails to provide the second physician's evaluation within 30 
days·following the Companis aeromedical advisor's determination, 
the pilot may remain on sick, disability or medicalle.ave· or be placed 
on personal leave of absence, as applicable, until he provides 
the second physician's evaluation to the Company's aeromedical 
advisor. If warranted by extenuating circumstances, the System 
Chief Pilot shall extend the 30 day period. 
a. lfthesecond physician agreeswiththeopinionofthe Company's 

aeromedical advisor, the pilot shall return to active flyin·g status· 
or remain or be placed on sick leave, disability or medical 
leave of absence consistent with the Company's aeromedical 
advisor's findings. 

b. If the second physician disagrees with the opinion of the 
Company's aeromedical advisor, a Medical Review Panel 
(hereinafter MRP) shall be convened to decide whether the pilot, 
in their opinion, meets the standards for holding and exercising 
the privileges of the pilot's medical certificate. Pending the 
MRP's determination, the pilot shall be placed or remain on sick 
leave, disability or medical leave of absence, as applicable. 
i. An MRP shall be composed of the Companis aeromedical 

advisor, the physician engaged by the pilot as provided 
Section 15.0.5. (above), and a third physician qualified to 
determine the medical issue In question. The third physician 
shall be selected by. agreement between -the Company's 
aeromedical advisor arid the pilot's· physician. 

ii. As soon as practicable, the MRP shall consult and determine 
whether the pilot, in their opinion, meets the standards for 
holding or exercising the privileges of the pilot's medical 
certificate. 
(a) Questions regarding the pilot's medica[ condition shall 

be resolved based on the MRP's determination. The 
pilot shall remain on or return to active flight status, sick 
Ieaver disability or medical leave of absence consistent 
with the MRP's determination as applicable. 

(b) lf the MRP rules that a pilot is fit for duty and the pilot 
still disagrees, the pilot shall be placed on personal 
leave of absence. 

February 28, 20i1 

(c) If the MRP's determination disagrees with the opinion 
of the Company's aeromedical ~dvisor, then: 
(1) the Company shall make adjustments, including 

retroactive adjustments (e.g., back payor r~storation 
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Sec. 15.0. (continued) 

7. If the· pilot disagrees with the Company's aeromedical advisor, the 
pilot shall engage, at his expense, a second physician to evaluate 
his medical condition. Unless otherwise agreed to on a case-by­
case. basis, the second physician shall be a physician designated 
as the Association's Aeromedical Advisor or a physician qualified 
to diagnose and treat the pilot's underlying medical condition. If the 
pilot fails to provide the second physician's evaluation within 30 
days'following the Company's aeromedical advisor's determination, 
the pilot may remain on sick, disability or medicalle.ave or be placed 
on personal leave of absence, as applicable, until he provides 
the second physician's evaluation to the Company's aeromedical 
advisor. If warranted by extenuating circumstances, the System 
Chief Pilot shall extend the 30 day period. 
a. If the second physician agrees with the opinion of the Company's 

aeromedical advisor, the pilot shall return to active flying status 
or remain or be placed on sick leave, disability or medical 
leave of absence consistent With the Company's aeromedical 
advisor's findings. 

b. If the second physician disagrees with the opinion of the 
Company's aeromedical advisor, a Medical Review Panel 
(hereinafier MRP) shall be convened to decide whether the pilot, 
in thei r opinion, meets the standards for holding and exercising 
the privileges of the pilot's medical certificate. Pending the 
MRP's determination, the pilot shall be placed or remain on sick 
leave, disability or medical leave of absence, as applicable. 
i. An MRP shall be composed of the Company's aeromedical 

advisor, the physician engaged by the pilot as provided 
Section 15.0.5. (above), and a third physician qualified to 
determine the medical issue in question. The third physician 
shall be selected by· agreement between the Company's 
aeromedical advisor and the pilafs' physician. 

11. As soon as practicable, the MRP shall consult and determine 
whether the pilot, in their opinion, meets the standards for 
holding or exercising the privileges of the pilot's medical 
certificate. 
(a) Questions regarding the pilot's medical condition shall 

be resolved based on the MRP's determination. The 
pilot shall remain on or return to active flight status, sick 
leave, disability or medical leave of absence consis1ent 
wijh the MRP's determination as applicable. 

(b) If the MRP rules that a pilot is fit for duty and the pilot 
still disagrees, the pilot shall be placed on personal 
leave of absence. 

(c) If the MRP's determination disagrees with the opinion 
of the Company's aeromedical ~dvisQr, then: 
(1) the Company shall make adjustments, inclUding 

retroactive adjustments (e.g., back pay or r~stQration 

February 28, 2011 
,'Ox 17-000019 

15-0 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 91     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



\ 

Sec. 15.D.7.b.ii.(c)(1) (continued) 

-of sick -leave), if applicabl.e, that are necessary to 
make the pilot whole consistent with the M RP's 
determination; and 

(2) the Company shall reimburse the pilot for all 
reasonable costs and expenses he incurred in 
connection with the determination of his medical 
condition pursuant to Section 15_0.7. (this 
paragraph). 

8. Questions regarding the medical condition of a pilot who has applied 
for or is receiving a benefrt(s) pursuant to Section 27 or 28 shall be 
resolved in accordance with the provisions of the applicable benefit 
plan(s). 

E. Medical Examination Documentation 
Upon request, the Company's aeromedical advisor, the pilot and the 
pilafs physician or a physician associated with the Association's 
aeromedical office, as applicable, shaH be provided a copy of any 
report or medical record relating to any medical examination, test or 
evaluation of that pilot conducted pursuant to this Section. However, in 
cases where the Company's aeromedical advisor believes that direct 
pilot access to information contained in the medical records regarding 
a specific diagnosis of a terminal illness or a psychiatric condition could 
be detrimental to the pilot or the pilot's health, the aeromedical advisor 
may inform the pilot that access will only be provided to a designated 
representative of the pilot having specific written consent. 

F. Effect on Certain Legal Rights 
Nothing in this Section shall be construed to guarantee, deny or limit 
a pilot's right to FAA, NTSB or judicial appeal procedures, nor shall it 
preclude the Company from assisting a pilot with medical problems to 
regain his medical certificate and return to flight status. This assistance 
may also include directing the pilot to challenge or appeal the results of 
adverse findings to the Federal Air Surgeon. All costs of any Company 
directed challenge/appeal shall be paid by the Company. 

G. Limitation of Medical Procedures 
1. Flight Management shall notrequireapilottosubmittoapsychological 

or psychiatric examination. However, flight management may refer 
a pilot to the Company's aeromedical advisor in accordance with 
.Section 15.0.1. (reasonable basis to question fitness). A pilot may 
be required to undergo a psychological/psychiatric examination 
if directed by the Compa~y's aeromedical advisors based on 
their independent evaluation, in accordance with Section 15. The 
evaluation conducted by the Company's aeromedical advisors is 
expected to include contact with the pilot and any other preliminary 
evaluation that is necessary in order to reach an independent, 
informed decision as to the need for further testing . 

15-6 

2. Nothing contained in this Section shall be construed to permit the 
Company to require a pilot to submit to any medical treatment or 
invasive procedure which is not consistent with reasonable and 
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Sec, 15.D.7.bji.{c)(1) (continued) 

.of sick Jeave}, if applicable, that are necessary to 
make the pilot whole consistent with the MRP's 
detennination; and 

(2) the Company shall reimburse the pilot for all 
reasonable costs and expenses he incurred in 
connection with the determination of his medical 
condition pursuant to Section 15.0.7. (this 
paragraph)_ 

8. Questions regarding the medical condition ofa pilot who has applied 
for or is receiving a benefit(s) pursuant to Section 27 or 28 shall be 
resolved in accordance with the provisions of the applicable benefit 
plan(s). 

E. Medical Examination Documentation 
Upon request. the Company's aeromedical advisor, the pilot and the 
pi lot's physician or a physician associated with the Association's 
aeromedical office, as applicable, shall be provided a copy of any 
report or medical record relating to any medical examination, test or 
evaluation of that pilot conducted pursuant to this Section. However, in 
cases where the Company's aeromedical advisor believes that direct 
pilot access to information contained in the medical records regarding 
a specific diagnosis of a terminall1lness or a psychiatric condition could 
be detrimental to the pilot or-the pilot's health, the aeromedical advisor 
may inform the pilot that access will only be provided to a designated 
representative of the pilot having specific written consent. 

F. Effect on Certain Legal Rights 
Nothing in this Section shall be construed to guarantee, deny or limit 
a pilot's right to FM NTSB or judicial appeal procedures, nor shall it 
preclude the Company from assisting a pilot with medical problems to 
regain his medical certificate and return to night status. This assistance 
may also include directing the pilot to challenge or appeal the results of 
adverse findings to the Federal Air Surgeon. All costs of any Company 
directed challenge/appeal shall be paid by the Company. 

G . Limitation of Medical Procedures 
1_ Flight Managementshall not requirea pilotto submittoa psychological 

or psychiatric examination. However, flight management may refer 
a pilot to the Company's aeromedical advisor in accordance with 
.Section 15.0.1. (reasonable basis to question fitness). A pilot may 
be required to undergo a psychological/psychiatric examination 
if directed by the Compar"!Y's aeromedical advisors based on 
their independent evaluation, in accordance with Section 15. The 
evaluation conducted by the Company's aeromedical advisors is 
expected to include contact with the pilot and any other preliminary 
evaluation that is necessary in order to reach an independent. 
informed decision as to the need for further testing . 

2_ Nothing contained in this Section shall be construed to permit the 
Company to reqUire a pilot to submit to any medical treatment or 
invasive procedure which is not consistent with reasonable and 
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Sec. 15.G.2. (continued) 

current medica~ practice or which poses an unreasot=1able threat to 
the pilot's health. This paragraph shall not be construed to prohibit 
testing for drugs, alcohol and, if applicable, other substances 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 15.C. (above). 
a. If the Company's aeromedical advisor determines that a 

treatment, procedure or evaluation is appropriate in the 
circumstances of a case, he shall consult with the pilot's 
physician or a physician associated with the Association's 
aeromedical office, as applicable, for the purpose of 
determining the permissibility of that treatment, procedure 
or evaluation under the provisions of Section 15.G. (this 
paragraph). The issue shall be resolved by mutual agreement 
of those 2 physicians. . 

b. If the 2 physicians cannot agree, the matter shall be submitted 
immediately to a third physician selected by the Company and 
the Association. The Company, the Association and the pilot 
shall be bound by the findings of the third physician. The fees 
and expenses of the third physician shall be shared equally 
by the Company and the Association or the pilot; provided, 
however, that if the third physician agrees with the pilot, the 
Company shall reimburse the pilot for all reasonable costs 
incurred in connection with this paragraph. 

H. Confidentiality of Medical Information , 
An reports and records of any medical examination, test or evaluation of 
a pilot pursuant to this Sectio.n shall be strictly confidential between the 
Company's aeromedical advisor and the pilot. Those reports and records 
shall not be divulged, except in the administration of this Agreement on 
a "need to know basis" or as required by law, to any other person or 
entity without the written permission of the pilot. If required by law to 
divulge, the Company shall provide the pilot notice of such, and upon 
the request of the pilot, provide the pilot with a copy of such records and 
reports, unless prohibited by law from doing so. If the final determination 
of a pilot's medical condition pu_rsuant to this Section is that the pilot 
is not medically fit for duty, the Company's aeromedical advisor may 
provide a report regarding the pilafs .medical condition to officials in the 
Benefits Department on a "need to know" basis. Those officials shall 
receive only as much information as is necessary for them to perform 
their job functions. · 

L General · 
Nothing in Section 15 shall be construed to limit the Company's authority 
to act in accordan~e with Section 19. Disciplinary issues arising out 
of the application of Section 15 shall be handled in accordance with 
Sections 19 and 21. 
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Sec, 15,G.2. (continued) 

current medical practice or which poses an unreasonable threat to 
the pilot's health. This paragraph shall not be construed to prohibit 
testing for drugs, alcohol and, if applicable, other sUbstances 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 15.C. (above). 
a. If the Company's aeromedical advisor determines that a 

treatment, procedure or evaluation is appropriate in the 
circumstances of a case, he shall consult with the pilot's 
physician or a physician associated with the Association's 
aeromedical office, as applicable, for the purpose of 
determining the permissibility of that treatment, procedure 
or evaluation under the provisions of Section 15.G. (this 
paragraph). The issue shaH be resolved by mutual agreement 
of those 2 physiciaf:ls. 

b. If the 2 physicians cannot agree, the matter shan be submitted 
immediately to a third physician selected by the Company and 
the Association. The Company, the Association and the pilot 
shall be bound by the findings of the third physician. The fees 
and expenses of the third physician shall be shared equally 
by the Company and the Association or the pifot; provided, 
however, that if the third physician agrees with the pilot, the 
Company shall reimburse the pilot for all reasonable costs 
incurred in connection with this paragraph. 

H. Confidentiality of Medical Information . 
All reports and records of any medical examination, test or evaluation of 
a pilot pursuant to this Section shall be strictly confidential between the 
Company's aeromedical advisor and the pilot. Those reports and records 
shall not be divulged, except in the administration of this Agreement on 
a nneed to know basis" or as required by law, to any other person or 
entity without tne written permission of the pilot If required by law to 
divulge, the Company shall provide the pilot notice of such, and upon 
the request of the pilot, provide the pilot with a copy of such records and 
reports, unless prohibited by law from doing so. If the final determination 
of a pilot's medical condition pursuant to this Section is that the pilot 
is not medically fit for duty, the Company's aeromedical advisor may 
provide a report regarding the pilot's .medical condition to officials in the 
Benefits Department on a ~need to know~ basis. Those officials shall 
receive only as much information as is necessary for them to perform 
their job functions. 

I. General ' 
Nothing in Section 15 shall be construed to limit the Company's authority 
to act in accordance with Section 19. Disciplinary issues arising out 
of the appllcation of Section 15 shall be handled in accordance with 
Sections 19 and 21. 
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.ALAN ARMSTRONG 
.A..TTORNEY .JULAW 
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August 13,2013 

Lead Counsel- Labor Relations Law 
Fed.Ex Coporation 

James H. Ferguson, Esq. 
General Counsel 
Fed.Ex Corporation 
3620 Hacks Cross Road 
Memphis, TN 3 8125 

3620 Hacks Cross Road 
Memphis, TN 38125 

Re: Captain Mark Estabrook's Security Meeting 

Gentlemen; 

alnn@:a.lii.O~troogl::lw.com 

www.s.l•narnut~n,ghr.w.cam 

Via Email 
rwtice@fedex.com 

This letter follows a meeting between Captain Mark Estabrook, .fvir. Ondra, Mr. Tice, and 
Captain Rob Fisher of Friday, August 9, 2013. According to my understanding, the following 
facts are operative: 

1. In 2002, Captain Estabrook raised a security issue with Federal Express senior 
executives Bill Logue and Bill Henrikson, the FAA Administrator, and the Airline 
Pilots' Associations (ALPA) about the wisdom of publishing real time package and 
aircraft flight tracking data because the terrorists can use tbis in.founation to set timers 
on bombs to maximize damage to aircraft and improve col1~teral targeting. Captain 
Estabrook did so as the FedEx ALPA Security Committee Chairman during the 
months that followed September 11,2001 and thereafter. · 

2, In 2002, Captain Estabrook predicted that a bomb maker would use flight-tracking 
data to set the timers on bombs loaded onro FedEx aircraft. to maximize the damage to 
the airc~aft and surrounding ~gets. 

3. In 2010, A1 Qaeda terrorist and bomb maker Ibrabam al-.Asiri used live tracking data 
to set the timers on bombs loaded onto a Federal Express aircraft and a UPS aircraft. 

4. On Sunday, August 4, 2013, Captain Mark Estabrook first learned that !braham al­
Asiri used several 1'dumroy" shipments several days prior to the actual deployment of 
the live bombs, which initiated an email to Feder~ Express System ChiefPilot 
William McDonald. In that e~ Captain Estabrook rc:quested a phone call "'rith. 
Fred Smith, Chief Executive Officer to express his ideas apout improving security at 

(no) <141..0010 

!'.AX (:nt» ...., • .., .. " 

RoherlTice, Esq. 

ALAN ARMSTRONG 
AIl'OBNBY jJ LAW 

...... OD ~WI'"·TD''-R.OAI> 

:a= ........ , saru: .. ,,0 

.i>n..I\..-n:.... GS~"" .. 0" .... 

Augost 13. 20D 

Lead Counsel- Labor Relations Law 
Fed&: Copon.tion 

James H. F Cl'gtlS011, Esq. 
General CoWlSel 
FedEx Corporation 

3620 Hacks Cross Rtlad 
Memphis, TN 38125 

.3 620.Hacks Cross Road 
Memphls, TN 38 115 

Re: Captain Mark Estabrook's Security Meeting 

Gentlemen; 

.t..n@o.1o..a ...... ,""'cl.o. ....... ... 
",. ... oJ;n.lm'U'Ol\8lno .... '" 

Via Email 
rwtiee@fedex.com 

This letter follows a meeting belwoen Captain Mark Estabrook, Mr. Ondrn, Mr. Tice, and 
Captain Rob Fisher of Friday, Augost 9, 2013. According to my tlDderstandiog. the following 
facts arc operative: 

1. In 2002, Captain Estabr'oolr raised a security issoe with Federal Express senior 
executives Bill Logue and Bill Henrikson, the FAA Administrator, and the Airline 
Pilots' Associations (ALPA) about. the wisdom of publishing re-d.I time package and 
aircraft flight tra.dcing data because the terrorists can use this infOtIIlation to set timers 
on bombs to maximize d.run,a;ge to airoraft and improve collateral targeting. Captain 
Estabrook did so.as the FedRx ALPA Security Committee Chairman during !he 
months that followed September 11,2001 and thereafter. 

2. In 2002, Captain Estabrook predicted that a bomb maker would use flight-tracking 
data to set the timm on bombs loaded onro FedEx. aircraft to maximiZ6 the damage to 
the aircraft and SUIl'Ouuding ~ets. 

J. In 2010, AI Qacda krTOrist and bomb maker Ibraham al-.Aslrl used live trackiog data 
to set the timers en bombs loaded onto a Federal Express aircrnft and a UPS airccaft. 

4. On Sunday. August 4. 2013, Captain Mark: Estabreok first leamed that IbIal:Iam al­
Asiri used several. "dummy" shipments several days pdor to the a~a1 deployment of 
the live bombs, which initiated an email to Federal Express System CbiefPilol 
William McDonald. to that email, Captain Estabrook m{uested a phone call with 
FmI SlIlith, Chief Executive Officer to express his ideas spout improving security at 

g!? h'.tIch ..-r. .... .., f.-

a 
1 

( 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 95     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



Robert Tice, Esq. 
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the airline. As a Federal Express pilot, Captain Estabrook is an ""in-flig;h.t security 
coordinator"· iimcti.onlng within the purview of 49 CFR §1544.101, et.seq. 

5, At all times relevant to this letter, Federal Express has had in force and effect "if you 
see something, say something,, security program consistent with the directives and 
promulgations of the Transportation Security AdminiStration and the Department of 
Homeland SecUrity. In fact. Federal E21.-press is listed as a supporter of security · 
initiatives on the website of the Department" of Homeland Security concemmg "if you 
see something, say sometbing," 

6. The request of Captain Estabrook for the meeting was not out of the ordinary, since 
Captain Estabrook, a former military pilot who flew A WACS aircraft flying top 
secret JCS directed missions in the Persian Gulf and in the North Atlantic, also served 
on Secretary of Transportation Mineta;s ad hoc committee in the weeks following 
September i 1, 2001, and proposed a number of sec:urlty reco~endations including 
(a) lllliling airline pilots which later became federal law under the Federal Flight Deck 
Officer (FFDO) Program, (b) requested an in-flight emergency recall procedure via 
electronic data link Aircraft Communications and Reporting System {ACRS), which 
was ultimately approved after Estabrook's meeting with FedEx executive Bill Logue 
and Bill Henrickson in 2002; and (c) restricting cockpit jum.pscat access, among other 
security enhancements. 

7. Notwithstanding Captain Estabrook>s history with the company and with government 
officials towm-d maintaining aircraft security and safety, on Tuesday, August.6, 2013~ 
Captain Estabrook was shocked to discover thai he had been removed from flight 
status, this having been conveyed to Captain Estabrook by Captain William 
McDonald, System Chief Pilot, Manager/Director ofPlight Operations. 

8. Captain. Estabrook is concerned that the action taken by Captain McDonald is a 
violation of federal law meant to invoke fear and intimidation in Captain Estabrook 
for reporting possible security tbrea.ts and/or violations of federal law. See49 USC 
§42121. 

9. Captain Estabrook attended.tbe meeting of Friday, August 9, 2013 \\rith Messrs. Tice~ 
Ondra and Fisher suggesting: (a) the removal of all flight and package tracking data 
from the internet and a request to HoJUeland Security that it order the remaining 
airlines to do so as well; (b) to start up an operations research group composed of 
mathematicians, statisticians, sofhvare engineers and game 'theorists to develop 
strategies to inhibit and prevent terrorist attacks directed towa1'ds aircraft; and (c) 
suggested finding out whether Au bum Calloway: a fanner Federal Express pilot who 
is in prison for hijacking a Federal Express aircraft and trying to kiU three pilots 

• 

• 

Robert lice, Esq. 
August 13, 2013 
Page 2 

the airline. As a F'edcraJ. ~s pilot, Captain Estabrook is an tiiD· llight security 
coordinato(" functioning within the 'Purview of 49 erR §1544.101, et seq. 

S, Al all times relevmt to thi! letter. Federal fu:pres:! has had in force and effect "if you 
see something, say romcthing" security program consist~n1 with the directives and 
promulgations ofme Transportalion Security Administration and the Department of 
Homeland secUrity. In fe.cl. Federal EKpress is listed as'll supporter of security 
initiatives on the website oftbe Deplirtmenf crf Homeland Security concerning "if you 
see something, say something." 

o The request ofCSptain Estabrook fOT the IUeetIDg was not out o(the ordinary, since 
Captain Estabrook,. a fonner military pilot who flew AWACS airCl'aft flying top 
secret JCS direcrted missions in the Persian Oul.f and in the North Atlantic, also served 
on Sec~tary ofTransportatioli Mineta's ad hoc commitIU in the weeks following 
Septembct Il, 2001, and proposed Ii number ofsec.urity reco~endatioos including 
(a) RmIing airline pilots mkb later became fcderal law wdtt the Federal Flight Deck 
Officer (FFOO) Program, (b) requested an in-flight emergency Iecall procedure via 
electronic data link Aircraft CommunicatioD.il rmd Reporting Systcm (ACRS), which 
was ultimately approved after Estabrook's~ecting with FedEx exccutive Bill Logue 
and Bill H.emickson in 2002; and (c) restric1iog cockpitjumpseat /'ICCCSS, among other 
security enhancements. 

1, Notwithstanding Capmin Estabrook's bistOl:Y with the company and with government 
officials toward maintaining aircraft security and saiety, on Tuesday, Augu.'lt.6, 2(}13$ 
Captain Estabrook was shocked to discover th81 be had been relJlQvtd from flight 
status, thls having been conveyed to Captain Estabrook by Captain William 
McDonald, Syst.cm Chief Pilot, Managel1Di.rector ofFllght Operations. 

8. Captorin, Estabrook is concemcO thallhe action taken by Capiain McDonald is a 
violation offedCl11l1aw meant to invoke f'ear and intimidation in CAptain Estabrook 
for reporting possible security t.breais aod/OI violations offo:h:ral law. See 49 USC 
§42121. 

9. Captain Estabrook attended 1bemeeting of Friday, August 9, 1013 with MClIsrt. Tiee, 
Ondra and Fisher suggesting: (a) the removal of all flight and package trac~ data. 
frOlD the; internet and a request I:n Homeland 8=Jrity that it orde.rthe rcmnining 
airlines to do so as Wl:U; (b) to start op an opetations research group compos~ of 
mathematicians. statisticians, software cngioeers Uld game theQrists to develop 
strategies to inhibit and prevent tcn:orist attac:ks directed towards aircraft; nnd (c) 
suggested:finding OUi whether Auburn CalloW; a fonnerFecleral Express pilot who 
is in prison for hijacklog a FedClal Express aircraft and trying 10 kill three pilots 
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during FedEx Flight 705 onApril7~ 1994, had converted to Islam and whether he 
might be feeding operational data to terrorists. 

10. A1 the conclusion of Captain Estabrook's presentation, Mr. Ondm.left the meeting. 
Captain Fisher a~ Mr. Tice did not ask any secori.ty related questions,. but Mr. Tice 
V\'as eager to ask, Captain Estabrook whether he was the ~'Mark1' posting disturbing 
information on a pilot bulletin board, that "1\1arkH allegedly having had a transient 
ischemic attack not disclose to his FAA Aeromedical Examiner. Captaln Estabrook 
confrrmed that he is not that individual and asked Mr. Tice if he had bothered to· 
check the IP address of that person, to which Mr. Tice gave a negative response. 

11. 1\1r. Tice and Captain ~1cDonal~ apparently laboring under the delusion thaf my 
client is the "M~~ publishing disturbing messages on an internet pilot bulletin 
board, had removed by client from flight status prior to the security meeting. After 
being notified by Captain Fisher at the end of the meeting ihat he would return 
.Captain Estabrook to flying status, my client was later notified in the same day by 
Captain Fisher that company Security insisted he remain off of flying status 
indefinitely, or at least until Captain Estabrook undergoes a psychiatric evaluation. 

12. In. view of the fact that my client is an in-flight safety coordinator for Federal E>epress 
and was acting tmder the policies of Federal Express consistent with regulations and 
protocols published. by the Transportation and Security Administration (49 CFR 
§ 1544.10 l, et seq.), demand is hereby made for the following: 

(a) That Mr. Tice and Captain McDonald retract any accusations directed toward my 
client that my client is the person posting disturbing comments on a pilot bulletill 
board; 1 and that he has ever suffered any TLJ\. 

(b) That Federal E:>..']Jress.:?irithdrawany request made by and through Chi'efPilot Rob 
Fisher that my client undergo a psychiatric ·evaluation; and 

(c) That Federal Express comply with the representations it has made on the internet 
tba.t it follows the "ifyQu see something, say something" policy ofDHS!rSA and 
w~thdraw and abandon any acts of reprisal, intimidation or punishment directed 
toward Captain. Estabrook, an in-flight safety coordinator, for raising legitimate 
s~urity concerns with his employer. 

1 ~t would be interesting to find out how many employees Federal Express has with the gjyen name of "Mark.', 

• 

• 

• 

Robert Tice, Esq. 
August 13, 20 13 
Page 3 

during FedEx Flight 705 on April 7, 1994, had converted to ls!am and whether he 
rrught be feeding operational data to teuorist3. 

10, Atlbe cooclusion ofCatrtain Estabrook's presentation, Mr. Ondt;\ left the meeting. 
Captain Fishel- a09- Mr, Tice did not ask any security related questions, but Mr. Tice 
was eager 10 3:sic.'Captain Estabrook whether he was the "Mark" posting disturbing 
WfoITnruoa 00 a pilot bullclin board, that "Matt" allegedly having had a transit.nt 
ischemic attack ncr! disclose to rus FAA AelOmedical Er.u:niner, Captain Estabrook. 
confumed that he is not that individual and asked Mr. lice ifhc had bothered to 
cbeck the 1P address ofthatperson, to which Mr. nee gaVe a negative response. 

II. Mr. Tire end Captain McDanald, apparently laboring under the delusion that' my 
client is the "Mark" publishing disturbing messages Oll an internet pilot bulletin 
board, had removed by dieet from llight status prior to the security meeting. ~r 
being ootified by CaptainFi.sbcr 2t~ end of\he mccting1haihe would:return 
.captain Estabrook to flying sl4tus, my client was later notified in the SBmC day by 
Captain Fisber that company Security insisted be remain off of flying status 
indefinitely, or at least until Captain Estabrook undergoes a psychiatric evaluation. 

12. !II vIew of the [ant that roy c1ient is an in-flight safety coordinator for Federal EKpress 
and was actiug under the policies of Federal Express consistent with regulations and 
protocols published by the Transportation and Secwity Administration (49 CFR 
§ 1544.10l, et seq.), demand is hereby made for thc following: 

(a) That Mr. Tlce and Captain McDonald retract any accusations directed toward my 
cl.kot that my client is tb" person posting disturbing comments on II. pilot bulletin 
board;.! IiIld tha1: he h'l! ever suffered any TIA. 

(b) That Federal E>:press.withchaw any request made by and through Chlef'Pilot Rob 
Fish,a that my client tmdergo a psychiatric evaluation; and 

(e) That Federal Express ccrmp\y with the representations it bas made on the internet 
that it follows the '<'d'you see something. say something" policy ofDHSrrSA and 
withdraw and abandon UQy acbi ofn:prisal, intimidation or punishment ditecled 
toward Captain Estabrook, an in-flight safety coordinator, for wsjng legitims.k: 
security concerns with his employer. 

\ ~t would be in~resting to find ou! bow mzny employ~ FedI!J3.I Express has with the giveo nw~ of"Mnt.," 
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I look forward to hearing from you in ihe near futme. 

Best regards, 

dhJ~--~---------
AA!kjw 
Cc: Rob Fisher, Fleet Captain- .A.irbus Aircraft 

Todd On~ Director of Corporate Secu..r:ity 
Captain \Villiam 1vfcDona1l4 Syste!ll Chief Pilo-t 

• 

• 

• 

Robert Tiee, Esq. 
August 13, ·2013 
Page 4 

! look forward to beeling from you in ibe near future. 

Best regards. 

AAf'<jw 
Cc: Rob Fisher, Fleet Captain - Airbus Aircraft 

Todd Ondra, Director of Corporate Security 
Captain William McDonald, Syste!ll OtiefPilot 
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Maryanne Miller 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Cindy ......... Here they are ........... rob 

From: Mark Crook 

Rob Fisher 
Wednesday, April 24, 2013 10:17 AM 
Cindy Sartain 
FW: Cap Mark Estabrook#88775 Flight 1317/11 LRD-MEM 
F1317Sherrie first conversation.wav; F1317 Estabrook Crook conversation.wav; F1317-2 
Sherrie second conversation.wav 

Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2013 11:46 PM 
To: William McDonald; Rob Fisher; FODO; Michael Speer 
Subject: Cap Mark Estabrook #88775 Flight 1317/11 LRD-MEM 

Received a call at 0215Z from the LRD ramp manager informing me that the crew for FDX 1317/11 was not at the ramp 
and they were due out in 10 minutes. This was the first I had heard of any problem so I immediately called the Captain, 
Mark Estabrook. Cap Estabrook told me he had coordinated staying at the hotel with the dispatcher Sherrie Hayslett and 
was not going to operate an aircraft through any line of thunderstorms. I asked if Sherrie and he had agreed to delay the 
flight. He told me that he was delaying the flight. 

I went over and talked with Sherrie. She told me she had no idea the crew was still at the hotel. When the Captain told 
her they were going to be late, she assumed the Captain meant that the flight was going to be delayed into MEM due to 
the MEM weather. 

At the scheduled arrival time of FOX 1317 (0412Z}, 40 aircraft were on the ground in MEM and no holding was in 
progress in any quadrant by MEM approach control. 

At 0317Z a first tier ground stop was announced for MEM. Since LRD is in Houston Center, this included flight 1317. This 
ground stop was 52 minutes after the scheduled block time for flight 1317 and should have never included them. 

I've attached Sherrie's first conversation with Cap Estabrook, my conversation and then Sherrie's second conversation. 
This Cap accuses me of pilot pushing and ordering him to takeoff during Sherrie's second conversation. At no time did 
that ever happen in my conversation with Cap Estabrook. 

In my 2+ years as a DO, I have never had a Captain take it upon himself to delay a flight without coordinating and coming 
to an agreement with the dispatcher. Cap Estabrook was directive to Sherrie and told her how it was going to be. Cap 
Estabrook also never took it upon himselfto touch base with the weather department. He became the sole source of 
weather by looking at the weather plot on intellicast and delayed the flight by that sole source of information. 

Over to you guys but this Captain is on his own program in a system that runs by time not much slop. 

Cap Mark Crook 
ACP /Flight Operations Duty Officer 

1 

Maryanne Miller 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Cindy ... ...... Here they are ... ...... .. rob 

From: Mark Crook 

Rob Fisher 
Wednesday, April 24, 2013 10:17 AM 
Cindy Sartain 
FW: Cap Mark Estabrook #88775 Flight 1317/11 LRD-MEM 
F1317Sherrie first conversation .wav; F1317 Estabrook Crook conversation.wav; F1317-2 
Sherrie second conversation.wav 

Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2013 11:46 PM 
To: William McDonald; Rob Fisher; FODO; Michael Speer 
Subject: Cap Mark Estabrook #88775 Flight 1317/11 LRD-MEM 

Received a call at 0215Z from the LRD ramp manager informing me that the crew for FDX 1317/11 was· not at the ramp 
and they were due out in 10 minutes. This was the first I had heard of any problem so I immediately called the Captain, 
Mark Estabrook. Cap Estabrook told me he had coordinated staying at the hotel with the dispatcher Sherrie Hayslett and 
was not going to operate an aircraft through any line of thunderstorms. I asked if Sherrie and he had agreed to delay the 
flight. He told me that he was delaying the flight. 

I went over and talked with Sherrie. She told me she had no idea the crew was still at the hotel. When the Captain told 
her they were going to be late, she assumed the Captain meant that the flight was going to be delayed into MEM due to 
the MEM weather. 

At the scheduled arrival time of FDX 1317 (0412Z), 40 aircraft were on the ground in MEM and no holding was in 
progress in any quadrant by MEM approach control. 

At 0317Z a first tier ground stop was announced for MEM. Since LRD is in Houston Center, this included flight 1317. This 
ground stop was 52 minutes after the scheduled block time for flight 1317 and should have never included them. 

I've attached Sherrie's first conversation with Cap Estabrook, my conversation and then Sherrie's second conversation. 
This Cap accuses me of pilot pushing and ordering him to takeoff during Sherrie's second conversation . At no time did 
that ever happen in my conversation with Cap Estabrook. 

In my 2+ years as a DO, I have never had a Captain take it upon himself to delay a flight without coordinating and coming 
to an agreement with the dispatcher. Cap Estabrook was directive to Sherrie and told her how it was going to be. Cap 
Estabrook also never took it upon himself to touch base with the weather department. He became the sole source of 
weather by looking at the weather plot on intellicast and delayed the flight by that sole source of information. 

Over to you guys but this Captain is on his own program in a system that runs by time not much slop. 

Cap Mark Crook 
ACP /Flight Operations Duty Officer 
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FDX 4-000001

Maryanne Miller 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

-Rob Fisher 
Wednesday, April 17, 2013 1:20 PM 
Cindy Sartain 
Robb Tice; Scott Williams; Mitch Matheny; William McDonald 
RE: 19.D. Hearing for Captain Estabrook, 88775 

I gave the wrong 10 # .......... actuar ID is: 8877S ......... ..... Thanks 

From: Rob Fisher 
Sent: Wednesday, Apri117, 2013 1:18PM 
To: Cindy Sartain 
Cc: Robb Tice; Scott Williams; Rob Fisher; Mitch Matheny; William McDonald 
Subject: 19.0. Hearing for Captain Estabrook, 88775 · 

Hi Cindy, 

I just spoke to Bill McDonald and he has directed us to conduct an Investigative Hearing (19.D) for Mark Estabrook, 
77885. 

The 19.0 will be conducted to investigate the facts on why he chose to report to work late for his flight FDX1317/11Apr 
while laying over in KLRD. 

Below are the facts as presented to me by both the GOC Dispatcher and by the on duty D.O. 

After lookiAg at Capt. Estabrook's calendar, a good day to hold the Investigation would be on Wednesday, 01May13 due 
to me being out of town Thursday through Monday (18-22 April}?? 

Let me know how you want to proceed. 

Rob 

Trip Recap 
Trip 214 MEM 30 10APR13 Rv 01 
Shows in 0 days 0:00 hours 
Block 405 Pay 6:07 

R D Flight 
R F ligh t H Date 

1517 1 0Aprl3 
STDUTY 1 0Apr l 3 

1 317 11Ap r l3 

Org- Dst 

MEM-LRD 
LRD - LRD 
LRD - MEM 

- -- -- - Sch eduled - -- - --- - ---- - -- Actual ---- -- - ­
Eq Dp rt Arrv Bl ok Tur n Duty Dp rt Arr v Blok Turn Duty 

30 091 2 1 121 2 09 101 0953 1 152 1 59 30 
1222 1 252 3 0 1 3 3 3 44 0 1 2 22 1252 3 0 1 333 44 0 

3 0 0 22 5 0 421 1 5 6 3 26 04 51 0703 212 608 

1 

Maryanne Miller 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Hob Fisher 
Wednesday, April 17, 2013 1:20 PM 
Cindy Sartain 
Robb Tice; Scott Williams; Mitch Matheny; William McDonald 
RE: 19.0. Hearing for Captain Estabrook, 88775 

I gave the wrong 10 # .. ... ... .. actuar 10 is: 88775 .............. Thanks 

From: Rob Fisher 
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2013 1:18 PM 
To: Cindy Sartain 
Cc: Robb Tice; Scott Williams; Rob Fisher; Mitch Matheny; William McDonald 
Subject: 19.0. Hearing for Captain Estabrook, 88775 . 

Hi Cindy, 

I just spoke to Bill McDonald and he has directed us to conduct an Investigative Hearing (19.D) for Mark Estabrook, 
77885. 

The 19.0 will be conducted to investigate the facts on why he chose to report to work late for his flight FDX1317/11Apr 
while laying over in KLRD . 

Below are the facts as presented to me by both the GOC Dispatcher and by the on duty D.O. 

After looking at Capt . Estabrook's calendar, a good day to hold the Investigation would be on Wednesday, 01.May13 due 
to me being out of t own Thursday through Monday (18-22 April)?? 

Let me know how you want to proceed. 

Rob 

Trip Recap 
Trip 214 MEM 30 10Al'R13 Rv 01 
Shows in 0 days 0:00 hours 
Block 405 Pay 6:07 

R D Flight - - ---- Sc h e duled ----- -- --- -- --- Actua l --- -- ---
R Fligh t H Da te Org - Dst Eq Dprt Arrv Blok Tur n Duty Dprt Arrv Bl ok TUr n Duty 

- -- -- -- -------- - --------
1517 1 0Apr13 MEM-LRD 30 091 2 1121 209 101 0953 11 5 2 159 30 

STDUTY 10Apr 1 3 LRD- LRD 122 2 1252 3 0 1333 440 1222 1252 30 1 3 33 4 40 
131 7 l1Apr 13 LRD-MEM 3 0 0225 04 21 156 326 04 51 0703 2 1 2 60 8 
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---- T 0 T A L 8 C H E D U L E D ---
Away Blok DH Dty Min Trip Totl Pay 

2039 405 607 

D Employee 
Pas Asg V Number Pilot Name 

CAP TRP 
F/0 TRP 

_____ 8_8_7_7_5 ESTABROOK, MARK 
582928 BURLESON, RANDY 

Trip Notes: 

------ T 0 T A L A C T U A L ------­

Away Blok DH Dty Min Trip Totl Pay 

2321 411 

L B 
C R 

Legalities 
Legalities 

619 

Note: crew stood by in lrd pending a/c 812 mx sat 97297 10APRl3 1229Z 

Trip show date & time: lOAPRl3 0812z 
Trip record updated: 11APR13 0703z 

Shift Note from GOC: 

End date & time: 11APR13 0451z 
By: (Trip 214 ver 999) 

02:31Z: RAMP AGENT CALLED FOR FLT#1317 LRD/MEM AND SAID THAT PILOTS HAD NOT ARRIVED FOR FLT. I CHECKED 
WITH CREW SCHED WHO CALLED BACK AND SAID THEY WERE AT HOTEL,DUE TO THEY HAD BEEN TOLD TO STAY BY 
GOCC.(THIS DID NOT HAPPEN). THEY SPOKE TO SHERRI (GOC-DISPATCHER) WHO JUST TOLD THEM THEY WERE GOING 
TO HAVE WX. 
BUT NEVER TOLD THEM TO STAY AT HOTEL. WE HAD TO GET D/0 INVOLVED SINCE PILOTS SAID THEY WERE NOT 
LEAVING THE HOTEL UNTIL WX PASSED. 

Email from Duty Officer, Capt. Mark Crook: 

2 

---- TOT A L S C H E D U LED ---
Away Blok DH Dty Min Trip Totl Pay 

2039 405 607 

D Employee 
Pos Asg V Number pilot Name 

CAP TRP 
Flo TRP 

____ ~8~8~7~7~5 ESTABROOK, MARK 
582928 BURLESON, RANDY 

Trip Notes: 

------ TOT A L ACT U A L -------
Away Blok DH Dty Min Trip Totl Pay 

2321 411 

L B 
C R 

Legalities 
Legalities 

619 

Note: crew stood by in lrd pending ale 812 mx sat 97297 10APR13 1229z 

Trip show date & time: lOAPR13 0812z 
Trip record updated: llAPR13 0703z 

Shift Note from GOC: 

End date & time: 11APR13 0451z 
By: (Trip 214 ver 999) 

02:31Z: RAMP AGENT CALLED FOR FLT#1317 LRD/MEM AND SAID THAT PILOTS HAD NOT ARRIVED FOR FLT. I CHECKED 
WITH CREW SCHED WHO CALLED BACK AND SAID THEY WERE AT HOTEL,DUE TO THEY HAD BEEN TOLD TO STAY BY 
GOCc.(THIS DID NOT HAPPEN). THEY SPOKE TO SHERRI (GOC-DISPATCHER) WHO JUST TOLD THEM THEY WERE GOING 
TO HAVE WX. 
BUT NEVER TOLD THEM TO STAY AT HOTEL. WE HAD TO GET D/O INVOLVED SINCE PILOTS SAID THEY WERE NOT 
LEAVING THE HOTEL UNTIL WX PASSED. 

Email from Duty Officer, Capt. Mark Crook: 
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Maryanne Miller 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Ms. Walker, 

Rob Fisher 
Monday, April 29, 2013 4:05 PM 
Katherine Walker 
alan@alanarmstronglaw.com; Robb Tice; Terry.McTigue@alpa.org; Coy.Briant@alpa.org; 
Rob Fisher; Mitch Matheny 
RE: Mark Estabrook 

I acknowledge receipt of your letter. In accordance with established practice at Fed Ex, pilots participating in disciplinary 
processes under Section 19oft he Fed Ex/ ALPA collective bargaining agreement are entitled to representation by 
ALPA. No outside attorneys are permitted to attend or otherwise participate in those processes. The interview will not 
be rescheduled. Mr. Estabrook is welcome to bring an ALPA representative to the interview as he was previously 
informed. 

Sincerely, 

Rob Fisher 

Airbus Fleet Captain 
901-494-2.905 

From: Katherine Walker [mailto:AAparalegal@comcast.net] 
Sent: Monday1 April 291 2013 3:18PM 
To: Rob Fisher 
Cc: alan@alanarmstronglaw.com 
Subject: Mark Estabrook 
Importance: High 

Please see attached letter. 

Kat herine Walker, Paralegal 

Alan Armstrong, Esq. 
An AV Rated Law Firm Since 1989 

2900 Chamblee Tucker Road 
Bldg. 5, Suite 350 
Atlanta, GA 30341 
Phone: 770-451-0313 
Fax: 770-451-0317 

1 

Maryanne Miller 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Ms. Walker, 

Rob Fisher 
Monday, April 29, 2013 4:05 PM 
Katherine Walker 
alan@alanarmstronglaw.com; Robb Tice; Terry.McTigue@alpa.org; Coy.Briant@alpa.org; 
Rob Fisher; Mitch Matheny 
RE: Mark Estabrook 

I acknowledge receipt of your letter. In accordance with established practice at Fed Ex, pilots participating in disciplinary 
processes under Section 19 of the Fed Ex/ ALPA collective bargaining agreement are entitled to representation by 
ALPA. No outside attorneys are permitted to attend or otherwise participate in those processes. ·The interview will not 
be rescheduled . Mr. Estabrook is welcome to bring an ALPA representative to the interview as he was previously 
informed. 

Sincerely, 

Rob Fisher 

Airbus Fleet Captain 
901-494-2905 

From: Katherine Walker [mailto:AAparalegal@comcast.net] 
Sent: Monday, April 29, 2013 3:18 PM 
To: Rob Fisher 
Cc: alan@alanarmstronglaw.com 
Subject: Mark Estabrook 
Importance: High 

Please see attached letter. 

Katherine Walker, Para legal 
Alan Armstrong, Esq. 
An AV Rated Law Rrm Since 1989 
'2900 Chamblee Tucker Road 
Bldg, S, Suite 350 
Atlanta, GA 30341 
Phone: 770-451-0313 
Fax: 770-451-0317 
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' t 

~-_..,..,.,.,..-_,_,.......,.~-.---~-......,...-:--w.&l...,.' ~;AlS[:..€R·M$.t:R~-- - ·­
ATTORNEY AT LAW 

____ ....;;... ___ _ 

(770) 41H·0313 

FAX (770) 4~1-0317 

Capt. Rob Fisher 
Chief Pilot/Regional 
Federal Express 
3131 Democrat Road 
Bldg. C 
Memphis, TN 38118-0123 

2900 OHAMBLEE·TUCKBR R.O.AD 

B UILDING ~. SUITE GISO 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA. 00341 

April29, 2013 

Re: Capt. Mark Estabrook/888775 

Dear Capt. Fisher: 

a!an@alanarmstrongh.w.com 
www.alanarmstronglaw.com 

Via Email and U.S. Mail 

RECEtVED 
MAY -~ ·6 · -2013 

LEGAL DEPARTMENT 

Please enter my name as counsel of record on behalf of Capt. Mark Estabrook. In order 
to allow Capt. Estabrook to have to have meaningful assistance of counsel and prepare for your 
interview scheduled for May 1, 2013 at 3:00p.m., kindly reschedule the interview to a later date. 
Also, please confirm I may attend the interview. In connection with this request, please provide 
the undersigned with the following: 

1. Any and all recordings, tapes, transcripts or materials reflecting or confirming 
communications between my client and the Fed Ex Dispatcher (Sheme Hayslett) on 
Aprill0/1 1, 2013; 

· 2. Any and all recordings, tapes, transcripts or other materials reflecting or confirming 
communications between my client and Fed Ex Crew Scheduling on Aprill0/11 , 
2013; 

3. Any and a11 · recordings, tapes, transcripts or other materials reflecting or confirming 
communications between my client and the Fed Ex Duty Officer (Mark Crook) on 
Aprill0/11, 2013; 

4. Any and all recordings, tapes, transcripts or other materials reflecting, confirming or 
relating to the Federal Express flight from Laredo, Texas (KLRD) to Memphis, 
Tennessee (KMEM) scheduled for Apri11 0/11, 20 13 captained by my client; and 

5. Any and all recordings, tapes, transcripts or other materials reflecting or concerning 
communications between the Fed Ex Dispatcher (Sherrie Hayslett), the Duty Officer 
(Mark Crook), Capt. Mark Estabrook and/or Fed Ex Crew Scheduling concerning the 
Fed Ex flight from KLRD to KMEM of Aprill0/11, 2013. 

--..;.....-~---.......;=-.--......-.....;:-. .. .t\L~N ,t\RMS:tR.wOl"'lN""a-""·-;;....,--_---------­
ATTORNEY AT LAW 

(770) 4:51-0313 

F.t.X (770) 4f51-03l7 

Capt. Rob Fisher 
Chief Pilot/Regional 
Federal Express 
3131 Democrat Road 
Bldg. C 
Memphis, TN 38118-0123 

2900 OHAMBLEE-TUGlCBR ROAD 

DtJ:[[.DIl"I"O ~. SUITE 1360 

ATLAN'J:.A, GEORGIA. aOG4-l 

April 29, 2013 

Re: Capt. Mark EstabrookJ888775 

Dear Capt. Fisher: 

alan@elanarmstronglllw.com 
www.alanarmstronglaw.com 

Via Email and U.S. Mail 

RECEIVED 
MAY U62013 

LEGAL DEPARTMENT 

Please enter my name as counsel of record on behalf of Capt. Mark Estabrook. In order 
to allow Capt. Estabrook to have to have meaningful assistance of counsel and prepare for your 
interview scheduled for May I, 2013 at 3:00 p.m., kindly reschedule the interview to a later date. 
Also, please confirm I may attend the interview. [n connection with this request, please provide 
the undersigned with the following: 

I. Any and all recordings, tapes, transcripts or materials reflecting or confirming 
communications between my client and the Fed Ex Dispatcher (Sherrie Hays[ett) on 
April lOll I , 2013; 

· 2. Any and all recordings, tapes, transcripts or other materials reflecting or confirming 
communications between my client and Fed Ex Crew Scheduling on April 1011 I, 
2013 ; 

3. Any and all 'recordings, tapes, transcripts or other materials reflecting or confirming 
conununications between my client and the Fed Ex Duty Officer (Mark Crook) on 
April 10111, 2013; 

4. Any and all recordings, tapes, transcripts or other materials reflecting, confinning or 
relating to the Federal Express flight from Laredo, Texas (KLRD) to Memphis, 
Tennessee (KMEM) scheduled for April 10/11,2013 captained by my client; and 

5. Any and all recordings, tapes, transcripts or other materials reflecting or concerning 
communications betweeu the Fed Ex Dispatcher (Sherrie Hayslett), the Duty Officer 
(Mark Crook), Capt. Mark Estabrook andlor Fed Ex Crew Scheduling concerning the 
Fed Ex flight from KLRD to KMEM of April 10111, 2013. 
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Captain Mark Estabrook 
April29, 2013 
Page2 

I am sure that you can appreciate the need for Capt. Estabrook and his counsel to review 
and consider the contents of these recorded conversations in advance of any interview to afford 
Capt. Estabrook fundamental fairness. 

At my direction, an AIR-21 Complaint has been filed pursuant to 49 U.S.C. 
§42121 with the U.S. Department of Labor/OSHA, and the Federal Aviation Administration. 
See Exhibits A and B attached. 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 

AA/kjw 
Cc: Robert Tice, Sr. Counsel 

Scott Williams, Sr. Attorney 

Sincerely, 

A 
. 
/ > l 
.. ~ 411YIJP<1 

Alan Am1stw';;t · \. ______-
~· 

Cindy Sartain, Sr. Paralegal Specialist, Labor Relations Law 
Terry McTigue, ALPA, FedEx MEC, Grievance Committee 
Maggie Comes, ALP A, Legal Secretary 
Capt. Mark Estabrook 

Captain Mark Estabrook 
April 29, 2013 
Page 2 

I am sure that you can appreciate the need for Capt. Estabrook and his counsel to review 
and consider the contents of these recorded conversations in advance of any interview to afford 
Capt. Estabrook fundamental fairness. 

At my direction, an AIR-21 Complaint has been filed pursuant to 49 U.S.C. 
§4212l with the U.S. Department of Labor/OSHA, and the Federal Aviation Administration. 

See Exhibits A and B attached. 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. 

AAlkjw 
Cc: Robert Tice, Sr. Counsel 

Scott Williams, Sr. Attorney 

Sincerely, 

fi ( A 1 
/':-1 ~ !4lifUfA .... 

Alan Armstron1 ~ 

Cindy Sartain, Sr. Paralegal Specialist, Labor Relations Law 
Terry McTigue, ALP A, FedEx MEC, Grievance Committee 
Maggie Comes, ALP A, Legal Secretary 
Capt. Mark Estabrook 
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Submission Complete https://www.osha.gov/pls/osha7/ecomplaintform.submit 
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OSHA )3HA QuickTakes 

A to Z Index I En espanol I ContKt Us I FAQs I About OSHA 

Newsletter ~RSSFeeds EIPrfntlhlsf'oge a 0 TextSize · · waslhlspaaehelpful? 

· ~~~jJ~~~':f~i~jt1~!~JCo~~~~~~c~~~~-~ --.~l[~~~~~JI .. N_~~~.~~ J 
[ Small Business 

What's New I Ofll~ 

ThankYoul 

Your Safety <Ond H~lth Hazard Notice has been fcrwarded to tile OSHA ~al AIU Oflloe listed below. 

Your <>Omphllnt may b8 fcrwarded to the Sblbo ofTen,_, which operalles lb oWII OSHA aJ)IInl'led stllte 
Plan.~·,., ..-e lnfonnatiOn on st.ata Plans or If you -ulclllke to ccntltct the mte clrectly. 
II you lclenllfled yourself, you will be cuntac:ted by OSHA. 
Pl•as• call the OSHA l'ecMral Area Oftlc:e below If you are not contacted. 

·Complaint Number: 861872 

Tennessee 

Nashville lv'ea OffiCe 
·51 Century Boulevard Suite 340, 
Nashville, TN 37214 
(615) 232-3803 
(615) 232-3827 FAX 

·Establishment Name: 

Site Street: 

Site City: 

Site State: 

·site Zip: 

Management Official: 

Telephone Number: 

Type of Business: 

Hazard Description: 

FedEx Express 

3131 Democrat Rd., Building C 

Memphis 

Tennessee 

38118 

captain Rob Fisher 

901.224.3435 

Express Shipping 

On April 10, 2013, after coordinating a delay with GOC (Sherrie Hayslett) and speaking to the Fed 
Ex Duty Officer (Mark. Crook) that there was a line of thunderstorms [described in an active 
SIGMEf] between my departure airport Laredo, TX {KLRD) and Memphis, TN (KMEM}, the Duly 
Officer directed me to depart and fly toward KM EM and through the line of thunderstorms. Asserting 
my pilot in command authority under 14 CFR Sec. 913(a) I related: "I am not going to depart until I 
can plan my arrival for storm passage through Memphis." He then told me he had consulted with our 
FedEx Weather Department and said they told him the thunderstorm would pass through Memphis 
in about 30 minutes. He directed me to takeoff and fly to Memphis. I declined. It would be +6 
hours later before the storm would pass through Memphis. "You are the only one not taking off" he 
said, and directed me to go sit in the cockpit until we had our departure clearance. Laredo tower 
held us on the ground for over 2 additional hours due to a weather hold for all Memphis inbound 
flights as directed by Memphis Air Route Traffic Control. 14 CFR Sec. 91.3(a) provides: "The pilot in 
command is directly responsible for, and rs the flnal authority as to, the operation of that aircraft." In 
addition to violating Sec. 91.3(a), such an operation would have violated 14 CFR Sec. 91.13(a) 

: which provides: "No person may operate an aircraft In a careless or reckless manner so as to 
endanger the life or property of another." These provisions in Part 91 of the Federal Aviation 
Regulations specifiCally apply to Part 121 operations such as those conducted by Federal Express. 

EXHIBIT 
41291 I 3 1 :26 PM 

A 

Submission Complete https:/lwww.osha.gov/pls/osha7Iecomplaintform.submit 

lof2 

A to Z 1n6u: I En espatlol , Contltct Us , FAQI I About OSHA 

OSHA 

lbankYoul 

Your Sarety <lnd HMItt. Hazard Hotfce bas bMn fofwilfded to the OSHA Fedual Area Otfioe listed below. 

Y~r 0CIm5M1nt may be forwarded to the 5~GfTenne:sae. whfch openltes tts own OSHA a~ 5tatt 
Plan.~·fof U'IOf'e Information en stat. Pfans Of If you woukl like. 10 CClfltac;t: the.tate drectfy. 

If you identified yourself, you wUl be mntacUd by OSHA, 
Plu. call the OSHA l'ederal An.a OftIc.below tfyou are notcon~. 

Complaint Number: 861872 

Tennessee 

Nashville Ar~ Office 
. 51 Century Boulevard Suite 340, 
Nashville, TN 37214 
(615) 232-3803 
(615) 232-3827 FAX 

Establishment Name: 

Site Street 

'Site Oly: 

Site State: 

Site Zip: 

Management Official: 

Telephone Number: 

Type of Business: 

Hazard Description: 

FedEx Express 

3131 Democrat Rd., lltJilding C 

Memphis 

Tennessee 

38118 

captain Rob Fisher 

901.224.3435 

Express Shipping 

ILl' 

On AprU 10,2013, after coordinating a delay with GOC (Sherrie Hayslett) and speaking to the Fed 
Ex Duty Officer (Mark Crook) that there was a line of thunderstorms [descrIbed In an active 
SIGMET) between my departure airport Laredo, TX (KLRD) and Memphis, TN (KMEM), the Duty 
Officer directed me to depart and fly toward KMEM and through the line of thunderstorms, Asserting 
my pilot In command authority under 14 CFR Sec. 91.3(a) I related: "1 am not going to depart untill 
can plan my arrival for sto~m passage through Memphis." He then totd me he had consulted with our 
FedEx Weather Department and said they told him the thunderstorm would pass through Memphis 
in about 30 mInutes. He directed me to takeoff and fly to Memphis. I declined. It would be +6 
hours later before the storm would pass through Memphis. "You are the only one not taking off" he 
said, and dIrected me to go sit in the c:ockpit until we had our departure clearance, Laredo tower 
held us on the ground for over Z addltlonal hours due to a weather hold for all Memphis inbound 
flights as directed by Memphis Air Route Traffic Control. 14 CFR Sec, 91.3(a) provides: "The pilot in 
command is directly responsible for, and is the final authority as to, the operation of that aircraft." In 
addition to violating Sec. 91.3(a), such an operation would have violated 14 CFR Sec, 91.13(a) 
which provides: "No person may operate an aircrart in a careless or reckless manner so as to 
endanger the liFe or property of another." These provisions in Part 91 of the Federnt Aviation 
Regulations specifICally apply to Part 121 operations such as those conducted by Federal Express. 

What's New I OI'fioe:s 

EXHIBIT 
4129113 I :26 PM 

A 
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See 14 CFR Sec. 91.1{a) ["this part prescribes rules governing the operation of aircraft ... within the 
United States.'1. These directives are also in violation of FedEx Flight Operations Manual (FOM) 
procedures 8.17 TURBULENCE, which states, in part, that "Turbulence increases the difficulty of 
flight operations. ln extreme cases it may cause damage to the aircraft, Areas of known 
severe/extreme turbulence should be avoided. If the Captain determines an area of turbulence to be 
unsafe, he will detour or delay the flight until conditions improve. All meteorological conditions (e.g., 
SIGMETS, PIREPS, ATC advisories, etc.) shall be considered prior to releasing a flight to or operating 

• in areas of turbulence." My decision to exercise my pilot in command authority has led to a Section 
19.0.1 disdpllnary interview Capt. Rob Fisher has declared he intends to convene on May 1, 2013, 
in Memphis, TN. Despite my requests, I have not been provided with records or recordings of my 
conversations either with the Duty Officer or the Dispatcher. The GOC dispatcher lied about my 
consultation with her when she agreed I should stay at the hotel and wait out the storm. My first 
officer, Randy Burleson, can verify this. The audio tapes will also corroborate my account of events. 
My conversation with the Duty Officer was an act of intimidation in response to my reporting an FAR 
violation to my employer as Js the receipt of the letter received from my supervisor Rob Fisher 
notifying me of an interview set ror May 1, 2013, under the auspices of Section 19.D.1 of the 
Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) currently in rorce and effect at Federal Express. There are 

• approximately 4,500 pilots at FedEx Express. 

Hazard Location: 

The hazardous location is airborne In nature. Every aircrew that may be intimidated by flight 
management to penetrate severe turbulence and thunderstorms is at risk all over the world. 

This condition has previously been brought to the attention of: 

· * The following government agency: FAA 

r am an employee. 

My name may be revealed to the employer. 

Complainant Name: 

·Complainant Telephone Number: 

Complainant Mailing Address: 

PO BOX 1890 

MANCHACA 

Texas 

•78652 
.. 

Compl<~inant Emarl: 

;· 

MARK ESTABROOK 

901-230-4933 

cargopilot@gmail.com 

U.s. Deportment of labor I OCOJpaliGnal Safety 8r. Health hlminlsttation I 200 constitution Ave., NW. Washlngtvo, DC 20210 
Telephone: 800-321-<lSHA (61~2) l TTY: 877-889-5627 

www.OSHA.gov 

4/29/13 1:26PM 

Submission Complete https:llwww.osha.gov/pls/osha7/ecornplaintfonn,submit 
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See 14 eFR Sec. 91.1(a) ("this part prescribes rules governing the operation of aircraft ... within the 
, United States:1, These directives are also in violation of FedEx Flight Operations Manual (FOM) 
procedures 8.17nJRBUlENCE, which states, in part, that "Turbulence increases the difficulty of 
flight operations, In extreme cases it may cause damage to the aircraft:. Areas of known 
severe/extreme bJrbuience should be avoided, If the Captain determines an area of turbulence to be 
unsafe, he will detour or delay the flight untll conditions improve. All meteorological conditions (e.g., 
SIGMETS, PIREPS, ATe advisories, etc.) shall be considered prior to releasing a flight to or operating 
in areas of turbulence.1! My decision to exercise my pilot in command authority has led to a Section 

; 19.0.1 disciplinary interview Capt. Rob Fisher has declared he intends to convene on May 1, 2013, 
,In Memphis, TN. Despite my requests, I have not been provided with records or recordings of my 
conversations either with the Duty Officer or the Dispatcher. The GOC dispatcher lied about my 

,consultation with her when she agreed I should stay at the hotel and wait out the storm. My first 
officer, Randy Burleson, can verify this. The audio tapes will also corroborate my account of events. 
My conversation with the Duty Officer was an act of intimidation in response to my reportlng an FAR 
violation to my employer as Is the receIpt of the letter received from my supervisor Rob Rsher 
notifying me of an interview set ror May 1, 2013, under the auspIces of Section 19.0.1 of the 

-COllective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) currently in force and effect at Federal Express, Ttlere are 
;approximately 4,500 pilots at FedEx Express. 

Hazard Location: 

The hazardous location is airborne In nature. Every aircrew that may be intimidated by flIght 
management to penetrate severe turbulence and thunderstorms Is at risk all over the world. 

This condition has previously been brought to the attention of: 

* The following government agency: FAA 

r am an employee. 

My name may be revealed to the employer. 

Complainant Name: MARK ESTABROOK 

'Complainant Telephone Number; 901-230-4933 

Complainant Mailing Address: 
, '. '.' . 

PO BOX 1890 

MANCHACA 

Texas 

78652 
, 

Complainant Ematl: cargopifot@gmail.com 

I'reedomofl'!'Vrmation~~1 Prfv.cv:~~rfly,_StII~-:n-nt I DisdaiIM",! I ImportantW._b. ,SftaNoUc.s I I~u.ona~ I ContKty~ 

U,s. Department aF lllbor I CkoJpational Safety & Health Administration I 200 constitutioI1 Ave" Nw;. WasNngton, OC 20210 
Telephone: 800-321-osHA. (67'12) I TTY: 877-889-5627 

www.OSHA,gov 

20f2 4/29/13 I :26 PM 
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Whistleblower Protection Program- Electronic Complaint Notif ... 

1 of3 

Federal Aviation 
Administration 

Electronic Complaint Notification 

http://av-apps .faa.gov/wbpp/wbpp2.htm 

EXHIBIT 
4/29113 1 :SO PM 

B 

Whistleblower Protection Program - Electronic Complaint Notic... 

10f3 

Federal Aviation 
Administration 

s , 

Electronic Complaint Notification 

hl1p:llav-app,Jaa.gov/wbpp/wbpp2.htm 

···f · 

. EXHIBIT 
4/29/13 1 :50 PM 

B 
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Whistleblower Protection Program - Electronic Complaint Notif...~ http://av-apps .faa.gov/wbpp/wbpp2.htm 

2of3 

To qualify for the Whistleblower Protection Program (WBPP), you must be or have been an employee of a U.S. air 
carrier, or a contractor or subcontractor of a U.S. air carrier. 

A PERSONAL REMEDY FOR DISCRIMINATION IS ONLY AVAILABLE THROUGH THE U. S. DEPARTMENT OF 
LABOR, OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA). You must file a WBPP 
complaint with OSHA within 90 DAYS of the discrimination event. This notification advises the FAA but is not 
a substitute for filing the required complaint with OSHA. 

Has this complaint been filed with OSHA?: • Yes 0 No Required fields are marked with an asterisk 
(*). 

Personal Information 
Complainant~.·s;..;N..;.a;;;m~e.;...;..• ;_; _ .......... _____ ___.,'"'""". ~----; 

r ·.M,~~. ~,: ll MARK S ESTAB~qo~ . 
Address1 • : 

[PO' B9Xl~~9 ~: ] . 

Address2: 

L :: :: ::: ::: . ::. : : :· :-- : : :: :: :l 

Date: 
04/29/2013 

Employee's Job • : Fligh(Pec:.~G;r,ewmefuher . <*' If other, please specify: 
~~~----~~~~~~~r---~~~ 

Employer Information 

.C9fTIP.~rlY, ,TY!>~ .. \ : __ . .. . .. . . 
. l;ii&i~l~f,'1"l?~(- . ;.:, \. ~·· .. · . :.-,;J 
· <>rnr:>~ny Nama· • : Certificate Number: 

Address2: 

901- 224-3435 

Alleged Safety Vlolation(s) 

Saf~ty Violation Category * : .. Op~ra~i<?ns -· ... , ~ If other, please specify: 
--~--------~~~~~~~==~ 

4/29/13 1:50PM 

Whistleblower Proteclion Program - Electronic Complaint NoliL I£ http://av-apps.raa.govlwbpplwbpp2.htm 

To qualify for the Whistleblower Protection Program (WBPP). you must be or have been an employee of a U.S. air 
carrier, or a contractor or subcontractor of a U.S. air carrier. 

A PERSONAL REMEDY FOR DISCRIMINATION IS ONLY AVAILABLE THROUGH THE U. S. DEPARTMENT OF 
LABOR, OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA). You must file a WBPP 
complaint with OSHA within 90 DAYS of the discrimination event. This notification advises the FAA but is not 
a substitute for filing the required complaint with OSHA. 

Has this complaint been filed with OSHA?: "Ve. 0 No Required fields are marked with an asterisk 

Personal Information 
Complainanrf-'s:..:N..::a;;m:;e:::......~~: _~ _____ ~~ ___ _ -, 

r .Mr" .,:»1 MARK 5 ESTAB~OO!< 
Address1 • ;. 

§89XIB~9 J 

Date: 
04/29/2013 

'Cit(' , . State' .: Zip Gode • : 

61:~.;;.A;;.;~Cf,i.j",~c,"" A"" .. "'"-'''''':' ........ ~=....-:;;.;;;:JJ I, TX • . :'1 17865.2 ' 1 
¢I/UI'\![)'" : Province iNon,L!.S,,',:, PosUilC6diJ: 

· ""I .,. :""~V"-Il~"', c!"-,~t""!\f"-~S_~~~-'-'-~··'"'·JC;.J· • • :J I l 
Phone' : rC;.:e.:;.II"-P"'h.;;on"'e:;,;: ____ ...,,·.. E~MaiIAddiess' ; 

I S12:772-~60S ! 901-2l0-!933 'I l.car9?PilO!@gmall,com 

;:E::.;m;;;p::.;lo;.:y::.;e;..e·.;;s;;J.;;O;;..b_· .,;.: .... Fl;:.lg:;;h;;;.I.;O;.;.,;;C.k;;; .. C,;;. ,;;;ew,;;;· ... m;;;"",fubr:· .:;r_._~~~.,",,:· if other, please specify: 

Employer Information 

, I ~:~t..~[fj~~~,._ . ':" .-' .. ~': ··_t) : 
Qompao¥ Name" : Certificate Number: 

Address2: 

,901-224-3435 Extension: 
"---,.,~~----' 

,t , .. P . - • 
Alleged Safety Vlolation(s) 

Safety Violation Category' : r .dp.gti~n~ .... j) . If other, please specify: 

('). 

20f3 4129113 1:50PM 
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Wbistleblower Protection Program - Ele<:tronic Complaint Notif ... http://av-apps.faa.gov/wbpp/wbpp2.htm 

·--~--.,--..,..-..,.---.....-------------·· --···------- -·-

3 of3 4/29/13 1:50PM 

Whistleblower Protection Program ~ Ele<:tronic Complaint Notif ... hltp:llav-apps.faa.gov/wbpp/wbpp2.htm 

--'----'---------------_ . __ ._--- -

30f3 4/29113 1:50 PM 
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U.S. Department of Labor 

May 2, 2013 

Alan Annstrong 
Attorney at Law 
2900 Chamblee-Tucker Road 
Building 5, Suite 350 
Atlanta, GA 30341 

Occupational SAfety and Health Administration 
Atlanta Regional' Office 
SAm Hunn Federlll Center 
61 Fonyth Street, SN Room 6T50 
Atlanta, Geof'l(a 30303 
(678) 237-0400 
(678) 237-0447 FAX 

Re: FedEx Express!Estabrook!Case No.4- t760- 13-080 

Dear Mr. Armstrong:, 

The request to withdmw tbe complaint filed by Mark Estabrook (Complainant) in the above­
captioned matter has been approved. With this withdrawal, the case in this matter is closed. 

If, at any time in the future, you have any questions or require any infonnation regarding 
employee rights and employer responsibilities under the whistleblower protection statutes 
administered by OSHA, please feel free to contact this office. 

~ 
Matthew E. Robinson 
Regional Supervisory Investigator 

U.S. Department of Labor 

May 2, 2013 

Alan Annstrong 
Attorney at Law 
2900 Chamblee-Tucker Road 
Building 5, Suite 350 
Atlanta, GA 30341 

Occupational SAfety and Health Administration 
Atlanta Regional' OffIce 
SAm Hunn Federlll Center 
61 Fonyth Street, SN Room 6T50 
Atlanta, Gaor&la 30303 
(678) 237-0400 
(678) 237-0447 FAX 

Re: FedEx Express/EstabrookfCase No_ 4-1,760-13-080 

Dear Mr. Armstrong:, 

The request to withdmw tbe complaint filed by Mark Estabrook (Complainant) in the above­
captioned matter has been approved. With this withdrawal, the case in this matter is closed. 

If, at any lime in the future, you have any questions or require any infonnation regarding 
employee rights and employer responsibilities under the whistleblower protection statutes 
administered by OSHA, please feel free to contact this office. 

~-------
Matthew E. Robinson 
Regional Supervisory Investigator 
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DOCUMENT 
NO. 
1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Mark Estabrook "· Federal Express Comoration 
Defendant's Log of Privileged Documents 

(Revised l/17/1015) 

DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION PRIVILEGE 

4123113 Emails with advice from counsel Attorney/Client 
from paralegal C. Sartain to Communication. Attorney 
managers R. Fisher and M. Work Product - Prepared 
Matheny regarding draft letter to at the direction of or under 
Estabrook the supervision ofFedEx 

attorneys 
4/26113 Email from paralegal C. Sartain to Attorney Work Product-

attorney R. Tice regarding Internal Legal Dept 
recordings related to flight 1317 Communication I 
LRD-MEM 

4/29/13 Emails with advice of counsel Attomey/CUent 
between manager R. Fisher, Comttmnication, Attorney 
attorney R. Ticc, and paralegal C. Work Product - lntemal 
Sartain reguding 4/29/13 letter Legal Dept. 
from attorney A. Armstrong Communications 

4/29/13 Email from attorney R. Ticc to Attorney Work Product-
paralegal C. Sartain and attorney S. Intenial Legal Dept. 
Williams regarding manager R. Communication 
Fisher letter to attomey A. 
Armstrong 

4/29113 Emails between director W. Attorney/Client 

~~ 
McDonald and attorney ll. Ticc Communication- Internal 
regarding manager R. Fisher letter Legal Dept 
to attomcv A. Armstrong Communications 

517/13 Email from paralegal J. Harrison to Attorney Work Product-
paralegal C. Sartain regarding Intcmal Legal Department 
attached Estabrook OSHA Communication 
complaint with handwriting 

Sn/13 Email from paralegal C. Sartain to Attorney/Client 
managers M. Matheny and R Communication- Prepared 
Fisher regarding Estabrook OSHA at the direction of or under 
complaint the supervision ofFedEx 

attorneys 
8/4/13 Emails between VP and attorney J. Attorney Work Product, 

Maxwell, VP J. Bowman, director Attorney/Client 
W. McDonald, and attorney R. Communication - Internal 
Tice regarding Estabrook 8/4/13 Legal Department 
email Conununications 

8/S/13 Email with advice of counsel from Attorney/Client 
attorney R. Tice to director W. Communication, Attorney 
McDonald and cc to manager R. Work Product - Internal 
Fisher, VP Jim Bowman, VP and Legal Department 
attorney J. Maxwell, and director Communication 
T. Ondra regardin_g_ R. Fisher 

1 

C-45 

DOCUMENT 
NO. 
\. 

1. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Mark. Ellabroo/c ., F~de'tU Rm,ess CO'MrGfiotf 
DerendD.Dt' t Log orprtvtleged Dot umenbl 

(Revb.d 1I17/101S) 

DATE DOCUMENTDFSCIUPTION PRIVILEGE 

4/23/13 Bamils with advice from counsel Anomey/Client 
from paralegal C. Sartain to COl1l.lXlunicatioD. Attorney 
managcl1 R. Fisher and M. Work ProducJ· Prepared 
Matheny regarding draft letter to at the d.irection of or under 
Estabrook the supervision ofFcdEx 

attomcys _ 
4126113 Email fi'om paralegal C. Sartain to Attorney Work Product-

attorney R. Tite regarding Intcma\ Legal Dept. 
recordings related to Oigbl 1317 
LRlJ.MEM 

Communication , 
4129/13 EmailB with advicc of counsel Attorney/Client 

between manager R.. Pisher. Commanicatioo, Attorney 
attomq' R. lice, and paralegal C. Work Product .lntanal 
Sartain regudiDg 4/29/13 letter Legal Dept. 
from attornev A. AImstron. Communications 

4129/13 Email from attorney R. Tice to Attomey Work Product 
paralegal C. Sartain and attorney S. Intcniol Legal Dept. 
Williams regarding mllOBgcr R. Communication 
Fisher let1C:r to attorney A.. 
AmlsIr01l2 

4fl9/13 Emails between director W. Attomcy/clicnt j MeDeeald and attoruey R. Tice Communication -Iruemal 
regarding manager R. Fisher letter Leg.IDept. 
to attorney A. AmlstronK Communications 

5mn Email from paralegal 1. Harrison to Attorney Work Product-
paralegal C. Sartaio regarding Intcmal Legal Dcpamnent 
altac:bed Estabrook OSHA Communication 
conmlaint witb bandwritiall 

1mB Email from pmlegai C. Sartain to Attamey/Client 
managetlI M. Malbeny and R. Communication ~ Prepared 
Fisher regarding Estabtook. OSHA at the din:ction of or under 
complaint the lupervision of FedEx 

attorneys 
8/4/13 EmaUs between VP and attorney 1. AHomey Work Product, 

Maxwell, VP 1, Bowman, director Attomcy/Clicot 
W. McDonal.d. and attorney R. Commuttication - Internal 
Tice "ganling Estabrook 814113 Legal Departmcnt 
email Communications 

8/S/13 Email with advice of counsel from AUnmcy/Client 
allomey R. Tice to director W. Communication, Attorney 
McDonald and cc to manager R. Work Product - lntemil 
Fisher, VP Jim Bowman, VP IUld Legal. Department 
attorney J. Maxwell, and director Communication 
T. Ondra "g.,dina R. Fisher 
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10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

Mqrk Estabrook "· Federal Express Comorption 
Dcfcndant,s Log of PrivUeged Documents 

(Revised 1/1712015) 

meeting_ with Estabrook 
8/5/13 Email from attorney R. Tice to Attorney/Client 

manager R. Fisher and director W. Communication, Attorney 
McDonald with cc to VP J. Work Product- Internal 
Bowman, VP and attorney J. Legal Department 
Maxwell, and director T. Ondra Communication 
regarding R. Ticc communication 
withALPA 

8/4-5/13 Emails with advice of counsel Attorney/Client 
between attorney R. Tice, VP and Communication, Attorney 
attorney J. Maxwell, VP 1. Work Product - Internal 
Bowman, director W. McDonald, Legal Department 
director T. Ondra, and managers R. Communications 
Fisher and T. Arnett and cc to VP 
T. Harris regarding Estabrook 
8/4/13 email 

sn/13 Email from G. Hubbard to R. Tice Attomey/Oient 
regarding message from director Communication- Internal 
W.McDonald Legal Dept. 

Communication 
sn113 Emails with advice of counsel Att()l'lley/Client 

between W. McDonald, VP J. Communication, Attorney 
Bowman, director T. Ondra, Work Product -Internal 
VP/attomey 1. Maxwell, attorney LegalDepl 
R. Tice, and SVP Paul Cassel and Communications 
cc to paralegal C. Sartain regarding 
Estabrook 8/4/13 email 

8/9/13 Email from attorney R Tice to VP Attorney Work Product-
and attorney J. Maxwell regarding Internal Legal Depl 
Estabrook case uodate Communication 

8/9/13 EmaUs with advice from counsel Attorney/Client 
between attorney R. Tice and Communication, Attorney 
1118Dager R. Fisher and cc to Work Product - Internal 
director W. McDonald regarding Legal Department 
Estabrook decision Communications 

8/12/13 Emai1s from attorney R. Tice to Attorney Work Product-
VP and attorney J. Maxwell and Internal Legal Dept. 
paralegal C. Sartain regarding Communications 
Estabrook case update . 

8112/13 Emails between director T. Ondra, Attorney/Client 
attorney R. Ti~e, attorney S. Communications, Privacy 
Williams, and paralegal C. Sartain of Non-Party- Internal 
regarding Estabrook and Trafton Legal Department 
case updates Commwtications 

2 

C-46 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

Mqr" £$tqfJrook ~. Federal Exprm C"I1lwtiOll 
Derendant's Log of Privileged Documents 

(Rt"iged 2/17120l5) 

meetinA: with Estabrook 
815113 Email from attorney R. Tiee to Attorney/Client 

DW18ger R. Fisher and director W. Communication. Attorney 
McDonald with cc to VP 1. Work. Product - Internal 
Bowman, VP and attorney 1. Legal Department 
Maxwell, and dired:or T. QOOru Communication 
regarding R. Ticc communication 
witbALPA 

814-5113 Emails with advic:e of counsel Attomey/CUeot 
between attorney R. Tice. VP and Communication. Attorney 
attorney J. Maxwell, VP 1. Work Product - Internal 
Bowmao. director W. McDonald, Legal Deplll"lmeot 
direc10r T. Ondra, and Dtal18gera R. Communications 
Fisher and T. Amett and cc to VP 
T. Harris regarding Estabrook 
8/4113 email 

8nllJ Email from O. Hubbard. to R. Ticc Attorney/Oient 
regarding tneuage from direelor Commuoieatioo -Internal 
W.McDonald Legal Dept. 

Communication 
8nt13 EmaiLs with advice of coun.sd Attorney/Client 

belw= W. M<Donald, VP l. Communication. Attorney 
BOWDlBD, din:cklrT. Onrua, Work Product ·ln1cmal 
VPfattomey 1. Muwel~ attorney Legal Dept. 
R. Tice, and SVP Paul Cassel and Communicatiow 
cc to paralegal C. Sartain regarding 
Estab<ook 8/4113 email 

819113 Email from attorney R. Tiee to VP Attorney Work Product 
and attomey J. Maxwell regardiDg Internal Legal Dept 
Estabrook case update Corrununicstion 

819113 Emaila with advice from counsc:l At10mcy/Clieat 
between attorney R. Tice and Communication, Attorney 
manager R.. Fisher and cc to Work Product - Internal 
~tor W. McDonald regardiDg Legal Department 
Eatabrook decision COmnlurucatiOIUI 

8112113 Emails from attorney R. Tiee to Attomey Work Product-
VP and attorney 1. Maxwen and Inlornal Legal Dept 
paralegal C. Sartain regardiog Communications 
Estabrook case update 

8112113 Emails between director T. ODdra, Attorney/Clieal 
attorney R. Tk;e, attorney S. Communications, Princy 
Williams. and paralegal C. Sartain Or Non-Party ~ Internal 
regarding Estabrook and Trallon Legal Department 
case u~tes Communications 

1 
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,. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

Mark Estabrook v. Fet!eral E:mreg Comoraiion 
Defendant's Log of Privileged Documents 

(Revised 1117/2015) 

8/12113 Email from paralegal C. Sartain to Attorney Work Product, 
attorney R. Tice and manager M. A ttomey/Client 
Matheny regarding Estabrook 1 S .D Communication ~ Internal 
letter with draft attached Legal Department 

Communications 

8/13/13 Emails with advice of counsel Attorney Work Product. 
between attorney R. Tice, VP and Attorney/Client 
attorney J. Maxwell, SVP and Communication - Internal 
attorney R. O'Keefe, attorney Phil Legal Department 
Tadlock, directors T. Ondra and Communications 
W. McDopald, manager R. Fisher 
with ccffJ"Pandegal C. Sartain 
andVPJ.Bownwnregardmg 
attorney A. Armstrong 8113/13 
letter (attached) 

8/13/13 Email from attomey R. Tice to Attorney Work Product-
assistant E. Garvey with a cc to VP Internal Legal Dept 
and attorney J. Maxwell, attorney CoiDIIlunication 
P. Tadlock. and paralegal C. 
Sartain regarding Estabrook case 
9ummary 

8/13~14/13 Emai~ with advice of counsel Attorney/Client 
between attorney R. Tice, manager Commtmication. Attorney 
R. Fisher, directors T. Ondra and Work Product- lntemal 
W. McDonald, and paralegal C. Legal Department 
Sartain with cc's to VP J. Communications 
Bowman, VP and attorney J. 
Maxwell, attorney P. Tadlock 
regarding Estabrook lS.D letter 
with draft attached 

8114/13 Email from attorney P. Tadlock to Attorney Work Product-
attorney R. Tice regarding Internal Legal Dept. 
response to A. Armstorg 8/13/13 Communication 
letter with draft attached 

8/15/13 Emails with advice of counsel Attorney/Client 
between manager R. Fisher, Communication, Attorney 
attorney R. Tice, paralegal C. Work Product -Internal 
Sartain, and director W. McDonald Legal Department 
reRarding Estabrook 15.0 letter Communications 

8116/13 Emails between attorney R. Ticc Attorney Work Product-
and SVP and attorney R. O'Keefe Internal Legal Dept. 
regarding response to A. Communications 
Annstrong 8/9/l 3 letter (attached) 

8/L6/13 Emails between attorney R. Tice Attorney Work Product-
and VP and attorney J. Maxwell Internal Legal Dept. 
with a cc to attorn~ P. Tadlock Communications 

3 
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18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23 . 

24. 

25. 

Mark EslabroDlr ... FedrrlJl Exprm Corporation 
Defendant's 1.0, of Privileged Documents 

(Revised 211712015) 

8112113 Email fi'mn paralegal C. Sartai.a to Anomey Work Product., 
attorney R. Tice and manager M. Attorney/Client 
Matheny regarding Estabrook I S.D Commumcation - Intema1 
letter with chft anached Legal Department 

Communications 

8113/13 Emaib with advice of counsc.l Attorney Work ProduCt., 
between anorney R. Tice, VP and AUClmey/Clicnt 
anomey 1. Maxwell, SVP and CClmmunication - Internal 
attorney R. O'Ktde, attorney Phil Legal Department 
Tadlock, directors T. OndR and Communications 
W. McDo~ manager it. Fisher 
with ccTI6j;anl,p1 C. Sartain 
aodVPJ. Bo~rt~dmg 

.tto~~ A. A::;"""ng 8/13/13 
lelicr attached 

8/13/13 Email from attoroey R. Tice to Attorney Work Product-
assistant B. Garvey witb a cc to VP Internal Legal Depl 
and attomey 1. MaxweU, attorney Communication 
P. Tadlock, and paralegal C. 
Sartai.n regarding Estabrook case 
summary 

8113· i 4113 E.t:nails with advice of wunsel AttomeylClieot 
bctwcm attorney R. Tice, manager Communication, Attorney 
R. Fisher. directorsT. ODdta and Wotk Produet· Intema! 
W. Mcll<lnald, and panliegal C. Legal Department 
SllrtBin with cc'a to VP J. Communicatiolll 
Bowman. VP and attorney J. 
Maxwel~ attorney P. Tadlock 
reguding Estabrook 15.0 letter 
with draft attached 

8114/13 Email from attorney P. Tadlock. to Atlomey WorIt Product-
attorney R. Tiee ,"garding Internal Legal Dept 
'espo'" to A. ArmilorS 8/llill Communication 
I~ with draft: attached 

8115113 Emails with advico of counsel Attorney/Client 
between manager R. Fisher, CommunicatioD, Attorney 
aRomey R. Ticc; paraJ.egal C. Work Product - J ntemal 
Sartain. and director W. McDonald Legal Oepartmeot 
,"""din. Eslabrook 15.0 I,ne, Commumcations 

8116/13 Emails between attorney R. Tice Attoroey Work Product-
and SVP and attomt:y R. O'Keefe lnteroal Legal Dept 
regarding rcspcasc to A. Cclmmunications 
Arms"""8 8/9/13 I"e, (attached) 

8116113 Email! between attorney R. Ticc Attorney Work Product-
and VP and attorney 1. Maxwell Internal Legal Dept. 
witba cc to attorney P. Tadlock CcImmurucatioDS 

3 
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26. 

27. 

28. 

29. 

• 

30. 

31. 

32. 

33. 

34. 

.Mark Estabrook v. Federq!Exnress Coroort1tion 
Defendant's Log of Privileged Documents 

(Revised 2/1711015) 

regarding rersponse to A. 
Atmstrong 8/9/13 letter 

8/16113 Emails with advice of counsel Attorney/Client 
between attorney R. Tice and Communication, Attorney 
manager R. Fisher and a cc to Work Product ~ Internal 
attorney Phil Tadlock and I Legal Department 
paralegal C. Sartain regarding Communications 
Harvey Watt's request for a written 
statement 

8/16/13 Emails between director W. Attorney/Client 
McDonald and attorney R. Tice Communication ~ Internal 
regarding response to attorney A. Legal Department 
Annstrona 8/9113 letter Communications 

8/20/13 Emails between assistant B. Attorney Work Product-
Harrison and SVP and attorney R. lntertJ.al Legal Dept. 
O'Keefe regarding attorney letter Communications -Internal 
received Legal Department 

Communications 
8/20/13 Emails between attorney R. Tfce, Attorney Work Product-

VP and attorney J. Maxwell, SVP Internal Legal Depl 
and attorney R. O'Keefe, attorneys Communications 
S. Williams and P. Tadlock 
regarding attorney A. Armstrong 
8/20113 letter 

8/22/13 Email from attorney R. Tice to Attorney/Client 
attorney P. Tadlock with a cc to Communication, Attorney 
VP J. Bowman, VP and attorney J. Work Product - Intcmal 
Maxwell, directors W. McDonald Legal Department 
and T. Ondra regardiug 8122/13 Communication 
letters to J. Bowman, Dr. T. Bettes 
of Harvey Watt, and R. Fisher 
Lattachedl 

8122/13 Emails between managerS. Voye, Attorney/Client 
attorney R. Tice, Chris Johnson of Communication, Privacy 
Harvey Watt with ace to C. ofNon~Party ~Internal 
Sartain regarding Hanson IS.D and Legal Department 
Estabrook 1 S.D Communications 

8/22113 Email from attorney R. Ticc to Attorney/Client 
manager R. Fisher and cc to Communication, Attorney 
attorney P. Tadlock regarding Work Product - Internal 
attorney A. Armstrong 8/20/13 Legal Department 
letter (attached) Communication 

8/23/13 Emails between attorneys R. Tice Attorney Work Product-
and P. Tadlock regarding Ticc Internal Legal Dept. 
response to attorney A. Armstrong ComrnlDlications 
8/20/13 letter (draft attached) 

8/23/13 Email from attorney R. Tice to VP Attorney/Client 
4 
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26. 

27. 

28. 

29. 

. 
30. 

31. 

32. 

33. 

34. 

Mark Estabrook Y. F~'eraJ Exnrw Coreot!tiotf 
Defendant's Log of Privileged Documents 

(Revised 211712015) 

regarding rersponse to A. 
Atmstron1l8l9/13 letter 

8116113 Email, with advice of counad Anomey/CUent 
between attomey R. Tice and Communication, Attorney 
manager R. Fisher and a cc to Work Product -intemal 
attorney Phil Tadlock and Legal Department 
paralegal C. Sartain rcgardins Communications 
Harvey Walt's ~ucst for a written 
statement 

8116113 Email. between director W. Attorney/Client 
MeDaaald and attorney R. Tiee Commllllfea.tion - InIz:m.a1 
regarding response 10 attorney A- Leaal Depar1nl<Dt 
AJmstro •• 819113 I,tter CommunicatioD! 

8120113 Emails between asSistaul 8 . Attorney Work Producl -
Barrisoo and SVP and attamey R. Internal Legal Dept. 
O'Keefe rega.rdicg attorney letter Communications - interDal 
received Legal Department 

CommunicatioIUI 
8/20113 Emails bctwceD attorney R. Tlee, Attorney Work Produ.ct 

VP Uld anomey 1. Maxwell, SVP Internal Legal Dept 
and attamc:y R. O'Keefe, attorneys Communications 
S. Williams and P. Tadlock 
regarding attomey A. Armstrong 
8120113 letter 

8/22/13 Email from attomoy R. Tice to Anorney/Client 
attorney p, Tadlock with ace to Communication. Anomey 
VP J. Bowman, VP and attorney J. Work Product -Internal 
Maxwell. directOr! W. McDonald Legal Department 
and T. Ondra regarding 8122113 CommunicatioD 
letters to 1. Bowman, Dr. T. Bertes 

I ~:Harv:i( Watt, and R. Fish" 
attached 

8/22/13 Emails between manager S. Voye, Attorney/Client 
attorney R. Tiee, Chris lohoaon of Communication. Privacy 
Harvey Watt with.« 10 C. of Non-Party -Internal 
Sartain regarding Hanson 15.0 and Legal Department 
Estabrook I SD Communications 

8122113 Email from attorney R. Ticc to Attorney/Client 
manager R. Fisher and cc to Communication. Attorney 
attorney P. Tadlock regarding Work Product ~ lntcmol 
attorney A. Annstroog 8120113 Legal Departmcot 
letter(;"'cbcdl Communication 

8/23113 Emails between attorneys R. Tice Attorney Work Product-
and P. Tadlock regarding Ticc Inlemal Legal Dept. 
response to attorney A. Armstrong Communications 
8120113I,Her(dr.Ifl.nachc9) 

8/23/13 Email from attomey R. Tice 10 VP Attornev/Client 
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35. 

36. 

37. 

38. 

39. 

40. 

41. 

42. 

43. 

Mqrk Estabrook v. Federal Exnress Cornorodo11 
Defendant's Log of Privileged Documents 

(Revised 211712015) 

J. Bowman, director W. Communication, Attop1ey 
McDonald, manager R.. Fisher with Work Product- Internal 
cc to attorney P. Tadlock. paralegal Legal Department 
C. Sartain, and director T. Ondra Communication 
regardiDg Estabrook case ~e 

8/23/13 Email from attorney P. Tadlock to Attorney Work Product-
attorney R. Tice regarding draft lntem!d Legal Dept. 
response letter to attorney A. Communication 
Armstrong (attached} 

8/23-26/13 Emails between attorney R. Tice Attorney/Client 
and SVP and attorney R. O'Keefe, Communications - Internal 
SVP P. Cassel, VP and attorney J. Legal Department 
Maxwell, VP J. Bowman, and Communications 
attorney P. Tadlock regarding Tice 
8123/13 letter (attached} 

8126/13 Email between assistant B. Attorney Work Product-
Harrison and SVP and attorney R. Internal Legal Dept. 
O'Keefe and VP 11Dd attorney J. Communication 
Maxwell and attorney R. Tice 
regarding attorney A. Armstrong 
8/20/13 letter (attached} 

8126-27/13 Emails between VP J. Bowman Attorney Client 
and attorney R. Tice with cc to Communication, Attorney 
directors W. McDonald and J. Work Product -Internal 
Pearson; managers R. Fisher, N. Legal Department 
Coplas, and A. Antonian; attorney Communications 
S. Williams, paralegals M. Miller 
and C. Sartain regarding Estabrook 
suievancc letters (attachecl)_ 

8/27-28113 Emails between VP and attorney J. Attorney Work Product-
Maxwell and attorneys R. T~ce and Internal Legal Dept. 
P. Tadlock regarding attorney A. Communications 
Armstrong 8/27/lJletters 

8/28/13 Emails between attorney R. Tice Attorney Work Product-
and paralegal M. Miller regarding Internal Legal Dept. 
Estabrook grievance Communications 

8/28/13 Emails between assistant B. Attorney Work Product-
Harrison, SVP and attorney R. lntcmal Legal Dept 
O'Keefe, and attorney R. Tice Communications 
regarding attorney A. Annstrong 
letter of 8/20/13 

8/28/13 Email from attorney R. Tice to Attorney Work Product-
attorney P. Tadlock and paralegal Internal Legal Dept. 
C. Sartain regarding 8128/lJletter Communication 
from attorney A. Armstrong 
(attached) 

8/28/13 Email from director W. McDonald Attorney/Client 
5 
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35. 

36. 

37. 

38. 

39. 

40. 

41. 

42. 

43. 

Mgr/r £stampk 1\ Fdrral £xPresI CorporatiDIf 
Defendant's Log of Privileged DocumcolJ 

(lUvl,od 111711015) 

I . Bowman, directorW. Communication, Attorney 
McDonald. manager R. Fisher with Work Product-Internal 
cc to auoraey P. Tadlock, paralegal Legal Department 
C.SutUo ... d~rT. Onma Communication 

, Estabrook case uodatr: 
8/23/13 Email frora attorney p, Tadlock to Attorney Work Product-

attomey R, Tiee regarding draft Intemol Legal D<pt. 
respon,e letter to attorney A. Communication 
Annstro •• lat1achedl 

8/23-26/13 Emails between attorney R, Tice Attomey/Oicut 
and SVP and attamcy R. O'Keefe, Communicati01l5 .. Internal 
SVP p, Cassel, VP and attorney J, Legal Department 
Maxwell, VP 1. Bowman, and Communications 
attorney P. Tadlock regarding Tice 
8/23/13 loller (at1achedl 

8126/13 Email between assistant 8. Attorney Work Product-
Hanisou and SVP and attorney R. lnlernal Legal D<pl 
O'Keefe BI1d VP BDd attorocy I , ComullUlicatioo 
MaxweU and attomcy R. Ticc 
regarding attorney A. Armstrong 
8I20111Ieuer'i;ttaehedl 

8116-27/13 Emaib between VP J. Bowman Attorney Client 
and. attorney R. Tice with cc to Communication, Attorney 
directors W. McDonald and j, Work Product -Internal 
Pearsoo; managm R. Fisher, N, Legal Dcpanmcnt 
Capias, and A. Antonian; attomey Communications 
S. Williams, pualcgala M. Miller 
and C. Sartain regarding Estabrook 

. gricv .... Ie_ (at1aehed) 
8127-28/13 Emails between VP and attorney J. Attorney Work Product-

Maxwell and anomeya R. l1ce and Intemal Legal Dept 
P. Tadlock rcgardlog attorney A. CommunicationS 
Annstro •• 8127113 1""" 

8128113 Emaits between attorney R. Tice Attorney Wolk Product 
and paralegal M. MiUer regarm.g lnlemal Legal Dept 
Estabrook mevance Communications 

8128/!l EmaiLs between assistant B. Attoroey Worle Product-
Harrison, SVP and attorney R Internal Legal Dept 
O'Keefe, and attorney R. Tice Communications 
regarding attorney A. Arnutrong 
letter of 8120113 

8128/13 Email from BUoIUCY R. Tice to Attorney Work Producl-
attorney P. Tadlockund paralegal tnternal Legal Depl 
C. Sartalo regarm.g 8128/11lettcr Communication 
from attorney A. Armstrong 

~{.ttu:h'lll 
8128/13 Email frnm directorW, McDonald Attornev/Client 
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44. 

Mark Estabrook v. Federal Exol'ess Corporation 
Defendant•s Log of Privileged Documents 

(Revised 2/17/2615) 

to attorney R. Tice regarding Communication -Internal 
Estabrook lS.D Legal Department 

Communication 
9/18-19114 Emails between manager R. Fisher Attorney/Client 

and attorney R. Tice with cc to VP Communication, Attorney 
J. Bowman, director W. Work Product- Internal 
McDonald, attorney P. Tadlock, Legal Department 
and paralegal M. Miller regarding Communications 
Estabrook case update 

C-50 

44. 

Mark Ertgbrook II. Federal .£muss Corporation 
DdtDdant's Log orPrivUcged Documents 

(Revlsl!d 211112015) 

to attorney R. Tice regarding Communication· Internal 
Estabrook I S.D LegalI>epanmnent 

Communication 
9/18·19/14 Emails between manager R.. Fisher Attomcy/Clir:ot 

and attorney R. Tice with cc to VP Communication, Attorney 
J. Bowman, director W. Work Product - Tnternal 
McDonald, attorney P. Tadlock, Legal Departmc., 
and paralegal M. Miller regarding Communications 
Estabrook case !l~Jc 
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FDX 4-000021

Fro.m: 
Se1111t: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

r:.~·Todd,· 

-!From: William McDonald 

Rob Fisher 
MondaY,. August 05, 2013 2:58 PM 
Todd Ondra 
Rob Fisher; Mitch Matheny 
FW: Fred Smith 

$e~t: ('.1onday, August 05,2013 2:12 PI"! 
'To.: Mark Estabrook 
Cc: Rob Fisher; Todd Ondra; Robb Tice; Jim Bowman 
SMbject: F\1\f: fred Smith 

·I have read your email and have some concerns about the issue you rBised. I would like for you to meet with your Fleet 
·;Captain, Robb Fisher, as well as the Director of Corporate Security, Todd Ondra. I will .have Rob contact you to arrange 

this meeting. Until that time I have directed that you be removed from flight status, with pay (NOQ): 

I hope that in this way we will be able to resolve your concerns. 

Thanks for your patience, 

Bill 

·- ·· -· capt:arn-Wiflfam--McDon-aict - -·---~-------·-· ···- ·----- ­
System Chief Pilot 
Managing Director/Flight Operations 

Office: 901.224.5525 
Mobile: 901.326.4175 

From: Cargo Pilot [maf!to:ce;rCJoDilot((DamaH. c:om] 

Setrnfl:: Sunday, August 04, 2013 08:00 Al\1 
To: William McDonald 
Siu~ject: Fred Smith 

Bill, 

1 

- --· ··· -·---~--····· -·--·-·--·-····· ····· · -··--·-- .. · - · ·--··- ------·· -··-··-

From: 
!iieli1t: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Rob Fisher 
Mondax; August 05, 2013 2:58 PM 
Todd Ondra 
Rob Fisher; Mitch Matheny 
FW: Fred Smith 

r . :::-:e t~, _ -g~ :; -c fG. i' g WE:; .::: - ~ .: ... : .. " .. " , .. !' ill v·/,)t i 1\=5 Y c':": ':0 r.:hE :::;~ V''::::'::- 3\'c l!;; :::, jE:-~' f:J:- ~ :';~; ~etir;g 'Jllith ~v~ a ;-k E5t=b-~-':J·: j.:, :f 
\leu coub g~VE r.-;e sorn·= d~y5. 2nd t [:nes that ),OL' V!Guid be 2V2 ~! c:b!E over .=.: h-e :! ~xt week, n[ t.~u~ n c00rciinet e wi th 

li'rom: William McDonald 
Sent: f>1onday, August 05, 2013 2:12 Pf"1 
''1''0.: Mark Estabrook 
Cc: Rob Fisher; Todd Ondra; Robb Tice; Jim Bowman 
$!IIiliject: FVV:Fred Smith 

M.ark, 

I have read your email and have some concerns about the issue you raised. I would like for you to meet with your Fleet 
" Captain, Robb Fisher, as well as the Director of Corporate Security, Todd Ondra. I will have Rob contact you to arrange 

this meeting. Until that time I have directed that you be removed from flight status, with pay (NOQ). 

I hope that in this way we will be able to resolve your concerns. 

Thanks for your patience, 

Bill 

captafiiWifliam McDon-aia -- ------... -----­
System Chief Pilot 
Managing Director/Flight Operations 

Office: 901.224.5525 
Mobile: 901.326.4175 

!From: Cargo Pilot [meiito;c3!'JODflot(ii)omaH.com] 

Sellt : Sundal', August 04, 2013 08:00 A~1 
To: William McDonald 
Siubjed!:: Fred Smith 

Bill, 

-_._--. - - --

1. 

f 
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FDX 4-000022

I need to talk to Fred. It has nothing to do with Flight Ops or you. It deals with something related to 9-11. I did 
my best to protect the company and reported as much as I could through Bill Henrickson when I was t..he 
Security Chairman at ALP A. Ask Fred to call me on my cell but realize I tum it offwhen I sleep. I am about to 
close iny eyes and call it a day. 

Mark Esta~rook 
c 901-230-4933 
H 512-772-1605 

2 

I need to talk to Fred. It has nothing to do with Flight Ops or you. It deals with something related to 9-11. I did 
my best to protect the company and reported as much as I could through Bill Henrickson when I was the 
Security Chairman at ALP A Ask Fred to call me on my cell but realize I turn it off when I sleep. I am about to 
close iny eyes and call it a day. 

Mark Estabrook 
C 901-230-4933 
H 512-772-1605 

2 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 124     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“CX 12” 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 125     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



cany ..arcets ~ent to u.:s. Were Eyed as Dry Run- NYTimes.com http:/lwww.nytimes.com/2010/ll/02Jworld/02tenor.html?_r=O ... 

laCS 

This copy Is for your personal, noncommercial use only. You can order presentaUon-ready copies for 
distribution to your colleagues, clients or customers here or use the "Reprints" tool that appears next 
to any article. VIsit www.nytreprints.com for samples and additlonal informallon. Order a reprint of 
this article now. 
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Earlier Flight May Have Been Dry 
Run for Plotters 
By SCOTT SHANE and ROBERT F. WORTH 

WASHINGTON - American intelligence officials in September intercepted 
several packages containing books, papers, CDs and other household items 
shipped to Chicago from Yemen and considered the possibility that the parcels 
might be a test run for a terrorist attack, two officials said Monday night. 

Now the intelligence officials believe that the shipments, whose hour-by-hour 
locations could be tracked by the sender on the shippers' Web sites, may have 
been used to plan the route and timing for two printer cartridges packed with 
explosives that were sent from Yemen and intercepted in Britain and Dubai on 
Friday. 

In September, after American counterterrorism agencies received information 
linking the packages to Al Qaeda in the Arabian Peninsula, the terror network's 
branch in Yemen, intelligence officers stopped the shipments in transit and 
searched them, said the officials, who would discuss the operation only on the 
condition of anonymity. They found no explosives, and the packages were 
permitted to continue to what appeared to be "random addresses" with no 
connection to the terrorist group in Chicago. 

"At the time, people obviously took notice and- knowing of the terrorist group's 
interest in aviation - considered the possibility that AQAP might be exploring the 
logistics of the cargo system," one of the officials said, referring to Al Qaeda in the 
Arabian Peninsula. 

The apparent test run might have permitted the plotters to estimate when cargo 
planes carrying the doctored toner cartridges would be over Chicago or another 
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Earlier Flight May Have Been Dry 
Run for Plotters 
By SCOTT SHANE and ROBERT F. WORTH 

WASHINGTON - American intelligence officials in September intercepted 
several packages containing books, papers, CDs and other household items 
shipped to Chicago from Yemen and considered the possihility that the parcels 
might be a test run for a terrorist attack, two officials said Monday night. 

Now the intelligence officials believe that the shipments, whose hour-by-hour 
locations could be tracked by the sender on the shippers' Weh sites, may have 
been used to plan the route and timing for two printer cartridges packed with 
explosives that were sent from Yemen and intercepted in Britain and Dubai on 
Friday. 

In September, after American counterterrorism agencies received information 
linking the packages to Al Qaeda in the Arabian Peninsula, the terror network's 
branch in Yemen, intelligence officers stopped the shipments in transit and 
searched them, said the officials, who would discuss the operation ouly on the 
condition of anonymity. They found no explosives, and the packages were 
permitted to continue to what appeared to be "random addresses' with no 
connection to the terrorist group in Chicago. 

"At the time, people obviously took notice and - koowing of the terrorist group's 
interest in aviation - considered the possibility that AQAP might be exploring the 
logistics of the cargo system,' one of the officials said, referring to Al Qaeda in the 
Arabian Peninsula. 

The apparent test run might have permitted the plotters to estimate when cargo 
planes carrying the doctored toner cartridges would be over Chicago or another 
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city. That would conceivably enable them to set timers on the two devices to set 
off explosions where they would cause the greatest damage. 

The September shipments were first reported by ABC News on Monday night, 
which also noted that Inspire, the English-language magazine of Al Qaeda in the 
Arabian Peninsula, recently published a picture of the Chicago skyline. 

One of the officials said that when the American intelligence agents received a tip 
from Saudi intelligence officials last week that bombs might be on cargo flights to 
Chicago from Yemen, analysts "recalled the incident and factored it in to our 
government's very prompt response." 

"Both events reflect solid intelligence work," the official said. 

On Monday, Germany, France and Britain said they had banned cargo shipments 
from Yemen, following a similar move by the United States. Britain prohibited 
passengers from carrying printer cartridges aboard flights, and Germany halted 
passenger flights from Yemen as well. Many countries have stepped up cargo 
screening, but no additional bombs have been found. 

After the recovery of the unexploded printer cartridges in Dubai and Britain on 
Friday, Yemeni and American intelligence officials have stepped up the hunt for 
Ibrahim Hassan al-Asiri, 28, a Saudi who is believed to be the top technical expert 
of AI Qaeda in the Arabian Peninsula. They believe he designed the underwear 
explosives that failed to detonate aboard a Detroit-bound airliner last Dec. 25, as 
well as the body-cavity bomb that killed his younger brother, Abdullah al-Asiri, in 
a failed attempt last year to assassinate the top Saudi counterterrorism official, 
Prince Mohammed bin Nayef. 

· In a related development, a Yemeni official in Washington said late Monday night 
that prosecutors in Yemen intend to charge the American-born cleric Anwar 
al-Awlaki later this week with "the crime of promoting violence and the killing of 
foreigners." The official, who asked not to be named, said the case would likely be 
sent to a specialized criminal court in Sana, the capital. 

No evidence has been made public linking Mr. Awlaki to the printer cartridge 
bombs, but intelligence officials believe he played a role in the failed airliner 
bombing last December, and he has publicly called for more attacks on the United 
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city. That would conceivably enable them to set timers on the two devices to set 
off explosions wbere they would cause the greatest damage. 

The September shipments were first reported by MC News on Monday night, 
which also noted that Inspire, the English-language magazine of AI Qaeda in the 
Arabian Peninsula, recently published a picture of the Chicago skyline. 

One of the officials said that when the American intelligence agents received a tip 
from Saudi intelligence officials last week that bombs might be on cargo fligbts to 
Chicago from Yemen, analysts "recalled the incident and factored it in to our 
government's very prompt response." 

"Both events reflect solid intelligence work," the official said. 

On Monday, Germany, France and Britain said they bad banned cargo shipments 
from Yemen, following a similar move by the United States. Britain prohibited 
passengers from carrying printer cartridges aboard flights, and Germany halted 
passenger flights from Yemen as well. Many countries bave stepped up cargo 
screening, but no additional bombs have been found. 

After the recovery of the unexploded printer cartridges in Dubai and Britain on 
Friday, Yemeni and American intelligence officials bave stepped up the hunt for 
Ibrahim Hassan al-Asiri, 28, a Saudi wbo is believed to be the top technical expert 
of AI Qaeda in the Arabian Peninsula. They believe he designed the underwear 
explosives that failed to detonate aboard a Detroit-bound airliner last Dec. 25, as 
well as the body-cavity bomb that killed his younger brother, Abdullah al-Asiri, in 
a failed attempt last year to assassinate the top Saudi counterterrorism official, 
Prince Mohammed bin Nayef. 

In a related development, a Yemeni official in Washington said late Monday night 
that prosecutors in Yemen intend to charge the American-born cleric Anwar 
al-Awlaki later this week with "the crime of promoting violence and the killing of 
foreigners." The official, who asked not to be named, said the case would likely be 
sent to a specialized criminal court in Sana, the capital. 

No evidence has been made public linking Mr. Awlaki to the printer cartridge 
bombs, but intelligence officials believe be played a role in the failed airliner 
bombing last December, and he has publicly called for more attacks on the United 
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States. Early this year, he became the first American citizen to be placed on the 
Central Intelligence Agency's list of terrorists approved for targeted killing. 

On Monday, information about the latest failed plot continued to emerge. An 
American official said that the addresses on the packages were outdated 
addresses for Jewish institutions in Chicago. But in place of the names of the 
institutions, the packages bore the names of historical figures from the Crusades 
and the Spanish Inquisition, the official said. The addresses are one reason that 
investigators now believe the plan may have been to blow up the planes, since 
there were no longer synagogues at the Chicago locations. 

Explosives experts with the Federal Bureau of Investigation have been sent to 
London and Dubai to inspect the printer bombs, and technicians planned to 
"reverse-engineer'' the bombs to understand their construction and purpose, 
Janet Napolitano, the homeland security secretary, told National Public Radio. 
The Yemeni president, Ali Abdullah Saleh, said Sunday that he would keep up 
pressure on Al Qaeda, which he said had ldlled 70 members of the Yemeni Anny 
and security forces during the past four weeks. 

American counterterrorism officials, meanwhile, said they were taking a new look 
at the crash of a United Parcel Service cargo plane in Dubai on Sept. 3 in light of 
the explosives plot, which used both U.P .S. and FedEx. An investigation of the 
crash, which involved an onboard fire and killed the two pilots, found no evidence 
of an explosion. 

New details about the two explosive packages were disclosed by security officials 
in several countries, who discussed the continuing investigation on condition of 
anonymity. The explosive powder, pentaerythritol tetranitrate, or PETN, was 
found inside toner cartridges that were themselves inside HP Laser Jet P2055 
printers, according to officials from Germany and the United .Arab Emirates. 

German security officials also offered new details about the two bombs, one of 
which was on a plane that made a stop in Cologne. They said that bomb, which 
was found at the East Midlands Airport near Nottingham, England, contained 
400 grams, or about 14 ounces, of PETN, one of the most powerful explosives 
known. The one found in Dubai contained 300 grams ofPETN, the officials said. 

Neal Langerman, an expert on explosives at Advanced Chemical Safety, a 
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States. Early this year, he became the first American citizen to be placed on the 
Central Intelligence Agency's Jist of terrorists approved for targeted killing. 

On Monday, information about the latest failed plot continued to emerge. An 
American official said that the addresses on the packages were outdated 
addresses for Jewish institutions in Chicago. But in place of the names of the 
institutions, the packages bore the names ofhistoricaJ figures from the Crusades 
and the Spanish Inquisition, the official said. The addresses are one reason that 
investigators now believe the plan may have been to blow up the planes, since 
there were no longer synagogues at the Chicago locations. 

Explosives experts with the Federal Bureau of Investigation have been sent to 
London and Dubai to inspect the printer bombs, and technicians planned to 
"reverse-engineer" the bombs to understand their construction and purpose, 
Janet Napolitano, the homeland security secretary, told National Public Radio. 
The Yemeni president, Ali Abdullah Saleh, said Sunday that he would keep up 
pressure on AI Qaeda, which he said had JdlJed 70 members of the Yemeni Army 
and security forces during the past four weeks. 

American counterterrorism officials, meanwhile, said they were taking a new look 
at the crash of a United Parcel Service cargo plane in Dubai on Sept. 3 in light of 
the explosives plot, which used both U.P.S. and FedEx. An investigation of the 
crash, which involved an onboard fire and JdlJed the two pilots, found no evidence 
of an explosion. 

New details about the two explosive packages were disclosed by security officials 
in several countries, who discussed the continning investigation on condition of 
anonymity. The explosive powder, pentaerythrltol tetranitrate, or PETN, was 
found inside toner cartridges that were themselves inside HP LaserJ et P2055 
printers, according to officials from Germany and the United Arab Emirates. 

German security officials also offered new details about the two bombs, one of 
which was on a plane that made a stop in Cologne. They said that bomb, which 
was found at the East Midlands Airport near Nottingham, England, contained 
400 grams, or about 14 ounces, of PETN, one of the most powerful explosives 
known. The one found in Dubai contained 300 grams ofPETN, the officials said. 

Neal Langerman, an expert on explosives at Advanced Chemical Safety, a 
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consulting firm in San Diego, said 14 ounces of PETN is the equivalent of five 
pounds of TNT. He said that a one-pound stick of TNT would level a house. 

Both bombs contained circuit boards from cell phones, but the phone parts 
appeared to be used as timers, because the so-called SIM cards necessary to 
receive calls were missing, American officials said. Their construction appeared to 
support the conclusion, announced Sunday by John 0. Brennan, the White House 
counterterrorism adviser, that the bombs were designed to blow up aboard the 
aircraft. 

At least one of the packages was initially carried out of Yemen on two Qatar 
Ainvays passenger flights, and it was unclear whether they were intended to take 
down those passenger jets or the U.P .S. and FedEx cargo planes scheduled later to 
carry them to the United States. 

An official familiar with the investigation said that both packages bore the name 
of a Yemeni student, Hanan al-Samawi, as the sender. Yemeni officials arrested 
Ms. Samawi but released her after determining that the packages were dropped 
off at the U .P .S. and Fed.Ex offices in Sana, the Yemeni capital, not by Ms. Samawi 
but by another woman using her identity. 

At the core of the shipping plot, American officials believe, was Mr. Asiri, the 
suspected Qaeda bomb maker. Saudi news accounts say he is the son of a Saudi 
military man and grew up in a religious family in the Saudi capital, Riyadh; 
studied chemistry at King Saud University, and later joined a militant cell hoping 
to fight the Americans in Iraq. 

But he does not appear to have fought in either Iraq or Mghanistan. He appears 
to have gotten his training after moving to Yemen around 2005. 

Scott Shane reported from Washington, and Robert F. Worth from Beirut, Lebanon. Reporting 

was contributed by Michael Slackmanfrom Berlin; John F. Burns from London; Charlie Savage, 
Matthew L. Wald and Mark Mazzetti from Washington; and Joseph Berger from New York. 
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consulting firm in San Diego, said 14 ounces of PETN is the equivalent of live 
pounds of TNT. He said that a one-pound stick of TNT would level a house. 

Both bombs contained circuit boards from ceJlphones, but the phone parts 
appeared to be used as timers, because the so-called SIM cards necessary to 
receive calls were missing, American officials said. Their construction appeared to 
support the conclusion, announced Sunday by John O. Brennan, the White House 
counterterrorism adviser, that the bombs were designed to blow up aboard the 
aircraft. 

At least one of the packages was initially carried out of Yemen on two Qatar 
Airways passenger flights, and it was unclear whether they were intended to take 
down those passenger jets or the U.P.S. and FedEx cargo planes sclteduled later to 
carry them to the United States. 

An official familiar with the investigation s;rid that both packages bore the name 
of a Yemeni student, Hanan al-Samawi, as the sender. Yemeni officials arrested 
Ms. Samawi but released her after determining that the packages were dropped 
off at the U .P.S. and FedEx offices in Sana, the Yemeni capital, not by Ms. Samawi 
but by another woman using her identity. 

At the core of the shipping plot, American officials believe, was Mr. Asiri, the 
suspected Qaeda bomb maker. Saudi news accounts say he is the son of a Saudi 
military man and grew up in a religious family in the Saudi capital, Riyadh; 
studied chemistry at King Saud University, and later joined a militant cell boping 
to fight the Americans in Iraq. 

But he does not appear to have fought in either Iraq or Afghanistan. He appears 
to have gotten bis training after moving to Yemen around 2005. 

Scott Shane reported/rom Washington, an.dRobert F. Worthfrom Beirut, Lebanon. Reporting 
was contributed by Michael SlackmonfromBerIin; John F.Burnsjrom Lon.don; Charlie Savage, 
Matthew L. Wald and MarkMazzettifrom Washing/on; and Joseph Berger from New York. 
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ME 926

F~OEX PI LOTS ASSOCIATION 

VIA rACS_II\I IL E il..• fEU F.XTBACKI ~G N71h)J 6.a0064+-' 

Se~tenber 20. 200 I 

Capt Bruce Cheever 
Fed~ral Express Cetporahon 
Bu lding C 
3131 Democrat Ro:td 
Memphis, TN la118 

Dea1 Bruce, 

U.IZI I\Irlt~ l'."l."·ll-,. ~" :t •M.-n•l*"'- r N1'11JII 
(',4)1) HU11'\ l.flll'l..'liH-'11'1 

·~~~ 4"1117 ~2-(I(J97,1t~; IM'I.H 
r•r.lll. lrdr.p.o9kol~~:,,, .. ~ "''II 

l"'f< ...... fit,)-,pt~- ..... , 

Curing the last 24~hours it has been brought 10 our attention lhat package trackinglnformoliOn a staple in 
FedEx customer sei'VIce may t:-e a source of W'ltel ige.nce gal.tleMg for tononsts. As you know, the FedE)I 
website allows Cu&!omers to track their package oy S.:mply lnpuntng an aet t:IIJ number In~ the system 01 
&s.krg custom-et set"V>Ce il-fler.ts on the te..ephone ~n<i a1 wa .. -up eounttrs to Pf'OV'Oe d-e e:xaet loca:JOn of 
the•r package 

AJthoJgh our company has pno!!d •:se,f on p~'ovicl'lng as much •ntormalon as poss. b ;e 10 11s customers 
that service should be reeva'uated in llghl of the events of September l l, 2001 

It goes withoul $Oylng lhat tre biggest threol to our a·rlinc operation IS the bomb thrta! Therefore, we 
are oskmg FedEx management to temporanly suspend tttal pon1on ot our package tracking ~f!>uare tnat 
deals w1tr, the r1ght segment 

In adcLX.n. we have .et'eady sugges:ec:t co c.pc.a.n Oua"'te Woerth and tne DOT Flight Stanc:!af'QS and 
Cert;flcatiOn task force tnat FAA n1g1-t track~ oa1a no longer be d Stf blrted to pnvate MCtOf cortrac:tors 
who tebtoadcast tttat reiJJ-hme data on the interne! We would like you-r support through your government 
liaisons on th1s Issue. as u rs anomer troublesome source of fhghl lrackmg da!a that sh®fd no longer be 
permitied In I he public arena 

rnese solutions can be done 1n short order, and cost very 1 tile to lmplerrent and nc:reases d'le safe.)' of 
out t11sht cre<Nmemblrs 

Thank you fOf youf t~tne and a~enboo •n th•S mater a!'KI l loO< fOM'afd to~ w1:n you further on the 
numerous secuuty 1:11ues thal a"ect our p1\ots 

Capt David Webb 
Pres!dert 

cc Norman M neta Secretary of Transportonon 
Ja,,e Garvey FAA Adm n striltor 
Ke tt- Me.ats Vee Cha.Jman FPA Sea..r ty Corr.m.r.ee 

Ft;DEX PILOTS ASSOCIATION 
~" '"-" _ ....... ,._ t • • ", 

c ... s-.~ 
~~.tt,~ •• ~ -, l1J1Domoa __ 

""' ..... 11< :Mile 

--

... " •. Ou, .......... " .. , .. _,_n_,._, 
, -- . 

w .,.""' ..... , ... __ ..... 0 ... "' ... _.... , .. _ .. l>otlO*<lIt-..o 
"'"' __ ....... -....., ~ 01". -.t. 01 So$mI>o< t! 200t 

~ WO. _ ,,)III; Illal ... "'IIOHt '"_ III "'" ___ '" ... .....,.,..... Thoo""o._ 
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ME 882

~~l~D~~X PIL01.,S ASSOCIATI()N 

October 18, 2001 

I tifi~) 1\. it h' P.u k\\;t\. Sunt..· 10:.?• \kmplu .... I '\ '{X I :20 
(110 I) 7.i2-H71'l 1-XXX-:l/2- n:J<l 

b, (110 I) i i2-'lO'l7 1-XXX-.i 12-XX:ll 
t.·-m;u(: h:dt.·\.p<t tLft-ck\jU)ot.oll{ 

hnp: ''"" .lc.:dt."\Ptlol.on~ 

VIA FACSIMILE AND FEDEX AIRBILL #792682995755 

Capt. Jack Lewis 
Federal Express Corporation 
3131 Democrat Road, Building C 
Memphis, TN 38118 

Re: FPA Security Committee Concerns 

Dear Jack, 

The Security Committee wishes to thank you for arranging the meeting between FPA 
and your representative on Tuesday; we are pleased to report that progress is being 
made towards implementing a Security Feedback Report (SFR) that will be useful in 
identifying and addressing the security concerns of our crewforce. FPA hopes that this 
progress continues and that we get this system up and running at the earliest possible 
opportunity. However, FedEx management has yet to address other security concerns 
that our crewmembers and the FPA Security Committee have previously voiced and 
identified. 

There appears to be a vast difference between FPA and FedEx concerning the urgency 
of addressing these issues. Developing and implementing procedures and policies 
which address security issues in a way that the pilots can support is complex and 
difficult. We have asked to be included in that process so that we can assist you and 
expedite the formation and implementation of security policies in the post-September 11 
attack environment. You stated on Friday that you wanted us to be included in the 
formation of a standardized security program that would benefit everyone concerned ; 
however, we have not received written responses to any of our previous queries. 
Attached to this letter are samples of the concerns that we and our members have 
identified as serious issues_ There are many more issues that need to be resolved . 

As you confirmed in our October 12 meeting, FedEx flight operations are conducted 
under FAA Security Directive Part 108. Under Part 108, the PIC is the "Senior Security 
Coordinator." As such, he has a valid need to know, and he should be familiar with the 
security plans and directives in place. When will we see the plan? The Security 
Committee is ready to assist in the dissemination of the relevant parts of that plan to the 
pilots. 

FEDEX PIL()TS ASS()CIA'l'ION 

October 18. 2001 

]1,1,'1 "- 1111\ f'.ul..\\,I', "11110 ,to.!- \kIUplll", J-' "lXIJII 

('10\1 i,j~..}l71'1 I ~XXd7~.1 ~:l'l 
b, j'lu1l7.'L·'III'I; J.H,xH,..,i 1~·Ss.H 

\ -1\1,H1: ltfk\ll.I U Ink\]III. 1t.'I1~ 

,"',,: \."" Ink\l/ll.tI.llI~ 

VIA FACSIMILE AND FEDEX AIRBILL #792682995755 

Capt Jack Lewis 
Federal Express Corporation 
3131 Democrat Road. Building C 
Memphis. TN 38118 

Re: FPA Security Committee Concerns 

Dear Jack. 

The Security Committee wishes to thank you for arranging the meeting between FPA 
and your representative on Tuesday; we are pleased to report that progress is being 
made towards implementing a Security Feedback Report (SFR) that will be useful in 
identifying and addressing the security concerns of our crewforce. FPA hopes that this 
progress continues and that we get this system up and running at the earliest possible 
opportunity. However. FedEx management has yet to address other security concerns 
that our crewmembers and the FPA Security Committee have previously voiced and 
identified . 

There appears to be a vast difference between FPA and Fed Ex concerning the urgency 
of addressing these issues. Developing and implementing procedures and policies 
which address security issues in a way that the pilots can support is complex and 
difficult We have asked to be included in that process so that we can assist you and 
expedite the formation and implementation of security policies in the post-September 11 
attack environment You stated on Friday that you wanted us to be included in the 
formation of a standardized security program that would benefit everyone concerned ; 
however. we have not received written responses to any of our previous queries. 
Attached to this letter are samples of the concerns that we and our members have 
identified as serious issues. There are many more issues that need to be resolved . 

As you confirmed in our October 12 meeting . Fed Ex flight operations are conducted 
under FAA Security Directive Part 108. Under Part 108. the PIC is the "Senior Security 
Coordinator. " As such , he has a valid need to know. and he should be familiar with the 
security plans and directives in place. When will we see the plan? The Security 
Committee is ready to assist in the dissemination of the relevant parts of that plan to the 
pilots . 
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We agree that inclusion of FPA in a standardized security program is the best way to 
ensure the safe and orderly conduct of our flight operations. We need to meet with you 
regularly to achieve that goal. Our crewforce has expressed frustration at what they 
perceive as a lack of action in management; they are growing impatient for results. We 
implore you not to let this perception become a reality. Our goal should be to remedy 
these problems internally and in a timely manner. We would appreciate your written 
response to the attached questions as soon as possible. Further delay in responding to 
these issues will create an environment of mistrust. 

As always, you can contact me at any time, day or night. We hope that we can move 
forward on these critical issues. In closing, I want to compliment you on a story we just 
received from CNN regarding your application to the FAA to bypass normal design 
requirements so that you can quickly modify and strengthen our cockpit doors. I only 
wish we had participated in that design process and didn't have to hear about it on 
CNN. 

Sincerely, 

9NI~ 
Capt. Mark S. Estabrook 
FPA Security Committee 

cc: Capt. David Webb, FPA President 
Darrell Green, FPA Legal Counsel 
Capt. David Harvell, Regional Chief Pilot 

We agree that inclusion of FPA in a standardized security program IS the best way to 
ensure the safe and orderly conduct of our flight operations. We need to meet with you 
regularly to achieve that goal Our crewforce has expressed frustration at what Ihey 
perceive as a lack of action In management; they are growing Imparient for results We 
Implore you not to tet thiS perception become a reality Our goal should be to remedy 
these problems Internally and In a timely manner We would appreciate your written 
response to the attached questions as soon as pOSSible . Further delay In responding to 
these Issues Will create an enVlronmellt of mistrust 

As always, you can contact me at any time, day or mght We hope that we can move 
forward on these cntlcallssues In clOSing , I want to compliment you on a story we Just 
received from CNN regarding your apolication 10 Ihe FAA to bypass normal deSIgn 
reqUIrements so that you can qUickly modify and strengthen our cockpit doors I only 
Wish we had partiCipated In that deslg'1 process and didn't have to hear about it on 
CNN. 

Smcerely 

~ A(;6:{ 
/~ J:l"4 
Capl ark S Estabrook 
FPA Security Committee 

cc Capt DaVid Webb, FPA President 
Darrell Green, FPA Legal Counsel 
Capt DaVid Harvell . Regional Chief Pilot 
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Attachment to October 18, 2001 Letter to Capt. Jack Lewis 

1. What is management's position on our pilots being certified to carry weapons should 
the law permit it? 

2. How fast can we be supplied with and receive training on the use of restraint 
devices, such as "flexi-cuffs," in the event we need to restrain a hijacker? 

3. What is management doing to get restricted-access technology (e.g. , IDS with 
electronic data chips, retinal scanning access, thumbprints) for all personnel who 
access not only the cockpit, jumpseats, and passenger seats, but the AOA as well? 
What is the timeline? 

4. What are management's proposals for relocating/securing the crash axe so that the 
pilots have immediate access, but jumpseaters do not? 

5. Why is jumpseat administration still scheduling non-pilot jumpseaters in the cockpit 
seats? 

6. What levels of background investigations are being completed on non-pilot 
jumpseaters and passengers? What company is conducting those background 
investigations? Are they receiving input from the FBI , CIA, and INS in addition to a 
normal criminal check? 

7. On what authority does management schedule non-pilot jumpseaters on the aircraft? 
If you are relying on FAA guidance or directives, please provide a photocopy of the 
FAA authority to schedule non-pilot jumpseaters. 

8. Assuming that management is lawfully scheduling non-pilots on our cockpit 
jumpseats and cabin passenger seats, will management require a minimum period 
of employment, such as five years, prior to extending those privileges to company 
employees? 

9. When will corporate security begin escorting animal handlers on all flights? 

10. What steps have been taken in screening cargo at the point of origin (i.e., customer 
service counters, couriers, and outlying ramp stations)? 

11 . What specific policies and procedures referenced above deal with: 

a. Open package procedures at point of origin 
b. Bomb wipe test 
c. Bomb sniff test 
d. Bomb particle test 
e. Bomb x-ray 

12. What is being done to ensure that Fed Ex security personnel at each AOA entry point 
are properly screened and qualified? Do any have criminal records? Are any 
employed under work visas? 

13. Are all contract employees (i .e., caterers, mechanics, and anyone else who pierces 
aircraft security on regular basis) receiving background investigations prior to their 
receiving access to the AOA? 

14. What levels of background checks (e.g., Interpol, CIA. the State Department, INS, 
FBI) are being conducted for all foreign employees? 

Attachment to October 18, 2001 Letter to Capt. Jack Lewis 

1. What is management's position on our pilots being certified to carry weapons should 
the law permit it? 

2. How fast can we be supplied with and receive training on the use of restraint 
devices, such as "flexi-cuffs ," in the event we need to restrain a hijacker? 

3. What is management doing to get restricted-access technology (e .g., IDS with 
electronic data chips, retinal scanning access, thumbprints) for all personnel who 
access not only the cockpit , jumpseats, and passenger seats , but the AOA as well? 
What is the timeline? 

4. What are management's proposals for relocating/securing the crash axe so that the 
pilots have immediate access, but jumpseaters do not? 

5. Why is jumpseat administration still scheduling non-pilot jumpseaters in the cockpit 
seats? 

6. What levels of background investigations are being completed on non-pilot 
jumpseaters and passengers? What company is conducting those background 
investigations? Are they receiving input from the FBI , CIA, and INS in addition to a 
normal criminal check? 

7. On what authority does management schedule non-pilot jumpseaters on the aircraft? 
If you are relying on FAA guidance or directives, please provide a photocopy of the 
FAA authority to schedule non-pilot jumpseaters 

8. Assuming that management is lawfully scheduling non-pilots on our cockpit 
jumpseats and cabin passenger seats, will management require a minimum period 
of employment, such as five years, prior to extending those privileges to company 
employees? 

9. When will corporate security begin escorting animal handlers on all flights? 

10. What steps have been taken in screening cargo at the point of origin (i .e., customer 
service counters, couriers , and outlying ramp stations)? 

11 What specific poliCies and procedures referenced above deal with : 

a. Open package procedures at point of origin 
b. Bomb wipe test 
c. Bomb sniff test 
d. Bomb particle test 
e. Bomb x-ray 

12. What is being done to ensure that FedEx security personnel at each AOA entry point 
are properly screened and qualified? Do any have criminal records? Are any 
employed under work visas? 

13.Are all contract employees (i.e., caterers , mechanics, and anyone else who pierces 
aircraft security on regular basis) receiving background investigations prior to their 
receiving access to the AOA? 

14. What levels of background checks (e.g., Interpol , CIA, the State Department, INS, 
FBI) are being conducted for all foreign employees? 
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15. When will management remove flight tracking data from public access, such as 
customer service telephone assistance, websites, and all other sources? 

16. When will management standardize flight-planning procedures to avoid areas of 
conflict around the globe, and when will those procedures be given to FPA? Will 
management facilitate the meeting of FPA Security Committee members with 
GOCC, so that we can coordinate flight planning around areas of concern? 

17. What is being done to ensure restricted access to AOA by properly qualified and 
screened security personnel? When will management search all ramp employees to 
the same degree that pilot jumpseaters are currently being searched? When will 
management verify and crosscheck the identification of all non-pilot employees who 
access the AOA? 

18. What are the design specifications of the "bar mechanism" that management has 
selected to secure the cockpit door? When can we inspect it? When will 
management begin installing these devices fleet-wide? When will management 
finish installing these devices? Assuming that the doors are all modified and closed , 
how does management expect pilots to defend themselves against attack when they 
are using the restroom or preparing meals? 

19. What is management doing to improve the bomb blast protection of our aircraft and 
cargo cans? Can we expect to be active participants in establishing the design and 
selection criteria for these materials? What is the timeline for improving our bomb 
blast protection? 

20. Will on board military security personnel escort us during CRAF flights? 

21 . When can the pilots expect to receive permission to carry personal utility tools and 
knives, considering the fact that they have access to a deadly crash axe in the 
cockpit? 

22. When will we standardize, improve, and disseminate procedures for emergency 
communications to and from the pilots during pre-flight and flight operations? Why 
are some crews not being informed of bomb threats, considering that the PIC is the 
Senior Security Coordinator and that not advising the PIC violates Part 1 08? When 
will crews begin receiving critical system-wide threat announcements via AGARS 
and radio communications? Do you intend to include FPA in the revision of current 
notification procedures? 

23. 1n the event that our pilots are exposed to biochemical agents, what procedures are 
in place domestically and internationally to ensure that pilots are immediately notified 
of such exposure and receive immediate and effective medical treatment, as well as 
evacuation from foreign countries? Is management conducting research regarding 
the threat of airborne biochemical agents in a pressurized aircraft? Do our aircraft 
have the filtration capability to trap these agents? When will management begin a 
training program addressing the biochemical risks mentioned above? 

24. What procedures are in place to ensure that all of the USPS mail we carry is 
carefully screened for both biochemical agents and bombs? When will all USPS mail 
be packaged in sealed , air-tight plastic bags within shipping containers prior to 
delivery, to minimize the possible spread of biochemical agents in our pressurized 
aircraft? 

15. When will management remove flight tracking data from public access, such as 
customer service telephone assistance. websites. and all other sources? 

16. When will management standardize flight-planning procedures to avoid areas of 
conflict around the globe, and when will those procedures be given to FPA? Will 
management facilitate the meeting of FPA Security Committee members with 
GOCC . so that we can coordinate flight planning around areas of concern? 

17. What is being done to ensure restricted access to AOA by properly qualified and 
screened security personnel? When will management search all ramp employees to 
the same degree that pilot jumpseaters are currently being searched? When will 
management verify and crosscheck the identification of all non-pilot employees who 
access the AOA? 

18. What are the design specifications of the "bar mechanism" that management has 
selected to secure the cockpit door? When can we inspect it? When will 
management begin installing these devices fleet-wide? When will management 
finish installing these devices? Assuming that the doors are all modified and closed , 
how does management expect pilots to defend themselves against attack when they 
are using the restroom or preparing meals? 

19. What is management doing to improve the bomb blast protection of our aircraft and 
cargo cans? Can we expect to be active participants in establishing the design and 
selection criteria for these materials? What is the timeline for improving our bomb 
blast protection? 

20. Will onboard military security personnel escort us during CRAF flights? 

21 . When can the pilots expect to receive permission to carry personal utility tools and 
knives , considering the fact that they have access to a deadly crash axe in the 
cockpit? 

22. When will we standardize, improve, and disseminate procedures for emergency 
communications to and from the pilots during pre-flight and flight operations? Why 
are some crews not being informed of bomb threats , considering that the PIC is the 
Senior Security Coordinator and that not advising the PIC violates Part 108? When 
will crews begin receiving critical system-wide threat announcements via ACARS 
and radio communications? Do you intend to include FPA in the revision of current 
notification procedures? 

23. ln the event that our pilots are exposed to biochemical agents , what procedures are 
in place domestically and internationally to ensure that pilots are immediately notified 
of such exposure and receive immediate and effective medical treatment, as well as 
evacuation from foreign countries? Is management conducting research regarding 
the threat of airborne biochemical agents in a pressurized aircraft? Do our aircraft 
have the filtration capability to trap these agents? When will management begin a 
training program addressing the biochemical risks mentioned above? 

24. What procedures are in place to ensure that all of the USPS mail we carry is 
carefully screened for both biochemical agents and bombs? When will all USPS mail 
be packaged in sealed , air-tight plastic bags within shipping containers prior to 
delivery, to minimize the possible spread of biochemical agents in our pressurized 
aircraft? 
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Express 

Wii~•P. -..o 

"""""""" '"""""" ~ -
• 

VIA FAX 1901/752-9097 

February 26, 2002 

Captain Mark Estabrook 
FPA Security Committee Chairman 
FedEx Pilots Assoclation 
1669 Kirby Parkway, Suite 202 
Memphis, Tennessee 38120 

--lWI 3610 Hltb Cion P.o.c 
~A. hi'-'' 
~ IN3112S 

lfflt-oo. 901 U4 )151 
F.a.:!01Cltl851 Uo-.ail_....,. __ 

R.e: Security Plana for Re&umptioa of Employee & Oftline Jumpseating 

Dear Captain Estabrook: 

As I think Todd and I have indicated to you, the jumpseat plan for employees is not complete at 
this time. However, we appreciate your offer to help u.s plug any security breach we may have 
overlooked. 

r Regarding XTec and the Universal Access Smart Card, just last week a Company rep attended a 
detailed briefing provided by XTec officials. Additionally, I have forwarded the material you 
gave me to the Company people who are developing the technical support required for the pilot 
andjumpseat check-in. We want to ensure that the XTec system is adaptable to the photo I. D. 
system that we plan to utilize or if not, perhaps we can structure our system to be compatible 
the XTec system. 

By copy of this letter I will ask Todd to contact you to see if we need to postpone tomorrow's 
meeting until: 

(a) the jumpseat plan ia further along, or 
(b) the technical questions about XTec can be answered. 

Sincerely, 

FEDEX EXPRESS 

~~ 
William P. Henrikson 
Vice President 
Corporate Security 
Worldwide 

/sam 

a:: Todd Ottdra 

--,._­
~­---

F"ebnwy 26, 2002 

captain Mark Eltabrool: 
F"PA Security Corrun1nee ClIirmI.Il 
Fedh Pilotl~n 
1669 Kirby PuM1. SUite 202 
Memphis. T"'neqtJe 381:lO 

-~. ... _-­_ .. '" ... _ .. .rIO 

,-« .... -
' .. 1>\ ... . .,... J __ 

1Le: Security Plln. tor Retlumptlou ofEalpJoyee" QfDiQeJumpMadaa 

Oe&r Captain Eitabrook: 

All tblnkTodd and I h_lndieated tu you, tbejumpJUt pl&ll rorem~ Is !lOt mmpl~ al 
thb time. HowrIU, we 1P~)'01Il' offer to help 111 pl1l& any IleeUrity breach we may have 
overlooked. 

Repnfina XTee &lid the Univeru! ~ Sman Card, j lUt !.rt wf!ek a Company rep attended a 
d..,ned brictina pl'OYided by XT'ee offtc:lall. Additiollllly, I h_ forwarded the IJUlwiIlyou 
Pft me to the COmpany people who are dewlopin& the lechnical fUpport required for the pilot 
andjumpielC checlc·ln. We WlIJll tOetl5urethat tbeJITec qlltem iI adaptabJeto the photo LD. 
l)'Stem thaI we plan to uti&e or if not, perhapt we CIIJl rtruclure our I)'1Item to be mmpe.u1l1e 
theXTee I)'lIWIl . 

By copy of thU lettn I wi1J uk Todd to mntllCt)'Ou to tel! if we IIea:I to ~ tomGn'OW', 
meetin& ILD.til: 

(a) thr jU1!\PItlI1 plan b further Ilona, Of 
(b) the technical que.Uons about XT«1IltI be. answered. 

Silleetely, 

FEnD flXPR.£SS 

r'iJ4 
William P. HenriUoD 
VICe President 
Cotponote Securll)' 
Worldwide 
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William J. Logue 
Senior Vice President 
Air-Ground & Freight Services (AGFSJ 

Express VIA FedEx Express OVERNIGHT LETTER 

April 10, 2002 

Captain David Webb 
President 
FedEx Pilots Association 
1669 Kirby Parkway 
Suite 202 
Memphis, TN 38120 

SUBJECT: JumpseaUSecurity Issues 

Dear Captain Webb: 

Delivery Code 7043 
3610 Hacks Cross Road 
Building A. Suite 3110 
Memphis. TN 38125 

Telephone 901.434.5210 
Fax 901.434.5205 
Email wjlogue@fedex.com 

At our meeting on Tuesday, March 26, 2002, you suggested that we meet with FPA's 
subject matter experts about the security issues attendant to the reinstatement of 
jumpseats to persons other than FedEx Pilots. Based on that suggestion, yesterday, we 
met with your representatives (specifically Captains Hap Carpenter, Bob Chimenti, 
Mark Estabrook, and Dave Wells. First Officer Ted Duell and Mr. Darrell Green), to 
discuss those issues. 

Thank you for making these individuals available for this discussion. As stated at our 
first meeting, we believe our Security Program can benefit from FPA's input into the 
process and from having some open communications between the Company and the 
FP A regarding this topic. 

As a case in point, out of yesterday's meeting, I believe we reached an understanding of 
how luggage will be handled in terms of searching and placement on the aircraft. As of 
our March 261h meeting, our intention was to put all bags into the belly of the aircraft, 
except for some small carry-on items like laptops and purses. During today's 
discussion, we reached the understanding that both pilots' bags and jumpseaters' bags 
would be placed behind the cargo net, as in the past, rather than in the belly 
compartment. To accomplish this, all bags will have to be screened using the following 
process. All jumpseaters' bags (whether pilots or non-pilots) will be hand-searched 
when they check in for their jumpseat. When an operating pilot checks in at a facility 
that has x-ray equipment, ordinarily, his bags will be screened by x-ray only. If an 
operating pilot checks in at a facility that does not have x-ray equipment, his bags will 
be hand searched, just like jumpseaters. This process is designed to ensure that the bags 
that go behind the cargo net are safe from a security standpoint. 

William J. Logue 
Senior Vice President 
Air-Ground & Freight Services (AGFS) 

FecEx® 
Express VIA FedEx Express OVERNIGHT LETTER 

April 10, 2002 

Captain David Webb 
President 
FedEx Pilots Association 
1669 Kirby Parkway 
Suite 202 
Memphis, TN 38120 

SUBJECT: JumpseaUSecurity Issues 

Dear Captain Webb: 

Delivery Code 7043 
3610 Hacks Cross Road 
Building A. Suite 3110 
Memphis, TN 38125 

Telephone 901.434.5210 
Fax 901.434.5205 
Email wjlogue@fedex.com 

At our meeting on Tuesday, March 26, 2002, you suggested that we meet with FPA's 
subject matter experts about the security issues attendant to the reinstatement of 
jumpseats to persons other than FedEx Pilots. Based on that suggestion, yesterday, we 
met with your representatives (specifically Captains Hap Carpenter, Bob Chimenti, 
Mark Estabrook, and Dave Wells. First Officer Ted Duell and Mr. Darrell Green), to 
discuss those issues. 

Thank you for making these individuals available for this discussion. As stated at our 
first meeting, we believe our Security Program can benefit from FPA's input into the 
process and from having some open communications between the Company and the 
FP A regarding this topic. 

As a case in point, out of yesterday's meeting, I believe we reached an understanding of 
how luggage will be handled in terms of searching and placement on the aircraft. As of 
our March 26th meeting, our intention was to put all bags into the belly of the aircraft, 
except for some small carry-on items like laptops and purses. During today's 
discussion, we reached the understanding that both pilots' bags and jumpseaters' bags 
would be placed behind the cargo net, as in the past, rather than in the belly 
compartment. To accomplish this, all bags will have to be screened using the following 
process. All jumpseaters' bags (whether pilots or non-pilots) will be hand-searched 
when they check in for their jumpseat. When an operating pilot checks in at a facility 
that has x-ray equipment, ordinarily, his bags will be screened by x-ray only. If an 
operating pilot checks in at a facility that does not have x-ray equipment, his bags will 
be hand searched, just like jumpseaters. This process is designed to ensure that the bags 
that go behind the cargo net are safe from a security standpoint. 
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SUBJECT: Jumpseat/Security Issues 
AprillO, 2002 
Page2 

In addition to our discussions on that item, Captain Chimenti provided us with a 
memorandum from the FP A advocating the inclusion of nine elements in our Security 
Plan. We will study each proposed element expeditiously. We understood from today's 
meeting that if we have questions about the items the FP A proposed, we should direct 
them to Captain Estabrook. After we take a good look at each item, I suggest that we 
reconvene the group of subject matter experts for further discussion regarding long-term 
items, and to have whatever discussions are necessary before finalizing the plan to 
reinstate business jumpseats. I will contact your office on Monday to let you know our 
progress on the issues we are studying and to propose a date to meet again with your 
representatives. 

Thank you again for your cooperation. 

Sincer~j· / 

luff?~ 
Wllliam {Logue 
Senior Vice President- AGFS 

WJL:clh.l70939 

cc: See attached list 

SUBJECT: Jumpseat/Security Issues 
April 10, 2002 
Page 2 

In addition to our discussions on that item, Captain Chimenti provided us with a 
memorandum from the FPA advocating the inclusion of nine elements in our Security 
Plan. We will study each proposed element expeditiously. We understood from today's 
meeting that if we have questions about the items the FP A proposed, we should direct 
them to Captain Estabrook. After we take a good look at each item, I suggest that we 
reconvene the group of subject matter experts for further discussion regarding long-term 
items, and to have whatever discussions are necessary before finalizing the plan to 
reinstate business jumpseats. I will contact your office on Monday to let you know our 
progress on the issues we are studying and to propose a date to meet again with your 
represen tati ves. 

Thank you again for your cooperation. 

Sincer~~, /. 

/u11'7~ ~ni'~am Zgue 
Senior Vice President - AGFS 

WJL:c1h.170939 

cc: See attached list 
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cc: 

Bill Henrikson 

Dennis Kenny 

ToddOndra 

Mike Higley 

Steve Carkeet 

John Maxwell 

Jim Dunham 

Ed Bradley 

Captain Hap Carpenter 

Captain Bob Chimenti 

Captain Mark Estabrook 

Captain Dave Wells 

First Officer Ted Duell 

Darrell Green 

cc: 

Bill Henrikson 

Dennis Kenny 

ToddOndra 

Mike Higley 

Steve Carkeet 

John Maxwell 

lim Dunham 

Ed Bradley 

Captain Hap Carpenter 

Captain Bob Chimenti 

Captain Mark Estabrook 

Captain Dave Wells 

First Officer Ted Duell 

Darrell Green 

-----------~------ ------
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FDX 4 - 000508

901.492-5205 fax 
pac@fedex.com 

I • 

·rom: Rob Fisher 
Sent: Monday, August OS, 2013 3:38PM 
To: PAC (Pilot Administration Center) 
Cc: William McDonaid; Robb Tice; Cindy Sartain 
Subject: Mark Estabrook, · 

Please place Mark Estabrook, 88775, on NOQ UFN. 

Thanks, 

Rob 

2 

901.492-5205 fax 
pac@fedex.com 

I • 

·rom: Rob Fisher 
Sent: Monday, August 05,2013 3:38 PM 
To: PAC (Pilot Administration Center) 
Cc: William McDonaid; Robb Tice; Cindy Sartain 
Subject: Mark Estabrook, . 

Please place Mark Estabrook, 88775, on NOQ UFN. 

Thanks, 

Rob 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 

lvfARK, ESTABROOK, 

Complainan~ 

v. 
Gase No.: 2014-AIR-00022 
Hearing Date: TBA 

FEDERAL EXPRESS.CORPORATION, 

RESPONDENT FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION'S SUPPLEMENTAL 
ANSWERS TO COMPLAINANT'S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES 

• . t • • lo • • • I I • • • 

'• ~ ·: " ' 1 • Ill I • I r • , • 

R.espon~~t, Fedet:al Expres~ Corporatiqn (FcciE~), by and thrQugh counsel and pprsuant 

to 29 .C~F.R. § 18.18, supplements its answers to Cotnplaiilant's First Set of Interrogatories in 

accordance with Judge Sellers' August 19~ 2015 Order as follows: 

PRELIMlNARY STATEMENT 

Respond~t has not completed its inves;ig~on, QiScqvezy, qr ~ysis of ~ tl;le fa~ of 

~s case an<;l ~ not complete~r p+q1aration for trial Acco.rd.ingly, all, of the following .~nses. 

are provid~ wjthout prejudice to Respondent1 s ri~ to further supplement or amend· di$covery 

responses as permitted by the applicable rules, or introduce at trial any evidence that is· 

subsequently discovered relatin~ to proof of presently known facts and to produce and introduce 

all evidence wh~ver discovered relating to *e proof of subs~qu~ntly discover~~ material facts. 

Moreover, filets, documents ~<i things now known may be imperfectly und~~od and 

accordingly such facts, documents, and things may not be jncluded in the following r~ponses. 

Respon~ent r~erves the right to reference, discover or offer into evidence at the time of trial any 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 

MARK ESTABROOK, ). 
) 
) Complainant, 

v. 
l ' 
j 

CascNo.: 2014-AIR-lI0022 
Hearing Date: TBA 

FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION, 

Respondent, 

l 
) 
! 

RESPONDENT FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION'S SUPPLEMENTAL 
ANSWERS TO COMPLAINANT'S F!RS:r' SET OF INTE~OGATORIES 

i , • 

Respondent, FedO\8l Express Corporation (F'~), by and through counsel and P)lISUllllt 

to 29 C.F.R. § 18.18, supplements its answetS '" ColllplaiDant's First Set of Interrogatories in 

accordance with Judge SeUets' August 1912015 Order as follow!: 

PREL~ARYSTAIEMENT 

Respondent bas not completed its inv<S!igation, diScovOlY, or analysis of all the fact;! of 

this case and has not completecf preparation for trial. Accordingly, allofilie fol1owIDg.~nses 

are provided without prejudice to Respondent's riljht '" further supplement or amand di$covery 

responses as pemlitted by the applicable rule., or iIltroduce al trial any evidence that is 

subsequently diScovered relatin!! '" proof of presently known facts and to produce and iIltroduce 

all evidence whenever discovered relating to the proof of subsequently discovered materia! &ets. 

Moreover, filets, documents and thiIIgs now known may be Imperfectly understood and 

accordingly such facts, documents, and things may not be included in the following responses. 

Respondent reserves the right to reference, discover or offer into evidence at the time of trial any 
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and all facts, documents, ~d things whicJi it does not presently recall but may recall ~t some 

time ~the future. 

RESPONSES TO INTERROGATORIES. 

tate the reasons why the Complainant was placed oil 

NOQ status oil or aboutAu~ustS~ 2013. 

RESPONSE TO. INTERROGATORY NO •. 7: ~omplain,ant was placedo~ NOQ ~ 
... ·• . 

on or about August 5, 2013 bc;caus!!l4e bad ~en referr~ for exarqin~on under Section ~S.D; of'" 

¢~ collectiv~ bargaWng ~ement be_tw~en Respondent and the Air Line Pilots Association. 

This Supplement Responses silpersedes 

Respandent's original response. Complainant was placed on Administrative NOQ status on or 

about AugustS; 2013 to facilitate the scheduling C!f a meeting he re~sted. The effect of~e 

placemeJJ.~ on Adrnil;J,strfltive NOQ ~tus was to ~lear his work sched~e and prevent the 

scheduling of co~cJ;ing ~tivifies; Pursuant to F~ R. Civ. P. 33((1), ~tiona! information 

responsive: to this interrogatory may be obtained from documents previously produced, bates· 

numbered FDX 4-000021, 23. 49, 72, 90·91, 415, 417, .419-:421, 448, 456 and 507~508. A 

meeting was co~ducted on or about August 9, 2013. Following that meeting, Todd Ondra 

questioned whether Cq~pl~t was fit to fly based upon ~ obseJVations Qf Compl~t 

d~g thaim~e~ng. Bas~.o~.Ondra's cone~~' FedEx exercise4·its ]ights under Section 15~0. 

of the Collective: Bargaining Agreement and referred Complainant tQ the Company's 

aerotnedical advisor for evaluation. Pending the results of the aeromedical advisor's evaluation, 

Complainant was placed on Company Aeromedical Advisor CC'CAMN') NOQ status. Pursuant 

to Fed. R. Civ. P. 33(d), addi~onal infoJ;IIlation responsive to this interrogatory may be obtained 

from Ondra's meeting notes, which were previously produced at Bates Nos .. FDX4·000060·64. 
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and all facl>, documents, rmd thlngs which it does not presenUy recall but may recall at some 

time in the future. 

RESPONSES TO Il'!TERROGATORlES. . 
~_;tale the reasons why the Complainant WtIS placed on 

NOQ status oil or aboutAu~ 5, 2013. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.7: Complainant was placed on NOQ status 

on or about August 5, 2013 because he h&I been referred for eX8ll!ination UDder Section 15D. of' 

the collective bargaining agImIlent betweell Respondent and the Air Line Pilots Association. 

This Supplement Responses sUpersedes 

Respondent's original response. Complainant was placed on Administrative NOQ status on or 

about August 5, 2013 to facilitate tho scheduling of a meeting he requested. The effi:ct of !he 

placement on Administrative NOQ status was tp clear his work schedule and prevent the 

scheduling of conllicting activities. Pursuant to Fed, R. Civ. P. 33(d), additional information 

responsivo to this inteuogatory may be obtained from documents previously produced, bates 

numbered FDX 4-000021, 23, 49, 72, 90-91, 415, 417, 4190421, 448, 456 and 507-508. A 

meeting was conduated on or about August 9, 2013. Following that meeting. Tod"d Oudra 

questioned whether Complainant WtIS fit to fly based upon his obse",atioljS of Complainant 

during thatm~cting. Based on Ondra"s CODCCl'QS, FedEx exercised its Jights under Section IS.D. 

of the Collective Bargaining Agreement aod referred Complainant to the Company', 

aerotnedical advisor for evaluation. Pending the results of the aerome<tical advisor's evaluation, 

Complainant was placed on Company Aeromedical Advisor ("CAMA") NOQ status. Pursuant 

to Fed. R. Civ. P. 33(d), ad<titional information responsive to this interrogatory may be obtained 

from Ondra' , meeting notes, which were previously produced at Bates Nos. FDX4-000060-64. 
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Respectfully submitt~ 

~ ~cJ.19~~ ~. - -
P. Daniel Riederer ' ' ' 
Federal Express Corporation 
36~0-·ijacks Gross Road, Building B 
Memphis_, Tennessee 38125 
Telq,h()D.e: (901) 434-8556 
Facsimile: (901) 434-9279 
daniel.rlederer@fedex.com 

~RTIFICA~_~F SERVI~. 

I hereby certifY. that on October 29J 201:4, a copy of the foregoin$ Respondent Federal 

Express Corporation's Supplemental Answers , to Co~plainant's First Set of 

Interrogatories w~ served. upon the following ~a FeqeJ"~ 12pre~s overnight l~tter, postage 

prepaid: 

1132530 

LeeS~ _Esq. 

s~ s~ M~ltz .lf. Petersen, I.J.P 
445. &miltonA venue, suite 1204 
Whi~ Plains, NY 1Qfi91 
Telephone~ (~14) 997~1346 

Facsimil~~ (~1.4) 997·7125 
E~: lse~plaw.co~ 

Counsel for Respondent 
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R~dUllysubnlltt~ 

P. Daniel Riede= 
Federal Express Corponttlon 
3620 Hacks Cross Road, Building B 
Memphis, Tennessee 38125 
Telepb~n.: (901) 434-8556 
Facsimile: (901) 434-9279 
daoiel.riederer@fedex.com 

CERTIFICATE. OF SERVICE 

I hereby certifr that on October 29, 2014, • copy of the foregoing Respondent Federal 

Expre.u Corporatioa" Supplemental Answtn , to CoanplaiDant'1 Firat Set of 

IntelTOgalori .. was served. upon the following via Federal Express overnight letter, postage 

prepaid: 

1132530 

Lees~Esq. 
Seham. S~ M~ltz .& Pell:rSeD, LLP 
445 H.amiltonAvenuc. ,uiteI204 
White Plains, NY 10601 
Telephone: (914) 997-1346 
Facsimile' (914) 997<7125 
Email: lseham@ssmplaw.com 

Counsel for Respondent 
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VERIFICATION, 

MaryAnne Miller, being ~£:full age, ~es and states 1bat she is authorized to sign the 

foregoing Respondent Federal Express Corporation's Supplemental Answer to 

Complainant's First Set of Interrogatories and~ she has read ~d knows the cont,ents 

thereat and~ tlle Respo~es. subject to inadvertent or undiscovered errors, are based upon 

~d, therefore, limited by, the records and information still in existence, presetltly recollected; 

and thus far discovered in the course of the preparation of these Responses; that consequently, 

Respondent reserves the right to amend the Responses if it appears at any tim.~ ~t o~ions Qr 

errors have been .qwie t}lerein,. or ~t ~!Jre ac~ jnfo~tion ,~ ~v~able; that ~bject to the 

limitations set forth th~in, s~d Response$ are t:n:!e·to ~ best.Qfher ]Qlowledge, info~tion, 

~belief. 

I hereby certify under ~ty of peijury that the foregoing statement is true. 
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VERIFICATION 
" i ' 

MaryAnn. Miller. being of full ago, certifies and states that ,he i. authorized to sign the 

foregoiDg Respondent Federal Express Corporation'. Sn,PplementaJ Answer to 

ComplaiDant'. Fir.t Set of Interrogatories and that she has read .. d knoW! the contents 

thereof, aod thai the Responses •• ubject to inadve!lent or undiscovered error.!, are based upon 

and, therefore, limited by. the records and information still in existence, prescIltly recollected; 

and thus far di.!covered in the course ofth. preparation of these Responses; that consequently. 

Respondeat r.serves the right to amand the Responses if it appesr. at any time thet omissions or 

mon have been made therein, or that Qlore accura;c information is av~ablc; that subject to the 

limitations set forth th""in, said Reaponse5 are true to the beat of her knowledge, information, 

and belief. 

I hereby certify under ~ty of pr:Jjury that the foregoiDg sts1ernent is true. 

, ,. . .... i , " . 

Mm . .. . Miller 
Senior Paralegal Specialist, Labor Relations 
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FDX 4-000051

Maryanne Miller 

From: Robb Tice 
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 4:32 PM 
To: 
Cc: 

'McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC; 'Sago, Latasha, FDXMEC 
Rob Fisher; Cindy Sartain 

Subject: RE: Estabrook -- Meeting Date 

Terry and Latasha-

To my surprise, Rob Fisher advises that Estabrook told him he doesn't want ALPA representation at the meeting. Let me 

know if you wish to discuss with me. 

Robb 

From: Robb Tice 
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 4:28 PM 
To: 'McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC' 
Cc: Rob Fisher; Cindy Sartain 
Subject: RE: Estabrook-- Meeting Date 

OK. Copying Fisher & Sartain for their info in scheduling. I'll give Latasha a call. 

From: McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC [mailto:Terry.McTigue@alpa.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 4:18PM 
To: Robb Tice 
Subject: RE: Estabrook-- Meeting Date 

I will have to check with Latasha as she will be handling. 

From: Robb Tice [mailto:rwtice@fedex.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2013 4:17PM 
To: McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC 
Subject: FW: Estabrook-- Meeting Date 

Would Friday morning work for you or someone in your office? Rob Fisher is giving your name and phone numbers to 
Estabrook if he wants ALPA at the meeting. We can fly Estabrook here on Thursday and get him a hotel room Thursday 
night if needed. 

From: Robb Tice 
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 3:54PM 
To: McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC 
Subject: Estabrook 

Terry- FYI- Rob Fisher is trying to set up a meeting with Estabrook. They have missed each other's calls. Now looking 

at Fri, Man or Tue. Not sure if any of those days will work or not. Attendees for the Company will be Rob Fisher, me and 
Todd Ondra of Corporate Security. 

Robb 

1 

Maryanne Miller 

From: Robb Tice 
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 4:32 PM 
To: 
Cc: 

'McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC; 'Sago, Latasha, FDXMEC 
Rob Fisher; Cindy Sartain 

Subject: RE: Estabrook -- Meeting Date 

Terry and Latasha -

To my surprise, Rob Fisher advises that Estabrook told him he doesn't want ALPA representation at the meeting. Let me 
know if you wish to discuss with me. 

Robb 

From: Robb Tice 
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 4:28 PM 
To: 'McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC' 
Cc: Rob Fisher; Cindy Sartain 
Subject: RE: Estabrook -- Meeting Date 

OK. Copying Fisher & Sartain for their info in scheduling. I'll give Latasha a call. 

From: McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC [mailto:Terrv.McTigue@alpa.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 07,2013 4:18 PM 
To: Robb Tice 
Subject: RE: Estabrook -- Meeting Date 

I will have to check with Latasha as she will be handling. 

From: Robb Tice [mailto:rwtice@fedex.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2013 4:17 PM 
To: McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC 
Subject: FW: Estabrook -- Meeting Date 

Would Friday morning work for you or someone in your office? Rob Fisher is giving your name and phone numbers to 
Estabrook if he wants ALPA at the meeting. We can fly Estabrook here on Thursday and get him a hotel room Thursday 
night if needed. 

From: Robb Tice 
Sent: Wednesday, August 07, 2013 3:54 PM 
To: McTigue, Terry, FDXMEC 
Subject: Estabrook 

Terry - FYI- Rob Fisher is trying to set up a meeting with Estabrook. They have missed each other's calls. Now looking 
at Fri, Mon or Tue. Not sure if any of those days will work or not. Attendees for the Company will be Rob Fisher, me and 
Todd Ondra of Corporate Security. 

Robb 
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Today's Posts 

Welcome to Airline Pilot Forums 

Already registered? Login above 
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To take advantage of all the site's features, become a member 
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Sell your soul for $20 per day ..... FDX - Airline Pilot Central Forums 

D 07·27·2013, 09:02 PM 

The Walrus 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Feb 2010 
Position: Socket Drawer 
F'osts: 948 

0 

0 07·27·2013, 09:46 P~1 

ptarmigan 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Aug 2006 
Posts: 435 

0 

0 07·27·2013, 10:21 PM 

Pakaqecheck 
trip trading freak 

Joined APC: Oct 2010 
Position: MD-11 
Posts: 377 

0 

0 07·27-2013, 11:03 PM 

~ 
Gets Weekends Off 

~ -Joined APC: Ju l 2006 
Position: MD-11 capt 
Pos ts: 311 

0 

0 07·28·2013, 04:15 AM 

DLax85 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Jul 2007 
Position: Gear Monkey 
Posts: 1,860 

#2 (oermalink) 

Just another hotdog cookout. Anybody ever wander into a bar and your buddy says "What a sausagefest"? 
This is one of those. 

Runaway! Runaway! 

#3 (oerma link) 

The data is the data. It can't be manipulated, we have full access to the raw data. It can only help us, that 
Is, unless you think that we are NOT as tired as everyone thinks ... 

t. 

#4 (oermaUnk) 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by ptarmiga n D 
The data Is the data. It can't be manipulated, we have full access to the raw data. It can only help 
us, that Is, unless you think that we are NOT as tired as everyone thinks ... 

You ane correct. The data Is the data. However, controlling the variables, can be manipulated. Would you 
say that the 4 different I ndy night hub turns and a few AFW turns Is representative of our "standard" night 
hub tum? !MHO Is does not. Take your own little pall and ask some that do week on/week off night hub 
tums and I think you will find the overwhelming majority wil l tell you they would prefer to do I ndy turns 
than Memphis turns. Pretty sure it's not because the popcorn Is better there or that the movies or newer. 
Just saying it might not be a true representation of our night hub tum sleep habits. 

Ll!St edited by Pakagechock; 07·27· 2013 at 10:31 PM. 

#5 (oorma link) 

L 

Quote : 

Originally Posted by The Wa l rus D 
Just another hotdog cookout. Anybody ever wander into a bar and your buddy says "What a 
sausagefest"? This Is one of those. 

Runaway! Runaway! 

Then I would advise you NOT to volunteer .... let those that want t he REAL t rips represented .... See that 
was easy, let others do the work. 

"Some minds are like concrete thoroughly mixed up and permanently set. • 

#6 (oermalln k) 

T~t 
I 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by ptarmigan D 
The data Is the data. It can't be manipulated, we have full access to the raw data. It can only help 
us, that is, unless you think that we are NOT as tired as everyone thinks ... 

Were you a Math/statistics major? 

The data can't be manipulated ... ??? 

Even if you t ru ly believe that, do you at least believe it can be Interpreted d ifferent ly by two different 
experts? 

http://www .a irlinepilotforums .corn/ cargo/7 6198-sell-your-soul-20-per-day-fdx.html 
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Sell your soul for $20 per day ..... FDX - Airline Pilot Central Forums 

o D?-lJ.2013, 09:02 PM .- - - ..... _.", 

The Walrus 
Gets Weekends orr 

Joined Ape: Feb 2010 
Posi tIon: Socket Drawer 
Posl.!i: 94e 

o 
007-27-2013,09:46 PM 

ptarmigan 
Gets Wet:i«';nds Off 

Joined Ape: ALlg 2006 
Posts: 435 

o 
DOH7-20l3. 10:21 PM 

Pakagecheck 
trip Il'!Idlng freak 

Joined Ape: Oct 2010 
Pm;It1an: MD-l1 
Po.!its: J77 

o 
C 07-27-2013, 11:03 p~ 

~ 
Gets Weekends DIf 

tR'.IIl. ~ 
Jelned ",PC: Jul 2006 
Position: MD-ll capt 
Posts: 311 

D 07-28-2013, 04:15 AM -_. --_ .-
~ 
Gets Weekends Off 

l ~ 
Joined APC: lui 2007 
PosltJon: Gear M~nkey 
Posts: 1,560 

12 (petmilUnk) 

' t 
Just another hotdog cookout. Anybody ever wander into a bar a nd your buddy says "What a sausagefest"? 
This is one of those. 

Runawayl Runaway! 

#3 (permallnk) 

The data is the data. It can't be manipulated, we have fu ll access to the raw data. I t can only help us, that 
Is, unless you think that we are NOT as tired as everyone thinks ... 

Quote : 

Originally Posted by ptarmig.1n D 
The data Is the data. It can't be manipulated, we have full access to the raw data. it can only help 
us, that Is, unless you think that we are NOT as tired as ev~one thinks .. 

You are correct. The data Is the data. Howevel", controlling the variables, can be manIpulated. Would you 
say that the 4 different Indy night hub turns ancl a few AFW turns Is representative of our ·standard· night 
hub tum? IMHO Is does not. Take your own little poll and ask some that do week on/week off night hub 
turns and 1 thInk you wJl I find the overwhelming majority wi ll tell you they would prefer to do I ndy turns 
than MemphIs turns. Pretty sure It's not because the popcorn Is better there or that the movies or newer. 
Just saying It might not be a true representation of our night hub tum sleep habits. 

LMt Bdited by P.a~; 07-27-2013 at 10:31 PM. 

is (oermalink.) 

Quote : 

Originally Posted by The Walrus D 
Just another hotdog cookout. Anybody ever wander Into a bar and your buddy says ~Whilt a 
sausagefest"7 This Is one of those. 

Runaway! Runaway! 

Then I would advise you NOT to volunteer .. .let t hose that want the REAL t rips represented._ .See that 
was easy, let others do the work. 

"Some minds are like concrete thoroughly mbced up and permanently set_· 

#6 [1li'-tn13Unkj 

II;; , , 
Quote: 

Originally Posted by ptar m igan 1l 
The data /s the data. It can't be manipulated, we have full access to the raw data. It can only help 
us, that is, unless you think that we are NOT as tired as everyone thinks .. 

Were you a Math/statistics major? 

The data can't be manipulatecL. 171 

Even if you tru ly believe that, do you at least believe It can be interpre ted differently by two different 
experts ? 
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Sell your soul for $20 per day ..... FDX - Airline Pilot Central Forums 

D 07·28-2013, 04:34AM 

FLMDllCAPT 
Ok, No more steeping Oog 

Joined APC: Fe:b 2007 
Position: MD-11, Capt 
Posts: BlO 

0 07-28-2013, 04:56AM 

flextodaline 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Ju l 2007 
Position: Left Seat, Moving 
Target 
Posts: 184 

C 07-28· 2013, 05:02 AM 

MaydavMark 
Gets Weekends Of!' 

Joined APC: Apr 2006 
Position: MD-11 Czlptaln 
Posts: 3,007 

It is very common for statisticians to dismiss 1 eliminate certain data point outliers when analyzing the 
data and building their models/conclusions. 

That process, at t imes, can be very subjective. 

Most of us have backgrounds in "deterministic math", while the real world Is far more "probabilistic" and 
"fuzzy•, especially when dealing with biological models. 

I don't believe any set of data or study would be definitive, or that the conclusions would necessarily apply 
across our entire cohort of pilots. 

There Is always the question of how sensitive the model/conclusions are across the differences In the 
larger population, not just the survey data. 

Much in the way we have learned to build aircraft strength at factors above expected real world stress 
levels, we need to build work/rest schedules which don't push the edges of the fatigue envelope. 

A true safety culture/system looks at man, machine, mission, median & management --- all objectively & 
equally. 

Ust Mimi by Dl..ax85; 07-28-2013 ar 04:49AM. 

#7 (oermalink) 

L 
The real problem, as I see It Is we still do not have access to the NASA sleep study OR the Enders report. 
Why not? Does anyone really think that if the data obtained in this current "effort'' Indicates a strong 
probability of rampant and chronic fatigue that those results as well will not end up In the same locked box 
as the two aforementioned studies? I for one do not . 

Mr. President, The only thing I want you to redistribute Is my work ethic ....... 

L 
#8 (oermalink) 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by FLMDllCAPT ~ 
The real problem, as I see it Is we still do not have access to the NASA sleep study OR the Enders 
report. Why not? Does anyone really think that if the data obtained in this current "effort" 
indicates a strong probability of rampant and chronic fatigue that those results as well will not end 
up in the same locked box as the two aforementioned studies? I for one do not. 

............ ...... . + ! 

This is nothing more than another way for those bombastic Idiots at the VP level to say, ' Look, we're 
trying, see? Now sign up for PBS and we can make this ALL better". i f they were serious about this, it 
would have happened way before section six openers .......... 

derka derka derka, Muhammad Jihad ..... 

119 (oermalink) 

Q<Jote: 

Originally Posted by ptarmigan £1 
The data is the data. I t can't be manipulated, we have full access to the raw data. It can only help 
us, that is, unless you think that we are NOT as tired as everyone thinks ... 

You're right ... the data Is the data, but we were NEVER given the results of the NASA Sleep Study or t he 
Ender's Report. I have to assume they had VERY BAD things to say. 

I've had military, civilian and airline safety training and I have NEVER heard of the results of safety 
surveys not being released to the crew force. 

A ccordin ql rc I wjll NEYER yotunteer to participate jn a aqther FDX sponsored "Safetv Survev.'" 

Edit: PS ... One of my doctors thinks I may have had a seizure due to being chronically tired (for which 
Fed Ex management opened a disdplinary hearing, so much for doing your best job for the company! *7) 

I used to be Indecisive. Now I'm not so sure. 

Last edited by MaydayMark; 07-28-2013 at 05:27AM. 
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FLMDllCAPT 
Ok, No more sleeping Dog 
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Target 
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o 
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Joined ApC: Apr 20C6 
Position: MD-ll C~pt~ln 
Posts: 3,007 

It [s very common for stat!stldans to dismiss I eliminate certain data poInt outliers when analyzing the 
data and buildIng thei r models/conclusions. 

That process, at times, can be very subjective. 

Most of us have backgrounds In "deterministic math", while the real world 15 far more "probabilistic" and 
"fuzzy", especially when dealing with biological models. 

I don't believe any set of data or study would be definitive, or that the conclusions would necessarily apply 
across our entIre cohort of p!1ots. 

There Is always the question of how sensitive the model/conclusions are across the differences In the 
larger population, not just the survey data. 

Mum In the way we have learned to build aircraft strength at factors above expected real world stress 
levels, we need to build work/rest schedules wh1ch don't push the edges of the fatlgue envelope. 

A true safety culture/system looks at man, machine, m ission, median &. management -- all objectively &. 
equally. 

/.Mt MlWI by DI..1Ix8S; 07-28-201.3 ,C04:49 AM. 

L 
The real problem, as 1 see It Is we sti li do not have access to the NASA sleep study OR the Enders report. 
Why not? Does anyone really think that if the data obtained In this current "effort" Indicates a strong 
probability of rampant and chronic fatigue that those results as well will not end up In the same locked 00" 
as the two aforementioned studiesi' I for one do not. 

Mr. President, The only thing J want you to redistribute Is my work ethic.. 

L 
Quote: 

Originally Posted by FLM Dl1CAPT fl 
The real problem, as I see it is we still do nor have access to tile NASA sleep study OR the Enders 
report. Why not? Does anyone really think that If the data obtained in this current ~effort~ 
Indicates a strong probability of rampant and chronic fatigue that those results as well will not end 
up in the same locked box as the two aforementIoned studies? I for one do not . 

. ... . .. ...... +1 

This is nothing more than another way for those bombastic Idiots at the VP level to say, - look, we're 
trying, see? Now sign up for PBS and we can make this ALL better~. if they were serious about t his, it 
would have happened way before section six openers ...... .... 

derka derka defka, Muhammad Jihad ..... 

QiJcte: 

Originally Posted by ptarmigan fJ 
The datiJ fs the datiJ. It can't be manipulated, we have full access to the I<IW data. It can ()(I/y help 
us, that is, unless you think that we are NOT as tired as everyone thinks ... 

You're right ... the data Is the dahl, but we were NEVER given the results of the NASA Sleep Study or the 
Ender's Report. I have to assume they had VERY BAD things to say. 

I've had military, Civilian and airline safety training and I have NEVER heard of the results of safety 
surveys not being released to the crew force. 

Accord iflgly I wiU NEVER vo lunteer to participate In another fDX sponsored "Safe t v S u rvev. " 

Edit : PS .. . One of my doctors thinks I may have had a seizure due to being chroolcally tired (fOf which 
FedEx management opened a dlsdpHnary heating, so much ror doing your best job for the company!'"'?) 

1 used to be Indecisive. Now I'm not so sure. 

L.Jn ffiitm by Mayd.Jyt1ark; 07-28·201] IJt05:27 AM. 
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The NASA report was, eventually, released. The MEC should have it if you want it. However, the issue of 
that and t he Ender's report are red herrings here. 

What people are forgetting Is that we, ALPA, have equal say In how the dat. is collected and equal say In 
all the variables that are considered. The sleep scientists have a reputation that would be wrecked If either 
tried to play games, and both, ours and the Company's, need to reach consensus on all the variables. 

The initial study Is not going to show any major results, but was chosen to narrow the scope to make sure 
that the whole process for collecting the data works. The data will be a small part of the whole package, 
just a piece of it representing one type of trip, so In addition to testing the processes, it Is not wasted 
data. 

We, ALPA, found hard to get real testing to happen to prove these issues. This study Is the beginning of 
that 
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The NASA report was, eventually, released . The MEC should have it if yau want It . However, the Issue of 
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that and the Ender's report a re red herrings here. 

What people are forgetting 15 that we, ALPA, have equal say In how the data is collected and equal say In 
~ all the variables that are considered . The sleep scientists have a reputation that would be wn~cked If either 
l . tried to play games, and both, ours and the Company's, need to reach consensus on al l tile variables. 

Joined APe : Aug 2006 The Initial study Is not going to show any major results, but was chosen to narrow the scope to make sure 
Posts: 435 that the whole process for collecting the data works. The data will be a small part of the whole package, 

just a piece of It representing one type of trip, so In addition to testing the processes, it Is not wasted 
data. 

We, ALPA, found hard to get real testing to happen to prove these issues. This study 15 the beginning of 
that. 
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Quote: 

I
Originally Posted by ptarmigan fJ 
The NASA report was, eventually, released. The MEC should have It If you want ft. However, the 
Issue of that and the Ender's report are red herrings here. I 

I've seen Dr. Rosekind's (NASA's) sleep study. I contacted NASA and asked for their presentation as part 
of m y Naval Reserve squadron's Safety Stand Down. I personally picked up Dr. Roseklnd at the airport 
and had the opportunity to speak with him at length. The portion that induded the FedEx pilots is a maj or 
portion of their presentation. 

The NASA Sleep Study report was only released after a FDX ALPA member requested it via an (FBI?) 
Freedom of Information Act request (after all, it was paid for with tax dollars). Management seemingly 
fought hard to keep the results from us. Quite frankly I don't like that. 

While I understand that the nature of our system form leads to excessive night fiying by default, I'm 
disappointed by managements long held philosophy that optimized schedules are better for them. 

On a different but related subject ... PBS will make Is problem worse!*? 

I used to be indecisive. Now I 'm not so sure . 

Adverttslng above will not show if you are a regtstered user. 

# 12 (oermalink) 

$20/day? 

NASA says participation Is worth $189/day ... 

NASA Offers SSOOO a Month For You to Lie jo Bed -Wired Science 

I used to be indecisive. Now I'm not so sure. 
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Quote: 

I 
:Orl9inallV Posted by ptarmigan [l I 
The NASA report was, eventually, released. The MEC should have it if you want It. However, the 
issue of that and the Ender's report are red herrings here. 

I've seen Dr. Rosekilld's (NASA's) sleep study. ! contacted NASA and asked for their presentation as part 
of my Naval Reserve squadron's Safety Stand Down. I personally picked up Dr. Roseklnd at the airport 
and had the opportunity to speak with him at length. The portion that included the FedEx pi lots Is a major 
portion of their presentation. 

The NASA Sleep Study report was only released alter a fOX ALPA member requested It via an (FBI?) 
Freedom of Information Act request {alter all, it was paid for with tax dollars). Management seemingly 
fought hard to keep the results from us. Quite frankly I don't like that. 

While I understand that the nature of our system form leads to excessive night flying by default, I'm 
disappointed by managements long held philosophy that optimIzed schedules are better for them. 

On a different but related subject .. . PBS wil l make Is problem worsel'"'? 

I used to be indecisive. Now I'm not so sure . 
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NASA says participation Is worth $ 189/day 
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I used to be indecisive. Now I'm not so sure. 
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I feel asleep reading this .... NASA Sleep study Summary 

http·/lfdx alpa ora/Portals/26/docs/ ... %20Summarv.odf 

Ughten up ... its just an opinion 

1114 (oermalink) 

: In the end it comes down to trust. l don't trust he company, management, who ever it is that actually 
. pul ls the strings. They never have given me a reason to trust them but have given me plenty to not trust 
· them. They need to earn my trust first! 

#15 (Dennalink) . . , ...... ,. 

L 
Quote: 

Originally Posted by Full pull ~ 
In the end it comes down to trust. I don't trust he company, management, who ever it is that 
actually pulls the strings. They never have given me a reason to trust them but have given me 
plenty to not trust them. They need to earn my trust first! 

Amen Brother ! ! 

#16 (Dermalink) 

\";; No trust ... but we got just culture ... 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by Full pull il 
In the end it comes down to trust. I don't trust he company, management, who ever it is that 
actually pulls the strings. They never have given me a reason to trust them but have given me 
plenty to not trust them. They need .to earn my trust first! 

I'm just happy we got just culture, oh yeah, and they working hard to communicate better. At least they 
are communicating ... not much from ALPA ... 

Still have 4 fired in HK 
Mechanics can book positive space jumpseats in the cockpit over the phone without PIC permission in 
hand .. . (pi lots can't ... ) 
Bid line spread disparitites are huge 
No MOU or LOA on protections regarding issues on the IPAD 
Quality Checks ... oops, it is like LOSA .. . but treat like a line check ... ***? 

(and nothing but crickets chirping from Kirby and Poplar .. .I understand why they are close to a 
decertification of ALPA at Delta ... money better spent in house than on funding a bunch of clowns in DC 
that can't spell CARGO) 

Air Wisconson has Known Crew Member ... but we can't afford it? 

But I don't blame the company for trying to save money ... (even when they are sending LCA's from 
Memphis to line check guys In HK) 

Not much trust anywhere, I'm afraid. 

Would love to see some leadership from our dues money to show that we are trying to fix some of these 
issues, confront them head on, instead of the canned Top 10 Q and A from our chairman on "unity for 
dummies". (how about a real negotiat ions update, with real details, instead of vague talking points) 

But hey, $20.00 a day- knock yourself out - (do you get a free hot dog?) 
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Quote: 1= Originally Posted by Full pull n 
In the end it cames down to trust. I don't trust he company, management, who ever it Is that 
actually pulls the strings. They never have given me a reason to trust them but have given me 
plenty to not trust them. They need to earn my trust first! 
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Positlon: Alrbus captain 
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Quote: 
loined APC: Apr 20ll 
Posts; 134 Originally Posted by Full pull iJ 

In the end it comes down to trust. I don't trust he company, management, who ever it is that 
actually pulls the strings. They never have given me a reason to trust them but have given me 
plenty to not trust them. They needlo earn my trust first.l 

I'm just happy we got just culture, oh yeah, and they working hard to communicate better. At lellst they 
lIre communicating ... not much from ALPA .. 

Stili hllve 4 fired In HK 
Mechanics can book posit ive spc!ce jumpsellts in the cockpit over the phone without PIC permission in 
hllnd .. . (pilot5 can't . .. ) 
Bid line spread dlsparitltes lIre huge 
No MOU or LOA on protections regarding Issues on the IPAD 
Quality Checks ... oops, it Is like LOSA ... but treat like a Ilne check .. ***1 

(and nothing but crickets chirping from Kirby and Poplar ... I understllnd why they are close to a 
decertificatlon of ALPA at DeIta ... money better spent in house than on funding a bunch of clowns in DC 
t/1at can't spell CARGO) 

Air Wisconson has Known Crew Member ... but we can't afford it? 

But I don't blame the company for trying to save money .. (even when they are sending LCA's from 
Memphis to line check guys In HK) 

Not much trust anywhere, I'm afraid. 

Would love to see some leadership from our dues money to show that we are trying to fix some of these 
Issues, confront them head on, Instead of the canned Top 10 Q and A from our chairman on "unity for 
dummies". (how about a real negotiations update, with rea l details, instead of vague talking points) 

But hey, $20.00 a day - knock yourself out - (do you get a free hot dog?) 

0 ma 
~ 

http://www.airlinepilotforums.com/cargoI76198-sell-your-soul-20-per-day-fdx-2.htm I 8/5/2013 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 159     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



FDX 4-000030

Sell your soul for $20 per day .. ... FDX - Page 2- Airline Pilot Central Forums 

The Walrus t. 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Feb 2010 
Position: Socket Drawer · 
Posts: 948 

0 

0 07·29·2013, 12:53 AM 

HKFiyr 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Apr 2012 
Posts: 134 

0 07·29·2013, 12:54 AM 

Knots2you 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Dec 2007 
Posts: 109 

D 07·29-2013, 05:16AM 

.G.l.!nW: 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Aug 2006 
Posts: 3 1396 

0 

W;W / 

HKAyr 

I understand from a friend who had your Fleet Capt RF on the jumpseat from mem that he is coming out 
to t ry and sell PBS to the hkg guys. He was talking it up to the crew on the js. 

US (oennallnk) 

h··· 
Quote: 

Originally Posted by The Walrus D 
HKF/yr 

I understand from a friend wljo had your Fleet Capt RF on the jumpseat from mem that he Is 
coming out to try and sell PBS to the hkg guys. He was talking it up to the crew on the js. 

There was a pilot meeting yesterday, last mlnute. Didn't go, had shirts to iron. 

Figured it was a brown bag direct dealing we love you meeting ... 

#19 (oennallnk) 

!L 
The first thing that we were taught In college Statistics class was: "Figures don't lie, but liars figure" 

L 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by The Walrus D 
HKF/yr 

# 20 (oennallnk) 

I understand from a friend who had your Aeet Capt RF on the jumpseat from mem that he Is 
coming out to try and sell PBS to the hkg guys. He was talking it up to the crew on the js. 

Talk about selling your soul. Can you tell him to sit In the back if he does that? 
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HKAyr 

I understand from a friend who had your Fleet Capt RF on the jumpseat from mem that he is coming out 
to try and seU PBS to the hkg guys. He was talking it up to the crew on the js. 

# 18 (1IIlnn allnk) 

~ ... 

OrigInally Posted by The Wa lrus EJ 
HKRyr 

1 understand from a friend wllo had your Ffeet capt RF" on the jumpseat from mem that he Is 
coming out to try and sell PBS to the hkg guys. He was talking it up to the crew on the js. 

There was a pilot meeting yesterday, last minute. Didn't go, had shirts to iron. 

Agured i t WCl S a brown bag direct dealing we love you meeting ... 

' 19 [DermallnkJ 

The first thing that we were taught In college Statistics class was: "Figures don't lie, but Ilars figure" 

L 

Orlginally Posted by The Walrus 0 
HKFlyr 

#20 (llennaUnk) 

I understand from a friend who had your Fleet capt RF on the jumpseat from mem that he /s 
coming out to try and 5!/1 PBS to the hkg guys. He was talking it up to the crew on thejs. 

Talk about sel ling your soul. Can you tell him to sit In the back If he does that? 
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#21 (oermalink) 

I'm just happy we got jus t culture, oh yeah, and they working hard to communicate better. At 
least they are communicating ... not much from ALP A. .. 

Still have 4 fired in HK 
Mechanics can book positive space jumpseats In the cockpit over the phone without PIC 
permission in hand ... (pilots can't. . .) 
Bid line spread dlsparitites are huge 
No MOU or LOA on protections regarding issues on the !PAD 
Quality Checks ... oops, itis like LOSA. .. but treat/ike a line check ... ***? 

(and nothing but crickets chirping from Kirby and Poplar ... ! understand why they are close to a 
decertification of ALPA at Delta .. . money better spent in house than on funding a bunch of clowns 
in DC that can't spell CARGO) 

Air Wisconson has Known Crew Member ... but we can't afford it? 

But I don't blame the company for trying to save money ... (even when tbey are sending LCA's from 
Memphis to line check guys in HK) 

Not much trust anywhere, I'm afraid. 

Would love to see some leadership from our dues money to show that we are trying to fix some of 
these issues, confront them head on, instead of the canned Top 10 Q and A from our chairman on 
"unity for dummies". (how about a real negotiations update, with real details, instead of vague 
talking points) 

But hey, $20.00 a day· knock yourself out· (do you get a free hot dog?) 

I know you feel disgust towards the union because you bid HKG but they have sent info out on at least 
two of your gripes. 
They have gone to FAA national regarding the jumpseat Issue. I have asked you once and I will again what 
would you have them do, as they do not control how jumpseats are scheduled. 
The Chairman sent out a email on 7/12 stating they were grieving the Fleet Check Airman issue. 
The !pad is issued by the company not sure what they could do to stop it. I do thi nk they should have 
grieved the training we received, especially the splitting of two required LMS modules so they would not 
have to pay us. 
Yes unfournatlly we still have 4 fired not sure what you want the union to do. They gave them advice and 

Sean.h Q 
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Already registered? Login above 

OR 
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The advertising to the left will not show if you are a registered 
user. 
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I'm just happy we got just culture, oh yeah, and they working hard to communicate better. At 
least they are communicating ... not much from ALPA.. 

Still have 4 fired In HK 
Mechanics can book positive space jumpseats In the cockpit over the phone without PIC 
permission in hand ... (pilots can't. .. ) 
Bid line spread dlsparitites are huge 
No MOU or LOA on protections regarding issues on the. IPAD 
Quality Checks ... oops, It is like LOSA. .. but treat like a line clleck .. ***? 

(and nothing but crickets chirpIng from Kirby and Poplar .. . I understand why they are close to a 
decertification of ALPA at Delta .. . money better spent in house than on funding a bunch of clowns 
in DC that can 't spell CARGO) 

Air Wisconson has Known Crew Member ... but we can't afford it? 

But I don't blame the company for trying to save money ... (even when they are sending LeA's from 
Memphis to line check guys in HK) 

Not much trust anywhere, I'm afraid. 

Would love to see. some leadership from our dues money to show that we are trying to fix some of 
these issues, confront them head on, instead of the Ci3nned Top 10 Q and A from our chairman on 
"unity for dummies". (how about a real negotiations update, with real details, instead of vague 
talking points) 

But hey, $20.00 a day - knock yourself out - (do you get a free hot dog?) 

I know you fee l disgust towards the union because you bid HKG but they have sent info out on at least 
two of your gripes, 
They have gone to FAA national regarding the jumpseat issue. I have asked you once and I will again what 
would you have them do, as they do not control how jumpseats are scheduled . 
The Chairman sent out a email on 7/12 stating they were grieving the Fleet Check Airman Issue. 
The lpad is issued by the company not sure what they could do to stop it. I do t hink they should have 
grIeved t he training we received, especially the splitting of two required LMS modules so they would not 
have t o pay us. 
Yes unfournatJly we sti li have 4 fired not sure what you want the union to do. They gave them advice and 
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only one took it and she is back. I would think it Is now a d vil matter but since I am not a lawyer I cannot 
say that is so. 

Advertising above will not show If you are a registered user. 

#22 (oennallnk) 

; \l Excellent 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by HIFL YR ID 
I know you feel disgust towards the union because you bid HKG but they have sent Info out on at 
least two of your gripes. 
They have gone to FAA national regarding the jumpseat issue. I have asked you once and I will 
again what would you have them do, as they do not control how jumpseats are scheduled. 
The Chairman sent out a email on 7/12 stating they were grieving the Fleet Check Airman issue. 
The Ipad is issued by the company not sure what they could do to stop ft. I do think they should 
have grieved the training we received, especially the splitting of two required LMS modules so they 
would not have to pay us. 
Yes unfournatlly we still have 4 fired not sure what you want the union to do. They gave them 
advice and only one took it and she Is back. I would think it is now a dvil matter but since I am 
nat a lawyer I cannot say that is so. 

Excellent non-emotional, factual response. How refreshing. 

#23 (.erma link) 

: \2_ Another view of the kingdom ... 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by HIFL YR D 
I know you feel disgust towards the union because you bid HKG but they have sent info out on at 
least two of your gripes. 
They have gone to FAA national regarding the jumpseat Issue. I have asked you once and I will 
again what would you have them do, as they do not control how jumpseats are scheduled. 
The Chairman sent out a email on 7/12 stating they were grieving the Fleet Check Airman Issue. 
The !pad is issued by the company not sure what they could do to stop it. I do think they should 
have grieved the training we received, espedally the splitting of twa· required LMS modules so they 
would nat have to pay us. 
Yes unfaurnatlly we still have 4 fired not sure what you want the union to do. They gave them 
advice and only one took it and she is back. I would think it is now a dvil matter but since I am 
nat a lawyer I cannot say that Is so. 

You obviously have a different view and opinion. 

My opinion and view. (Last I knew, I am allowed to have one) 

I told you what I would have them do. Observe, Orient, Oedde, Act. I n a t imely matter. They haven't . 

I didn't say disgust. You did. Frustrated at the very least. 

Bidding HK 

Yes I did, and I knew the LOA well. After living under it, found It to not be worth the paper it is written 
on ... not enforceable, vague language, grey language · but typical of our CBA. And more important things 
for the other 98% of the crew force to worry about ... 
We are only 130 pilot s. 

Jumpseats. 

We didn't need to go to FAA in DC. Already ruled upon In the recent past. Enforced at several other 
properties in recent history. But ask your JUMPSEAT chair, don't take my word on it. The MEC leaders 
knew this was coming and didn't act till well after the FCIF was out on it. Too little too late. SS knew It was 
coming and did the ostrich act, his head In sand and didn't respond on It for a long time ... but yeah, 
waiting on an answer in Washington. 

I'm sticking with the FAR on that one. Easy decision. Mech needs to be on duty, and need for him on the 
fl ight deck. FARs don't address personal. On duty, off duty. 

iPads, ... I PA had a clue how to proceed ... we sure didn't. Training pay, hell, just decent training would have 
been nice. Agree with your points on that. 

FCA's. 

Issues that are being grieved now were brought up early by many, and again ignored, until we the have 
problems we have now with the Issue. 

The HK issue might have received more attention earlier, but the issue was blown off way in the beginning 
as two of our three MEC officers were trying to get elected to national office. After they didn't , MEC was 
wrapped up selling 3% pay raise number one and putting HK issues in the shadows, instead on the front 
bumer. And then pay raise two, 767 LOA. Gave up all leverage. We were told we had no leverage. I beg to 
differ. 

Rumors of more investigations abound. The Issue is still being discussed as to what the rules are between 
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only one took it and she is back. I would think It Is now a d vll matter but since I am not a lawyer 1 cannot 
say that is so. 

AdvertisIng abo\le will not$hQW If \/OU tirO!' 8 regi5~red user 

B: Excellent 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by HIFLYR {J 
[ know you feel disgust towards the unIon because you bid HKG but they have sent Info out on ar 
least two of your gripes. 
They have gone to FAA natIonal regardIng the jumpseat Issue. I have asked you once and I will 
again what would you have them do, as they do not control how jumpseats are scheduled. 
The OIiJirmilfi sent out a email on 7/12 stating they were grieving the Fleet Check Airman issue. 
The Jpad is issued by the company not sure what they could do to stop It. I do think they should 
have grieved the traIning we receIved, especla/fy the splitting of two required LMS modules so they 
would not have to pay us. 
Yes unfournatJly we still have 4 fired not sure what you want the union to do. They gave them 
advice and only one took It and she Is back. I would think it is now a dvil matter but since I am 
not a lawyer I cannot say that is so. 

Excellent nan--emotional, (actual response. How refreshing. 

R Anoth .... view of the kingdom". 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by HIFL YR Il 
I know you feel disgust towards the union because you bid HKG but they have sent info out on at 
feast two of your gripes. 
They have gane tD FAA natIonal regardfng the jumpseat Issue. I have asked you once and 1 wf/l 
agaIn what would you have them do, as they do nat control how jumpseats are scheduled. 
Th e Chairman sent out a email 0{1 7/12 stilting they were grieving the Reet Check AIrman Issue. 
The [pad is issued by the company not sure what they could da to stop ft. I do thInk they should 
have grieved the trainIng we received, espedal/y the spfitting of two' required LM5 modules so they 
would not have to pay us. 
Yes unfournatlly we stfll haw! 4 fired not sure what you want the union to do. They gave them 
advice and only one took it and she Is back. I would thInk It is now a civil matter but since I am 
not a lawyer I cannot say that Is so. 

You obVIously have a different view and opinion. 

My opinion and view. (Last I I(new, 1 am allowed to have one) 

I told you what I would have them do. Observe, Orient, Dedde, Act. In a timely matter. They haven't. 

I didn't say disgust. You did. Frustrated at the very least. 

Bidding HK 

Yes I did, and I knew the LOA wei!. Alter Hving under It, found it to not be worth the paper it is written 
on ... not enforceable, vague language, grey language - but typical af our CBA. And more Important things 
for the other 98% of the crew force to warry about. .. 
We are only 130 pilots. 

Jumpseats. 

We didn't need to go to FAA In DC. Already ruled upon In the recent past. Enforced at several other 
properties In recent history. But ask your JUMPSEAT chair, don't take my word on it. The MEC leaders 
knew this was coming and didn't act ttli well after the FCIF was out on it. Too tittle too late. SS knew It was 
coming and did the ostrich act, his head In sand and didn't respond on It for a long time ... but yeah, 
waiting on an answer In Washington . 

I'm sticking with the FAR on that one. Easy decision. Mech needs to be an duty, and need for him on the 
!lIght deck. FARs don't address personal. On duty, off duty. 

iPads, ... lPA had a due how to proceed ... we sllTe dIdn't, Training pay, hell, just decent training would have 
been nice. Agree with your point s on that. 

fCA's. 

Issues that are being grieved now were brought up early by many, and again ignored, until we the have 
problems we have now with the Issue. 

The HK issue might have receIved mOfe attention earlier, but the Issue was blown off way in the beginning 
as two of our three MEC officers were tl"(1ng to get elected to ni;ll:[onal office. After they didn't, MEC was 
wrapped up seiling 3% pay raise number one and putting HK Issues in the shadows, Instead on the (ront 
bumer. And then pay raise two, 767 LOA. Gave up all leverage. We were told we had no ieverage.l beg to 
dIffer. 

Rumors of more investigations abound. The Issue Is stlll being discussed as to what the rules are between 
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the union and the company. 

· Talk to more HK people about the hearings and advice the accused got . I would have gotten outside 
counsel also. It will be dvll. And I think they will win. (After years In court I'm sure.) 

I'm not disgusted, but i am dissatisfied, disappointed, and I expect more. Our leaders react after the fact, 
slowly, and j ust seems to plod along. 

My 2 cents worth. Time to make Fred some money and enjoy that Lovely CAN catering. 

# 24 (oennallnk) 

; Facts, but not all the facts ... more to the story. 

t. 
#25 (oennallnk) 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by ptarmigan D 
The NASA report was, eventually, released. The MEC should have it if you want it. However, the 
issue of that and the Ender's report are red herrings here. 

What people are forgetting Is that we, ALPA, have equal say In how the data is collected and equal 
say in all the variables that are considered. The sleep sdentists have a reputation that would be 
wrecked if either tried to play games, and both, ours and the Company's, need to reach consensus 
on all the variables. 

The initial study is not going to show any major results, but was chosen to narrow the scope to 
make sure that the whole process for collecting the data works. The data will be a small part of 
the whole package, just a piece of It representing one type of trip, so In addition to testing the 
processes, it is not wasted data. 

We, ALPA, found hard to get real testing to happen to prove these issues. This study Is the 
beginning of that 

Ok, I don't buy the "Red Herring" argument, but for now I will buy into the fact that this is a fully, 
mutually partidpatory program that was hard won and precedence setting. So with that being said how 
many "small" proof of concept sl ices wil l we see before we tackle the section of such beasts as the MEM­
BLR and back In 8 days with 2 day to night swaps and 12 hrs of drcadian change? § 

Mr. President, The only thing I want you to redistribute is my work ethic ....... 

#26 (oennalink) - ... --·· . ~ . . 
L 
I do not trust the Company to use the data to better my safety. If the union thought that It was In my best 
interest to participate, I would have imagined that they would have at least mentioned it In the Positive 
Rate today. Sometimes what Is not said is really the message. 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by The Walrus D 
I do not trust the Company to use the data to better my safety. If the union thought that It was in 
my best interest to partidpate, I would have Imagined U1at they would have at least mentioned it 
in the Positive Rate today. Sometimes what is not said is really the message. 

Why put It there when nobody reads any of It? Maybe you should look at them? I am not sure how much 
more clear they could be. 

In May, the SIG put out "The SIG will be participating in the upcoming Fatigue Risk Management Group 
(FRMG) meeting at the beginning of May. Expect a report from either or both ALPA committees from that 
meeting." 
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the union and the company. 

Talk to more HK people about the hearings and advice the aCUJsed got. I would have gotten outside 
counsel also. It will be dVlI. And r think they will win. (After years In court I'm sure.) 

I'm not disgusted, but 1 am dissatisfied, disappointed, and I expect t'nOI"e. Our leaders react after the fact, 
slowly, and just seems to plod along. 

My 2 cents worth . llme to make Fred some money and enjoy that Lovely CAN caterlng. 

1t24(nt'rtflBUnk) 

t 
Facts, but not all the facts .. more to the story. 

Quote· 

Originally Posted by ptarmigan D 
The NASA report was, ev~ntually, released. The MEC should have it if you want it. However, the 
issue of that and the Endt!r's rt!port are red herrings here. 

What people are forgetting Is that we, ALPA, have equal say in how the data Is collected and equal 
say in all the variables that are considered. The sleep sdentists have a reputation that would be 
wrecked If either tried to play games, and both, ours and the CDmpany's, need to reach consensus 
on all the variables. 

The initial study is not going to show any major results, but was chosen to narrow the scope to 
make sure that the whole process for collecting the data works. The data will be a small part of 
the whole package, just a piece of it representing one type of trip, so In addition to testing the 
processes, It is not wasted data . 

We, ALPA, found hard to get real testing to happen to prove these issues. This study Is the 
beginning of that 

Ok, I don't buy the "Red Herring" argument, but for now I will buy Into the fad: that this is a fully, 
mutually partid patory program that was hard won and precedence seWng. So with that being said Ilow 
many "small" proof of concept sl ices will we see before we tackle the section of such beasts as the MEM­
BLR and back In 8 days with 2 day to night swaps and 12 hrs of drcadian change? ~ 

Mr. President, The only thing 1 want you to redistribute Is my work ethic ...... 

I do not trust the COmpany to use the data to better my safety. If the unIon thought that It was In my best 
interest to participate, I would have Imagined that they would have at least mentioned it In the Positive 
Rate today. Sometimes what Is not saId Is really the message. 

Quote; 

Originally Posted by The Walrus 0 
I do not trust the Company to use the data to better my safety. If the union thought that It was in 
my best Interest to partidpate, 1 would have Imagined that they would have at feast mentioned it 
In the Positive Rate today. Sometimes what Is not saId is really the message. 

Why put It there when nobody reads any of It? Maybe you should look at them? I am not sure how much 
more clear they (Quid be. 

In May, the SIG put out "The StG will be partidpating in the upcomIng Fatigue Risk Management Group 
( FRMG) meeting at the beginning of May . Expect 11 report from either or both AL?A committees from that 
meetIng ." 
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In the June 11 Positive Rate, you can find the following: ""Fatigue is the best pillow." You may recognize 
this statement as a famous quote attri buted to Benjamin Franklin. 

Data collection is final ly coming- line pilots hub-turning through II'ID In the July bid month will provide 
Initial data to ALPA and Fed Ex as we begin collecting fatigue data. This study seeks to understand how 
pi lots sleep on all types of Fed Ex Operations, with this first group of crews forming the "baseline" of 
domestic night hub turn operations. Pilots who would like to volunteer for this must be awarded a line that 
turns a minimum of three consecutive nights through IND, with less than a 4·hour turn. Please read the 
MOU here. " 

Then in the July SIG notes : "Some IND hub-turning A-300 Crews will be participating in Fatigue Data 
Collection via wrist-worn actigraphs in July. ALPA FRMC and company members of the FRMG will begin the 
data collection efforts to measure the alertness of pilots ftying I ND night hub turns. 

In the future, this data will help the company design safer pairings and the PSIT design safer lines. We 
want to thank you In advance for your voluntary participation in this first of many studies." 

#28 (oennalink) 

: L Not happening ... 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by ptarmi gan D 
Why put it there when nobody reads any of it? Maybe you should look at them? I am not sure how 
much more clear they could be. 

In May, the SIG put out "The SIG will be participating in the upcoming Fatigue Risk Management 
Group (FRMG) meeting at the beginning of May. Expect a report from either or both ALPA 
committees from that meeting." 

In the June 11 Positive Rate, you can find the following: ""Fatigue is the best pillow." You may 
recognize this statement as a famous quote attributed to Benjamin Franklin. 

Data collection is finally coming - line pilots hub-turning through IND in the July bid month will 
provide initial data to ALPA and FedEx as we begin collecting fatigue data. This study seeks to 
understand how pilots sleep on all types of Fed Ex Operations, with this first group of crews 
forming the "baselineN of domestic night hub turn operations. Pilots who would like to volunteer for 
this must be awarded a line that turns a minimum of three consecutive nights through IND, with 
Jess than a 4-hour tum. Please read the MOU here." 

Then in the July SIG notes: "Some IND hub- turning A-300 Crews will be participating in Fatigue 
Data Collection via wrist-worn act/graphs in July. ALPA FRMC and company members of the FRMG 
wlil begin the data collection efforts to measure the alertness of pilots flying IND night hub turns. 

In the future, this data will help the company design safer pairings and the PSIT design safer lines. 
We want to thank you in advance for your voluntary participation in this first of many studies. " 

You actually believe they wil l design safer lines? They have had the data and recommendations for 
years ... and no changes ... 

New data won't change anythlng ... otherwlse we would be living under the new flight time rules. 

Delay and stall. That is all this is. And try get us to negotiate something away in return for safer 
schedules . 

It is all about money. Flight t ime, duty time, lithium batteries . 

Safety costs money. 

#29 (oermal ink) 
. .... . ........... . 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by HKFiyr i2 

My opinion and view. (Last I knew, I am allowed to have one) 

Rumors of more Investigations abound. The issue is still being discussed as to what the rules are 
between the union and the company. 

Talk to more HK people about the hearings and advice the accused got. I would have gotten 
outside counsel also. It will be civil. And I think they will win. (After years in court I'm sure.) 

Yeah, you're allowed to have an opinion. You're also allowed to have a persecution complex if that Is your 
preference. · 

Word of advice, consider yourself investigation worthy anytime you go to work. The housing allowance 
wickets are too much of a temptation for the company to make money by denying it. You'l l never see me 
bid HKG. 

Outside counsel didn't do so well. The union advice was to take the deal and keep your job. You're going 
to have to define "winningr• a civil sult. 
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In the June 11 Positive Rate, you can fir1d the fo llowing: "~Fatigue is the best pillow. ~ You may recognize 
this statement as a famous quote attributed to Benjamin Franklin. 

Data collection is finally coming - line pilots hub-turning t hrough IND In the July bid month will provide 
Initial data to ALPA and FedEx as we begin collecting fatigue data. This study seeks to understand how 
pilots sleep on all types of Fed Ex Operations, with thIs first group of crews form ing the "baseline~ of 
domestic night hub turn operations. Pilots who would like to volunteer for th is must be awarded a line that 
turns a minimum of three consecutive nights through IND, with less than a 4-hour turn. Please read the 
MOU here. " 

Then i n the July SrG notes: "Some I ND hub-turning A-300 Crews will be participating in Fatigue Data 
Collection via wrist-worn actigraphs in July. ALFA FRMC and company members of the FRMG will begin the 
data collection efforts to measure the alertness of pilots flying IND night hub turns. 

In the fu ture, this data will help the company design safer pairings and the PSIT design safer lines. We 
want to thank you In advance for your voluntary participation in this first of many stUdies." 

#28 ~DermalinkJ 

: t. Not happening .. . 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by pta r migan D 
Why put It there when nobody reads any of It? Maybe you should look at them? I am not sure how 
much more clear they could be. 

In May, the SIG put out ~The SIG will be participating in the upcoming Fat/gue Risk Management 
Group (FRMG) meeting at the beginnfng of May. Expect a report from either or both ALPA 
committees from that meeting. R 

In the June 11 Positive Rate, you can find the following: ""Fatigue is the best pillow. N You may 
recognize this statement as a famous quote attributed to Benjamin Franklin . 

Data collection is finally coming - line pilots hub-turning through INO In the July bid month will 
provide initial data to ALPA and FedEx as we begin collecting fatigue data. This study seeks to 
understand how pilots sleep on all types of FedEx Operations, with this first group of crews 
forming the "baseline" of domestic night hub tum operations. Pilots who would like to volunteer for 
this must be awarded a line that turns a minimum of three conseculive nights through IND, with 
less than a 4-hour tum. Please read the MOU here.· 

Then in the July SIG notes: "Some IND hub-turning A-300 Crews will be participating in Fatigue 
Data Collection vIa wrist-worn actigraphs in July. ALPA FRMC and company members of the FRMG 
will begin the data collection efforts to measure the alertness of pilots flying IND nIght hub turns. 

In the future, this data will help tile company design safer pairings and the PSIT design safer lines. 
We want to thank you In advance for your voluntary partidpation in this first of many studies. ~ 

You actually belLeve they will design safer lines? They have had the data and recommendations for 
years ... and no changes .. . 

New data won't change anythlng ... otherwlse we would be living under the new fl ight time rules. 

Delay and stall. That Is all this Is. And try get us to negot iate something away In return for safer 
schedules. 

It Is al l about money. Flight time, duty t ime, lithium batteries . 

. Safety costs money. 

ri 
Quote: 

Original ly Posted by HKFlyr II 

My opinion and view. (Last I /<new, 1 am allowed to have one) 

Rumors of mort! Investigations abound. The issue is still being discussed as to what the rules are 
between the union and the company. 

Talk to more HI( people about the hearings and advice the accused got, I would have gptten 
outside counsel also. It will be civil. And I think they will win. (After years in court I'm sure.) 

Yeah, you're allowed to have an opinion. You're also allowed to have a persecution complex if that Is your 
preference. 

Word of advice, consider yourself Investigation worthy anytime you go to work. The housing allowance 
wickets are too much of a temptation for the company to. make money by denying It . You'll never see me 
bid HKG. 

Outside counsel didn't do so well. The union advice was to take the deal and keep your job. You're going 
to have to define "winning" a civil suit. 
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More than l ikely, i f they get a decent settlement, part of It will be you can't come back to work ever. If the 
settlement exceeds their probable lifetime earnings and retirement it might be considered a win. With 
their youth I doubt this will be the case. The stress of working on that project would never be worth It to 
me. 

L 

#30 (oenna link) 

Quote : 

Originally Posted by HKFiyr fl 
You actually believe they will design safer lines? They have had the data and recommendations for 
years ... and no changes ... 

New data won't change anything ..• otherwise we would be liv ing under the new flighttlme rules. 

Delay and stall. That Is all this is. And try get us to negotiate something away in return for safer 
schedules. 

It is all about money. Flight time, duty time, lithium batteries. 

Safety costs money. 

Did you miss the safety brief a couple of years ago? This Is mandated by HR5900. The company did not 
want this. The terms of how we conduct it was negotiated, that is all. They are required, by law, to use the 
data and adjust schedules accordingly. Go read the bi ll yourself! 
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More tnan llkely, if they get a decent settlement, part of It will be you can 't come back to work ever. If the 
settlement exceeds their probable lifetime earnings and retirement It might be considered a win. With 
their youth I doubt this will be the case. The stress of working on that project would never be worth It to 
me. 
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Quote: 

~ 
Originally Posted by HKFlyr fl 
You actually believe they will design safer lines? They have had the data and recommendations for 
years .. . and no changes .•. . , 
New data won't change anything ... othe/Wise we would be living under the new fligh t time rules. 

Joined APC: Aug 2006 
Delay and staff. That Is all this is. And try get us to negotiate something away in return for safer 1'tJ'its: 435 
schedules. 

It is al/ about money. Flight time, duty time, lithIum batteries. 

Safety costs money. 

Did you miss the safety brief a couple of years ago? This Is mandated by HR5900. The company did not 
want this. The terms of how we conduct it was negotJated, that Is all. They are required, by law, to use the 
data and adjust schedules accordingly. Go read the bill yourself! 
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Welcome to Airline Pilot Forums 

Already registered? Login above 
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To take advantage of all the site's features, become a member 
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the largest community of airline pilots In the U.S. and beyond. 
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#31 (oennallnk) 

Here is the full report: 

http-{/www ioatlilot.orolnorm/NASAFed t jonsStudy odf 

Be careful what you wish for. Scroll down to the Recommendations and pay particular attent ion to bullet 
number two: 

2. The night off represents an Important opportunity for recuperation. It breaks the pattern of 
accumulating sleep debt, with its accumulating Impairment of alertness and performance. Its position In 
the sequence of night duties needs to be related to the rate of sleep lass imposed by the schedules. On 
the Destination-Layover pattern, for e><ample, it would clearly have been unwise to add a fourth 
consecutive night of flying when a third of the crew members had already lost more than Bhr of 
sleep after three nights of flying. In contrast, on the Out-and·Back pattern, only a quarter of 
crew members had fast more than 8 hr sleep after 5 nights of flying. The use of naps as a fatigue 
countermeasure In overnight cargo operations deserves further attention (39) 

The recommendations from the study are no more than three consecutive nights of flying for hub·turns 
that layover at the out station. On the other hand, five consecutive nights of AM O&B where deemed less 
onerous. Had those recommendations been Implemented, week-on, week-off schedules would've been 
eliminated. FPA and ALPA never wanted to pursue those recommendations. You can't complain about the 
NASA sleep study being Ignored without knowing what is In there. 

"I suggest you don't assume anyone has a plan" -·Tractor Bob 

Last edited by MX727; 07-31-2013 at 06:58 AH. 
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Here is the full report; 

http'''w wlpagilgt nrglnprm/Nt§Aftd [IgnSShtdy pdf 

Be careful what you wish for. Scroll down to the Recommendations and pay particular attention to bullet 
number two: 

2. The night off represents an Impomnt opportunity for recuperation. It breaks the pattern of 
accumulating sleep debt, with its accumulating ImpaIrment of alertness and performance. Its posiUon In 
the sequence of night duties needs to be related to the rate of sleep loss imposed by the schedules. On 
the Destination-Layover pattern, fo r example, it would cleil rly hilve been unwise to add a fourth 
consecutive night of flying when a third of the crew members had already lost more than Bhr of 
sleep after three nights of flying. In contrast, on t he Out-and-Back pattern, only a Quarter of 
crew members had lost more than 8 hr s leep after 5 nights of flying. The use of naps as a fatigue 
countermeasure In overnight cargo opef7Jtions deserves further attention (39) 

The recommendations from the study are no more than three consecutive nights of flying for hub-turns 
that layover at the out station . On the other hand, five consecut ive nights of AM 0&6 where deemed less 
onerous, Had those recommendations been Implemented, week-on, week-off schedules wou ld've been 
eliminated, FPA and ALPA never wanted to pursue those recommendations. You can't comp!aln about the 
NASA sleep study being Ignored without knowIng what Is In there. 

"I suggest you don't assume anyone has a plan" -- Tractor Bob 
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Originally Posted by Gunter D 
Yeah, you're allowed to have an opinion . You're also allowed to have a persecution complex if that 
is your preference. 

No persecution complex here, just stating the obvious. 

Word of advice, consider yourself investigation worthy anytime you go to work. The housing 
allowance wickets are too much of a temptation for the company to make money by denying ft. 
You'll never see me bid HKG. 

I live here, wife, kids, dogs and fis/1. I live live in a glass house and follow the rules as we know 
them. I also work that way. We all have seen how living on the margins can help you become a 
target. 

Outside counsel didn 't do so well. The union advice was to take the deal and keep your job. You're 
going to have to define "winning" a civil suit. 

More than likely, if they get a decent settlement, part of i t will be you can't come back to work 
ever. If the settiement exceeds their probable lifetime earnings and retirement it might be 
considered a win. With their youth I doubt this will be the case. The stress of working on that 
project would never be worth it to me. 

I think If you talk to t he individuals it Is clear why they didn't take t he deal offered .. . lt wasn't a " deal". 
Conditions in it were ridiculous. and all the while, we negotiated away any leverage to fix it quickly for 3%. 

The one that settled is the only one the company really wanted bad<. The company dug a hole on that one 
and filled it as best they could. Heard from a management source It wasn't a good deal. Yeah, job back, 
along with r m sure some shackles. 

The others will spend years recouping their losses. I agree, no job ever, but it w ill be a large out of court, 
non disclosure deal. How much are your principals worth, is what it comes down to? That at least In the 
case on the one involved I know very well. (I hope that Is something you and I don't have to ever 
experience) 

Last edited by HKFiyr; 07·31· 2013 at 07:SS AM. 
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Quote: 

Originally Posted by HKFiyr IJ 
Heard from a management source It wasn't a good deal. 

Talking to a management type may have satisfied you In some fashion but I think t he conversat ion was 
worthless. I don't trust their answers, especially on things t hat aren't supposed to be disclosed. 

#'34 (oennallnk ) 

:L 
: (b ) Fatigue Risk Management Plan-

( 1) SUBMI SSION OF FATIGUE RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN BY PART 121 AIR CARRIERS- Not later t han 90 
days after the date of enactment o f this Act, each part 121 air carrier shall submit to the Administrator for 
rev iew and acceptance a fa tigue r isk managem ent plan for the carrier's pilots. 

You mean this? I guess I am missing where t here are requirements for enforcement on limiting duty 
hours, circadian disruptions, etc If the data shows something to be onerous, or unsafe ... 

Famous words ... "we are In compliance with FAR fl ight time duty times .. " It again comes back down on us 
to manage the fatigue, since we were cut out of the new regs. 

But, I know many members don't want to see It Implemented as i t wi ll possibly make commuting more 
difficult, or m ess up week on, week off schedules. 

Again, all about m oney. 

Data is data. Change the schedules ... now then I will believe t hey are doing som ething positive with t he 
data. 

#35 (cennal ink) 

Totally agree on management "stories" . Always taken with a pound of salt. 

Other info out there, but as you say ... non d isclosable. 
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Joined APe: Apr 2012 
Post.!!: 134 

Originally Posted by Gunter D 
Yeah, you 're allowed to have an opinion. You're also allowed to have a persecution complex if that 
is your preference. 

No persecution complex here, just stating the obvious. 

Word of advice, consider yourself Investigation worthy anytime you go to work, The housing 
allowance wickets are too much of a temptation for the company to make money by denyIng It 
You'll never see me bid HKG. 

I live here, wife, kids, dogs and fish. I five live In a glass house and follow the rules as we know 
them. I alsc work that way. We all have seen how living on the margins can help you become a 
target. 

Outside counsel didn't do so well. The union advice was to take the deal and keep your job. You're 
going to have to define ~winnlng" a elvl! suit. 

More than likely, ;(tIIey get a decent settlement part orit will be you can't come back to work 
ever. If the settlement exceeds their probable lifetime earnings and retirement It might be 
considered a win. With thefr youth t doubt this will be the case. The stress of working on that 
project would never be worth it to me. 

I think If you tal k to the Individuals It Is clear why they didn't take the deal offered .. .i t wasn't a -dear-, 
Conditions in it were ridiculous. and all the while, we negotiated away any leverage to fix it quickly for 3% . 

The one that settled is the only one the company really wanted bade. The company dug a hoie on that one 
and filled It as best they could. Heard from a management source it wasn't a good deal. Yeah, job back, 
along witn rm sure some shackles, 

The otners wl1l spend years recouping their losses. r agree, no job eve!"", but it will be a large out of court, 
non disclosure deal. How much are your prlndpals worth, Is what i t comes down to? That at least In Ule 
case on the one Involved J know very well . (I hope that Is someth ing you and I don't have to ever 
experience) 

Lilst ~iterJ by HKAyr,- 07-31·2013 lit 01:55 ~,.,. 

Qoote: 

Originally Posted by HKFl yr V 
Heard from iJ management source It wasn't a good deal. 

Talking to a management type may have satisfied you In some fashion but I think the conversation was 
worthless. I don't trust their answers, especially on things that aren't supposed to be dlsd osed. 

U4 (oermil llnkl 

. (b) Fatigue Risk Management Plan-

(1) SUBMISSION OF FATIGUE RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN BY PART 121 AIR CARRIERS~ Not later than 90 
days after the date of enactment of this Act, each part 121 air carrier shall 5ubmitto the Administrator for 
rev iew and <lcceptance a fatigue risk management plan for the carrier's pi lots . 

You mean this? I guess 1 am missing where there are requirements for enforcement on limiting duty 
hours, arcadian disruptions, etc If the data shows something to be onorous, or unsafe." 

Famous words ... "we are In compliance wIth fAR flight time duty times . ." It again comes back down on us 
to manage the fatigue, since we were cut out of the new regs. 

BlIt, I know many members don't want to see It Implemented as It will possibly make commuting more 
dlrfiaJ lt, or mess lip week on, week off schedules. 

Again, an about money. 

Data Is data. Change the schedules ... now then I will believe they are doing sornettl ing positive wIth the 
data, 

!t; 
i - . - - - - . - .. - . - .-- - -_. I Total ly agree on management "stories", Always taken with a pound of salt 

. Other Info out there, bllt as you say ... non dlsclosable. 
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42GO 
Gets Weekends Off 

Didn't say I was satisfied, but after talking with many people, formed an opinion. 

#36 (oennar.nk) 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by HKFiyr II 
(b) Fatigue Risk Management Plan-

(1) SUBMISSION OF FA71GUE RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN BY PART 121 AIR CARRIERS- Not later 
than 90 days after the date of enactment of this Act, each part 121 air carrier shall submit to the 
Administrator for review and acceptance a fatigue risk management plan for the carrier's pilots. 

You mean this? I guess I am missing where there are requirements for enforcement on limiting 
duty hours, dread/an disruptions, etc if the data shows something to be on oro us, or unsafe .•. 

Famous words ... •we are In compliance with FAR flight time duty times .. " It again comes back 
down on us to manage the fatigue, since we were cut out of the new regs. 

But, I know many members don't want to see it implemented as it will possibly make commuting 
more difficult, or mess up week on, week off schedules. 

Again, all about money. 

Data is data. Change the schedules ... now then I will believe they are doing something positive 
with the data. 

Actually, you need to read the entire section and the regulation. They have to use actual sdentific analysis 
to see what the issues are, what really will work and what does not, and then modify accordingly. I think 
that both the Company and us would like to show that flying 3 hub turns, taking one night off, then flying 
another one or two is NOT as safe as just flying 4 or 5 In a row. If that is the case, we can use that data to 
make a schedule that is both safer and better for commuters, but the data has to show it and be 
compelling enough to convince the ALPA, Company and then, possibly, some FAA sleep scientists. 

• . #_31 (oenna lln ~) 

iL 
I have read and understand most if the rule .... however, how long will that process take(it Is the 
government ... ), can the data be manlpulated(statlstlcs don't lie, but liars use statist ics), watered down, 
politicf.!ed, waived or ' alternative means of compliance". Lets not forget the power the company has with 
the Feds ... (remember the cargo carve out) 

But I will give you that I hope It does make a difference. I'm doubtful it will be much of a difference or 
anytime in the next 3 years. 

#38 (oermalink) 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by HKFiyr a 
I have read and understand most If the rule .... however, how long will that process take(it is the 
government. .. }, can the data be manipulated( stat/sties don't lie, but liars use statistics}, watered 
down, politidzed, waived or "alternative means of compliance'. Lets not forget the power the 
company has with the Feds ... (remember the cargo carve out) 

But I will give you that I hope It does make a difference. I'm doubtful it will be much of a 
difference or anytime In the next 3 years. 

While It is true that data can be manipulated, I am not too concerned about that as we (FDX-ALPA) not 
only has an equal part in what data Is procured but also we have our own sleep scientist to ensure that 
there are no mistakes, plus we have the resources of the ALPA engineering staff to check it, as well as our 
own people. The 'alternative means of compliance" are ways around the basic regulation, which, 
essentially, means that If you and your scientists can show with data that there is an alternative means 
that is just as safe, they might approve It (again, this would have to mean that the ALPA side agrees, as In 
my example of the possible advantage of more consecutive nights of hub turns than the 3 max). 

I agree with you regarding 3 years, real scientific studies and analysis do not happen overnight. 

#39 (oennalink) . . . -·---· -~-

You chronic complaines might need to read this. 

Rush Limbaugh 
It's always seductive to hang around people who tell you how mean the business is -- whatever your 

http://www .airlinepi lotforums .com/cargo/7 619 8-sell-your-soul-20-per-day-fdx -4 .html 

Page 3 of4 

8/5/2013 

Sell your soul for $20 per day ..... FDX - Page 4 - Airline Pilot Central Forums Page 3 of4 

Didn't say I was satisfied, but aftertalkfng with many people, formed an opinion. 

Q IIB'.I!I 

q 07-31-2013,08:12 AM #36(Jlennalink) 

Qtgrmiggn ' t, 
Get!f Weelcen.d5 Off 

Quate: 

~~ Original ly Posted by HKFIVr 11 .. (b) FatIgue Risk Management Plan-
~ 

\ . (1) SUBMISSION OF FAnGUE RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN BY PART 121 AIR CARRIERS- Not later 
than 90 days after the date ofet1iJctment of thls Ad, each part 121 air carrier shal! submit to the 

lolned A~: Aug 2005 Administrator for review and acceptance a fatigue risk management plan for the carrier's pilots. 
Posts: 435 

You mean this? [ guess 1 am missing where there are requirements fur enfOrcement on limiting 
duty hours, circadian disruptions, etc i'the data shows something to be onorous, or unsafe .. , 

Famous words ... Mwe are In ctJmplJance with FAR flight time duty times .. • It again comes back 
down on us to manage the fatigue, sinC1! we were cut out of the new regs. 

But, [ know many members don't want to see It Implemented as it will possibly make commuting 
more dimwIt, or me5S up week on, week off schedules. 

Again, af! about maney. 

Data is data. Change the schedules •• ,now then I will bel/eve they are doing something positive 
with the data. 

Actually, you need to read the entire section and the regulation. They have to use actual sdendfic analySiS 
to see what the Issues are, what really wUI work and what does not, and then modify accordingly, I th ink 
that both the Company and us would like to show that flying 3 hub turns, taking one night off, then flyIng 
another one or two Is NOT as safe as Just flying 4 or 5 In a row. If that Is the case, we can use that data to 
make a sdledu!e that is both safer and better for commuters, but the data has to show It and be 
compelling enough to convince the ALPA, Company and then, possibly, some FAA sleep scientIsts. 

0 IIB'.I!I 

~_~~~,-2013~":2:25 AM - ~31 (oerma Jln k) 

HKFlyr d£ 
Gets Weekends Off - - - -

I have read and understand most If the rule .. "however, how long wIll that process take(lt Is the 
joined APe: Apr 2012 government...), can the data be manlpulated(statlstlcs don't lie, bulliars use statistics), watered down, 
Posts: 134 politicized, waived Of "alternative means of compliance", lets not forget the power the company has with 

the feds ... (remember the cargo carve out} 

But I will give you that I hope It does make a difference, I'm doubtful it will be much of a difference or 
anytime In the next 3 years. 

0 rJB:I 

D08.Ql-20~, 04:38AM # 38 (permallnk) 

I2t~rmjg~n t 
Gets Weekeodf Off 

h",~ __ 

~ - , , - .-
Quote: 

~ 
Originally Posted by HKFlyr III 
I have read and understand most If the rule, ... however, how long will that process take(lt /s the 
government .. ,), am the data be manlpulated(statisticsdon't lie, but liars use statistics), watered 

( down, politldzed, waived or "illternatJve means of compliance n
• Lets not forget the power the 

company has with the Feds.,,(remember the cargo carve out) 

Joined Af'C: Aug 2006 
But I will give you that I hope It does make if difference. I 'm doubtful it will be much of a Posts: 43S 
difference or anytime In the next 3 years. 

While Itls true that data can be manipulated, 1 am not too concemed about that as we (FDX-ALPA) not 
only has an equal part In what data Is procured but also we have our own sleep scientist to ensure that 
there are no mistakes, plus we have the resources of the ALPA engineering staff to check It, as well as our 
own people. The "alternative means of compliance" are ways around the basic regulation, which, 
essentially, means that if yeu and your sdentlsts can show with data that there is an alternative means 
that is just as safe, they might approve It (again, this would have to mean that the AlPA sIde agrees, as In 
my example of the possible advantage or more consecutive nights of hub turns than the 3 max) . 

I agree with yoo regarding 3 years, real scfentific studies and analysis do not happen ovemlght, 

Q IIB'.I!I 

~~lH)1-20lJ~ 09:52 PM 
- ~-

_~9 (Ilentlatink) 

42GO B 
Gets Weekends Off -- . _. . - -

You chronic complalnes might need to read thIs. 
.~.- ~ - -

Rush Umbaugh 
It's always seductive to hang around people who tell you how mean the business Is - whatever your 

http: //www.airlinepilotforums.com!cargoI?6198-sell-your-soul-20-per-day-fdx-4.html 8/5/2013 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 170     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



FDX 4-000041

Sell your soul for $20 per day ..... FDX - Page 4- Airline Pilot Central Forums 

R . . 
Joined APC: Jul 2006 
Position: MD~ll Capt 
Posts: 311 

D 08-02·2013, 12:20 AM 

HKFiyr 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Apr 2012 
Posts: 134 

18;MI 

Posting Rules 

You may not post new threads 
You may not post replies 
You may not post a ttachments 
You may not edit your posts 

l!lUsllk. Is On 
~are On 
11t1m code Is On 
HTML code Is Off 
~are on 
~are On 
~are On 

Similar Threads 

Sample Scbedy!es 

· business is · ·and how unfair it is and how they got screwed by a bunch of people that didn't care. It's 
easy to find failures, and It's easy to be seduced by failure . 

"Some minds are like concrete thoroughly mixed up and permanently set." 

L 
Now that is thread creep, quoting Rush ... now 1 am really worried! 

Thread 

CHOOSE ANY INTERNE 
THEN ADD PHONE + TV 

JUST $34g9 
lmliDB· 
(888) 250-3918 ~3~-:~m 

« prey;ous Thn;ad I ~ » 

Thread Starter 

skylover Regional 

# 40 (oermalink) 

I Page-4of6 < 1 2 3'4 56> ul 

Forum Replies 

50 

What a 58 YO UPS pilo t t hjnks abou t the ! A Zoro Cargo 32 

OooUps they dkl It agafn. Ernst Cargo 148 

FOX drivers- are you lo\r!st1ng In you r s tock? - AV60R WAN NABE Cargo 61 

OHlin talks to sell US Unit to FOX Jurassic Jet C~ rgo 45 

All times are GMT -8. The time now is 05:31AM. 

Advertisina - Contact Us -Airline Pilot Central - Privas:v Policv -Terms and !=onditions - Car_eer- Archive - Too 

vBulletfn® v3.8 .6, Copyright @2000-2013, Jelsoft Enterprises ltd. 
Search Engfne Optim ization by illfQ 3.6.1 

Copyright ©2000- 2012 Internet Brands, I nc. 
r -···-- ·- ··-·- -· - - - ' 
I ib Internet Brands· Careers ! 

http://www. air linepilotforums .com/cargo/7 619 8-sell-your-soul-20-per-day-fdx -4 .htm 1 

Page 4 of4 

L<lst Post 

07·26·2012 07:31 PM 

07·26 -2012 06:32AM 

07·08·2010 06: 04 PM 

03- 19 -2009 08:40 At' 

01·26-2006 09:11 AN 

8/5/2013 

Sell your soul for $20 per day ..... FDX - Page 4 - Airline Pilot Central Forums 

business is -- and how unfair it Is and how they got screwed by a bunch of people that didn't care. It's 
easy to find failures, and It 's easy to be seduced by failure. 

"Some minds are like concrete thoroughly mixed up and permanently set. " 

JOilled A?C; lui 2006 
Pasition: MO-ll Capt 
Posts: 311 

o 
[J 08-02-2013, 12:20 AM 

HKFlyr 
Gets W~ekends Off 

L 
Now that is thread creep, quoting Rush .. now I am really worried! 

Joined A?C: Apr 2012 
Posts: 134 

Posting Rules 

You may not post new thre<tds 
You may not post replies 
You may not post ~tta<;hments 
yO\! may not edit your posts 

~isOn 
~areOn 
llI::!l:i.l code Is On 
HTML code Is Off 
~areOn 
~"'",On 
~areOn 

Similar Threads 

S!!mnl" Srbrd"le:; 

III 

Thread 

What it 58 yo pps pIlot t hinks aholl! lh .. TA 

OocUps they did It p9W 

FOX ddve!'5- are vall InY"'$tlng In ygll' stgd<? 

QHb In talks )o sel! US Unit to FOX 

CHOOSE ANY INTERNE 
,. 

THEN ADD PHONE + TV 

~s34gf 
(888) 250-391 B ~~i;~;l; 

Thread starter Forum 

skylo~"" R.l>gional 

"ro Cargo 

Ernst cargo 

~ AVIlOR. WANNABE Cargo 

JurassicJI>! Cargo 

All times am GMT -8. The time now is 05;31 AM . 

#40 (cermalink) 

Repl ies 

50 

'" 
" 

Advertisina - Contact Us - Airline Pilot Central - Priva~ Policy - Terms and !=onditions - ~ar_cer - Archive - Top 

vBulletln@v3.8.6,Copyright (l:)2000-2013, lelsoft Enterprtses ltd . 
Search Engine Optimization by illfQ 3.6.1 

Copyright ©2000 • 2012 Intemet Br.mds. Inc. ,---- ~-- ---.--- -- , 
i ft) Intemel Bm"d.· Careers I 

http ://www.airlinepilotforums.com/cargoI76198-sell-your-soul-20-per-day-fdx-4.html 

Page 4 of4 

L~st Post 

07-26-2012 07;)1 PM 

07-26-201206;)2 AM 

07-08-201006 ;04 PM 

03-19-200908; 40 At' 

01-26-200809 :11 AM 

8/5/2013 

      Case: 19-60716      Document: 00515316985     Page: 171     Date Filed: 02/20/2020



FDX 4-000042

:,, 
SeJJ your soul for $20 per day ..... FDX- Page 5 - Airline Pilot Central Forums Page 1 of4 

IJIIQj.p.iiiMi 

~ Afrtine Pflgt CentA I Forum > Airline Pitot Forum$ > ~ 
LW Sell your soul for $20 per day ..... FOX 

User Name User Name rJRemember Me· 

I Cargo Part 121 cargo airlines 

WIM/ 

IJ 08-{)2-2013, 12:46 AM 

42GO 
~kendsotf 

Iii . 
. 

Joined APC: l ui 2006 
Position: MD-11 Capt 
Posts: 311 

0 

[J 08-{)2·2013, 01:07AM 

HKFiyr 
Gets Weekends Off 

Joined APC: Apr 2012 
Posts: 134 

008-{)2-2013, 04:55AM 
~-.. .. . .. . 
onetime 
Gets Weekends Off 

Password f Log in I 

Quote; 

Today's Posts 

Welcome to Airline Pilot Forums 

Already registered? Login above 

OR 

To take advantage of all the site's features, become a member 
of 

the largest community of airline pilots in the U.S. and beyond. 

The advertising to the left will not show if you are a registered 
user. 

Join the forum 

I Page5ol6 < 1 2 3 ~ 5 6 > "' ' 

# 41 (pennalink) 

[
Originally Posted by HKFiyr il I 
Now that is thread ueep, quoting Rush ... now I am really worried! 

While you are ent itled to your own opinion, I would bet you money 85% of your line buddies listen and 
like his point of view ..... 
Consider yourself in the minority. 

"Some minds are like concrete thoroughly mixed up and permanently set." 

::."THE 
,_:~.;WHEEL 

Advertising above will not show If you are a registered user. 
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Air filter 15x stronger 
than baldng soda 

Kitchen Aid' 

#42 <o..~~alink) 

Actually listen to him myself ... meant as total humor as we have bounced around a lot in typical APC 
fashion( or pilot ADHD) on several topics ... 

#43 (Pennalink) .. ·-· .. 

i What side of this US versus the company argument would Rush side with? 
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Originally Posted by HKFlyr D 

Welcome to Airline Pilot Forums 

Already registered? Login above 

OR 

To take advantage of all the site's features, l>e<:ome a member 
of 

the largest community of airline pilots In the U.S. and beyond. 

The advertising to the left wil l not show if you are a registered 
user. 

Join the forum 

Now that is thread creep, quoting Rush .. now J am really worried! 

While you are entitled to your own opinion, I would bet you money 85% of your line buddies listen and 
like his point of view ..... 
Consider yourself In the minority. 
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Actually listen to him myself •.. meant as total humor as we have bounced around a lot In typical APe 
fashlon(or pilot ADHO) on several topics .. 
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i What side of this US versus the company argument would Rush side with? 

S ..... c h Q 
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#44 (oermalink) 

'e. 
I t 's time for another il legal parking lot deal! That will expedite negotiations ... as 
I used to be indecisive. Now I'm not so sure. 

#45 (oennaUnk) 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by onet ime i1 
What side of this US versus the company argument would Rush side with? 

That's the problem with politics, It's all about sides. And this trend has gotten worse. How bout the merits. 
Sometimes, the company's side is r ight and sometimes the individuals is right . I would say that Rush leans 
in favor toward company's success but I would also say that he is smart enough to recognize when the 
company is wrong. However, remember these guys get paid for drama so they (left and right) will 
sensationalize and Inflate for those ratings (pay check)! 

Preparing for incoming shlt storm .. .. 

The World On Time, except Memphis. 

#46 [oermalink) 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by 42GO I] 
You chronic complaines might need to read this. 

Rush Limbaugh 
It's always seductive to hang around people who tell you how mean the business is •• whatever 
your business is - and how unfair it is and how they got screwed by a bunch of people that didn't 
care. It's easy to find failures, and it's easy to be seduced by failure. 

It's easy to be seduced by the desire to pull up the ladder once you get yours. 

It's also easy to justify it in a myriad of ways. 

Enjoy 

1147 [oermalink) 

L 
Since we're posting quotes 

" ... Drug use, some might say, Is destroying this country. And we have laws against sell ing drugs, pushing 
drugs, using drugs, importing drugs. And the laws are good because we know what happens to people in 
societies and neighborhoods which become consumed by them. And so i f people are violating the law by 
doing drugs, they ought to be accused and they ought to be convicted and they ought to be sent up," 
Rush Limbaugh, 1995 

I couldn't agree more.$ 
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~44 (permalink) 

It's time for another illegal parking lot deal! That will expedite negotiations .. . S 
I used to be Indecisive. Now I'm not so sure. 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by onetime il 
What side a/this US versus the company argument would Rush side with? 

That's the problem with politics, It's all about sides. And this trend has gotten worse. How bout the merits. 
Sometimes, the company's side is right and sometimes the individuals is right. I would say that Rush leans 
in favor toward company's success but I would also say that he Is smart enough to recognize when the 
company is wrong. However, remember these guys get paid for drama so they (left and right) will 
sensationalize and Innate for those ratings (pay check)! 

Preparing for incoming shlt storm .. 

The World On Time, except Memphis. 

#46 (cerm~,I.il1k) 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by 42GO III 
You chronic comp/aines might need to read this. 

Rush Limbaugh 
It's a/ways seductive to hang around people who tell you how mean the business is -- whatever 
your business is - and how unfair it is and how they got screwed by a bunch of people that didn't 
care. It's easy to find failures, and it's easy to be seduced by failure. 

It's easy to be seduced by the desire to pull up the ladder once you get yours. 

It's also easy to justify it in a myriad of ways. 

Enjoy 

#47 (cermalink) 

t. 
Since we're posting quotes .. 

... Drug use, some might say, Is destroying this country. And we have laws against seiling drugs, pushing 
drugs, using drugs, importing drugs. And the laws are good because we know what happens to people in 
societies and neighborhoods which become consumed by them. And so if people are violating the law by 
doing drugs, they ought to be aCQ.lsed and they ought to be convicted and they ought to be sent up," 
Rush Limbaugh, 1995 

I couldn't agree more.e 
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My Negotiating Committee Speaks For ME! I 

:48 (oennalink) 

1 Money on the Mind - youD Jt>e 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by Busboy i2 
Since we're posting quotes ... 

f49 (oennalink) 

• ... Drug use, some might say, Is destroying this count:Iy. And we have laws against selling drugs, 
pushing drugs, using drugs, Importing drugs. And the laws are good because we know what 
happens to people in societies and neighborhoods which become consumed by them. And so If 
people are violating the law by doing drugs, they ought to be accused and they ought to be 
convicted and they ought to be sent up," Rush Umbaugh, 1995 

I couldn't agree more.$ 

He already admitted to being addicted by that t ime, but I guess the arrest was not until later. 

I SO (oermaiink) 

L 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by ptarmigan il 
He already admitted to being addicted by that time, but I guess the arrest was not until later. 

He admitted to being a drug addict In Oct. 2003, about 8 years after that quote. 

My Negotiating Committee Speaks For MEl! 
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Originally Posted by Busboy n 

~(f Since we're posting quotes .. 

~ 
• ... Drug use, some might say, is destroyfng tills country. And we have laws against sl!lling drugs, , 
pushing drugs, using drugs, Importing drugs. And the laws are good becal15e we know what 

Joined APC: Aug 2006 happens to pecJp/e in SDdeties and neighborhoods whIch become consumed by them. And so If 
Posts: 435 people are violating the law by doing drugs, they ought to be accused and they ought to be 

amvicted and they ought to IN! sent up, ~ Rush Umbaugh, 1995 

I couldn 't agree more,. 

He already admitted to being addicted by that time, but I guess the arrest was not unt il la ter. 
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Quote: 
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Originally Posted by ptarmigan 0 Posit!on: le~nin\l to the left 
Po<sts: 3,60S He already admitted to being addicted by that time, but I guess the arrest was nor until later. 

He admitted to being a drug addict In Od. 2003, about 8 years after that quote. 

My Negotiatlng Committee Speaks For MEl! 
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Quote: 

!
Originally Posted by Busboy 1.1 
He admitted to being a drug addict in Oct. 2003, about 8 years after that quote. I 

I stand corrected, thank you! 

Hypocrite in any event. 

Ad vertising above will not show If you are a registered user. 
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Quote; 

Originally Posted by Gunter D 
It's easy to be seduced by the desire to pull up the ladder once you get yours. 

It's a/so easy to justify it in a myriad of ways. 

Enjoy 

I might ask you WHO do you say feels "once you get yours" would that be anyone who is senior to YOU. 
Remember EVERYONE gets more senior every year they are here, including YOU. 

What a crock ... 

"Some minds are like concrete thoroughly mixed up and permanently set." 
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Quote: 

I Originally Posted by Busboy 11 
I He admftted to beIng a drug addict in Oct. 2003, about 8 years after that quote. I 

I stand corrected, thank you l 

Hypocrite in any event. 

Ad vertising above will not show If you ~ re a registered use, 

Quote: 

Originally Posted by Gunter D 
It's easY to be seduced by the desire to pull up the ladder once you get yours . 

It's also easy to justify it in a myriad of ways. 

Enjoy 

1 might ask you WHO do you say feels " once you get yours" would that be anyone who is senior to YOU. 
Remember EVERYONE gets more senior every year they are here, including YOU. 

What a crock . . 

"Some minds are like concrete thoroughly mixed up and permanently set." 
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Quote: 

Originally Posted by onetime ~ 
What side of this US versus the company argument would Rush side with? 

I'm guessing that most pi lots side with almost every company, except airlines. 

I can almost guarantee that when those pilots hire someone to do work for them, be it around the house 
or in a side business, the plight of the worker isn't h igh on their list of getting the job done. It like the 
theory of relativity, are you in the train or in front of the train? e 
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Quote: 

Originally Posted by onetime Q 
What side of this US versus the company argument would Rush side with? 

I'm guessing that most pilots side with almost every company, except airl ines . 

I can almost guarantee tllat when those pilots hire someone to do work for them, be It around the house 
or in a side bUsiness, the plight of the worker isn't high on their list of getting the job done. It like the 
theory of relativity, are you in the train or In front of the train? 
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Quote: 

Originally Posted by hypoxia :f;l 
I actually can see a need for reject/go training on the normal 15/0 takeoff! For so many years we 
have been doing 15/20 takeoffs with a "VI/rotate" callout virtually simultaneously. Now its "VI" 
one potato, two potato, potato, "Rotate•. I'm concerned a "normal' flap 15/0 takeoff at lets say an 
airport like Burbank with an "engine failure" callouttwo potato past Vl may result in a reject 
because the nose is still on the ground. Kind of a muscle memory thing_ Could be ugly! 

"ChiJnge is often the genesis of mistakes. • I agree! 

You won't be doing a 15/0 T/ 0 out of BUR unless you are EMPTY! 

i 

Originally Posted by 2cylinderdrlver fl 
The Union should not have any need to defend these pilots if the ASAP program works as 
advertised. 

! While I agree with your ASAP observat ion ... 

' 
I've attended Several ALPA (National) Accident Investigation Courses. At one of the courses, an (one of 
t he many) ALPA attorneys came It to give a lecture. He said, "It's my job to protect your license and your 
job if you're involved In any sort of incident. If you bend metal at Fed Ex you get FIRED!" In as much 
as this was an ALPA NATIONAL class (I was the only FedEx pilot), I found his observation quite telling. 

:The good news ... we finally got an ASAP program! 

; The bad ... I'm not sure how good a reputation the ALPA attorneys have keeping jobs? 

' I used to be indecisive. Now I'm not so sure. 

148 (permallnk) 
- - ----··---

;L 
i -·-·--·--- ·~---·----·- - ···-- - ----- - - --- - -

Quote: 

Originally Posted by MaydayMark i!1 
While I agree with your ASAP observation ... 

I've attended Several ALPA (National) Acddent Investigation Courses. At one of the courses, an 
(one ofthe many) ALPA attorneys came it to give a lecture. He said, "I t's my job to protect your 
license and your job if you're involved in any sort of incident. If you bend metal at FedEx you 
get FIRED!" In as much as this was an ALPA NATIONAL class (I was the only FedEx pilot), I found 
his observation quite telling. 

The good news ... we finally got an ASAP program! 

The bad-·- I'm not sure how good a reputation the ALPA attorneys have keeping jobs? 

: ALPA Lawyers will not be Involved if it goes through ASAP, the whole point of an accepted report means 
·the Company can not discip line the pilot for said event. I would say that ALPA National Lawyer was looking 

at the past history at Fed Ex not the new one with a working ASAP program. 

1 We all make mistakes, if you make an honest m istake, report it and were not conducting yourself in a 
' manner to get your report r ej ected then you should be OK, provided you can complete any required 

corrective action required by the ERC. 
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Quo to: 

Originally Posted by MEMbrain ~ 
You won't be doing a 15/0 T/ 0 out of BUR unless you are EMPTY! 

First of all, you missed my point but secondly you proved it! The pilot group as a whole uses "muscle 
memory" with years and years of doing t he same procedures. The now "normal" 15/D default 
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Originally Posted by hypoxia :La 
I actually can see a need for reject/go training on the norma/1SjO takeoff! For so many yeiJfS we 
have been doing 15/20 tlIkeoffs with iJ ~V1/rotiJte· ca/lout virtually simultaneously. Now Its ~Vl " 
one potato, nvo potato, porato, "Rotate", I'm concerned a "normal· flap 15/0 takeoff at lets sayan 
airport like Burbank with an "engine fai/ure" callout two potato past Vl may result in a reject 
because the nose is sUfi on the ground. KInd of iJ muscle memory thing. Could be uglyl 

"Change is often the genesis of mistakes . • J agree! 

You won't be doing a 15/0 T/O out of BUR unless you are EMPlYI 

------------
Quote: 

Origlnallv Posted by lcylinderdriver £I 

, 

The Union should not have any need to defrmd these pilots if the ASAP progf<Jm works as 
advertised. 

! While I agree with your ASAP observation, , 
, I 've attended Several ALPA (National) Accident InvestiQatlon Courses. At one of the courses, an (one of 
t~e many) ALPA attorneys came It to give a lectu re. He said, "It's my job to protect your license and your 
job If you're Involved In any sort of Incident. If you bend metal at FedEx you get FIRED!" In as much 
as this was an ALPA NATIONAL class (I was the only FedEx pilot), I found his observation quite telling. 

: The good news ... we finally got an ASAP programl 

I The bad ... I'm not sure how good a reputation the ALPA attorneys have keeping jobs? 

I used to be indecisive. Now I'm not so sure. 

--- ----,- ---_ . 

; \:-~---------------------
Quote: 

Originally Posted by MaydayMark ~ 
While I agree with you,.- ASAP observation . .. 

I've attended Several ALPA (Na tional) Acddent fnvestigatlon Courses. At one of the cvurses, an 
(one of the many) ALPA attorneys came it to gIve a lecture. He said, -It's my job to protect your 
license and your job if you're Involved in any sort of Incident . If you bend metal at FedEx you 
get FIREDfU In as much as this W/JS an ALPA NATIONAL dass (I was the only FedEx pilot), I found 
his observation quite telling. 

The good news ... we finally got an ASAP progriJml 

The bad . . I'm not sure how good a re(Jutation tile ALPA attorneys have keeping jobs ? 

: ALPA Lawyers will not be Involved if It goes through ASAP, the whole point of an accepted report means 
, the Company Ciln not discipline the pilot for S(Jld event. I would say that ALPA National lawyer was looking 
ilt the past history at FedEx not the new one with a working ASAP program. 

i We all make mistakes, If you make an honest mistake, report It and were not conducting you rself In a 
: manner to get your report rejected then you shOUld be OK, provided yOU can complete any required 

corrective ilction required by the ERe. 

hyooxia 11} 
Gets Weekends Off - - ------ ------------- -

Quote: 

Originally Posted by MEMbrain ~ 
You won't be doing a 15/0 T/O out of BUR unless you iJre EMPIT! 

FIrst of ali, you missed my point but secondly you proved It I The pilot group as a whole uses "muscle 
, memory" with years and years of doing the same procedures. The now "normal" 15/0 default 

Page 3 of4 

http://www.airlinepilotfonuns.comlcargoI76327-fdx-fuel-sense-co=on-sense-safety-5.htrnl 8/8/2013 
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION 

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 

MARK ESTABROOK, ) 
) 

Complainant, ) 
) 

~ ) 
) 

FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION, ) 
) 

Respondent. ) 

Case No.: 2014-AIR-00022 
Hearing Date: TBA 

RESPONDENT FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION'S RESPONSES TO 
COMPLAINANT'S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES 

Respondent Federal Express COiporation (FedEx), by and through counsel and pursuant 

to 29 C.F.R. § 18.18, hereby respOnds to Complainant's First Set of Interrogatories to 

Respondent FedEx as follows: 

PRELDDNARYSTATEMENT 

Respondent has not completed its investigation, discovery, or analysis of all the facts of 

this case and has not completed preparation for trial. Accordingly, all of the following responses 

are provided without prejudice to Respondent's right to supplement or amend discovery 

responses as permitted by the applicable rules, or introduce at trial any evidence that is 

subsequently discovered relating to proof of presently known facts and to produce and introduce 

all evidence whenever discovered relating to the proof of subsequently discovered material facts. 

Moreover, facts, documents and things now known may be imperfectly understood and 

accordingly such facts, documents, and things may not be included in the following responses. 

Respondent reserves the right to reference, discover or offer into evidence at the time of trial any 

C-121 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMIN1STRATION 

OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 

MARK ESTABROOK, ) 
) 

Complainan~ ) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION, ) 
) 

Respondent. ) 

Case No. : ~OI4-AIR·00022 
Hearing Dale: TBA 

RESPONDENT FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION'S RESPONSES TO 
COMPLAINANT'S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES 

Respondent Federal Express COIpO<l!tion (FedEx), by and through counael and pursuant 

to 29 C.F.R. § 18.18, hereby rcspOnds to Complainant's First Set of Interrogatories to 

Respondent FedEx as fullows: 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

Respondeat bas not compleled its investigation, discoveI)', or analysis of all tho facts of 

this esse and bas not completed prcporation for trial. Accordingly, all of the following responses 

are provided without prejudice to Respondent's right to supplemeot or amend discovery 

responses as permitted by the xpplicable rule .. or introduce at trial any evidence that is 

subsequently discovered relating to proof of prcsently known facts and to produce and introduce 

all evidence whenever discovered relating to the proof of subsequently discovered material facts. 

Moreover, facts, documents and things now known may b. imperfectly understood and 

accordingly such facts, documents, and things may not be included in the following responses. 

Respondent reserves the right to reference, discover or offer into evidence at the time of trial any 
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and all facts, documents, and things which it does not presently recall but may recall at some 

time in the future. 

RESPONSES TO INTERROGATORIES 

INTERROGATORY NO. 1: Identify each person you have interviewed to obtain facts 

relating to the Complaint. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY N0.1: Respondent objects to Interrogatory No. 

1 to the extent in seeks information protected by the attomey~client privilege and attorney work 

product doctrine. Without waiver of or prejudice to the foregoing objections, Respondent 

identifies the following individuals: 

Robb Tice, Lead Counsel, Labor Relations 

Phil Tadlock, Senior Attorney, Labor Relations 

Cindy Sartain, Senior Paralegal Specialist 

Maryanne Miller, Senior Paralegal Specialist 

Rob Fisher, Assistant System Chief Pilot 

Todd Ondra, MD Aviation & Regional Security 

INTERROGATORY NO. l: Identify each person with first~band knowledge of any 

fact upon which you might rely in defense of the Complaint. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.2: See Response to Interrogatory No. 1. In 

addition, Respondent identifies Manager Fleet Operations Mitch Matheny, Duty Officer Mark 

Crook and Senior GOC Specialist Sherrie Hayslett. 

INTERROGATORY NO.3: Identify each person you intend to call to testify in your 

case in chief. 

2 
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and all facts, documents, and things whicb it does not presently recall but may =a1I at some 

time in the future. 

RESPONSES TO INTERROGATORIES 

INTERROGATORY NO. 1: Identify eaeb person you bave interviewed to obtain facts 

relating to the Complaint. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.1: Re3pondent objects to Inle",ogaloryNo. 

1 to the exlent in seeks information protected by the attorney· client privilege and attorney work 

product doctrine. Without waiver of or prejudice to the fo"'going objections, Respondent 

identifies the following individualll: 

Rubb Tice, LeDd Counsel, Labor Relations 

PbiI Tadlock, Senior Attorney, Labor Relations 

Cindy Sartain, Senior Paralegal Specialist 

Maryanne Miller, Senior Paralegal Specialist 

Rub Fisher, Assistant System ChiefPUot 

Tndd Oudra, MD Aviation & Regional Security 

INTERROGATORY NO.1: IdentifY each person with lint-band knowledge of any 

fact upon which you might rely in defense of the Complaint. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.1: See Response to InlerrogatoryNo. 1. In 

addition, Respondent identifies Manager Fleet Operations Mitch Matheny, Duty Officer Mark 

Crook and Senior GOC Specialist Sbetrie Hayslett. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 3; IdentifY eDeh person you intend to call 10 testifY in your 

case in chief. 

2 
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RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.3: Respondent has not completed its 

preparation for the hearing in this matter and has not yet determined each and every person it 

intends to call in the case in chief. Respondent will supplement this response as required. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 4: Identify each person you might call to testify in your 

rebuttal case. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.4: Respondent has not completed its 

preparation for the hearing in this matter and has not yet determined each and every person it 

intends to call in the case in chief. Respondent will supplement this response as required. 

INTERROGATORY NO.5: Identify the custodian of any recorded conversations in 

which the Complainant was a party relating to the Laredo Departure referenced in paragraphs 4 

through 8 of the Complaint. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 5: With respect to the Laredo Departure 

referenced in Paragraphs 4 through 8 of the Complaint, copies of the recorded conversations 

were retrieved and preserved shortly after the events in question. The custodian of these 

recordings is Michael McAfee, Manager Global Ops Control. Copies of the recorded 

conversations are also currently maintained by the legal department. 

INTERROGATORY NO.6: Identify any persons involved in the decision to place the 

Complainant on not qualified (NOQ) status on or about August 5, 2013. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 6: Respondent identifies the following 

individuals, who may be contacted through undersigned counsel: 

3 
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RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.3: Respondent has not completed its 

preparation for the hearing in this matter and has not yet determined each and every person it 

intends to call in the case in chief. Respondent will supplement this response as required. 

INTERROGATORY NO.4: Identify each person you might call to testify in your 

rebuttal case. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 4: Respondent has not completed its 

preparation for the hearing in this matter and has not yet detennined each and every person it 

intends to call in the case in chief. Respondent will supplement this response as required. 

INTERROGATORY NO.5: Identify the custodian of any recorded conversations in 

which the Complainant was a pany relating to the Laredo Departure referenced in paragraphs 4 

through 8 of the Complaint 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.5: With respect to the Laredo Departure 

referenced in Paragraphs 4 through 8 of the Complaint, copies of the recorded conversations 

were retrieved and preserved short ly aner the events in question. The custodian of these 

recordings is Michael McAfee. Manager Global Ops Control. Copies of the recorded 

conversations arc also currcntly maintained by the legal depanment. 

INTERROGATORY NO.6: Ident ify any persons involved in the decision to place the 

Complainant on not qualified (NOQ) sta tus on or about August 5. 20 13. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.6: Respondent identifies the rollowing 

individuals, who may be contacted through undersigned counsel: 

3 
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Robert Fisher 

William McDonald 

Todd Ondra 

Robb Tice 

INTERROGATORY NO. 7: State the reasons why the Complainant was placed on 

NOQ status on or about August 5, 2013. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 7: Complainant was placed on NOQ status 

on or about August 5, 2013 because he had been referred for examination under Section 15.0 . of 

the collective bargaining agreement between Respondent and the Air Line Pilots Association. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 8: ldenti1y all efforts made to preserve recorded 

conversations between Fed Ex GOCC, the Flight Duty Officer and the Complainant on April I 0, 

2013, and record conversations between the Complainant and Manager of A300/3l0 Fleet 

Operations, Captain Rob Fisher on August 9, 2013. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 8: With respect to the April 2013 

conversation referred to in Interrogatory No. 8, copies of the recorded conversations were 

retrieved and preserved shortly after the events in question. Copies of the recorded 

conversations are currently maintained by the legal department. With respect to the August 9, 

2013 conversation referred to in Interrogatory No. 8, after reasonable investigation Respondent is 

unaware of any recorded conversation between Complainant and Fisher. 

4 
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Raben Fisher 

William McDonald 

Todd Ondra 

Rabb Tice 

INTERROGATORY NO.7: State the reasons why the Complainant was placed on 

NOQ status on or about August 5, 2013. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.7: Complainant was placed on NOQ status 

on or about August 5, 2013 because he had been referred for examination under Seclion 15.0. of 

the collective bargaining agreement betwcen Respondent and the Air Line Pilots Association. 

INTERROGATORY NO.8: Identify all efforts made to preserve recorded 

conversations between FedEx aocc, thc Flight Duty Officer and the Complainant on April 10, 

2013, and record conversations between the Complainant and Manager of A300/310 Fleet 

Operations. Captain Rob Fisher on August 9, 2013. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.8: With respect to the April 2013 

conversation referred to in lnterrogalory No.8, copies of the recorded conversations were 

retrieved and preserved shanty after the events in question. Copies of the recorded 

conversations 3rc currently maintained by the legal department. With respect to the August 9. 

2013 conversation referred to in Interrogatory No.8, after reasonable investigation Respondent is 

unaware of any recorded conversation between Complainant and Fisher. 
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INTERROGATORY NO. 9: Identify any persons who prepared or assisted in the 

preparation of your answers to any of these interrogatories. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.9: Maryanne Miller, Senior Paralegal 

Specialist, Labor Relations; Robb Tice, Lead Counsel, Labor Relations; Phil Tadlock, Senior 

Attorney, Labor Relations. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 10: With respect to any denial in response to the Requests 

for Admissions below, identify the person you intend to call to testify to support your denial. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 10: With respect to Request No. 6, 

Respondent intends to call Complainant and Rob Fisher. With respect to Request No.7, 

Respondent intends to call Complainant, Rob Fisher, Robb Tice and/or Todd Ondra. With 

respect to Request No. 8, Respondent intends to call Complainant, Rob Fisher, Robb Tice and/or 

Todd Ondra. With respect to Request No.9, Respondent intends to call Complainant, Rob 

Fisher, Robb Tice and/or Todd Ondra. With respect to Request No. I 0, Respondent intends to 

call Complainant, Rob Fisher, Robb Tice and/or Todd Ondra. With respect to Request No. 11, 

Respondent intends to ca11 Complainant, Rob Fisher, Robb Tice and/or Todd Ondra. With 

respect to Request No. 16, Respondent intends to call Robb Tice. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 11: Identify all efforts made by you to identify the individual 

posting as Mayday Mark after August 5, 2013. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 10: Respondent objects to Interrogatory 

No. 11 on the grounds that it seeks information not relevant to this matter nor reasonably 

calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Without waiver of the foregoing 

5 
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INTERROGATORY NO.9: Identify any persons who prepared or assisted in the 

preparation of your answers to any of these interrogatories. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO.9: Maryanne Miller, Senior Paralegal 

Specialisr, Labor Relations; Robb Tice, Lead Counsel , Labor Relations; Phil Tadlock, Senior 

Atlomey, Labor Relations. 

INTERROGATORY NO. 10: With respect to any denial in response to the Requests 

for Admiss ions below, identify the person you intend to call to testifY to support your denial. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 10: With respect to Request No. 6, 

Respondent intends to call Complainant and Rob Fisher. With respect to Request No.1, 

Respondent intends to call Complainant, Rob Fisher, Robb Tice andlor Todd Ondra, With 

respect to Request No.8, Respondent intends to call Complainant, Rob Fisher. Robb Tice and/or 

Todd OndrJ. With respect to Request No.9, Respondent intends to call Complainant, Rob 

Fisher, Robb Tice andlor Todd Ondra. With respect to Request No. 10, Respondent intends to 

call Complainant, Rob Fisher, Robb Tice andlor Todd Dndra. With respect to Request No. II , 

Respondent intends to call Complainant, Rob Fisher, Robb Tice andlor Todd Ondra. With 

respect to Request No. 16, Respondent intends to call Robb Tice. 

INTERROGATORY NO. II: Identiry all errorts made by you to identify the individual 

posting as Mayday Mark arter August 5, 2013. 

RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 10: Respondent objects to Interrogatory 

No. J I on the grounds that it seeks inrormation not relevant to this matter nor reasonably 

calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Without waiver of the foregoing 

5 
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objections, Respondent states that, upon learning ofthe postings, Robb Tice printed copies of 

them. During the meeting with Complainant on August 9, 2013, Tice asked Complainant ifhe 

were the individual posting messages under the name "Mayday Mark." Complainant denied 

making the postings, and Tice made no further inquiry of Complainant. No further investigation 

was done. 

6 

Respectfully submitted, 

s/ David P. Knox 
David P. Knox (TN Bar No. 020 162) 

Federal Express Corporation 
3620 Hacks Cross Road, Bldg. 8 - 3d Fl. 
Memphis, Tennessee 3 8125 
Telephone: (90 I) 434-6286 
Facsimile: (90 I) 434-9279 
david.knox@fedex.com 

C-126 

objections. Respondent states that, upon Jearning of the postings, Robb Tice printed copies of 

them. During the meeting with Complainant on August 9, 2013, Tice asked Complainant if he 

were the individual posting messages under the name "Muyduy Mark ." Complainant denied 

making the postings, and lice made no further inquiry of Complainant. No further investigation 

was done. 

6 

Respectfully submitted, 

sf David P. Knox 
David P. Knox (TN Bar No. 020162) 

Federal Express Corporation 
3620 Hacks Cross Road, Bldg. B - 3d FI. 
Memphis, Tennessee 38125 
Telephone: (90 I) 434-6286 
Facsimile: (90 I) 434-9279 
david.knox@fedcx.com 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on October 29, 2014, a copy of the foregoing Respondent Federal 
Express Corporation's Responses to Complainant's First Set of Interrogatories was served 
upon the following via email and Federal Express overnight Jetter, postage prepaid: 

1084903 

Lee Seham, Esq. 
Seham, Seham, Meltz & Petersen, LLP 
445 Hamilton A venue, suite 1204 
White Plains, NY I 0601 
Telephone: (914) 997-1346 
Facsimile: (914) 997-7125 
Email: lseham@ssmplaw.com 

s/ David P. Knox 
David P. Knox 
Federal Express Corporation 

7 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby cenily that on October 29,2014, a copy of the foregoing Respondent Federal 
Express Corporation's Responses to Complainant's First Set of Interrogatories was served 
upon the following via email and Federal Express overnight letter, postage prepaid: 

1084903 

Lee Schum, Esq. 
Seham, Scham. Meltz & Petersen, LLP 
445 Hamilton Avenue, suite 1204 
Whi,e Plains, NY 10601 
Telephone: (914) 997-1346 
Facsimile: (9 14) 997-7125 
Email: Iseham@ssmplaw.com 

sl David P. KflOX 

On vid P. Knox 
Federal Express Corporation 
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VERIFICATION 

MaryAnne Miller, being of full age, certifies and states that she is authorized to sign the 

foregoing Respondent Federal Express Corporation's Responses to Complainant's First Set 

of Interrogatories and that she has read and knows the contents thereof, and that the Responses, 

subject to inadvertent or undiscovered errors, are based upon and, therefore, limited by, the 

records and infonnation still in existence, presently recollected, and thus far discovered in the 

course of the preparation of these Responses; that consequently, Respondent reserves the right to 

amend the Responses if it appears at any time that omissions or errors have been made therein, or 

that more accurate information is available; that subject to the limitations set forth therein, said 

Responses are true to the best of her knowledge, infonnation, and belief. 

I hereby certify under penalty of pet.jury that the foregoing statement is true. 

Mary Miller 
Senior Paralegal Specialist, Labor Relations 

8 
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VERIFICATION 

MaryAnne Miller, being of full age, certifies and states that she is authorized to sign the 

foregoing Respondent Federal Express Corporation's Responses to Complainant's First Sct 

of Interrogatories and tllat she has read and knows the contents thereof, and that the Responses, 

subject to inadvertent or undiscovered errors, are based upon and, therefore, limited by, the 

records and information still in existence, presently recollected, and thus far discovered in the 

course of the preparation of these Responses; that consequently, Respondent reserves the right to 

amend the Responses if it appears at any time that omissions or enors have been made therein, or 

that more accurate infonnation is available; that subject to the limitations set forth therein, said 

Responses arc true to the best of her knowledge, infonnation, and belief. 

1 hereby certify under penalty of pedury that the foregoing statement is true. 

Mary Miller 
Senior Paralegal Specialist, Labor Relations 

8 
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CAPT Rob Fisher Fl T CAPT for Airbus Jan 2011 to March 14 

4/30/2014 

NOQ happens once per month I would say. That is pretty common. Psyc issues once that I {need it?] 

If company has a reasonable cause to believe psych issues we can send a pilot for evaluation. 

Repayment agreement. Camp and CP doc agreed on 3rd doc agreement. 

First learned from Rob Tice and Bill McDonald. Got a [illegible] letter. We decided to talk to him. We got 

together and he told us his concerns. We talked about two areas. One was about tracking issue. One 

was about Auburn Calloway. The meeting was very short. He was placed back on FLT Status. 

Knowing what I know as a flight mgr, there was no reason to keep him off Fl T Status. The copriate Sec. 

guy left before meeting was over. In hindsight we probably should have kept him off FLT Status and 

conferred with Todd Ondra rather than make the decision on our own. 

Todd Ondra called us back and told us he had to have a 150 psyc. 

Rob Tice. Todd called me and said what concerned him was reference to Auburn Calloway and al Qaeda. 

I acknowledged since this was safety and security, they had a stake in say of a 150 referral. 

We consult with Harvey Watt in ATL for Medical. It keeps flight cps from knowing personal medical 

information and personal intimate information. 

Rob called us and gave us the news. I had to make the difficult call to Mr. Estabrook. I was not 

completely convinced. I take up to my people. I called Mark and told him in the interest of caution he 

had to be placed back on NOQ. He was very upset. I [wrote?] everything and sent it all to Rob Tice. 

May 2013 I brought Mark in and counseled him about the weather incident. 

We tell him when to be at work. He tells us when he is going to move the airplane. 

I did not know Mark filed a whistleblower complaint until you just told me. 

Todd Ondra had no idea he filed a whistleblower complaint for the weather incident. He had no reason 

to know. 

No knowledge of previous concerns raised in 2002 as he claimed. 

1 am responsibly for 950 pilots. He was another guy in the crowd. 
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We have 4,500 pilots now. Absolutely no pilot or any other employee for that matter should believe 

they can just make a phone call and expect Fred Smith to call him over a security issue. 

I think we exercised considerable restraint in that we did not have him go through another 150. Who 

goes to a place [illegible] was in going on and not being paid to do so. And places himself in the [illegible] 

of danger? WE still have an obligation to his safety. 

He flew two trips before we knew what kind of injuries he had. Being under anesthesia, surgery would 

require him to be cleared by his AME. 

As of now he is back on the line and flying. 

C-134 
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(770) 4151-0313 

FAX (770) 4151-0317 

Robert Tice, Esq. 

ALAN ARMSTRONG 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 

2000 CHAMBLEE-TUCKER ROAD 

BUILDING f5, SUITE Of50 

ATLANTA, OEOROIA 1301341 

August 20, 2013 

Lead Counsel - Labor Relations Law 
FedEx Corporation 

James H. Ferguson, Esq. 
General Counsel 
FedEx Corporation 

3620 Hacks Cross Road 
Memphis, TN 38125 

Re: Captain Mark Estabrook 

Dear Mr. Tice: 

3620 Hacks Cross Road 
Memphis, TN 3 8125 

We are in receipt of your letter dated August 16,2013. 

alan@alanarmsttonglaw.com 
www.alanarmstronglaw.com 

Via Email 
rwtice@fedex.com 

This letter will serve to inform you of my client's intention to proceed with an AIR-21 
action pursuant to 49 U.S.C. §42121. This letter shall also serve as a formal grievance pursuant 
to Section 20 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) based on the Company's violation 
of Captain Estabrook's rights under Sections 15.0 and 15.0 ofthe CBA. Pursuant to Section 
20.C of the CBA, Captain Estabrook hereby demands that the Company provide him "as soon as 
practicable" with the names of all witnesses and copies of all documentary information 
(including all electronic documents and correspondence) that have been, or may be, used to 
establish a reasonable basis for suspecting that Captain Estabrook is currently suffering from an 
impairment that would prevent him from performing his duties as a pilot - including, but not 
limited to, the highlighted postings of "Mayday Mark" that the Company brought to the meeting 
of August 9, 2013. 

Protected Activity 

We will first briefly address the disingenuous argument contained in your letter of 
August 16,2013, that Captain Estabrook has not engaged in protected activity. 

Captain Estabrook is a professional pilot whose first objective has been the safe operation 
of Company aircraft. His service on the FedEx ALP A Security Conunittee, Secretary of 
Transportation Mineta's emergency ad hoc 9/11 Committee, his expressed concerns over the 
Company's handling of its flight and cargo operations are both well-known and documented. 
Due to the Company's countervailing interests in meeting its schedule and ensuring profitable 
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Company's handling ofits flight and cargo operations arc both well~known and documented. 
Due to the Company's countervailing interests in meeting its schedule and ensuri ng profitable 
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Robert Tice, Esq. 
August 20,2013 
Page2 

operation, Captain Estabrook's focus on safety has repeatedly placed him in conflict with FedEx 
management. 

In terms of recent events, on April 10,2013, Captain Estabrook refused to depart on a 
FedEx flight because of a severe and solid line of thunderstorms between his departure airport, 
Laredo (LRD), and scheduled arrival airport of Memphis (MEM). In retaliation for his safety­
based determination as Pilot-in-Command, as defined by the Company's own Flight Operations 
Manual (FOM), and Federal Aviation Regulations (FARs), FedEx commenced disciplinary 
proceedings against Captain Estabrook. This retaliation caused Captain Estabrook to file AIR-21 
Complaint No. 861872 with the United States Department of Labor on April29, 2013. When the 
Company subsequently terminated its disciplinary proceedings, Captain Estabrook, being non­
litigious in nature, withdrew his AIR-21 action. 

Captain Estabrook's zealous advocacy of safety over schedule no doubt left a bitter taste 
in the mouth of the Company's legal department. This resentment appears to have substantially 
motivated the threats of psychiatric and medical evaluation, based on shifting pretextual 
rationales, discussed further below. Nevertheless, federal law strictly prohibits such retaliatory 
action where an employee: 

... has filed, caused to be filed, or is about the file (with any knowledge 
of the employer) or cause to be filed a proceeding relating to any violation or 
alleged violation of any order, regulation, or standard of the Federal Aviation 
Administration or any other provision of Federal law relating to air carrier 
safety under this subtitle [49 uses §40101, et seq.] or any other law of the 
United States. 

49 U.S.C. §42121(a)(2). The temporal proximity of Captain Estabrook's protected activity under 
§42121(a)(2) to the recent threats of psychiatric/medical evaluations, standing alone, establish a 
prima facie case of discriminatory motive. 

Still more recently, on August 9, 2013, Captain Estabrook sought to bring to the 
Company's attention that FedEx's policy of giving live tracking information relating to packages 
in transit would, albeit inadvertently, facilitate and maximize the criminal destruction of cargo, 
aircraft, and human lives, by granting terrorists the ability to carefully select the time of 
detonation. You letter of August 16 seeks to preserve FedEx's ability to retaliate against 
employees' raising these issues by suggesting that FedEx has no affirmative legal obligation to 
minimize the potential for such terrorist activity. This disturbing piece of sophistry must be laid 
to rest. 
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Federal law establishes the duty of every air carrier to : 

Provide for the safety of persons and property traveling on flights 
provided by the aircraft operator against acts of criminal violence 
and air piracy, and the introduction of explosives, incendiaries, or 
weapons aboard an aircraft. 

49 CFR § 1544.207( c )(1 ). This federal aviation safety standard, as it relates to cargo carriers, is 
reiterated in the following terms: 

Each aircraft operator operating under a full program or a full all-cargo 
program must use the procedures in its security program to control cargo that it 
accepts for transport on an aircraft in a manner that: 

(1) Prevents the carriage of any unauthorized person, and any unauthorized 
explosive, incendiary, or other destructive substance or item in cargo 
onboard an aircraft. 

49 CFR §1544.205(c). Under federal law, the carrier's objective is "to prevent or deter the 
carriage of any unauthorized persons, and any unauthorized explosives, incendiaries, and other 
destructive substances or items in cargo onboard an aircraft. 49 CFR § 1544.205(a) (emphasis 
supplied). Under FedEx's federal mandated security program, Captain Estabrook, as an in-flight 
security coordinator, is directed: if you see something, say something. 49 CFR §§1544.101, et 
seq. 

It cannot be disputed that the meeting of August 9, 2013 was scheduled in response to 
Captain Estabrook's stated position that the Company's live package and flight tracking practice 
had the unfortunate result of encouraging terrorists to view FedEx as a particularly effective 
means of utilizing explosive, incendiary and other destructive devices by placing in the terrorists' 
hands the ability to select the most optimum timing for detonation. The conclusion that a 
Company policy that encourages the use ofFedEx as a terrorist vehicle violates the carrier's 
federal legal obligation to prevent and/or deter the carriage of destructive devices appears to be 
compelled by the plain language of the regulations. At minimum, this conclusion may arise from 
a good faith reading of the retaliatory language. In either case, the suggestion implicit in your 
August 6th letter that Fed Ex could retaliate with impunity against a person raising these safety 
issues is misplaced. 49 U.S.C. §42121(a). 

We are also ofthe opinion that FedEx's retaliatory action in response to a good faith effort by an 
in-flight coordinator to identify objects in the carrier's security program may violate the 
Company's obligations under§ 1540.105 ["No person may: (1) Tamper or interfere with, 
compromise, modify, attempt to circumvent, or cause a person to tamper or interfere with, 
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compromise, modify, or attempt to circumvent any security system, measure, or procedure 
implemented under this subchapter. 

Retaliatory Action 

As discussed at greater length in our letter to you dated August 13, 2013, Captain 
Estabrook presented his safety concerns at a meeting August 9, 2013, ostensibly scheduled for 
that purpose. The recitations in your letter of August 16, 2013, about the events of August 9, 
2013 are inaccurate and incomplete. During the meeting of August 9, 2013, you asserted 
Captain William McDonald, FedEx Managing Director/System Chief Pilot, believed and 
reported to you that my client was "Mayday Mark." You then explained to my client that you 
were obligated to explore whether my client was "Mayday Mark." Management representatives 
made no response to Captain Estabrook's safety concern other than to pepper him with questions 
concerning his health. 

The sole rationale proffered by the Company for these health injuries was the attribution 
to Captain Estabrook of internet communications by a purported FedEx pilot posting under the 
sobriquet "Mayday Mark." Management representatives had in their possession numerous pages 
of highlighted postings and asked pressing questions concerning their contents, including 
references to a transient ischemic attack. During the entire course of the August 9th meeting, the 
Company raised no other basis for questioning Captain Estabrook's medical status. 

Captain Estabrook denied that he was "Mayday Mark" and the Company's August 161
h 

letter confirms FedEx's abandonment of its efforts to ascribe these postings to Captain 
Estabrook. Not surprisingly, Captain Rob Fisher, Manager Fleet Operations- A300/310, 
advised Captain Estabrook at the end of the meeting that he would be returned to flying status. 

Notwithstanding the utter implosion of the "Mayday Mark" postings as a rationale for 
subjecting Captain Estabrook to his removal from flying status and psychiatric/medical 
evaluation, Captain Estabrook was subsequently telephoned and informed by Captain Fisher that 
"FedEx Security insisted that his flying status remain suspended until he submitted to a 
psychiatric evaluation." When my client asked Captain Fisher why Security was asking for this 
evaluation, after it had been determined earlier in the day that he was being returned to flying 
status, Fisher responded "all they said was is you know too much." Your August 16th letter also 
demands that Captain Estabrook submit to a medical evaluation, but provides no explanation for 
this demand. And then again in a separate letter dated August 16, 2013, and delivered to my 
client on August 19, 2013, Captain Fisher directed Captain Estabrook to contact Dr. Thomas 
Bettes regarding a medical appointment no later than Wednesday, August 21, 2013, leaving little 
time to consult with his legal counsel. Captain Fisher claims in the same letter that FedEx has a 
"reasonable basis" to direct the medical exam, but does not provide the source or justification of 
that basis or identify the alleged impairment as required by the Collective Bargaining 
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letter confinns FedEx's abandonment of its efforts to ascribe these postings to Captain 
Estabrook. Not sW'prisingly, Captain Rob Fisher, Manager Fleet Operations - A300/310, 
advised Captain Estabrook at the end of the meeting that he would be returned to flying status. 

Notwithstanding the utter implosion of the "Mayday Mark" postings as a rationale for 
subjecting Captain ESlabrook to his removal from flying status and psychiatric/medical 
evaluation, Captain Estabrook was subsequently telephoned and infonned by Captain Fisher that 
"FedEx Security insisted that his flying status remain suspended until he submitted to a 
psychiatric evaluation." When my client asked Captain Fisher why Security was asking for this 
evaluation. after it had been detetmined earlier in the day that he was being returned to flying 
status, Fisher responded "all they said was is you know too much." Your August 161J>. Ietter also 
dcmands that Captain Estabrook submit to a medical evaluation, but provides no explanation fo r 
this demand. And then again in a separate letter dated August 16, 2013, and delivered to my 
client on August 19,2013, Captain Fisher directed Captain Estabrook to contact Dr. Thomas 
Bettes regarding a medical appointment no later than Wednesday, August 21, 2013, leaving little 
time to consult with his legal counsel. Captain Fisher claims in the same letter that FedEx. has a 
"reasonable basis" to direct the medical exam, but does not provide the source or justification of 
that basis or identify the alleged impainnent as required by the Collective Bargaining 
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Agreement. Captain Estabrook is in possession of a current and valid FAA First Class Medical 
Certificate, which was submitted to the Company in a timely fashion as per the CBA. 

On its face, the Company's actions and demands constitute discriminatory action in 
response to protected activity under AIR-21. 

Contract Violations 

Section 15 .D provides that specified management representatives may direct a pilot to contact or 
see the Company's aeromedical advisor if the Company has a "reasonable basis" to question the 
pilot has an impairment to this ability to perform duties as a pilot. A medical evaluation may 
only be directed by the aeromedical advisor and only after a meeting with the pilot. Section 
15.G provides Flight Management (or anyone other than the Company aeromedical advisor) may 
not require a pilot to submit to a psychological or psychiatric examination." 

The Company sought to compel psychiatric/medical evaluation based on the "Mayday 
Mark" postings. Now that this justification has been exposed as pretextual, the Company seeks 
to demand said evaluation without any stated basis whatsoever - reasonable or unreasonable. 
Moreover, demands for the psychiatric/medical evaluation appear to be emanating from Labor 
Relations, Flight Management, and Security- anywhere but from the aeromedical advisor after a 
meeting with Captain Estabrook. 

The CBA states clearly that management may only direct the pilot to see the Company 
aeromedical advisor and that this directive may issue if, and only if, it has a "reasonable basis" 
for believing that a pilot is suffering from an impairment. Thus, the Company's actions 
constitute a violation ofthe CBA, including, but not limited to, Sections 15.D and 15.G. We 
hereby grieve the Company's actions and request that the Company cease and desist from its 
actions in violation of the CBA and provide Captain Estabrook with make whole relief, i.e., 
immediate return to flight status and withdrawing the request for a medical evaluation of Captain 
Estabrook. 

If the Company intends to press forward with its demands for a psychiatric/medical 
evaluation, we hereby request that it provide a written explanation of its "reasonable basis" for 
suspecting that Captain Estabrook is suffering from an impairment and identify the witnesses and 
the documentary information (including all electronic documents and correspondence on which 
it relies, including, but not limited to those emails from and between Captain William McDonald 
and Captain Robert Fisher, FedEx Security personnel, FedEx Legal Department and all FedEx 
management copied in the correspondence involving Captain Mark Estabrook's actions this 
calendar year). This documentation should include all audiotapes involving Captain Estabrook, 
the FedEx Duty Officer, the Global Operations Control Center and FedEx management relating 
to the above referenced incident of April 10, 20 13, as well as all audio tape recordings made on 
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